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Disclaimer Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements about the per- \
formance and management plans of Marubeni Corporation and its

Group companies, based on management’s assumptions in light of . - *

current information. The following factors may therefore influence h ]
actual results. These factors include consumer trends in Japan and in

major global markets, private capital expenditures, currency fluctu-

ations, notably against the U.S. dollar, materals prices, and politicat /

turmoil in certain countries and regions. I
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Our Commitment
to the Market

Every time Marubeni announces its forecast for consolidated net
income, it is renewing its unwavering commitment to the market.
Having consistently achieved our net income forecasts for the past
five consecutive fiscal years, we take great pride in fulfilling our
promises—a principle integral to our corporate culture. In fiscal 2006,
ended March 31, 2007, we initiated the “G” PLAN, a two-year medium-term
management plan aimed at further enhancing the Group’s profitability and
establishing an earnings structure based on a well-balanced portfolio com-
posed of resource-related and nonresource-related businesses. In imple-
menting this plan, the Group’s ultimate goal is to become a corporate
group that is capable of achieving stable and sustainable growth.
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A Balance Between
Offense and Defense

Under the “G” PLAN, Marubeni has identified a debt to equity (D/E) ratio
factor of the targeted range of more than two and less than three
times as an acceptable balance between offensive and defensive business
initiatives. Our goal is to maintain optimal leverage while undertaking
aggressive investment. Individual projects should be leveraged based on
a thorough assessment of risk, giving due consideration to capital efficiency.
Maintaining this D/E ratio, Marubeni will continue to take full advantage of
its unique strengths as a general trading company.




Clear Investment
Standards

Marubeni uses such quantitative investment assessment indicators as
Internal Rates of Return (IRR) and considers the terms of individual
investments, the recovery period and Profit after Tax less Risk Asset
Cost (PATRAC) when making investment decisions. This approach enables
it to select only projects with high-yield return prospects. The IRR clarifies
the expected return on a cash flow basis and the term of an investment
influences the speed of investment recovery while PATRAC reveals the dif-
ference between risk return (PAT or consolidated net income) and the mini-
mum risk return target (RAC) related to a specific risk asset. In addition to
such metrics, perpetual monitoring and periodic follow-ups help us to con-
tinually improve our position and ability to detect and respond to problems.
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Risk Return

- 18.6.

Beginning with the “A"” PLAN, Marubeni
has worked diligently to dispose of under-
performing assets while building up its
prime asset portfolio. In addition to the
steady improvement in asset quality,
Marubeni has benefited from persistent
favorable global conditions and sharp
rises in commodity prices. Buoyed by
these favorable conditions, the value of
risk to return (consolidated net income =
risk assets) improved significantly, rising
from 12.9% in fiscal 2005 to 18.6% in the
fiscal year under review.

Risk Retnrn




Sound Risk Control

Policies

To bolster risk management, Marubeni has adopted an integrated

risk management system that manages risk by means of a common
measure, Value at Risk (VaR). VaR measures the maximum potential
decline in the risk value of assets (risk assets), an amount equivalent
to required capital. Reflecting the steady increase in core capital, share-
holders’ equity exceeded risk assets at the end of fiscal 2006. Looking
ahead, Marubeni will continue to manage overall risk assets at an amount
covered by total shareholders’ equity, thereby offsetting any possibility of
capital deficit in the event of maximum loss.

Shareholders’ Equity versus Net Risk Assets

¥74: 5.5 billion vs. ¥64:2.5 billion

As of March 31, 2007, net risk assets, the
theoretical value of maximum loss, stood
at ¥642.5 billion. A ¥69.9 billion increase
from the previous fiscal year-end, the
improved value can be partly attributed
to Marubeni’s aggressive stance toward
new investments and loans. Moreover,
growth in shareholders’ equity far out-
weighed the increase in net risk assets,

widening the risk buffer to ¥103.0 billion.

In addition, preferred shares issued in
fiscal 2003 were converted to common
stock during fiscal 2006. As a result,
Marubeni’s shareholders’ equity account
has enjoyed an improvement not only in
value but in overall composition.

Shareholders’ Equity / Net Risk Assets

i(Biltions of yen)
800.0

- 700.0
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Eleven-Year Summary

Marubeni Corporation
Years endod March 31

2007 2006 2005 2004
For the year:
Revenues:
Revenues from trading and other activities ................. ¥3,467,925 ¥2 949,058 ¥2,847,455 ¥2 622 546
Commissions on services and trading margins............ 190,930 190,787 161,108 148,674
TOTAL. ot iviiviericie bbb e s s rne e eenee e 3,658,855 3,139,845 3,035,563 2,771,220
Total volume of trading transactions...........cc.cooeveeeeennn. 9,554,943 8,686,532 7,936,348 7,902,494
Gross trading profit ..o 531,171 502,024 433,395 406,761
Net iNCOME (085) .voeiieee it ce e etr e srrr s sve e rne s rmae e 119,349 73,801 41,247 34,565
At year-end:
TOLAL ASSBLS w.ovvveivicrieeieete e e et ee e ree et et e ae st ebeeaeen 4,873,304 4,587,072 4,208,037 4,254,194
Net interest-hearing debt. ..o 1,843,445 1,876,350 1,823,909 1,969,323
Total shareholders’ QUItY ..o 745,454 663,787 443,152 392 982
Amounts per 100 shares (¥, US$):
Basic earnings (1085 ...cciviiiivrivirienrrer e seeennceenee e anees ¥ 7241 ¥ 4834 ¥ 2,661 ¥ 2,285
Diluted earnings {l0SS) ... erre e ires e 6,885 4,046 2,231 2,016
Cash divIdends .......oooiviiee e 1,000 700 400 300
Cash flows (for the year):
Net cash provided by operating activities.........cccoceeenen ¥ 162,075 ¥ 133,408 ¥ 173,824 ¥ 201,560
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities .......... (135,147 {193,781) 46,043 57,983
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .......... 24,819 (46,037) (238,067 (233,938)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ........ccccevvecennnnn 414,952 368,936 459,194 478,731
Ratios:
Return on assets () ..ot 2.5 1.7 1.0 0.8
Return on equity (30 oo 16.9 13.3 9.9 10.6
Shareholders’ equity to total assets (%) ..o 15.3 14.5 105 9.2
Net DVE ratio (HIMeS)Y oo e e 2.5 28 4.1 5.0

Notes: 1, The presentation of earnings is pursuant 1o lssue 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Not as an Agent,” published by the Finaneial Aceounting Standards
Board's Emnerging Issues Task Force. Earnings have also been disclosed in accordance with US GAAP since 2000
2. For the convenience of investors in Japan, the presentation of net sales is consistent with customary accounting practices in Japan.
4. 11.5. dollar amounts above and elsewhere in this report are converled from yen, for convenience onty, at ¥118 to US51, the prevailing rate as of March 31, 2007.

Net Income {Loss)
{Billions of Yen)

120,000

fﬂlrJ_rLuml

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007
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Thousands of
Millions of Yen 11.5. Dollars

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

¥2520531 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ M, — 29,389,195
160,636 — — — - — — 1,618,051
2,681,167 — — — — — — 31,007,246
8793303 8,972,245 9436863 10222442 11,960,157 13640517 13,969,077 80,974,093
424,643 436,804 479,754 453,496 522,356 534,485 496,550 4,501,449
30,312 (116,418) 15,036 2,060 (117,729) 17,230 20,113 1,011,432
4321482 4805669 5320604 5584,353 6,511,841 7,388,101 7,550,347 41,299,186
2264,117 2712906 3,089,839 3328437 3966471 4432159 4555208 15,622,415
260,051 963,895 342,297 324,301 354,017 475,253 512,929 6,317,407
Y 2030 ¥ (7,792) ¥ 1006 ¥ 138 ¥ (7.880) ¥ 1,153 ¥ 1346 61,364
1,896 (7,792) 940 138 (7,880 1,064 1,289 58,347
300 — — — 300 600 600 8,475
¥ 194788 ¥ 198456 ¥ 179305 ¥ 184701 ¥ 232414 ¥ 254221 ¥ 24308 1,288,771
113,241 74,504 187,993 257,006 99,101 (58,769) 66,036 (1,145,314)
(294,001)  (150,104)  (456,125) (594,878)  (213,321) (91,879)  (209,412) 210,331
466,511 466,642 329,811 405,308 579,366 480,825 373,015 3,516,542

0.7 — 0.3 0.0 — 0.2 0.3

11.6 — 45 0.6 — 35 38

6.0 55 6.4 5.8 5.4 6.4 6.8

8.7 10.3 9.0 10.3 112 9.3 8.9

Common Stock Price Range [ Tokyo Stock Exchange)
(Yem)

§‘§|§|§§§§

=

=

=3

" 4997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
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To Qur
Stakeholders

Empowered by the slogan “toward further achievement,” Marubeni has taken significant
strides in the implementation of the “G” PLAN, its medium-term management plan. From an
earnings perspective, consolidated net income surged 62% year on year, to ¥119.3 billion, in
fiscal 2006, the first year of the “G” PLAN and the fourth consecutive fiscal year of record
profit growth. In terms of the Group’s balance sheet, ROA, a key measure of efficient asset
use, rose 0.84 of a percentage point from the end of the previous fiscal year to 2.52%. In the
same period, the consolidated net D/E ratio improved 0.36 points to 2.47 as of March 31,
2007. Based on these solid results, we are better positioned to achieve the principal goal of
the “G” PLAN, to secure a stable earnings base through the accumulation of prime assets and
realization of maximum efficiency. With five consecutive {iscal yvears of achieving the profit
forecasts set at the beginning of each fiscal period, our commitment to fulfilling every one of
our promises has become a well entrenched part of the Group’s underlying corporate culture.
As we continue to lay a solid foundation for growth, we are building increased market confidence
and trust in the Marubeni brand.

While we have assumed an offensive posture toward growth in our operating scope, we are
also conscious of the need to maintain optimal batance through defensive measures. Accordingly,
Marubeni is fortifying its management systems, which include corporate governance, internal
control, risk management and compliance. In addition, we are actively pursuing CSR activities

in order to ensure our harmonious coexistence with society and secure mutual sustainable
growth. These activities include the trading of emissions credits, production of bioenergy and
pursuit of initiatives that contribute to environmental protection.

While encouraged by the positive mindset and momentur that has developed within the
Group, | will endeavor to foster a greater sense of urgency and enthusiasm toward the tasks
that lie ahead. In fiscal 2007, the final year of the “G” PLAN, I look forward to achieving all
established numerical targets with increased confidence and pride. Striding toward the post
“G" PLAN era and the next medium-term plan, we will hot falter as we pursue new challenges
and aim for even higher targets in our drive toward taking an unprecedented leap forward.

As we face the future, each and every member of the Marubeni Group is united in their
commitment to further enhancing corporate value and fulfiliing the expectations of stakeholders.
As we work toward achieving our goals, we ask for your continued support and understanding.

ﬂ‘/ﬁ«/e«/ﬂb

NOBUO KATSUMATA, President and CEO

June 2007
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Interview with the President and CEO

Question 1

Roundup of the “G" PLAN

Marubeni launched its latest two-year medium-term
management plan, the “G” PLAN, in April 2006. Can you
explain your progress under the PLAN and prospects for
achieving established objectives?

A: We have progressed under the PLAN at an unexpectedly fast pace. I
am confident we will achieve all of the PLAN’s numerical objectives.

Buoyed by the success of efforts to lay a solid foundation in terms of profitability and balance-sheet
strength, Marubeni launched the two-year “G” PLAN in April 2006 with the aims of securing future
growth and greater glory. Having passed the halfway mark of this PLAN, we are well placed to achieve
all established numerical targets.

Marubeni’s consolidated net income performance is particularly pleasing. In addition to being the
fourth consecutive fiscal year to yield record results, fiscal 2006 was the first year in which we sur-
passed ¥100.0 billion in conselidated net income. At our current pace, we are well placed to achieve
the two-year “G” PLAN target. of ¥220.0 billion. While strong global economic conditions and positive
trends in commodities markets made for a favorable operating environment, [ am convinced that our
aggressive stance Loward new investinent and loans over recent years as well as our comprehensive
review of inefficient operations and efforts to nurture growth in highly profitable prime assets played a
significant role in Marubeni's excellent perforimance. As a result, we enjoyed substantial improvement
in ROA, a key asset efficiency indicator. From a figure of less than 1.0% in fiscal 2004, ROA rose to
1.7% in fiscal 2005 and 2.5% in fiscal 2006. Thus, Marubeni achieved the 2.0% or more target set for
fiscal 2007. From a balance-sheet perspective as well, we are enjoying continued gains; the net D/E
ratio stood at 2.47 times as of March 31, 2007, compared with approximately 5.0 times as of March 31,
2004. This is an improvemnent on the “G” PLAN target, which is a net D/E ratio of less than 3.0 times.

From both the profit and balance-sheet strength perspectives, Marubeni has seen significant
progress at a fast. pace. Based on our forecasts for fiscal 2007 and an estimated year-on-year increase
of 13%, to ¥135.0 bil-
lion, in consolidated net

income, [ have strong

Consolidated Net Income Shareholders’ Equity
“G" PLAN target  FY2006 “G" PLAN target FY2006 expectations that the
TNl ¥119.3 v o Total Asscts Group will surpass all of
| v o o ac:i'::?:d ¥82 i | ¥745.5 nillion “G" PLAN target  FY2006 > oup : ! _
---------------------------- pr its established numeri-
— - T T Y4900 biliion cal targets
Risk Return Risk Assets gets.
“G" PLAN target FY2006 “G" PLAN target FY2006
............... . e
Morethan | Appror., i
0% | 18.6% YR ¥642.5 bion
Investment
ROA Consolidated Net D/E Ratio “G" PLAN target FY2006
“G" PLAN target FY2006 “G" Eﬂr:{ target FY2006 : ¥500-¥600 piion ; Commitment base
............... - L k] i Twoyeartetal | soorer. ¥300 bitlion
Mor } YT | ! kesshan O YR | T
2:?" f 2.52% 3"56‘::::, 2.A7 times
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Question 2 Marubeni’s earnings structure appears heavily weighted
toward the energy and natural resource development

fields. The recent increase in natural resource prices,
however, seems to have hit a lull, Will you be able to sus-
tain earnings growth, and which fields do you expect will
figure most prominently in the future?

A Maintaining optimal balance between its resource- and nonresource-
related businesses and operations that remain unaffected by shifts
in market conditions are key strengths of the Marubeni Group.

This is a point that is coramonly misunderstood and I would like to take this opportunity to clarify the
nature of Marubeni’s operations. It is true that the sharp rises in commodity prices, including for crude
oil and copper, over the past four or five years have had a significant positive impact on the Group’s
performance and earnings. At the same time, the wide-ranging nature of the Group’s business activities
and the balance maintained between resource- and nonresource-related operations as well as its earn-
Ings structure remain key features and strengths of the Marubeni Group. In reality, resource-related
risk-adjusted assets as of March 31, 2007 comprised only around 20% of total assets, which barely
constitutes an overemphasis on this field.

From a profit perspective, net income derived from resource-related fields comprised approximate-
ly 60% of the Group’s total earnings in fiscal 2005. This is attributed to the replacement of underperform-
ing assets in nonresource-related activities. In fiscal 2006, this ratio fell to 47% and, based on conserva-
tive estimates for resource prices (crude oil US$55; copper US$6,000), is expected to fall to 30% in fiscal
2007. 1 am confident that we will further improve the balance of resource- and nonresource-related
activities on an earnings structure basis.

In overall terms, we believe that in fiscal 2007 we will see commodity prices fall from their fiscal
2006 peak levels. Moreover, we anticipate that the nonresource fields will prove 1o be the primary
engines {or future profit growth. In particular, we expect profit, to be driven by new investments made
over the past four or five years in power projects, transportation and industrial machinery and plants,
traditionally areas of considerable strength for the Group, as well as in such areas as agri-marine prod-
ucts and pulp and paper. We thus anticipate significant increases in revenues and earnings in fiscal
2007 and beyond. Nevertheless, we are confident that rescurce-related operations will remain an inte-
gral part. of the Group’s activities. In addition to cash flows generated from existing production inter-

ests, Marubeni will continue to
proactively consider such new
Business Portfolio & Earnings Structure projects as urarium mining in

Total Assets Net Income Kazakhstan as sources of future
long-terin earnings growth,

. )/K
\@J

*Data includes overseas subsidiaries and affiliated companies, cosporate and eliminabons.
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Question 3 Marubeni’s results are indeed im.pressive. 'Could you tell
us, however, of any risks you believe may impact the
Group’s future performance?

A: Sudden and sharp shifts in the commodities, interest rate and for-
eign exchange markets have the potential to impact the Marubeni
Group’s future performance. We have, however, a management sys-
tem in place that effectively manages these and other risks and con-
tains their impact within established boundaries.

As a trading house with operations that span the world, Marubeni keeps abreast of global economic
trends, particularly where they affect such countries as the United States and China. Even factoring in
the oceasional market adjustment, we believe that the overall global economy will continue to enjoy
stable rates of growth with little likelihood of a major deterioration,

Having said this, it is generally recognized that sudden and sharp shifts in the commodities, interest
rate and foreign exchange markets could potentially impact the fortunes of a trading company. Build-
ing on its past experiences, Marubeni has established a management system that enables the Group
to monitor, address and follow up on a wide variety of risks and to limit their impact to within
acceptable levels.

In the commodities market, as explained previously, the Marubeni Group manages risk by maintain-
ing optimal balance in its asset portfolic and earnings structure. For commodities that are particularly
susceptible to the impact of market risks, we conduct due diligence on all new investment projects
based on conservative estimates of commodity prices, prudent quantitative assessment criteria and
strict IRR guidelines. We also adopt suitable hedge techniques to offset the risks associated with
futures markets.

With regard to interest rates, the Marubeni Group adheres strictly to a policy of asset-liability man-
agement based on multiple scenarios in order to flexibly offset increases in the cost of debt financing.
Historically, trading companies have experienced profit growth during periods of interest rate appreci-
ation. In general terms, Marubeni is confident that during periods of economic growth it will be abie to
secure profits that will sufficiently offset increases in financial expenses. On this basis, we do not con-
sider interest rate fluctuations to pose a major risk.

In the management of its foreign exchange currency risk, Marubeni makes full use of a variety of

financial instruments and techniques. Also, to minimize

FY2007 Assumptions Underpinning Yearly the impact of exchange rate movements, risks are

Forecasts and Price Sensitivity passed on to trading partners as and when applicable.

Foreign Exchange Rate Given the large number of overseas companies and
V115 = US§1.00 interests held by the Group, we acknowledge the impact
Rate fluctuations of as little as ¥ can raise or lower consolidated net i . .
income approximately Y500 milion-¥600 million (on a yearly basis) on consolidated results of converting income denomi-

oil nated in foreign currencies. We are confident that our
US$55/Barrel t ] dd thi d
Fluctuations of as little as US$1/Barrel can raise or lower consolidated management systefus are adequate to address this an
net income approximately ¥800 milion {on a yearty basis) other risks.

Copper
US$6,000/MT

Fluctuations of as little as US$100/MT can raise or lower consolidated
net incoma approximately Y200 million (on a yearly basis)
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Question 4

As a stepping stone to future growth, Marubeni has ear-
marked between ¥500.0 billion and ¥600.0 billion for new
investment during the two-year term of the “G” PLAN.
Please give us an update on the status of new investment
activities. The acquisition of The Daiei, Inc. is one example
of a large-scale investment project. Can you please tell us
about a major project in fiscal 2006 and the purpose for
this investment?

A: Consistent with our initial plan, we have completed investments
totaling approximately ¥300.0 billion. Marubeni is steadily increas-
ing its balance of prime assets and developing a balanced portfolio
from both the business sector and geographic perspectives.

In fiscal 2006, the first year under the “G” PLAN, Marubeni increased its equity stake in Daiei.

Bolstering its traditional strengths in nonresource-related activities, Marubeni also acquired Mirant

Asia Pacific Limited, the Philippines’ largest IPP, as well as a paper distribution company in the United

States and afforestation interests in Brazil. In resource-related activities, we participated in a uranium

project in Kazakhstan. As a result of these initiatives, new investments in the fiscal year under review

totaled approximately ¥300.0 billion. Our participation in a uranium project is also indicative of our

efforts to diversify our development portfolio. At the same time, we are supplementing our activities in

such mainstay resources as crude ofl and copper and exploring opportunities across a broad cross sec-

tion of regions. In this manner, we are ensuring a balanced portfolic while diversifying inherent, risks.

On an individual business segment basis, in fiscal 2006 Marubeni undertook investments totaling

¥110.0 billion in energy, natural resource development, overseas IPP and other projects, ¥160.0 billion

EeldsithatiRurthegReinforce
thelGroupSiHobust
Business]blatiorm

1st Priority Investments

Fields that Further Expand

and Develop Marubeni’s
Sotid Profit Base

Expanding Functions

thrrough Strategic
Maneuvers

Rielasknatffargetiine
(GreatiofoiewlBiSinesses!

f Promoting
; New Businesses

Energy and Natural Resource
Development

Investment in beth production
and davelopment projects

Food and Agri-Marine Products

Agri-Marine Products: Strengthening
logistics solutions and overseas
production sources, penetration
of overseas consumer markets

1 Foods: Reintorcerment of food
distribution

Heafthcare

Establishing tha Life Care
Business Department for the
strategic development and
expansion ot health care
businesses and businesses
targeting the elderty

i Overseas Indepandent Power
Producer Projects

Acquiring prime assets to
expand the global portfolio

Pulp, Paper and Chemicals

Expanding the value chain from
materials 1o include products for
and sales to Asian markets,

Financial Services

Constructing and expanding
retail finance, lease finance,
REIT and fund businesses

strengths in project organzation
(project procurement, financing
arrangement, project
management, etc.}

aspecially China
Machinery and Plant Environment-Related Businesses
Development projecis utfizing our Prometing envircnment-related

busingssas, including emissions
credit trading, alternative energy
and wind power projects

in agri-marine products, pulp and
paper, chemicals, industrial machinery
and plant-related activities and ¥30.0
billion in healthcare, financing services
and the environment. The Compary
also entered into a loan agreement
with Petroleo de Venezuela S.A. total-
ing US$3.5 billion and acquired
Midwest Railcar Corporation, a medium-
sized U.S.-based freight railcar lease
company. Working to further expand
the scope of its business activities,
Marubeni acquired a biomass renew-
able energy power plant and pursued
opportunities in environmental busi-
nesses, including emissions credit
trading. Through such investment, we
are steadily expanding our prime asset
portfolio across an increasing number
of diverse fields.
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In fiscal 2007, Marubeni is continuing to actively pursue a host of potential investment opportuni-
ties, mainly in strategic fields. As a result, we are on track to complete new investments and loans of
approximately ¥500.0 billion to ¥600.0 billion over the two-year period of the “G” PLAN. The seeds
sown curing this period are expected to bear fruit from fiscal 2008 and beyond and provide the basis
for sustained growth for the Group cverall.

- . CSR is a key component of the “G” PLAN and Marubeni’s
Quesnon 5 | efforts to secure sustainable growth. What are your thoughts
on CSR and the initiatives Marubeni intends to pursue?

A: Expanding the scope of our business activities and promoting CSR
are much like the wheels of a car. Both are essential to progress and
the realization of sustainable growth. Marubeni will strengthen its
activities in each of these areas. '

The Marubeni Group is bolstering its CSR activities across a variety of fields, including corporate gov-
ernance, compliance, human rights, corporate citizenship, the environment and information disclosure.
At Marubeni, we do not view CSR as an obligation. [n carrying out its CSR activities, Marubeni is in fact,
enhancing the soundness and strength of its management systems. CSR activities also provide the
means by which we can earn the respect of society as a good corporate citizen and develop in harmo-
nious coexistence with the cornmunities we serve. | am, therefore, convinced that the proactive pro-
motion of CSR activities ultimately ensures our corporate soundness and enables us to maintain a
structure for sustainable growth.

Details of the Marubeni Group's CSR activities are presented in its CSR Report,* which is published
each year. As a part of its CSR activities in fiscal 2006, Marubeni strengthened its management systems
and compliance structure and broadened the scope of its internal control systems.

CSR is an integral component of Marubeni’s overall business activities and facilitates growth in the
Group’s operating domain. For example, we actively promote businesses that contribute to environ-
mental protection through operations involving such new energy fields as biomass ethanol, bio-diesel,
fuel cells, and wind- and solar-power generation. We are also expanding our recycling activities, which
include such items as wastepaper, plastic bottles, personal computers and uniforms. Furthermore,
Marubeni is a major player in the CO; emissions credit field comprising afforestation as well as emis-
sions credit trading.

In the afforestation business, for example, Marubeni owns a total of approximately 380,000
hectares—an area nearly twice the size of the Tokyo Metropolitan area—in Indonesia, Australia, Brazil
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and other countries. Marubeni also engages in emissions credit trading, which includes chlorofluorocar-
bon and nitrous coxide decomposition, water- and wind-power generation and waste heat recovery,
boasting a gross trading volume of 60 million tons, In each of these fields Marubeni holds a leading posi-
tion among Japanese trading houses.

* Please refer to the Company’s website for a copy of its CSR Report. URL: http://www. marubeni.canvesr/reports.html

- Marubeni has announced a cash dividend payout ratio
Quesuon 6 target of 15% from fiscal 2007. How did the Company
arrive at this target and what is its policy toward the
future distribution of profits to shareholders?

A Buoyed by steady earnings growth, we will endeavor to further
clarify our policy toward the future distribution of profits to
shareholders.

Efforis to increase and effectively utilize retained earnings are important management responsibilities.
Marubheni is committed to maximizing corporate value and competitiveness while at the same time
delivering continuous stable dividends to shareholders.

Since the implementation of the “V” PLAN, Marubeni has enjoyed a continuous stream of increased
profits. Under these conditions, we decided to adopt a policy for the return of profits to sharcholders |
that better reflects the Group’s consolidated performance in each period. On this basis, Marubeni has ‘
sel the cash dividend payout ratio at 15%, which incorporates the Group's shift toward an aggressive
posture that focuses on strategies that expand earnings and considerations for retained earnings
growth together with stable and increasing returns to shareholders. The decision to disclose the divi-
dend payout ratio was also the result of changes to Marubeni’s Articles of Incorporation ratified at the
Company's Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2006. Following the amendment to its Articles
of Incorporation, Marubeni’s Board of Directors can now determine the payment of dividends. On this
basis, we believe full disclosure is paramount.

At the beginning of fiscal 2006, Marubeni announced an annual cash dividend forecast of ¥9 per
share. Based on the Group’s excellent restills and the persistent trend toward growth in profitability,
Marubeni has decided to pay a cash dividend of ¥10 per share for fiscal 2006, an increase of ¥3 com-
pared with the previous fiscal year. Turning to profits in fiscal 2007, Marubeni has forecast consolidated
net income of ¥135 hillion. In accordance with the cash dividend payout ratio of 15%, this equates to
an annual cash dividend payment of ¥12 per share, an increase of ¥2 year on year.
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- Marubeni will celebrate its 150th anniversary in 2008,
Quesnon 7 With a history that extends over a century and a half, the
Group’s business model has evolved to reflect societal
changes and trends. What do you see as Marubeni’s direc-
tion for the future, and can you describe the strengths
that differentiate the Group from its competitors?

A: Generating a consistent stream of trading profits from a robust
value chain through aggressive investment is the source of
Marubeni’s sustainable growth.

The Marubeni Group is engaged in investment as well as business development activities. Because we
are a trading house, however, our business model differs significantly from that of an investment bank.
Our focus when investing in diverse and wide-ranging business fields is on not only each project’s
investment return but also our ahility to maximize our trading house functions and capabilities, to
build a robust value chain that encompasses upstream through downstream operations and to generate
substantial levels of trade-related earnings. A distinguishing feature of our business model is therefore
the ability to combine both investment and trade that is unaffected by fluctuations in market condi-
tions as a source of long-term sustainable growth.

Marubeni’s investment in Daiei is a prime example. With food safety an increasingly important con-
cemn for consumers, our ability to provide invaluable feedback to upstream operations, including raw
material procurers, is a significant resource enabling the development of products that accurately
address consumer needs. This robust value chain is a considerable strength of the Marubeni Group and
a key source of competitive advantage. We have also stolen the jump on a number of rivals by estab-
lishing similar business models in the overseas 1PP, pulp and paper and machinery and plant fields as
well as in such environmental businesses as emissions credit trading and alternative energy. Looking
ahead, we have high expectations for sustained growth in each of these fields.

I do not believe the fundamental principles and direction of this business model will change as we
move ahead. This comes from an understanding that value is a product of a company’s ability Lo serve
the needs of society irrespective of the era and changes in market conditions. As a trading house with
a broad value chain, Marubeni recognizes the essential need to fully address society’s demands while at
the same time securing sustainable growth as the means to enhance corporate value and fulfill the
expectations of stakeholders.

In order to support this business model, Marubeni must fully utilize its comprehensive and collec-
tive capabilities as a general trading house. Our greatest strength is our experienced and knowledge-
able staff. It is up to each and every employee, however, to overcome the harriers of individual respon-
sibility and duty so that they may take advantage of synergies and the wealth of options the Marubeni
Group offers. In this context, we established the Cross-Divisional Function Committee in fiscal 2006 Lo
promote alliances and capture syriergies among business divisions. We have also introduced an incen-
tive system that rewards employees for specific proposals and initiatives and have endeavored to raise
employee awareness to promote the maximum use of trading house functions that apply horizontally
across the Group.
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3 What initiatives and direction will the Marubeni Group
QueStlon 8 take after completing the “G” PLAN?

A: In order for us to take the next dynamic leap forward, we must
leverage our vast experience as a springboard for growth and for-
mulate a strategy without inhibition or restraint. Our next plan
will have significant impact on Marubeni’s future grand design.

Under the guidance of the “A" PLAN and “V” PLAN, the Marubeni Group has successfully disposed of
loss-making assets and completed a period of structural reform and revitalization. More recently, the
Group entered an upward spiral underpinned by the “G" PLAN, the Group’s current medium-term
management plan. Leveraging its robust earnings base, sound financial position and wealth of experi-
ence, Marubeni will now work toward further achievermnent based on a growth strategy. Relieved of pre-
existing inhibitions and restraints, Marubeni is poised to formulate new initiatives that are expected to
significantly shift the dynamics of the Group’s overall grand design. United in its efforts to hit the
ground running, the Marubeni Group is engrossed in preparations for the announcement of its new
medituin-term management plan in 2008.
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Fiscal 2006 Results:

Approximately ¥3 00 Billion™

In fiscal 2006, Marubeni undertook new investments and loans
amounting 1o approximately ¥300.0 billion. Among a host of
transactions in cach of its core business fields, Marubeni
acquired additional shares in The Daiei, Ine.; equity in the holding
company of the Philippines’ largest [PP™ business, Miranl Asia
Pacific Limited; a paper distribution company in the United
States; and alforestation assets in Brazil. In addition 1o invest-
ments in nonresource fields, a (raditional Marubeni strengih, the
Group participated in resource-related activities, including a ura-
nium project in Kazakhstan. Furthermore, Marubeni continued to
cnsure a diverse and balanced portiolio through the careful
acquisition of prime assets. In the liscal vear ending March 31,
2008, Marubeni will continue to adopt an aggressive slunce
toward new investiments and loans in an elfort to generste addi-
{ional profit and ensure sustained growth under the *G" PLAN
and bevond.

Flolels that target the creation
of new businesses

Fields that further reinforee
the Group's robust husiness
platlorm

Firlds that further expand and
develop Mirnhend's solid profit
bise

* Ineludes figures for projects for which {inal agreenents were coneluded during the
fiscal vear utiler review but for which the related payient of investuews atul
toans is scheduled for fiseal 2007 or beyond.

* 1PP: Independent Power Praducer
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Strategic Field

Energy &
Resources

t QOverseas IPPs

Fields that
further expand
and develop
Marubeni’s
solid profit base

Foods &
Agri-Marine
Products

Pulp, Paper &
Chemicals

Machinery &
Plant

mmdest (oe

@renifon of mew
IS ESSES!

B Financial
Services

K Environmental
Businesses

M Healthcare
N Other




Major Projects

@ Uranium project (Kazakhstan)
® NG (Qatar, Bguatorial Guinea)

Participation in a uraniinm mining and production project in Kazakhstan

L . . . . . | . . .
Additional investment, in LNG prajects in Qatar and Equaiorial Guinea

@ Mirant Asia Pacific Limited (MAPL)
(The Philippines)
® Sithe Korea Holdings Limited (Korea)

Acquisition of MAPL, the holding company of the largest 1P]” business
in the Philippines

Lquity in The Daiei, Inc. (lapan)
Acquisition of AKON Co., Ltd. stock (Japan)

[mpletnentation of revitalization measuares

Yuema International Co., (Cayman) Lid.
(China)

Amapa FFlorestal e Celulose 5. A, (AMCEL)
(Brazil)

Intragrated Resource Holdings, Inc. (IRH)
(U.S.AD

Equity participation in the paperboard business of the Long Chen Paper
Group in Taiwan

Acquisition of AMCEL, a company engaged in afforestion, woocl chip
production and biomass fuel export activities in Brazil

Acquisition of IRH. a company engaged in the sale of printing paper and
printing consulting

Aguas Decima S AL (Chile)

Financial support to Petroleo de
Venezuela S A (PDVSA) (Venezuela)

Ship-refated business

Acquisition of Aguas Decimi, a water wtility business in Chile

Loan arrangements Lo PDVSA

® Fund investnient,

® Autonwbile retail finance (UJ.S.AL),
Equipment leasing (11.5.A.)

Acquisition of shares in Advantage Funding Managemens, Inc.,

an automohile leasing compiny

Acquiisition of CoActiv Capital Partners, LLEC, a company engaged in
vendor finance leasing for office equipment in the United States

® DG Encrgy Solutions (U.S.A)

Participation in an energy services business that utilizes diverse energy
supply [acilities in the United States

® Medicinal agent sales company

® Condominium development, ete.
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Agri-Marine Products
Revitalization of The Daiei, Inc.

In March 2005, Marubeni was selected, together with Advantage Partners, Inc., to participate in the private placement.
of new shares issued by The Daiei, Ine. In the ensuing period, we have worked with the Industrial Revitalization
Corporation of Japan (IRCJ) and Advantage Partners to realize the relaunch of Daiei. in August 2000, we acquired all
Daiei shares held by IRCI. As the largest shareholder in the company, we then sought to increase Daiei’s corporate
value, commencing negotiations for a capital and business alliance with AEON Co,, Ltd. in October 2000. Under an
agreement concluded in March 2007, AEON agreed to purchase a portion ol Marubeni’s Daiei shares as well as a
portion of Daiei's shares in The Maruetsu, Inc. Both Marubeni and AEON have also agreed to hold the shares mutually.

® Capital Alliance: AEON, Daiei and Marubeni

Operating revenues: ¥4,824-8 billion

{(Fiscal year ended Febuary 28, 2007)

Y
4U8% > 20.5% Transfer > > > 15.1%

30,0% Operating revenues: ¥ ;283-9 hillion . 21 .2%
(Fiscal year ended February 28, 2007)
ik, Ny
>T_ran fer > > >

Operating revenues: ¥327. 0 bﬂlmn (Fiscal year ended F‘ebnl.uv 8, 2007)
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Japan's food markets are increasingly driven by consumier tastes and demands that reflect significant change in
the operating environment. consistent, with a mature domestic economy and social strocture. Having identified food
distribution as a strategic field under the “G" PLAN, Marubeni is placing additional weight on activities in this area,
We are evaluating the needs of consumers and drawing direct links with midstream and upstream operations. Based
on these efforts, we are bullding a value chain that engages in the development, and procurement. of commaodities.

Marubeni recognizes that its ability to increase and maintain direct. contact with consumers is critical to success
inthe foad distribution segment. Our interest in Diaiei is therefore a key factor in refining our capabilities in this
arca. In addition to our traditional direct and indirect. product. delivery operations, we will leverage the unique capa-
bilities of a general trading company, which include cultiviting new areas of produce and raw-material production,
developing innovative products in collaboration with manufacturers and maxintizing benefits of scale. By promot-
ing joint procurement, development and sales, atilizing joint systems, straregically integrating logistics facilities and
sharing tenant and development information, we will create new business models in the retail sector that reflect the
diverse identity of a general trading company.

® Agri-Marine Products Business Value Chain

BN N Feedback from downstream operations

Upstream Downstream
Procurement N Retail Distribution
* Colinabia Grain International, Inc, ] . Whoiesale Distribution * The Daie, Inc.
(Gradn trading) Production and Processing * Nacx Nakamura Corporation (Operation of general
¢ Terlogs Tenuinal Maritimo Lida. * Marubeni “\'isshiq Feed Co., Lt (\\’IF«»-ltrs:tle, lmnfpo‘nmion anel |.nrm'v.~;‘.?'ing merchandise stores)
(Storage and loading of bulk (M;lnnl:u:llu;‘c ;1;)1(( sale of of frozen foods, refrigerated warehousing) « The Maruetsw, Ine
o el ne G wtiliveon cennpound feec , . . o )
vargoes, such as grain, fertilizer, ! = Yanmaboshiva Co., Lt (Supermarket chain)
vte.) * The Nisshin OilliO Growps, Lic {Wholesale of conlectionery) « Tobu Store Co.. Litl
(Dusiness velaed (o oil, ineal and obu store Co., L,

s [Lseguwa Co., Lidl, (Supermarket chaing

boeans, health foods and {fine Lo
(Confectionery wholesaler)

chemicats)

.-
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Power Projects

IPP PrOJect Partlclpatlon in Qatar

In October 2006, Marubeni was successful in bidding for selection as a foreign owner of the 2,000MW power plant
development in Mesaieed Industrial City near Doha, Qatar. The project is being undertaken on a Build, Own, Operate
and Transfer (BOOT) basis, with a 25-year power and waler sales agreement with the Qaiar General Electricity and
Water Corporation. It is one of the largest power generation operations to be acquired by an IPP in the Gulf region and
the success of the bid followed Marubeni's securing the Taweelah B power and waier project. in Abu Dhabi and the

Rabigh power, water and steam project. in Saudi Arabia. Half of the project’s total capacity, 2,000MW, is planned to go

on stream in 2008 with another 1,000MW expected in 2010. Being backed by a Qatar government-guarnnreed long-term

power and water sales agreententt, this is 2 promising project with long-tern, stable earnings.

Marubeni has been developing diversified businesses in Qatar, primarily related to LNG, since the 1930s. With

Qatar as an operating base, Marubeni is conunitted to ongoing investment there and in neighboring Gulf nations in an

effort to boost its presence in the region.

® Overseas Electricity Assets

YOUNGDUK, Korva (40MW) MIRAVALLES, Costa Rica (27MW)
YOS, Kovea (Steam anl CEDAR BAY. [.8.A. (250MW)
Thermal power RADES, Tunisia {471MW) (}{\A\-G“f(:,‘\“.‘ lf,mw (981\?\;\;) G [GSMW)(
L SEC, Spain (G4MW) o ICHON. Koren (250MW) * FAIRHAVEN LW OF ARTS
§ peathentid power MARMARA. Turkey (450MW) Ty TANGSIAN, Chirat (100MW) *POCC * WFL AL STUDIO
Hydroelectrie power i - KINGS PLAZA
Others SEL, UK. (1.083M%) = - - QUONSET POINT
: Fy « WHITEFELD

SUAL, The Philippines {1,27180MwW)
SAN ROQUE. The Philippines (3450
ILIJAN. The Philippines (1.25TMW)
PAGBILAQ. The Philippines (735 MW)
AMINDANAO L The Philippines (470W)
MINDANAO L The Philippines (48MW)
MATIANATIONG, The Philippines (180MW)

BANG BO. Thailand
{350MW)
PPN, Indix (347MW)

MILLMERRAN, Australiu (B40MW)
SMITHFIELD, Australia (162MW)

Total power generation

15,481MW

Marubeni share: 5,379MW

v
‘MESAIEED Qatar (2,000MW) | / GBPC, The Bahanuws (151M8)
RABIGIL, Saudi Atabia (G00MW + desafination: 192 thousand tonsidayy IS, Jamaics 1621 MW) .
TAWEELAH B, 1"AFE (2,000MW + desalination: 727 thousand tors/day) CUC, Curacao (167MW)

{as of April 30. 2007}
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TAPAL. Pakistan (126MW) POWER GEN. Trinidad and Tobago (3.365MW)




Marubeni boaslts a consistent track record and considerable accumulated expericnce overseas in power-related
businesses, having lirst commenced the supply and instalkation of generation, transmission and sub-station equip-
ment in the 1960s. Exercising its unique strengths in project coovdination, engineering and international procure-
ment, Marubeni also has a solid irack record in the power plant business ficld as an EPC contractor. In the 1890s,
Marubeni's IPP business showed vapid growih that reflecied the Group’s long-standing technical knowledge, risk-
management skills aned, above all, the trust it had earned through past EPC activities. Extensive experience in the
EPC business enabled the Group to make forward-looking investuments in IPPs that brought further success, a
demonstration of how Marubenti excels al green field-type development projects.

Leveraging such sirengths, Marubeni will play a proactive role not. only as an investor but also in the manage-
ment of the Qatar-based operating company in the areas ol construction, operation and plant maintenance,
Marubeni is confident of providing added value in each phase ol the project.

® History of Marubeni’s Overseas Power-Related Businesses

IPP™ business Wortdwide IPP business
{(Government

e (Government initiative & open market)
initiative)

Equipment supply EPC” businesses >

o ; : Worldwide asset
- ! - -)
> Expansion of the portfolio >m.m.1§,unem

*EPC: Engineering, Procurement & Construction. Such contracts UK. electricily U.S. distributed
inclucie all aspects af a pragct, including power plant desian. trading \;tls'm (;SS generation
“IPP: Independent Power Producer hllslncss
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Forest Products & General Merchandise

Afforestation and Wood Chip Busi

In recent years rhere has been an increasing awareness of the sustainable use of afforesiation assets.

Irv this operating environment, Marubeni acquired Amapa Florestal e Celulose S.A. (AMCEL), a compuny
involved in afforestation, the manufacture and sale of wood chips and sale of biomass fuels in Amapa, Brazil, jointly
with Nippon Paper Industries in December 2006, AMCEL owns vast plantable lots covering approxituaiely 130,000
hectares, and is engaged in raising seedlings, afforestation, logging and related transport as well as the processing
and shipping of wood chips for export.

Amid growing worldwide concern regarding the environment and forest preservation, an increasing number of
paper manufacturers are making use of eco-friendly raw materials and ensuring the thorough traceability central
to their material procurement policies. AMCEL owns a nursery (where its secdlings are raised) and is involved in
their overall control. The company also owns wood chip plants and export shipping docks, which collectively help
to realize comprehensive traceability.

® Forest Products Business/Value Chain

Participating in afforestation Wood chips Paper manufacturing business
activities around the world Seven dedicated chaned fleets
* Brazil inJapan

* Australia

* New Zealand
* China

Donmestie share

[ovestiment ina manufacturer of
containerboard. coated paper
amnd newsprint

Upstream

Downstream

Pulp Sales
Global share Share of tracing companies
Joint pulp manutactaring

i Paper (No. 1)
. . concern in Canala
Musi Pulp Project s .
- . h Paperboard {Nu. 1)
Conducting consistent management from e .
the afforestation of acacia to the manufacturing Acquisition of a U.S. sales compumy for coated
of pulp on the island of Sumatrn in Indonesia paper used [ul'ramlogs and magazines; Focusing
X on the sules business in Europe and China: Paper
. » equivatent to the Tokyo recyeling business in Japan, US.A. and China
Metropalitin area




Marubeni develops business and trading operations that cover every phase of the value chain, from raw materi-
als to products in the pulp and paper industry. Against a backdrop of ongoing M&A activity among manufacturers,
the distribution function has come under severe scrutiny. Under these circumstances, Marubeni is striving to rein-
force its Groupwide strengths while guarding against overconfidence due {o its position as a leading trading house.

Reflecting increased demand in Asian markets, the global paper manufacturing industry is expected to focus on
securing raw materials and gaining share in growing markets. The procurement of afforestation assets, [or which

» demand is expected to increase, will enhance the value chain. Also, the addition of AMCEL to the Group will enable
Marubent to expand its volume of wood chip trading and break into European markets.

In fiscal 2006, Marubeni acquired a U.S. paper distribution company and invested in a Chinese manufacturer of
containerboard. The Group will continue to pursue investment. that will enable it to fully exercise the skills of the
Forest Products group in the global market.

® Global Development of the Forest Products Business

e “&'ﬁlf}..ﬂ[.;[iulj)t:l) Europe " . ' -
B
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Act with fairness and integrity at all times.

Pursue creativity with enterprise and initiative.

Give and earnt ihe respect of others through cooperatiol
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Corporate Doctrine

In 1949, Marubeni made “Fairness, Innovation and Harmony” its company creed, and this con-
cept has since been the guiding principle constituting the very foundation of all its business
activities. Even before this, more than a century and a half earlier, Marubeni founder Chubei [to
had declared his commitment to prospering in harmony with society rather than pursuing profits
solely for gain. As a modern corporation, Marubeni enshrined this spirit of commitment and the
fundamental principles it inspired in the Marubeni Corporate Principles in 1998,

Marubeni Corporate Principles

Marubeni Corporation, as a business enierprise, will actively pursue its business interests through the
exercise of fair and legal competition. As a company, Marubeni will also continue to play its part in the
enlargement of the global economy while always striving to enrich the society within which it operates.
To achieve these goals, Marubeni is comnmitted to the following six basic principles of business:

> We shall conduct fair and transparent business activities.

> We shall seek to develop a globally connected company.

> We shall strive to creafe new value through our business vision.
> We shall respect and encourage individuality and originality.

> We shall promote good corporate governance.

> We shall safeguard ecclogical and cultural diversity.

The principle embodied by Marubeni's company creed, “Fairness, Innovation and Harmony,"
lies at the heart of its corporate activities and the Group'’s conunitment 1o ensuring sustain-
able growth in harmony and coexistence with the public good and the environment. “Fair-
ness” refers to strict adherence to laws and regulations and to acting with fairmess and
integrity at all times. “Innovation” expresses our determination to be passionate aboul our
work, always striving to bring about change from within and to think ereatively. “Harmony"
asserts our desire to stay in step with all elements of society, always acting in a manner
worthy of society's trust.

Marubeni handles a broad spectrum of products and services worldwide. Due to its
enormous scope of activities, the Group places significant emphasis on CSR-centric man-
agement, a concept that is deeply ingrained not only in every aspect of its organization, but
also in the attitude of every employee. In line with the concept of CSR-centric manage-
ment, we recognize the critical need for rigorously pursuing sound corporate management
activities while moving forward in harmony and coexistence with the public and the envi-
ronment. To this end, we adopt every measure to strengthen corporate governance, inter-
nal control and legal compliance while taking a leading role in social contribution and
environmental protection activities and programs.

Put simply, Marubeni’s unwavering commitment to “Fairness, Innovation and Harmony”

and its Corporate Principles are inextricably linked to its focus on CSR-centric management.
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Corporate Governance

Mamoru Sekiyama
Corparate Executive
Vice President

Koichi Mochizuki
Corporaie Senior
Vice President

Nerihiro Shimizu
Corporale Sevior
Vice President

Approach to Corporate Governance

Marubeni's pursuit of stronger corporate governance
closely reflects the underlying spirit expressed in its
corporate creed, company doctrine and the Marubeni
Corporate Principles. The Marubeni Group is constantly
striving to ensure management transparency and effi-
ciency as well as increased corporate value. Through
these efforts, we are earning the trust of our stakeholders
and building a corporate platform capable of maintaining
stable and sustainable growth.
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Kazuo Ogawa
Corporate Execulive
Vice President

Nobuo Katsumata
Prosident and CKO

Kazuhiko Sakamoto
Seninr Freculive
Vice President

Consistently Pursuing an Optimal

Corporate Governance Structure

Operating in accordance with the Cerperation Law, Marubeni is recog-
nized as a model company in the arca of corporate audit governance.
The Company’s management control structure encompasses a clearly
defined] decision-making process, the execution of business operations
and a supervisory system incorporating essential checks and balances.

Marubeni’s Board of Directors comprises 13 directors (two exter-
nally appointed), who deliberate on corporate policy and major issues
while monitoring the performance of individual directors. The Board
of Cerporate Auditors consists of four corporate auditors (two exter-
nally appointed) who menitor directors’ executicn of duties by attend-
ing directors’ meetings and evaluate the Company’s business and asset
performances in accordance with auditing policies set by the Board of
Corporate Auditors and the Auditing Plan. Alse reinforcing corperate
governance is an executive officer system and a 12-committee struc-
ture. Moreover, in accordance with the Gorporation Law, the
Company instituted a basic policy on internal control systems to
ensure more relevant and efficient operafions.

The Group's domestic and international operating companies are on
the “offensive,” working together under the “G" PLAN. [n addition,
Marubeni has significantly increased personnel in the Audit Department.
and otherwise augmented the audit system. Marubeni is presently work-
ing to ensure a strong “defensive” position and optirmize corporate gov-

ernance and responsiveness to changdes in the business environient.




Akira Matsuda
Senvior Executive
Vice President

Tohru Tsuji
Chairman

Teruo Asada
Corporate
Erecutive

Vice President

Executive

Marubeni’s Corporate Governance Structure

General Meeting of Sharcholders
\[ Nomination and dismissal

Board of Directors

Masaru Funai
Corporale

Tetsurc Sakamoto
Corporale Senior
Vice President

Vice President

Masao Fujii
Outside
Director

Cutside Director

J‘ Nomination and dismissal

Board of Corporate Auditors

Nomination and dismissa!

N Audit ‘ .
— = Corporate Auditors }—-l Corporale Auditor Department.
Thirteen directors {two nutside) Four carporate zuditors (Lwo outside)
T Accounting audit
8 : Independent Auditor E(
Nomination, distnissal, - . .
supervision Accounting audit (Cooperation}
A — !
President ]

Corporate Management Commmittee |

Investment and Credit Committee |

“G" PLAN Execution Committee |

New Management Plan Committee |

Compliance Committee
Management Remuneration Commitlee

Commerdation & Disciplinary
Action Commiliee

Environment Committee
Customs Management Committee

Seenrity Export Control Committee
CSR Committee

Environmental Businesses
Prometion Committee

Cross-Divisional Function Cormunitiee

Committee of Executive Officers |

Operating Divisions

— Executive Officers

Carporate Staff Divisions

|

Domestic and Overseas Business Offices I

(Business Execution System)

Andit Department

Internal andit
—
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Internal Control System

The MARICO PROJECT

Concerned first and foremost with the reliability of its
financial reporting, the Marubeni Group has been working
to establish an effective internal control system. Its efforts
have culminated in the Marubeni Internal Contro! System
(MARICO) PROJECT, which was launched in March 2004
with full implementation completed as of March 2006. The
next step in this ongoing project is to ensure a system that
addresses the concerns of Japan's equivalent to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Going forward, the Group seeks to
raise the effectiveness of this system even higher and to
extend its coverage to business activities in areas beyond

financial reporting.

MARICO PROJECT at a Glance

Meeting mandatory
implementation requirements
after fiscal 2008

Establishing
internal
control systems
for financial
reporting

Toward more

sophisticated systems

Applying accumalated
know-how to other areas

A., Overall effectiveness of internal

control sysiem evaluated

Plan for effectiveness evaluation

[EiSeall2005)
Eﬂm:mfg

Evaluation of relevant crganizations

Organizational activities toward
improvement

Documentation completed
on March 31, 2005

Formulation of Groupwide plans

Provision of documentation for
relevant parties
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The Significance of the MARICO PROJECT

Marubeni’s ongotng efforts to enhance its corporate value and man-
agement’s growing awareness of the importance of an effective inter-
nal control system constitute the driving force that propels the MARI-
CO PROJECT. Crucial 1o this sysiem, particularly in its initial stage, is
ensuring the accuracy and reliability of financial reporting. The moti-
vaiton for our taking action was our recognition that securing the reli-
ability of financial reporting is a fundamental and significant step
toward structuring a formidable internal control system.

Consistent with the methodology outlined in the Sarbanes-Qxley
Act of the United States, the MARICO PROJECT's purview enconi-
passes Marubeni's Head Office and 120 consolidated subsidiaries.

The process began with the documentation of on-site business prac-
tices and identification of risks as they relate to financial reporting.
This fulfills the critical requirement for tangible documentation.

The documentation process was completed in fiscal 2004. In fiscal
2005, documents and procedures were evaluated to ensure that the
controls in place were adequate and properly implemented. This
two-year effort effectively substantiated the Giroup's internal

control system for financial reporting,

Future Developments

In fiscal 2006, we reevaluated the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control systern and confirmed its Groupwide implementation was
wilthout material weakness. Furthermore, the system was shown to
have contributed to substantial improvements in the reliability and
quality of the Group’s financial reporting.

We are continuing to take all necessary steps in preparation for the
implementation of Japan’s equivalent to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in fis-
cal 2008. With the inclusion of affiliated companies in the scope of
proposed legislation, Marubeni is augmenting the MARICO PROJECT
as appropriate.

In its present form, the MARICO PROJECT places considerable
emphasis on finaneial reporiing. Looking ahead, we envisage a broader-
based system of qualitative risk assessment and will review current.

results as the stepping stone to achieve this goal.




Risk Management

As the Marubeni Group enters a new stage that places
greater emphasis on adopting an offensive posture in busi-
ness dealings, risk management will become an increas-
ingly erucial defensive factor in ensuring a well-balanced
approach to the acquisition of prime assets. To this end,
Marubeni is applying more precise and sophisticated man-
agement techniques to individual projects and implement-
ing integrated risk management based on Value at Risk
{(VaR). Through these means, we are continuing to fortify

our multifaceted risk management system.

Strengthening Risk Management

[mplement multifaceted risk management to ensure

optiimal balance between off ive and
e policy initintives

Quantitative methods

Continuous efforts to
reinforce integrated risk
management

Increasing the level
of qualitative risk
manigement with regard
to business operations

Qualitative methods

Multifaceted Risk Management

As a leading global trading house, the Marubeni Group is engaged in a
variety of activities across a broad spectrum of industries in Japan and
more than 70 countries and areas throughout the world. Commensurate
with the comprehensive breadth of its endeavors, Marubeni confronts
wide-ranging risks, highlighting the critical need for a multifaceted
risk management system.

Marubeni recognizes the imperative nature of scenario analysis
on a project-by-project basis in its efforts to build up prime assets.
Accordingly, we are adhering strictly to established numericat bench-
marks while sirengthening the Group’s individual project monitoring
and follow-up svsterns.

For risks that are difficuit to quantify, Marubeni is taking preven-
tive action al the macro level, holstering its corporate governance,
internal control and compliance systems.

At the micro level, we have established specialist sectiens, includ-
ing the Customs Clearance Supervising Section and the Security
Trade Control Section.

Through these endeavors and at each level, we are engaging in
mullifaceted risk management,

The Significance of Integrated Risk Management

Marubeni has adopted a portfolio management method to prevent the
overconcentration of assets in any particular country, industry, or
client by cotnprehensively oversceing nsks associated with assels
across the Group. The basis of portfolio management is quantifying
the risk of assets, including those held by subsidiaries, for the Group
as a whole, The categorizations of the risks associated with assets by
type of exposure include country, industry, customer credit rating,
and projected recovery date. These risks form the basis for caleulating
Value at Risk (VaR), which takes into account dispersion effects and
correlations. VaR is used as a primary benchmark for portfolio man-
agement. By adopting a simulation system that uses an independently
developed computerized statistical model, we have made it possible to
grasp risk factors at a more detailed level than other companies.

The method, called “Integrated Risk Management,” integrates vari-
ous risk faclors and monitors them as one risk value.

In addition, Marubeni calculates PATRAG* based on risk assets —a
value based on the maximum decline in the value of Group assets as
quantified by Integrated Risk Management.

PATRAG is positioned as one of Marubeni's most important man-
agement. benchmarks. Indieating total added value afier adjustment
for risk, PATRAC is usedl as a performance indicator for portfolio
units. BEach portfolio unit is encouraged to realign its assct portfolio as
necessary so as to achieve maximum returns for a given level of risk.
Marubeni aims to achieve balanced growth going forward by driving
sustained growth in PATRAC.

* PATRAC = Profit after Tax less Risk Asset Cost
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Compliance

Marubeni pursues sustainable growth, supported by and in
the interests of stakeholders, including customers, share-
holders and employvees. At the same time, we are acutely
aware that if such pursuits do not contribute to the pros-
perity and well-being of society, then it is difficult for the
Company to continue to exist. Compliance is therefore
fundamental to Marubeni's existence and underlies all of
its business activities. The purpose of Marubeni's compli-
ance activities is to instill this basic idea of compliance

into both management and employees.

Marubeni Group Compliance Structure

I Board of Directors I—I Comporate Auditors I

| Presiden |

I Compliance Committee l

] Compliance Officer k- - Reporting Lines
N X . (Managerial
(Compliance Commitiee Chair) 1 Staff Members)
e
Nomination Reporting Instmetion :
. I
i
]  Compliance Officers of Divisional
y and Branch Offices 4 Ermplovecs
(Compliance Committee Members) h mployees
Administration Office
{Legal Dept.)
— — —— \r"
: External Legal
Reporting/ Instruction/ : Counsel
Consutation Advice :
—i Group Company ]l
t
Officer Responsible for
' Compliance at Group N p
; ¢ - - - { Reporting Lines
i Company N (Managerial
’ Staff Members)
Compliance Report/ T
! Consultation Window |
= —, i
T '
R ! .
Employcees at Group Company I
£ ——— Consultztion and reporting through reporting lisies
G Consultation and reporting through aliernate reporting lines

— Results briefing
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Marubeni's Framewaork for Compliance

In April 2002, Marubeni established the Compliance Comumitiee

as a step toward building a Groupwide compliance framework. To
instill the spirit. of compliance in the hearts of every member of the
Marubeni Group, we formulaied and distribuied a ¢compliance manual,
which provides guidelines for required standards of corporate hehav-
jor. With an eye toward furiher reinforcing the compliance message
and improving cfficiency, we provide a compliance training program
based on the manual for management and employees. In fiscal 2008,
an easy-to-access and -use e-learning-based compliance program was
introduced. As of March 31, 2007, management and most employees
had completed the program. Presently, the program is being extended
Lo cover temporary staff and Group company employeces.

A distinguishing feature of Marubeni’s compliance framnework is its
extensive coverage across a large and diverse group. Despite the sub-
stantial product and service range covered, the framework is able to
accommodate the unique nature of the compliance issues that each
division faces. In each business division throughout the entire Group,
Marubeni has appointed a compliance officer whe is a member of the
Compliance Comumittee. Moreover, every vear the chair of the Compliance
Commitice visits major Group companies to be briefed on the status of
compliance activities and te hold discussions intended to encourage
the sharing of Marubeni's idea of compliance, which conforms to the

highest ethical standards, while improving awareness of it.

Toward Effective Compliance

Marubeni is consistently implementing innovative initiatives in an
effort 10 raise compliance efficacy. The compliance manual, how in
its fourth edition, for example, is updated annually to reflect relevant
changes in legislation and social trends. Each year, Marubeni’s man-
agement and employees are required to acknowledge and pledge that
they have read, understood and abide by the cortents of the compli-
ance manual and all relevant, legislation. In 2006, the heads of major
Group companies were also required to pledge that their respective
managements and employees would adhere to the compliance manual
and that employees who report on illegal or improper activities would
not face detrimental or unfair treatment.

Furthermore, Marubeni has been focusing on ensuring an environ-
ment in which employees can easily report and consult on compliance
problems. In 2002, we established the “Door of Courage,” a compli-
ance reporting and consultation hot line that is open to management
and employees of the Marubeni Group. In 2006, an aclditionat outside
female lawyer was added to the staff of the Door of Courage to ensure
a more welcoming environment for female employecs. Also, to betler
grasp the status and effectiveness of cormpliance throughout the
Group, we undertook a survey across each division and major Group
company in March 2007. Basced on the results of this survey, we will
put in place steps 1o make further improvements and to develep and
maintain a compliance structure that is capable of swiftly addressing

the needs of each era.




Initiatives to Protect the Environment

As a general trading company involved in a wide range of
global activities, Marubeni has always been quick to pro-
mote initiatives that address environmental concerns. In
1990, we established the Committee on Global Environ-
mental Preservation and formulated the Group’s Environ-
mental Guidelines the following year. Based on these
guidelines, we created the Marubeni Group’s Environumental
Policy as both a clarification and an avowal of our com-
mitment to environmental protection. Placing the highest
priority on environmental concerns, Marubeni is maximiz-
ing efforts to reduce the environmental impact of its busi-
ness activities. At the same time, we are working to help

attain a sustainable society through the promotion of envi-

ronmental businesses.

Reducing Environmental Impact

The Marubeni Group adopted an environimental managerent system
based on the internationally recognized 1SO 14001 standard to reduce
the environmental impact of its business activities and enhance the
Group's profitability through the pursuit of environmenial businesses.
All divisions of the Marubeni Head Office acquired 180 14001 certifics-
tion in 1999, followed by domestie branches, overseas corporate sub-
sidiartes and affiliates. As of March 31, 2007, 54 Marubeni Group
organizations had received certification,

Marubeni Group Envircnmental Management System Objectives
(Minimize: Risk)
1. Therough irnplementation of environmental considerations when
promoting projects
2. Expansion of initiatives with vendors whao take the environment
intc consideration

3. Promation of related subsidiaries' environmental considerations

(Maximize Profit)
4. Promation of environmental businesses

5. Implementation of energy and resource conservation and waste reduction

To reduce environmental impact, Marabeni stricily evaluates its
investment and loan operations ard Lthe consequences of its develop-
ment projects. We also endeavor to gain the understanding and coop-
eration of business partners based on the Group’s Environmental
Policy. In addition, we periodically assess the environmental impact.

of consolidated subsidiaries and operating companics.

Promoting Environmental Businesses

Marubeni established the Environmental Businesses Promotion

Cominittee in fiscal 2004 and is particularly active in the fields of

reuse and recyceling, such as that related to paper and automobiles, as

well as renewable energy and new technologies encompassing wind
and solar power generation, hydrogen and fuel cells, and biomass
cnergy in addition to the emissions credit business.

+ Full-fledged entry into the energy services business in the United States
Qrganic materials such as wood waste and forest debris are gathered and
burned in boilers for biomass power generation. This renewable energy
process is environment friendty, contributing to the reduction of greenhouse
gases. Mamubeni owns biomass power plants with an electric generating
capacity of 34Mw,

* Marubeni Paper Recycle Co., Lid.
Marubeni is active in the global development of forest product businesses
across a comprehensive value chain that encompasses afforestation, pulp and
paper praduction, paper sales and the collection and recycling of wastepaper,
Inciuding confidential documents. In this manner, we are halping to realize a
recycling-oriented society.

Among its other activities, Marubend supports the World Wildlife
FFund. In fiscal 2006, we supported the dissemination of information
on the crisis polar bears are facing in conjunction with our global
warming prevention initiatives. We alse participated in the produc-
tion of a comic book aimed at increasing public awareness of the
Washington Convenltion on International Trade in Endangered

Species of Wild Fauna and Flora.
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Social Contribution Activities

Marubeni maintains direct links with society through a
variety of corporate events and activities. It is at the indi-
vidual level, through the endeavors of management and
Marubeni Group employees to contribute to the well-being
of local communities, that these links are forged. Drawing
on its experience of social contribution activities conduct-
ed to date, and with the aim of actively supporting the vol-
unteer initiatives of each and every employee, Marubeni
codified its commitment to serving society in its Basic
Policy on Social Contribution in January 2006.

: . (W et na U
Carrying the omikoshi {portable shring) at the Kanda Matsuri festival
(The white building in the background is our Tokyo Head Office)

-,

QOkutama forest-thinning voluneer activity
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Promoting Volunteer Activities

Taking great pride in the power of its people, Marubeni recognizes
that the volunteer efforts of individual employees constititte an impor-
tant part of its corporate social responsibility activities. To better fos-
ter the keen sense of enjoyment and satisfaction that volunteering can
bring, Marubeni launched the Volunteer Promoticn Team in 2005.
Through this and other initiatives, we arc working to boost employce
awareness of corporate citizenship and build greater confidence in our
efforts to contribute to local communities as a good corporate citizen.

Maintaining a tradition of participation, Marubeni employees took
part. in a series of events throughout fiscal 2006, including carrying the
omikoshi (portable shrine) at the Kanda Matsuri festival in May, host-
ing an international exchange camp on the shores of Lake Ashi in
August and participating in the Arakawa Clean Aid 2006 program in
November.

Each year, both the number of volunteers and the scope of their
activities increase. In cooperation with the Tokyo Metropolitan
Government, Marubeni employees took part in a new forest-thinning
program in Okutama in Seplember. A total of 141 employees took part
in the aforementioned activities during 2006, far more than the previ-
ous fiscal year's 70 participants. Marubeni employees have also dedi-
cated themselves to collecting spoiled posteards, used stamps and
expired prepaid cards. These items were donated to nongovernmental
organizations that support underprivileged children overseas. Group
members were particularly active in donating clothing to people in
developing countries and regions affected by natural disasters. More
recently, Marubeni launched a new volunteer training program in April
2007 that provides new emplovees with experience in the use of auto-
mated external defibrillaters and wheelchairs. Looking ahead,
Marubenj will continue to participate in volunteer activities and to

expand its scope of participation.

Corporate Contributions to Society

Recognizing that “harmonious coexistence with society is essential

to the survival of each and every cornpany,” Marubeni established

1he Marubeni Foundation in 1974. Every year since then, this social
welfare institution has provided ¥100 million in aid to social welfare
facilities and institutions, In fiscal 2006, we successfully completed 69
projects, including the provision of Braille printers for the visually
impaired and the instatlation of emergency call units in the homes

of elderly persons living alone.

Harboring the strong belief that providing financial suppeort. for
education is a key CSR activity, Marubeni has established scholarship
funds in the Philippines, Indonesia, Vietnam and Brazil. Recognizing
that the development of our business activities in each of these coun-
tries runs parallel to our efforts to contributc to each local community,
we will continue to provide financial support and to boost the Group’s

CSR initiatives.
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At a Glance

Net Income by Business Segment {Yeur ended March 31, 2007)

Agri-Marine Products Division

®8.5% ¥10.Tomon

Textile Division

C 200 ¥2.8)omn

Forest Products &
General Merchandise Division

®8.0% ¥9.60m0n

Chemicals Division

1 -2% ¥1 .4 billion

., Energy Division

~26.5% ¥31.60imo0n

Metals & Mineral Resources Division

© 20.9+ ¥24.9uiion

*Data includes overseas subsidiaries and affiliated companias, corporate and eliminations.

{Years ended March 31}
[ Total Assets (Billions of yen) = Net Income (Billions of yen)

Agri-Marine Products Division

This division is involved in the production

sa M and sale of livestock feed and fodder, grain,
12 soybeans, wheat, sugar, processed foods,
w49 beverages and related ingredients, cotn-
mercial foods and agricultural and marine
w0 produce. Via a comprehensive value chain

that covers upstream through downstream
operations, the division delivers flexible
solitions to meet increasingly diverse
consumer needs.

2003 2006 2007

Forest Products &
General Merchandise Division

In putp and paper, this division has estab-
5 96 lished a value chain that spans a variety
04 of sectors. Besides afforestation and trade
in such upstream products as wood chips,
pulp and wastepaper, the division deals
in downstream items, including paper and
paperboard. In general merchandise, the
377 division handles natural rubber, rubber
products, leather, footwear, fitness equip-
ment and other sporting goods, timber
and plywood.

sigg 5384

2005 2006 2007
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Iron & Steel Strategies and Coordination Department

26

1198

e

1305

12.5% ¥14.9ciicn e
Finance, Logistics & New Business Division

3.9+ ¥4.60iiion *

Development. & Construction Division o
2.7 ¥3.2uikion !

Information &
Communication Division

2.1% ¥2.5viton

Plant, Ship &
Infrastructure Projects Division

1 .4% ¥1 7 bilkions 7

Power Projects Division

5.4% ¥64 billion

Transportation &
Industrial Machinery Division

8.4% ¥1 00 biltion

O

Textile Division

This division provides a broad range of

iterns for the consumer products sector.
24 In addition to fiber, yarn, textiles, fashion
garments, shirts, uniforms and such non-
apparel consumer items as home furnish-
ings and miscellaneous goods, the division
markets a variety ol incdustrial materials.
Focusing mainly on apparel, the division
delivers products and services that address
consumers' diverse lifestyle needs, therchy
contributing o the creation of high added
value.

131.8

2005 2008 2007

45

167.2

2005

r

181.9

2006

Chemicals Division

This division handles basic petrochemicals,

such as olefins and synthetic fiber interme-
14 cliates and their derivatives, including vinyl
alkali products and plastics; salt, sutfur and
other inorganic chemicals; specialty chemi-
cals; electronic materials, such as 1,G-
related products; and agrochemicals.
Positioning China, the Middle East and
South and Wesl Asia as priority regions,
the division secks optimal balance in its
investment and trading activities.

2.2

2007




Energy Division

318

1589

2005 2006 2007

This division engages in the exploration
and production of energy resources, par-
ticipates in LNG projects and undertakes
trading and marketing involving oil, gas

and LNG while providing nuclear fuel cycle
related services and dealing in equipment
for nuclear power plants. Recently, the divi-
sion began developing new businesses and
products, including biofuels.

Transportation &
Industrial Machinery Division

67 78 100

2745 2829

2005 2008 %07

Plant, Ship &

3104

This division is engaged in trade, retailing,
wholesaling, investment, and financing relat-
od to aircraft, aero engines, helicopters,
defense systems, automotives, construction
and agricultural machinery, automotive
production lines, pulp and paper machinery,
semicenductor and DVD production
machinery, precision machine tools, print-
ing machinery, visual inspection systems,
food packaging machines, chemical machin-
ery, and new energy-related systems.

Infrastructure Projects Division

26 17

nan

3740
. . 3428

s

2005 2006 2007

This division provides valuable full-line
services in fields such as plant projects (oil
and gas; steel and cement), infrastructure
projects (rail transport; airports; water sup-
ply; sewerage-related equiprment supply)
and engineering, precurement and con-
struction (EPC} services, and develops and
operates investment projects. [ts operations
cover the entire value chain, from ship-
building and related equipinent sales, char-
tering and cperation to intermediary servic-
os for used vessels and sales of textile
machinery and related equipment.

Development &
Construction Division

1.4

BT pge7
T 258

2005 2006 2007

Focusing on the “Grand-Suite” hrand. this
division develops condominiums, mainly in
Tokyo and Osaka, and is active in overseas
residential property development, particu-
larly in China. Also, the division is extend-
ing its real estate activities to include bro-
kerage and the development and manage-
ment of assets and property for private real
estale funds and investment trusts.

Metals & Mineral Resources

Division
161
88
2651
1951
2005' 2006

248

280.0

2007

This division invesis in metals and mineral
resources development, including the min-
ing of steelmaking raw materials, coal and
non-ferrous metals as well as aluminum and
copper smelting, while trading globally in
steelmaking raw materials, thermal coal for
power utilities and general industries and
non-ferrcus metals. In both upstrearn and
downstream fields, the division engages in
the manufacture and sale of non-ferrous
praducts and electronic materials as well
as recycling.

Power Projects Division

756,

2005

58

4054

2006

8.4

0

2007

This division constructs and supplies power
stations, transmission lines and substations
overseas, acls as an Independent Power
Producer (IPP) overseas, is involved in
retail power sales in Japan and engages in
demestic and international environment-
friendly power generation projects utilizing
renewable energy and dispersed power
systems as well as the export and third-
country trade of telecommunications,
broadcasting and information-related
systems and related business investment.

Information &
Communication Division

(1.6}

1387

2005

04

11586

2008

25

1685

2007

In the telecommunications business, this
division provides infrastructure and infor-
mation services utilizing optical fiber net-
works. The division i also active in consult-
ing and the construction of corporate IT
systems as well as the design, development
and sale of wireless IC tag soluticns and
related equipment. Other activities include
the distribution and sale of mobile- and PC-
related products and the development of
broadcasting-related operations.

Finance, Logistics &

40

1288

19

g7.0

2006

48

1185

2007

New Business Division

This division is engaged in funds and
financing service husinesses as well as
financial product trading and dealing in addi-
tion to the forwarding, third-party logistics,
logistics consulting and container terminal
businesses. It is also active in insurance
agency and brekerage operations and such
new flelds as health and nursing care, mail
order business, emissions credit trading,
temporary staffing, consulting for Japancse
compariies operating in China, biotechnelo-
gy, medical equipment, environment-relat-
ed busiresses and advanced technology.

MARUBENI CORPORATION 2007

37




Agri-Marine Products
Division

DAISUKE OKADA
CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT, COO

The Agri-Marine Products Division is particularly strong in
upstream activities and traditionally maintains a leading share
in grain trading, with a lineup that includes wheat, corn and
soybeans as well as coffee beans and rice. The division is also
active in midstream and downstream operations encompassing
the wholesale trade of confectioneries and chilled foods as
well as retail trade through affiliated companies The Daiei,
Inc. and The Maruetsu, Inc. With a robust value chain that
encompasses upstream through downstream operations, the
division is ideally positioned to flexibly address changing con-
sumer needs.

Biomass Project Team
Cereals & Sugar Unit
Grain & Feedstuff Unit
Oilseeds, Fats & Qils Unit
Beverage Unit

Foods Merchandising Unit
Foods Marketing Project Unit
Farm Products Unit

Meat Unit

Seafood Unit

QOsaka Foodstuff Unit

Business Topics

External view of Daiei's Shin-Urayasu store
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Securing a Dominant Position in Japan’s Retail Industry

Marubeni has positioned food distribution as a key business
and is allocating management resources on a priority basis.
The Agri-Marine Products Division is dedicated to staying
abreast of consumer needs, which it addresses through mid-
¢ stream and upstream operations. In this manner, Marubeni
continues to build a product development and procurement
value chain. As a part of these endeavors, Daiei, Marubeni's
principal operating company in the retail distribution sector,
agreed 1o a capital and business alliance with the major
retailer AEON, thereby forming Japan’s largest retailer with
operating revenues in excess of ¥6 trillion. Leveraging the
scale merits and collective strengths of each company,
Marubeni will pursue unrivalled competitive advantage.




(Biions of yen) MNet Income {Bions of yan)

eS¢ j2005] }2006] 20074
' 00—

Gross trading profit 71.3 69.3 72.4

,,,,,, ‘.. l' P W ee e iU ce s aaie e Cupah EeM Bre- BA- 4w % motasis s maies meis @ owe 20{)6 | 58]

Equity in earnings 1.0 0.0 23

. . . o

Segment net income 1.2 58 10.1 2007 | |

; A o . . . o 2008 [ T3]
Segment assets 398.5 433.8 549.2

Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

The upstream lood supply sector was impacted by harsh
conditions throughout fiscal 2006. In addition to a poor
wheat harvest in Australia attributed to a record drought,
a robust increase in bioenergy production-related
demand helped drive up the price of grain. Against this
hackdrop, the division continued to expand its grain sup-
ply activities through its relationship with U.S.-based
consolidated subsidiary Columbia Grain International,

. Inc. {CGII) and to focus on offshore strategic alliances
with leading grain tracders in North America and South
America. In light of growing global interest in bioenergy,
Marubeni took the forward-looking step of establishing a
biodiesel fuel production and distribution company in
Brazil in March 2007 in collaboration with the Agrenco
Group, an international grain trader.

In the retail sector, Daiei and Marubeni, Daiei’s
largest shareholder, agreed with AEON Co., Ltd. to
enter into a capital and business alliance in March 2007.
This alliance between the AEON and Daiei groups has
created Japan’s largest retailer, with operating revenues
that exceed ¥6 trillion. Leveraging the advantages and
scale that this business alliance yields, including operating
cfficiencies and cost savings, this initiative has enabled
the two groups te establish a competitive structure that
is sure to overshaclow their competitors within a domestic
retail sector characterized by stagnant personal consump-
tion and declining sales.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Marubeni expects to see continued growth in demand
for grain as its use in bioenergy production expands
and as the populations and economies of China and
other Asian countries sustain their current upward
trends. In its upstream operations, a core area of
strength, Marubeni will continue to fortify its relation-
ships with overseas producers in order to maintain and
improve its formidable procurement capabilities. From
a marketing perspective, we will focus on the growth
markets of Asia and promote aggressive business devel-
opment. Our goal is to increase trading volumes by
leveraging the synergistic effects of optimally managed
procurement and market initiatives.

On the domestic front, Marubeni is targeting
improved earnings driven by Daiei's earlier revitaliza-
tion through the Daiei-AEON alliance. This alliance is
expected to further strengthen the value chain and sig-
nificantly hoost trading volumes. Having thus secured a
leading position at the heart of Japan’s retail industry,
Marubeni expects to benefit from a variety of new
opportunities.

GCombining Expertise in
Food Supply and Energy to
Create New Opportunities

In March 2007, Marubeni
established a bicdiesel fuel
production and distribution
company in Brazil in conjunc-
tion with the Agrenco Group,
an international grain trader.
Amid growing awareness of
the need for environmental protection, Marubeni is implermenting
effective measures to better respond to the highly anticipated
surge in bicenergy demand.

Naw initiatives in fuels of the future

Cultivating New
Markets for Coffee

Having observed growth in
coffee consumption in China
as eating habits become
increasingly Westernized
amid remarkable economic
growth, Marubeni established
a coffee bean roasting and
sales venture in Shanghai in
December 2006. Building on
this initiative, we will work to cultivate new markets and help drive
the growing consumption of coffee in China.

Leveraging our strengths in China
cperations
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In addition to handling cotton, yarn, textiles, fashion items, Textile Project & Planning Dept.
shirts and non-apparel consumer goods, including home fur- Apparel & Lifestyle Unit-1
nishings and other related textile items, the Textile Division Apparel & Lifestyle Unit-Il
markets a wide variety of specialty industrial materials. Utility Apparel Unit
Counting among its strengths a supply chain that efficiently Functional Materials Unit

links raw material procurement with product development, a
top-class global network and an extensive presence nurtured
over many years, Marubeni is active in developing consumer-
oriented downstream activities. The division draws on these
inherent strengths in its core apparel business as it strives to
create high-value-added products, services and applications
that enhance overall consumer lifestyles.

HAKKIN BC

Together with the select shop BAYCREW'S Co., Ltd. and
§ Orobianco, a leading Italian manufacturer of bags,
Marubeni established HAKKIN BC, a company engaged in
;@ the sale of HAKKINLit and Orobianco Etichetta Nera brand
bags, miscellaneous goods and accessories. Utilizing BAY-
CREW"S network of existing stores, HAKKIN BC com-
menced sales at a directly operated store in the new Tokyo
Midtown complex in March 2007. By bringing together
BAYCREW™S network of select shops throughout Japan
with the increasingly popular Orobianco bags and thereby
securing a brand lineup that boasts HAKKIN.it and
Orobianco Etichetta Nera, HAKKIN BC is establishing a
position in the prestige brand niche market and building
increased market awareness on the back of sales growth,

Business Topics
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(Billions of yen) Net Income {Billions of yan)
[rememmpmin | 2005} ] 2005 | =
Gross trading profit 25.2 26.4 248 '
SUCSIEIT T T R 2006 08
Equity in earnings 0.0} 1.9 2.3}
Segment net income 28 (1.6 2.9) 2007 @4
4318 2008 70
Segment assets 119.8 130.5 131.8 o | J

Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

Due to a declining population and the steady demo-
graphic aging of its society, Japan’s consumer market
holds little prospect for expansion. At the same time, the
market is characterized by diversifying consumer trends
and intensifying competition. Exacerbating the difficul-
ties posed by this operating environment, the unusually
mild winter in fiscal 2006 had a detrimental effect on
autumn and winter apparel sales. Unable to fully offset
the steady rise in crude oil and other material costs
through retail price adjustinents, the Textile Division
confronted harsh business conditions.

In an effort to secure earnings growth, the Textile
Division undertook a comprehensive review of the estab-
lished business models applicable to each of its six busi-
ness units. Guided by a new division policy, we withdrew
from inefficient trading transactions and reorganized our
operating structure and portfolio. On the domestic front,
Marubeni also took steps to expand its brand business in
downstream sectors, [n the fiscal year under review, we
established HAKKIN BC Co., Ltd. to handle sales of the
Orobianco Etichetta Nera brand products of Grobianco
srl, a leading Italian manufacturer of bags and related
items. We also concluded a master license agreement
with Mackintosh Limited, a U.K. textile design concern,
for the sale of Mackintosh Philosophy brand men’s
clothes and merchandise.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

In April 2007, the division reorganized its structure to
better develop downstream consumer-oriented busi-
nesses and to construct an integrated value chain span-
ning upstream and downstream operations. At the same
time, we are redoubling efforts to gain greater access to
apparel-related consumer markets, establish an organi-
zation that can flexibly adapt to shifts in the textiie
industry and clarify the division’s primary mission.

Specifically, we will secure improved earnings
through greater efficiency in our core apparel business
as well as original equipment manufacturing (OEM)
activities in specialty private-label apparel (SPA) retail-
ing. In addition, we will pursue investment in and the
acquisition of major apparel brands and SPAs as well as
introduce new brands to our marketing activities with
the aim of expanding trading rights in downstream tex-
tile businesses.

As the focus of its overseas operations in China, the
division will aim to strengthen trading functions in the
region by Laking advantage of the established capabili-
ties of Marubeni Textile Asia Pacific Ltd. and Marubeni
Textile (Shanghai} Co., Ltd. 1o increase the trading vol-
ume of raw and other materials originating in the Asian
region, primarily China, while promoting trade growth in
both the U.5. and European markets.

LACOSTE (g

Lacoste-Brand Clothing Business

Fabricant Ca., Ltd., a Marubeni affiliate,
undertakes the manufacture and mar-
keting of Lacoste-brand clothing.
Building on its well-established sports-
wear segment, Lacoste is reinventing
itself as a comprehensive fashion brand
through the reinforcement of the men’s
casual business wear and women's
urban casual wear segments.

From the 2067 Spring/
Summer Collection

Moe Oshikiri Kimono
Collection

Kyoto Marubeni Co., Ltd. is
working with Moe Oshikiri, rec-
ognized among young working
women as a fashion leader, to
produce and market a range of
women’s kimono under an
eponymous brand name.
Biending the beauty and ele-
gance of the traditional kimono
with a distinctly young and modern flavor, a Moe Oshikiri Kimeno
Collection fashion show was held in Tokyo in December 2008.

Moe Oshikini Kimono Collection
fashion show
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General Merchandise Division

The Forest Products & General Merchandise Division has Rubber Unit
developed its core strength in wide-ranging business and trad- Hide, Leather & Footwear Unit
ing operations that encompass upstream through downstream General Merchandise &
activities. Central to its operations are wood and related by- New Products Unit
products, including wood chips, pulp and paper, paperboard, Housing & Construction Materials Unit
building materials, natural rubber and rubber products. Pulp Unit
Looking ahead, we anticipate demand for forest-related mate- Wood Chip Unit
rials and products to remain firm over the medium term and Printing & Publication Paper Unit
will continue to endeavor to identify significant shifts in mar- Packaging Paper & Board Unit
ket trends, implement bold yet prudent initiatives and pursue Osaka Pulp, Paper & Paperboard Unit
new opportunities that reinforce our value chain. MHP Unit

TEL Unit

Business Topics

External view of a B-Quik store
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B-Quik Holdings

In October 2006, Marubeni acquired B-Quik Holdings (BQ),
a retail chain engaged in the sale of tires and related prod-
ucts. BQ is Thailand's largest retail tire chain and operates 46
directly operated outlets in Bangkok that offer a comprehen-
sive lineup of tires produced by a variety of manufacturers.

In the context of its tire business, Marubeni has steadily
established a comprehensive value chain that encompasses
upstream through downstream operations, including raw
material procurement, manufacture and sale, export and
import, and offshore and retail trade operations. In an effort
to maintain direct ties with consumers, Marubeni will contin-
ue to pursue retail chain activities both at home and abroad.
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

Buoyed by increased demand in China and elsewhere,
results remained firm in the commodities market, which
includes pulp and paper, building materials, natural rub-
ber and related products. Despite intense competition
throughout fiscal 2006, Marubeni continued to cement
its leading position in each field. In specific terms, the
division was particularly active in pursuing its invest-
ment policies and further strengthened its upstream
through downstream value chain.

In pulp and paper, a field characterized by increasing
globalization, the division continued to invest in an indus-
trial cycle that encompasses afforestation projects as well
as the procurement of such raw materials as wood chips,
the production of pulp and paper, the sale of paperboard
and related products and the collection of wastepaper.
From an upstream perspective, Marubeni acquired equity
in Amapa Florestal e Celulose S.A., a producer and exporter
of wood chips based in Brazil, the world’s most competitive
country in the afforestation industry. To boost midstream
opcerations, we invested in Yuema International Co.,
(Cayman) Litd., the holding company of a containerboard
manufacturer in China, where demand is rising, and mem-
ber of the Long Chen Paper Co., Ltd. Group. Marubeni
also acquired Intragrated Resources Holdings, Inc. (IRH),
a J.S.-based paper distribution company. Unique in
downstream paper operations, this acquisition is expect-
ed to bolster the division’s pulp and paper business in the
United States, the only market among advanced countries
currently experiencing demand growth for consumer

goods. In general merchandise, particularly rubber,
Marubeni shifted to a higher gear in downstream opera-
tions with the acquisition of B-Quik Holdings Limited,
Thailand’s premier retail tire chain, and Belterra
Corporation, one of the largest industrial conveyer belt
distributors in Canada.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

The division will continue to reinforce new businesses
and pursue earnings growth at. core operating compa-
nies as well as a variety of initiatives. Looking ahead, the
raw materials market is expected to assume increased
importance as are Asian markets, particularly China.
Cultivating commercial goods and business formats that
complement the division’s established strengths, we will
continue to develop an operating structure that wiil
maintain and promote sustained earnings growth unaf-
fected by fluctuations in the industry’s environment.

Leveraging the acquisitions of such companies as IRH
and Amcel as springboards for continued growth, we will
further expand our overseas pulp and paper trading vol-
ume. At the same time, we will build on our platform in
the containerboard business, established through the
acquisition of Yuema, to ramp up global investment with
a primary focus on the Southeast Asia region.

In general merchandise, the [Forest Products & General
Merchandise Division wili continue to strengthen down-
strear activities in the rubber business and assess plans
to diversify production bases in an effort to expand
operations in upstream fields.

Koa Kogyo Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary Koa Kogyo is a
supplier of medium board,
containerboard and printing
paper, with total production
amounting to approximately
550,000 metric tons per year.
Leveraging the logistical
advantage of its proximity
to one of the world’s largest
markets for its paper products, Koa Kogyo has established a
strong earnings structure. Using wastepaper for virtually 100%
of its raw materials, the company is working to devetop a closed
recycling system and to thereby contribute to environmental
preservation and conservation.

SRS Fas

Koa Kogyo i Fuiji City, Japan

MERRELL. Initiatives in Footwear

Lot's pot ataidn

In footwear, the division draws
on the upstream sourcing
functions of Marubeni
Footwear Resources Limited
as well as the downstream
wholesaling functions of
Marubeni Footwear Inc. The
Marubeni Group’s strength in
footwear stems from access
poAILORS to the value chain at various
stages of distribution and the
ability to optimize the merits of
trading house functions.

Marubeni Footwear carries an array
of popular brands
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The Chemicals Division handles a wide range of products, Business Development &
from upstream basic petrochemicals, such as ethylene, syn- Promotion Dept.
thetic fiber intermediates and vinyl alkali products, to Basic Chemicals Unit
downstream specialty chemicals, such as electronic materials. Vinyl Alkali Unit

In the inorganic chemicals business, Marubeni has an equity Plastics Unit

interest in the world’s largest salt field, which, located in Inorganic & Agricuttural

Chemicals Unit

Specialty Chemicals Unit
Electronic Materials Unit
Chemix Project Unit

Australia, boasts the largest market share in the Asia Pacific
region. Marubeni has successfully become one of the top
trading companies by leveraging its global presence in the
abovementioned fields of business.

Bolstering the Production of Salt in Australia

Marubeni owns a 20.44% equity stake in Dampier Salt

| Limited, an Australian firm that produces salt through solar

evaporation. Dampier’'s production capacity currently stands

at roughly 8 million metric tons per year, and it sells approxi-

mately 2.4 million metric tons of salt each year to chemical .
manufacturers in various countries. Particularly in China, .
strong growth in demand for industrial salt in recent years

has strained the company's supply capacity. Marubeni has |
instituted a two- to three-year investment program to raise I
its salt production capacity in Australia by three million met- |

Business Topics

ric tons per year. Salt production related construction began
in the second half of 2006 at Lake Macleod, one of Australia's
three major salt fields, and its initial phase will increase
annual salt production by 500,000 metric tons.

s i
Storage facilities at Dampier Salt's Port
Hedland salt flat
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

The chemical industry has sustained high product prices
and continuous market growth clue to strong economic
growth throughout Asia—particularly in China—a tight
chemical supply condition and robust demand in the glob-
al chemical market. Underlying trends, such as the steady
shift in China from major user of chemical commodities to
leading global producer and the emergence of India and
Pakistan as regions of significant consumption of chemi-
cals, are indicative of a fundamental transformation in the
structure of the chemical industry. A transformation can
also be seen in the petrochemical business in the Middle
East, which is moving toward midstream business devel-
opment. Against this backdrop, Marubeni is devoting
more resources to the Middle East as well as South and
West Asia while proactively building business structures
and systems that implement innovative business models.
In the petrochemical business, Marubeni is participat-
ing in a synthetic rubber manufacturing business for the
production of tires in China. At the same time, the divi-
sion has worked to strengthen its logistics functions, tak-
ing such steps as expanding its dedicated ethylene tanker
fleet. In the inorganic chemical business, we are increasing
production capacity at salt facilities in Australia. The
Chernicals Division is conducting a business feasibility
assessment of a chemical-use alumina refining program in
Indonesia. In the synthetic resin field, Marubeni has
expanded its trading in the automotive industry and has
undertaken a reorganization of its PET-based disposable
under-pad business, which is an area of business that

continues to enjoy steady demand growth. Our activities
in the fteld of electronic materials remain robust, particu-
larly in the area of semiconductor-related products. We
sold our interest in a CRT-based television glass tube man-
ufacturing and sales company in light. of slowing demand
for this technology in China.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

In addition to China, the Chemicals Division will continue
to expand in such areas as the Middle East and South
and West Asia. At Marubeni, we recognize the potential
business opportunities offered by bringing together the
oil, natural gas and financial resources of the Middle East
with the population and growth potential of South and
West Asia. We expect this trend to serve as an engine for
global economic development in the future. Based on this
scenario, we are selectively allocating nianagement
resources Lo various regions in an effort to develop new
projects and increase transaction volumes. Marubeni will
leverage its relationships with long-standing business
partners and will strive to assume a central rele for
advanced and innovative business proposals by under-
standing customer needs and analyzing industrial trends.
To achieve this goal, the Chemicals Division has newly
established the Business Development & Promotion
Department to oversee executive functions and to accel-
erate project implementation.

Expanding Ethylene
Operations

With a transaction volume of
around 1 million metric tons a
year, Marubeni is a leading
intermational trader of such
petrochemical feedstock as
ethylene and other olefins.
We boast a dedicated fleet
that is facilitating the contin-
ued expansion of our ethyl-
ene trading. In 2007, we commissioned an additional three ves-
sels with the goal of further strengthening our logistics capabili-
ties and expanding chemical product trading volumes.

[

A GasChem Shinana ethylene
transport ship

Strengthening the Synthetic
Rubber Business

In January 2007, Marubeni
established the joint venture
TSRC-UBE (Nantong)
Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.
with strategic partner TSRC
Corporation. This joint venture
is engaged in the production
and sale of butadiene rubber
and is Marubeni's second one
for synthetic rubber business in Nantong, China, following on the
earlier success of Shenhua Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd.

External view of Shenhua Chemical
Industrial
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Energy Division A
The Energy Division strives to expand its earnings base by opti- Oil and Gas E & P Unit
mally coordinating the balance among its four strategic business Sakhalin Project Unit
fields of energy resource E&P (exploration and production), LNG Unit
trading, marketing and nuclear energy. Natural Gas Project

Despite significant change in the energy sector, Marubeni con- Development Unit
tinued to selectively allocate management resources throughout LPG Unit
fiscal 2006, the first year of the “G"” PLAN, resulting in record Energy Trading Unit
earnings for this division. Industrial Energy Unit

In fiscal 2007, we will forge ahead with the “G” PLAN, intro- Nuclear Fuel Unit
ducing measures that will serve as the stepping stones for further MIECO Unit
growth. With the energy sector evolving at an accelerating pace, Marubeni Energy Unit
Marubeni will adopt a flexible approach to improving earnings. Marubeni Ennex Unit

Promoting and Expanding LNG Projects

2007 marks the 10th anniversary of the Qatargas LNG
Project beginning delivery. Since then, production and sales
operations, primarily targeting Japan and certain European
markets, have steadily grown, with long-term contracts
effective through 2021 with several power and gas compa-
nies in Japan. Furthermore, the annual production capacity
increased to 9.6 million metric tons in mid-2005. In June
2005, Marubeni alsoc acquired an interest in the LNG Train 1
Project in the Republic of Equatorial Guinea in West Africa,
where construction was successfully completed and initial
deliveries begun in May 2007. Locking ahead, we will con-
tinue to allocate management resources to the LNG field on
a priority basis with the aim of promoting further growth.

Business Topics

Promaoting and expanding LNG projects
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

Impacted by ongoing uncertainty in the energy sector
throughout fiscal 2006, including a fluctuating crude
oil price structure, the Energy Division worked vigor-
ously to increase earnings across its four core busi-
nesses of energy resource E&P, trading, marketing
and nuclear energy.

In energy resource exploration and production, the
division experienced steacdy progress in each of its over-
seas oil and gas projects. In Sakhalin, Russia, where the
division takes part in the Sakhalin 1 Project through an
investment in Sakhalin Oil and Gas Development Co.,
Ltd., Marubeni began crude oil exports in October 2006,
achieving full-fledged commercial preduction in February
2007 with total output of approximately 250,000 boed
(barrels of oil equivalent per day).

Strengthening its trading activities related to crude
oil and other petroleum products, Marubeni established
a subsidiary in London to complement its existing net-
work covering Japan, the United States and Singapore.
Also, with an eye to further expanding its business in
this field, Marubeni participated in an oil refinery proj-
ect in Qatar in November 2006. At the same time, the
division reinforced its petroleum product marketing
operations, including retail sales of fuel oil through its
nationwicle distribution network of filling stations, as
weil as its LPG marketing operations. Concurrently, we
concentrated our management resources on the sale of
fuel for power generation.

In the nuclear energy field, Marubeni has decided to
take part in a uranium mining and production project in
Kazakhstan.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

In the key strategic ficld of energy resource E&P,
Marubeni will continue to seek out promising new proj-
ects through the selective allocation of management
resources.

Also, Marubeni will work to bolster the division’s
core trading activities by efficiently applying a variety
of strategic options, including those related to risk
management, futures trading and refinery processing.
Coupled with this, we will strengthen cellaboration with
our domestic and overseas network to secure competi-
tive advantage while pursuing increased earnings
through beefed-up marketing and retailing focusing on
the delivery of distinctive, high-value-added services
across diverse industries and sectors. To further our
nuclear energy-related operations, we will accelerate
the implementation of staged initiatives throughout the
nuclear fuel eycle, including pursuing new opportuni-
ties to invest in uranium mines.

In new business areas, the Energy Division will con-
tinue to conduct feasibility studies on the commercial-
ization of innovative fuels like bicfuel and implement
other creative initiatives amid the fast-changing busi-
ness environment.

Participation in the New
Kazakhstan Uranium Mine
Development Project

tn April 2007, Marubeni
announced its decision to
participate in a uranium mine
development project in
Kazakhstan being undertaken
by CJSC Kazatomprom, the
national atomic agency of
Kazakhstan. We are proactively working on the project, considering
it a potentially major contributor to Japan's future energy security.

Signing ceremony with Kazatomprom

Strengthening
Petroleumn Trading

To further strengthen the
division’s global trading
activities related to crude oil
and other petroleum prod-
ucts, Marubeni established a
London subsidiary in 2006
‘  that complements its existing
network covering Japan, the
United States and Singapore.
The division has particularty distinguished itself in the import of
such petrochemical feedstocks as naphtha and commands top
market share in Japan.

&

Trading rocm for ¢rude ofl and
petroleumn products
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Metals & Mineral T e IDEAT. G0
Resources Division

Through investment in mine development and smelting proj- Iron Ore Unit

ects overseas, Marubeni secures stable supplies of metal and Steet Making Raw Materials Unit
mineral resources while maximizing profitability. The Metals Coal Unit

& Mineral Resources Division applies its extensive expertise, Non-Ferrous Metals & Ores Unit
experience and information capabilities to bolster trading and Light Metals Unit

cultivate a vertically integrated value chain that encompasses MMC Unit

upstream through downstream businesses. Drawing on our
strengths in handling aluminum ingots, PCI coal, copper ore
and copper ingots, we are also active in such downstream
areas as electronic materials and recycling and always search-
ing out new opportunities.

j Copper Mining Project in Chile

o Marubeni holds an 8.75% equity stake in the Los
Pelambres copper mining project in Chile through
Marubeni LP Holding B.V. Recognized as one of the
world’s most cost-competitive copper mines, the project
operates at full capacity, supplying 900,000 metric tons of
copper concentrate each year to Japan as well as other
markets in Asia and Europe. In fiscal 2006, copper prices
maintained the upward momentum of the previous fiscal
year to again reach historic highs. As a result, the Los
Pelambres project made a sustained and significant
contribution to divisional earnings.

Business TOpiCS [— RS —l Steady Progress at the Los Pelambres

Los Pelambres copper mining project in Chile
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the price of
copper surged to unprececdented levels, As a result,
Marubeni’s investment in the Los Pelambres copper
mining project in Chile contributed significantly to
divisional profits. OQur investment in aluminum smelting
projects in Australia and Canada recorded robust
results thanks to the multiplier effects of the high price
of aluminum and full-capacity operations. In adclition,
despite a decline from a record high in fiscal 2005, coal
prices continued to fluctuate within a high price range.
Thus propelled by a period of sustained price apprecia-
tion, Marubeni reported strong earnings from its coal
mining operations in Australia,

Marubeni's trading company functions are focused on
securing increased earnings not only through investment
in metals and mineral assets but also through trading
activities. For example, in September 2006, we concluded
a long-term purchasing agreement with Mt. Gibson Iron
Limited of Australia to supply iron ore to Japan and else-
where in Asia from the Koolan Island Iron Ore Project
and, in December 2006, acquired an equity interest in
Resource Pacific Holdings Limited of Australia to supply
coal from that company’s Newpac mine to Japan.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Looking ahead, the Metals & Mineral Resources Division
will continue to develop and acquire mining rights based
on a mediumn- to long-term perspective in order to secure
stable supplies of steel and non-ferrous metal materials.
To support these endeavors, Marubeni has established a
dedicated team to identify, develop and promote new
projecis and to accelerate initiatives that facilitate
resource exploration and production. Recognizing the
importance of stable supply, Marubeni will continue to
maximize the competitive advantage of possessing its
own stock and resources. Backed by the Company's
expertise in basic trading company functions, the divi-
sion will assume a prominent role as it strives to meet,
customer volume requirements and respond swiftly to
changing conditions. In this context, we will continue to
develop a discerning eye with regard to the acquisition
of resource assets while maintaining an optimal balance
between investment and trading operations.

The division is also active in the development of new
business in such downstream areas as aluminum disks
for use in hard disk drives, where il boasts the leading
market share among Japanese trading companies.
Marubeni will continue to boost carnings in this field
while expanding initiatives related to such electronic
materials as light-emitting diodes and the recycling
business, where it is focusing on automobiles.

Robust Production at
Overseas Coal Mining
and Aluminum Smelting
Operations

Marubeni maintains equity
interests in coal mines and
aluminum smelters in
Australia and continues to
benefit from their robust
operations. The Company
also holds a stake in the Aluminerie Alouette Smelter in Canada.
Following the completion of a new production line in fiscal 2005,
Marubeni's share of the output from this aluminum smelter has
risen to exceed 37,000 metric tons per year.

Hail Creek Coal Mings in Australia

Efforts to Secure Own
Supply Sources

In September 2006,
Marubeni executed a long-
term purchase agreement
with Mt. Gibson Iron of
Australia to supply Koolan
Island iron ore to Japan and
elsewhere in Asia, including
China. In December 20086,
Marubeni alsc acquired an
equity interest in Australian coal company Resource Pacific
Holdings and is positioned to supply coal from that company's
Newpac mine to Japan. Through such means, we are working to
secure our own stable sources of supply.

Koolan Island iron ore mine in
Australia
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Industrial Machinery Division

The Transportation & Industrial Machinery Division is engaged
in trade, retailing, wholesaling, investment and financing related
to aerospace, defense systems, automotives, construction &
agricultural machinery and industrial & production machinery
in Japan and global markets. At present, we are aggressively
pursuing the further enlargement of existing and development
of new businesses, including the import of jet aircraft and heli-
copters, retailing and wholesaling of automotives and construc-
tion & agricultural machinery and the export of pulp and
paper, automotive and bio-ethanol production lines in which
we hold the functional and experiential advantages.

Aerospace Unit
Defense Systems Unit
Automotive Unit

Automotive Machinery & Production
System Unit

Construction & Agro Machinery Unit
Industrial Machinery Unit
Environmental Machinery Unit

3 1 Japan's First Order for Aircraft Manufactured in Brazil
BusmeSS TOp 1C3 and Opportunities in Airport Ground Handling Services

Commercial jet aircraft manufactured
by EMBRAER S A. of Brazil

There is increased demand from Japanese airlines for jet
aircraft seating 100 or fewer passengers as they improve
operating efficiency in light of the opening of Shizuoka
Airport in 2009 and the expansion of Haneda Airport in
2010. As an import agent, in February 2007 we secured an
order for 15 EMBRAER 170 jet aircraft, recognized for high-
quality interior comfort, performance and safety. The deliv-
ery of the first aircraft is scheduled for 2008, and we are
working to obtain further orders in Japan. In collaboration
with Swissport International Ltd., we have begun airport

ground handling services in Japan.
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007
In fiscal 2006, the first yvear of the “G” PLAN, earnings in
all three core sectors surpassed initial projections and
we recorded our sixth consecutive year increase in
Division earnings.

In the aerospace and defense systems sector, we suc-
ceeded in obtaining an order for 15 Brazilian jet aircraft
from a Japanese airline and delivered European-made
helicopters and fire-control systems to the Japan
Maritime Self-Defense Force.

In the automotives and construction & agricultural
machinery sector, exports to Asia and the Middle East
remained strong and we succeeded in enlarging our
U.S.- and U.K.-based automotive retail operations,
acquired automotive sales financing companies in the
United States and Indonesia and established local con-
struction machinery distributors in Russia and Vietnam.
We also expanded the trade of automotive welding
equipment and tooling dies to India, while in North and
South America we enhanced our precision machine tool
sales network.

In the production and industrial machinery sector,
exports of chemical-related machinery as well as domes-
tic sales of biomass boilers and paper production
machinery increased. We also obtained an order for a
pulp manufacturing plant in Vietnam and, in Japan,
opened a joint bio-ethanol manufacturing plant where
we use timber waste as primary raw material, thereby
helping to reduce COg2 emissions.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Fiscal 2007 is the year to achieve the goals of the

“G"” PLAN and establish the foundations for realizing
earnings projections in 2008 and beyond. Accordingly,
we will expand investraent activities, enlarge our busi-
ness operations and develop new business models.

In the aerospace and defense systems sector, we will
expanc imports of jet aircraft, advance to airport ground
handling services and promote projects related to Japan's
defense system buildup programs after fiscal 2010.

In the automotives and construction & agricultural
machinery sector, exports to the BRICs, ASEAN and the
Middle East will remain our core businesses, and we will
increase exports of automotive production machinery
and machine tools, acquire and set up automotive retail-
ers, participate in the wholesaling of construction and
agricultural machinery and increase related financing
activities overseas,

In the production and industrial machinery sector,
we will further expand orders for pulp and paper, semi-
conductor, visual inspection and PET bottle fabrication
machinery and ramp up our activities in new energy
businesses, focusing mainly on bio-ethanol.

Investing in Construction
Machinery Wholesalers in
Russia and Vietnam

In April 2006, we were
appointed by Komatsu Ltd.
as an authorized wholesaler
of that company's construc-
tion machinery in the South
and Volga River regions of
Russia and, in December
2006, invested in a Vietnam-
based Komatsu construction
machinery wholesaler.

Komatsu construction machinery at
work in Russia

Opening a Bio-Ethanol
Manufacturing Plant

In collaboration with Taisei
Corporation and other com-
panies, we established Bio-
Ethanol Japan Kansai Co., Ltd.
in Osaka, Japan. This joint
venture is a global pioneer in
the manufacturing of fuel-grade
bio-ethanol using timber waste
as a primary raw material. Bio-
ethanol is an environment-
friendly new energy and its use helps to reduce CO2 emissions, a
factor in global warming, conserve oil reserves and reduce waste
material volumes.

A bio-ethanol manufacturing plant
owned and operated by Bio-Ethanol
Japan Kansai
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SHIGERU YAMAZOE

Power PrOj ects CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT, COO
Division

With a solid regional sales base, expertise in sophisticated Overseas Power Project Unit-|
financing schemes and a proven track record in risk manage- Overseas Power Project Unit-I|
ment, the Power Projects Division is further expanding its Domestic Power Project Unit
lineup of highly profitable power generation assets. The divi- New Technology &

sion maintains a balanced portfolio in the strategic overseas Renewable Energy Unit
Independent Power Producer (IPP) field and as an Engineering, Overseas Telecom &

Procurement and Construction (EPC) contractor boasts a his- Information Unit

tory that dates back to the 1960s. Targeting sectors with sig-
nificant potential, Marubeni will broaden its business activi-
ties to include retail power sales as a Power Producer and
Supplier (PPS) in Japan; new technologies and renewable
energy; and overseas IT and telecommunications.

Bang Pakong Combined Cycle Power Plant in Thailand

Marubeni and Siemens AG of Germany were jaintly award-
ed an order by the Electricity Generating Authority of
Thailand for the construction of the Bang Pakong
Combined Cycle Power Plant in October 2006, which is
j scheduled for completion in early 2009. The order for this
project reflects the recognition the Company has received
in Thailand for its extensive track record in the area of
power plant construction and follows on the heels of the
August 2005 order for the Songkhta Combined Cycle
Power Plant. With continued economic growth in Thailand
¢ and concurrent robust demand for additional electric power,
the completion of these projects is highly anticipated.

Business Topics
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007
In October 2006, we successfully bid for a 2,000MW
power plant in Mesaieed Industrial City, Qatar. In
December 2006, a consortium formed by Marubeni and
The Tokyo Electric Power Company, Incorporated
(TEPCO) reached an agreement with Mirant Corporation
to acquire Mirant Asia Pacific Limited (MAPL), which,
with a gross generating capacity of 3,200MW, is the
Philippines' largest IPP. Under the agreement, we
secured an equity interest in a number of power plants,
bringing the total net capacity of our overseas IPP power
generation facilities to more than 4,300MW (as of March
31, 2007) and significantly augmenting our overseas port-
folio. In October 2006 in our EPC aperations, we won a
contract from the Electricity Generating Authority of
Thailand for the construction of the 7T00MW gross capacity
Bang Pakong Combined Cycle Power Plant. In November
2006, we concluded an agreement with a special-purpose
company set up by state-owned Vietnamese companies
that included Electricity of Vietnam to construct the
B600MW gross capacity Hai Phong 1l Goal-Fired Thermal
Power Plant. The aggregate installed capacity of power
plants handled by Marubeni around the world now
exceeds 73,300MW. Working to boost its investment in
new technology and the renewable energy sector,
Marubeni purchased distributed generation facilities and a
biomass renewable energy power plant from DG Energy
Solutions LLC, a U.S.-based private equity fund. This
brings our electricity generating capacity equivalent to
approximately 65MW in this sector and we are committed

to further developrment. with a focus on energy efficiency
and conservation, In other areas, the Power Projects
Division has an excellent track record in retail PPS sales
in Japan; to date, the division has concluded roughly 150
contracts with an aggregate capacity of 200MW and is
actively targeting further expansion. The Overseas
Telecom & Information Unit is contributing to restoration
efforts in Iraq and is in the process of delivering personal
identification systems for public-sector use in Spain,
South Africa, Vietnam and other countries.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Overseas, Marubeni will continue to expand the scale of
its highly profitable IPP operations, targeting a total net
capacity of 8 000MW in fiscal 2008. As a leading EPC con-
tractor, we will leverage our unique strengths in project
management, engineering and international procurement
to secure a continuous stream of orders. Also, we will work
to diversify our baseline portfolio, the source of long-term
earnings, by adopting new business models. In the new
technology and renewable energy fields, we will continue
to acquire prime assets overseas, focusing on wind power
and distributed generation facilities, Regarding retail power
sales in Japan, we are seeking profitable energy resources
with minimal environmental impact. Utilizing its expertise
in broadband-related services and personal identification,
the Overseas Telecom & Information Unit will boost sup-
plies of associated systems.

' Successive Orders for

l_—“w Coal-Fired Thermal Power

Plants in Vietnam

Marubeni and Dongfang
Electric Corporation, China's
leading heavy machinery
manufacturer, were jointly
awarded a construction order
for the Hai Phong Il Coal-
Fired Thermal Power Plant in
November 2006. Following on
from an earlier project—the Hai Phong | Coal-Fired Thermal Power
Plant ordered in 2005—the plant is scheduled for completion in
mid-2010 and is the second such large-scate power plant con-
struction contract awarded to a Japanese-Chinese consortium.

Hai Phong 1 & Il Coal-Fired Therma\
Power Plants

Power Generation Asset Acquisition
from Mirant Corporation

In collaboration with TEPCO, Marubeni
acquired MAPL, the largest IPP in the Phili-
ppines, which owns and operates the Sual
(1,218MW), Paghbilao (735MW) and llijan
{1,251MW) power plants. MAPL boasts a
gross capacity of 3,205MW. Joining
Marubeni's existing IPP facilities, including
the San Rogue Hydroelectric Power Plant
and the Apo Geothermaf Power Plant, this
acquisition confirms Marubeni’s position as
the largest IPP in the Philippines and the
leading IPP in Asia among Japanese firms.

Paghbilao Power Plant
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Pl anjt Ship & - | TAKAFUMI SAKISHIMA
, CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT, COO
Infrastructure Projects Division

Drawing on its outstanding track record in the plant, social Energy & Natural Resources
infrastructure and textile machinery fields, the division con- Projects Unit-|
tinually strengthens and enhances its integrated functions Energy & Natural Resources
and capabilities backed by close and efficient relationships Projects Unit-Hi ,
of mutual trust built with clients and partners, sophisticated E"‘_"m"me"t I"fraSthtlfre U"'t_
knowledge and know-how and skills in structured finance Railway & Transport Project Unit
and risk management while promoting EPC and investment Ship Unit _
projects from the initial development stage. Asset Management Unit

In the ship field, the division demonstrates organizational Tekmatex Business Unit
capabilities and responsiveness and integrates closely and sys-
tematically the needs of shipping firms, shipowners, ship-
builders and financial institutions.

Business TOpiCS Full-Scale Entry into the Railway Business

Marubeni acquired Midwest Railcar Carporation, a freight
railcar operating lease company based in the United States.

1 Bolstered by the booming U.S. economy, the volume of
cargo shipped by rail is continually increasing and demand
for freight railcars is rising accordingly. In response to the
rapid surge in demand, Marubeni aims to make an additional
investment in this company so that it can double the number
of its own railcars.

In the railway transport sector, our participation has
emphasized the supply of rolling stock and transport sys-
tems. Through this investment, Marubeni is building up its
overall capabilities for providing services at all levels of the
industry, from the construction of railways to freight railcar
operation, and, based on our experience with this investment
54 MARUBENI CORPORATION 2007 project, we will develop similar projects in other regions.

Railcars for leasing
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

In the plant field, the division secured contracts for

an LNG terminal in China, a hot strip mill in India and a
cement plant in Vietnam as well as an advanced payment
loan agreement, for the offtake of oil and petroleum prod-
ucts with Venezuela's state-owned oil company. In the
textile machinery business, the division deepened its
close business relationships with Japanese and foreign
suppliers and secured orders mainly in China and other
Asian countries. In new business fields, active steps were
taken to pursue the emissicns credit trading business,
focusing on China and the CIS.

In the environmental infrastructure field, to keep up
with the global trend toward the privatization of water
supply and sewerage businesses, the division acquired a
water utility company in Chile, which joins such other
build-operate-transfer (BOT) projects in operation as a
water treatment facility in China and an industrial waste-
water recycling facility in Mexico. The division secured
consecutive orders for laying high-voltage underground
cable in Qatar as a part of its EPC business activities.

In the transport project field, the division secured a
contract for the construction of new rail lines and refur-
bishment of existing ones as phase I of the Marmaray
project in Istanbul. This was obtained as an EPC project,
an area in which the division has specialized for decades.
Marubeni acquired a freight railcar operating lease com-
pany in an effort to enhance its operations in the railway
transport business.

In the ship field, bolstered by buoyant shipping market

conditions, the division has achieved an excellent con-
tract record, mainly in the areas of newly built ship and
used ship sales as well as in broking and chartering, and
enhanced the chartering activities of its own fleet.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Fueled by higher natural resource prices, natural
resource-related fields are expected to continue to be
buoyant and the division will hold to its aggressive
course of expanding its activities in EPC projects and
ship sales, where the division demonstrates an unri-
valled advantage. In addition, the division will carry out
a plan for adding to its sound asset portfolio to bolster
its core business activities.

The division is developing its oil and gas production
outsourcing business and enhancing its emissions credit
trading activities, which will be carried out under the
Kyoto Protocol scheme, the commitment period of
which will start from 2008,

In the environmental infrastructure field, the division
will focus on projects in the Middle East in addition to
China and Central America and South America, where it
has already completed a number of projects.

In the transport sector, the division will enhance its
freight railcar operating lease business in the United
States andd expand such activities to other regions.

In the ship field, the division aims to reinforce its
operational capabilities by increasing its own fleet and
participating in the operation of large-scale LNG and
LPG carriers.

Organizational Capabilities
in the Ship Field

Construction of a 298,100 dwt*
crude oil tanker for MISC Berhad,
which is affiliated with Petroliam
Nasional Berhad (PETRCNAS),
Malaysia’s state-owned petrole-
um conglomerate, was complet-
ed at Universal Shipbuilding
Corporation’s Artake shipyard in
October 2006. As a general trading company, Marubeni offers profes-
sional expertise and value-added services in the marine vessel field,

*cwt : deadweight ton

Crude ail tanker for MISC

Reinforcement of

VEA Advance Facliity Loan Agredl ] i
Clusing Ceremony " Business with

Oil-Producing Countries

Supported by the Japan Bank
for International Cooperation,
Marubeni entered into a
US$3.5 billion advanced loan
agreement with Venezuela's
state-owned oil company
Petroleo de Venezuela S.A.
Under the agreement, Marubeni receives negotiating rights for
crude ocil and petroleum product transactions for 15 years. This
initiative serves to further diversify oil imports into Japan.

Signing ceremony held in Japan
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Information &

HIDEHISA SAITO

CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT, COO

Communication Division

The Information & Communication Division’s strengths lie in
its ability to respond accurately and promptly to the increas-
ingly diverse and technically sophisticated needs of customers.
To do so, the division’s operating companies apply unique busi-
ness models in highly specialized fields of expertise. Utilizing
its proprietary high-capacity, high-speed optical fiber networks,
the division provides a comprehensive menu of IT services. In
its information and communication operations, Marubeni
strives to expand the scope of its operations by capturing
greater synergies between operating companies and promptly
bringing to market innovative skills, products and services.

Solution Business Unit
Network Business Unit

Business Topics
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Acquisition of exclusive marketing rights from
Vue Technology of the United States

56 MARUBENI CORPORATION 2007

Exclusive Sales Agreement with
@ TAF AL NRSCM YL a0 (uhE U.5.-Based Vue Technology

tn July 2008, Marubeni signed a strategic alliance agree-
ment with Vue Technology, Inc., the leading provider of
RFID networking and item-ievel solutions, The agreement
grants Marubeni 12-month exclusive domestic distribution
rights for the TrueVUE RFID platform, an item-level solu-
tions package that helps ensure operating efficiency.
Following the market introduction and the success of
efforts to marry the TrueVUE platform with the division's
proprigtary RFID system, Marubeni's high-value-added
services yielded robust results. Based on this experience,
in December 2006 the Company concluded a capital
alliance totaling US$3 million with Vue Technology and
extended the exclusive sales agreement three years.
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

Conditions in the information and communications
sectors throughout fiscal 2006 were mixed. On the one
hand, demand remained strong for the high-capacity,
high-speed optical fiber networks, network connections,
data centers and 1T and telecommunication services that
enable enhanced corporate systems as did IT investment,
aimed at expanding operations. On the other hand, the
corporate sector's cost-performance considerations and
c¢lose monitoring of investment returns exerted ever
more downward pressure on connection and informa-
tion service prices.

Confronted by this operating environment, the
division’s principal operating companies, Global Access
Ltd. and Global Solution KK (currently VECTANT Ltd.),
placed greater emphasis on tailor-made, customer-
oriented services. Thanks to this move, Marubeni was
able to successfully increase orders and enjoyed solid
results in fiscal 2006.

In the IT solutions business, the operating company
Marubeni [nformation Systems Co., Ltd. reported excel-
lent results in its data and call center operations. Business
conditions were irnpacted, however, by intense competi-
tion among vendors and a growing customer focus on
investment returns.

In its efforts to conunercialize advanced technolo-
gies, the division formed an alliance with a U.8.-based
company to pursue and promote the sale of wireless 1C
tag systems. In preparation for the future, Marubeni
stepped up its endeavors in this area, acquiring an

equity stake in a U.S, firm engaged in the development
and sale of item-level solutions that utilize wireless 1C
tags. As a part of this capital alliance, the division
received exclusive distribution rights for Japan.
Consistent with the selection and focus policy put
forward under the “V" PLAN, Marubeni repositioned
the CATV business as a non-core activity. This led to
the sale of CATV operations in fiscal 2005 and 2006.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Marubeni recognizes the critical need for operating com-
panies to secure competitive advantage and to expand
the scope of overall operations. To this end, the division
will renew efforts to establish an operating structure
that is capable of flexibly and swiftly addressing cus-
tomer needs. At the same time, we will work to capture
greater synergies between business units. Consistent
with these endeavors, Marubeni will adopt an aggressive
M&A policy. Working to expand and augment our busi-
ness operations, we will pursue acquisitions, mergers,
capital alliances and operating company integration.

In its search for new opportunities, the division will
actively develop new technologies, products and servic-
es. Specific examples include radio frequency identifica-
tion (RFIDY} technology, which enables the tracking of
people and goods using wireless 1C tags. In these ways,
Marubeni is focusing on new business investment and
initiatives that provide alternative sources of earnings.

Import and Sale of Laptop
Computers Manufactured
by Taiwan-Based ASUSTek

In November 2006, Marubeni
commenced the import into
and sale in Japan of taptop
computers manufactured by
ASUSTek Computer In¢., a
leading Taiwanese IT equipment manufacturer. From March
2007, the Company also initiated domestic sales of four addition-
al ASUSTek laptop models compatible with Windows Vista soft-
ware. ASUSTek holds the world’s leading market share in com-
puter motherboards, and its computers boast sophisticated tech-
nological systems and competitive designs.

ASUSTek's laptop computer

Significant Progress in the
Promotion of VECTANT IP-
VPN Services

VECTANT provides corporate
clients with IP-VPN services
under the "VECTANT Closed
IP Network Smart” brand.
VECTANT’s private network
offers high-capacity, multi-connection networks at prices that are
highly competitive with private-lease, ISDN and other lines. The
network currently services in excess of 10,000 sites across a cus-
tomer user base of more than 700 firms in Japan. Performance
remains robust in IP-VPN services,

IP-VPN services
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Construction Division

=

)

TADAHIKO YAMASHITA
CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT, COO

This division, in close cooperation with Group operating compa- Tokyo Housing Development Unit-|
nies, conducts comprehensive condominium development and Tokyo Housing Development Unit-Ii
sales operations in Japan, covering real estate procurement, Osaka Housing Development Unit
product planning, sales and post-sales management services. Urban Development Unit
Cumulative sales currently exceed 70,000 units. The division is Overseas Real Estate

also active in overseas housing development operations, mainly Development Unit

in China, and the establishment of real estate investment funds Housing Supporting Business Unit
and holds an interest in an asset management company affiliat- Real Estate Business Unit-|

ed with real estate investment trusts in Japan (J-REITs). Taking | Real Estate Business Unit-Il

full advantage of its wide business scope in the real estate
domain, the division is developing new businesses to better con-

tribute to Marubeni’s further growth.

Estate Management Unit

Business Topics
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Makuhari Baytown Buena Terraza

Condominium Business in Japan
Domestic sales of condominium units showed steady

| growth throughout fiscal 2006. In greater metropolitan

Tokyo, popular large-scale developments included Grand-
Suite Heart Island, a riverside condominium located in
Adachi Ward between the Arakawa and Sumida rivers,
Makuhari Baytown Buena Terraza in Chiba, Grand-Suite
Minami-Osawa in the Tama Newtown area of Hachioji,
Tokyo, and Mark 01 Hikifune, a high-rise condominium
tower that forms a part of an urban redevelopment project

| in Sumida Ward, Tokye. In the greater metropolitan Osaka
region, attractive, high-demand developments included
" Grand-Suite Koshien-guchi in Nishinomiya, Hyogo

Prefecture, and Grand-Suite [koma in Ikoma, Nara
Prefecture, both offering convenient access to Osaka.
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

In fiscal 2006, real estate markets in Japan generally
thrived, a situation that reflected sustained domestic
economic recovery, increased demand for condomini-
ums and office buildings and a pickup in real estate
securitization through real estate investment trusts in
Japan (J-REITs) as well as private investment funds.
Reflecting the change, average residential and commer-
cial property prices across Japan appreciated for the
first time in 16 years. Even before this shift to favorable
overall market conditions began to-appear, Marubeni
continued to selectively acquire prime properties and
deliver to market condominiums of the highest quality.
In fiscal 2003, we also established the Urban Development
Unit to foster new businesses outside the housing
development field. In addition to leasing and subleasing,
this unit meets the needs of property investors through
real estate development operations in such areas as
asset management, property management and interme-
diary services that complement J-REIT and private fund
operations. With regard to overseas activities, in 1985
Marubeni became the first Japanese residential property
developer to enter the Shanghai market. In Shanghai, we
are currently constructing our fourth development and
have commenced sales of approximately 1,100 condomin-
um units. In our development and construction activi-
ties, we are adopting a proactive posture and working
diligently as we pursue a host of new challenges in this
dynamic market.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Looking ahead, the division will continue to expand
earnings across each of its core business areas: condo-
minium development and sales; overseas housing devel-
opment; and investor-oriented real estate investment.
With regard to demestic condominium development and
sales, we maintain strict property selection criteria and
will continue offering premtum condominiums. In
investor-ariented real estate development operations,
the division will continue to pursue optimal balance
among residential, office and commercial properties. In
our overseas operations, we will expand our residential
developrnent operations from Shanghai to other princi-
pal urban areas in China, including Betjing, Tianjin and
Shenyang. In additien, the division is focusing on culti-
vating new earnings streams that are outside its three
core business areas. Japan's aging demographics are
sparking the need for various related businesses.
Accordingly, Marubeni is pursuing residential develop-
ments that it hopes seniors will find particularly appeal-
ing. Not only do such moves hold the potential for earn-
ings growth over the long term, they signal a shift
toward a more aggressive business approach.

Overseas Residential
Developments

Following the completion of
the KIRIN Garden detached
housing project, Marubeni
commenced sales of the

Lu Ming Garden Project, a
1,100-condominium complex
and the Company’s fourth
development in Shanghai,
China. Building on its excel-
lent reputation for guality, Marubeni is enjoying steady sales in
each new development.

Project after completion

Real Estate Development Operations
for Property Investors

In its investor-oriented real estate
development operations, Marubeni
developed Tenjin Luce, a multipurpose
commercial and retail facifity located
in the Tenjin district of Fukuoka City.
Having nurtured the development to
financial stability, the property was
sold to a J-REIT.
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TAKAO ASAHARA

Finance’ LO gistics & CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT, COOG
New Business Division

The Finance, Logistics & New Business Division employs a Finance Business Unit
business model that involves the delivery to external cus- Forex & Financial Products Unit
tomers of services that it currently provides across the Logistics Business Unit
Marubeni Group in the fields of finance, logistics, insurance Insurance Business Unit

and temporary staffing. We are also active in expanding opera- Life Care Business Unit

tions through the development of new business models in the New Business Development Unit
life care, biotechnology, emissions trading, business consulting Business Incubation Unit

and mail order business fields. Playing on the strengths of a Business Advisory Service Unit

general trading company, each business unit utilizes its spe-
cialized expertise, broad business network and profile within
its industry to maximize opportunities as we seek to take on
new challenges.

The Logistics Business in China

Isewan Terminal Service Co., Ltd. and Marubeni reached
an agreement on the establishment of Guanzhou Yi Shi
Hong International Logistics Co., Ltd., a joint venture in
Guanzhou, China, in June 2006. Serving primarily as a
logistics center for Japanese automobile component man-
ufacturers, the new company commenced international for-
warding ang warehousing activities in August 2006.

Business Topics

BT

Guanzhou Yi Shi Hong's Spratly Warehouse
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Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007

In finance, Marubeni has built on the success of corporate
fund investments that encompass business support and
the rehabilitation of struggling companies. With a history
of securing solid results, we have significantly increased
corporate value and realized a number of exit proposals,

In the 1990s, Marubeni made farsighted investments
in the buyout fund market and today boasts a proven
track record for securing concrete results. Drawing on
our extensive expertise as a general trading house, we
are confident that the setting up, management and sale
of management buyout, corporate revival and venture
capital funds will continue to serve as sources of growth.
Leveraging portfolio management and financial deriva-
tive skills fostered over a lengthy period, Marubeni is
pursuing new investment backed by innovative product
development and management.

In temporary staffing, Avanti Staff Corporation con-
cluded a comprehensive business alliance with China
International Intellectech Corp., China’s largest state-
owned human resource services company, covering the
mutual placement, temporary stafiing and training of
personnel in China and Japan. Thanks to this alliance,
we have deploved a number of Japanese engineers to I'T
firms in Fuzhou, China. Backed by a robust infrastruc-
ture, Marubeni is providing invaluable support in over-
seas business development.

In each of its operating business units, the division is
recording steadily improving results.

Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

Marubeni continues to benefit from the considerable
know-how and functional capabilities yielded by the
business model it has created and its robust earnings
base in the finance, logistics and insurance fields.
Utilizing this platform as a springboeard for growth, we
are expanding business services across almost all indus-
tries, targeting customers from within and outside the
Group. This approach enables Marubeni to enter previ-
ously uncharted business fields and uncover new oppor-
tunities in peripheral areas.

From fiscal 2006, the division’s name was amended
to reflect its growing emphasis on new business devel-
opment. In the fields of biotechnology and medical
equipment and materials, for example, the division is
engaged in the sale of capsule endoscopes. Moreover,
we have taken steps to further cement our foothold in
the mail order business by securing an equity stake in
Mutow Co., Ltd. Similarly, we are further boosting our
leading position in the domestic trade of emissions
credits and our penetration into new business fields.

Based on a mindset that emphasizes steady, stable
growth, the division will focus on accelerating business
expansion. Changing gears, we will drive our performance
forward as we achieve the objectives of the “G"” PLAN.

The Insurance Business

Marubeni established Rexit
International Sdn Bhd with
Rexit Berhad, an insurance
system development and
management company based
in Malaysia. The newly formed
company commenced the
sale and management of sys-
tems targeting the insurance
industry in Asia.

e-Cover portal system for
insurance companies

The Life Care Business

The division first entered the
lite care field during fiscal
2006. Looking ahead, we are
working to develop compre-
hensive health and nursing
care businesses anchored in
the sale and distribution of
medical equipment and
materials as well as manage-
ment improvement consulting
services for hospitals and
nursing care institutions.

Example of medical equipment:
angiographic laboratory
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Iron & Steel Strategies and
Coordination Department

This department was established in May 2001, ahead of the transfer of the Iron & Steel busi-
ness to Marubeni-Itochu Steel Inc. (MISI), a company founded on October 1, 2001. The depart-
ment closely coordinates activities among MISI, Marubeni Construction Material Lease Co.,
Ltd., Thai Cold Rolled Steel Sheet Public Co., Ltd. (TCR) and other operating companies,
which, in turn, promote more organic functions in the iron and steel business and every industry

in which Marubeni Group divisions are active.

Performance in Fiscal 2006, ended March 2007
and Initiatives from Fiscal 2007

In the six years since its founding, MISI has been making
its presence felt as a leading trading company in the steel
sector. In fiscal 2006, MISI enjoyed robust results cen-
tered on the shipbuilding, automotive, and industrial
machinery fields in Japan, as well as brisk exports.

TCR, a joint venture between JFE Steel Corporation
and the Sahaviriya Group of Thailand, is a manufacturer
of cold rolled steel sheets, which are primarily used in
the production of automobiles and home appliances.
TCR has steadily ramped up both output and sales vol-
umes since operations commenced in 1997, providing
high-quality cold rolled steel sheets to Japanese compa-
nies with localized operations and other sources of
cdemand in Thailand. Marubeni Construction Material
Lease listed on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock

Exchange and, having already staked out a corner of the
heavy scaffolding and construction materials industry, is
also steadily broadening its business scope,

As a holding division for operating companies
involved in tron and steel products, the Iron & Steel
Strategies and Coordination Department will remain
committed to growing earnings and generating new
businesses via its operating companies. At the same
time, the department is upgrading its intelligence func-
tions, namely its capacity to gather, assess and provide
market data pertaining to target customers, steel prod-
ucts and other market aspects, as well as its solutions
functions, essentially its ability to analyze current
trends, identify key topics and propose solutions. In
this way, the department is determined to help Marubeni
sustain the comprehensive nature of its iron and
steel product businesses.

{Bulions of yen) Net Income (BiEons of yen)
e 35 O R0 12005 i 2006] 2007
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~ Segment net income 1.5 17.0 14.9 2007 | LET
= RV . T 3008 { ]
Segment assets 64.4 86.1 101.6 o

Business Topics

Insice TCR's factory
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Thai Gas Pipeline Project

MIS! is participating in an international gas pipeline project jointly
heing developed by Thailand and Malaysia. For this project, MISI
delivered 73,000 metric tons of high-quality steel pipe. This huge
project seeks to build an undersea and land-based pipeline more
than 1,600 km long for the purpose of transporting natural gas from
reserves under the seabed of the Gulf of Thailand, an energy supply
with vast potential, to a new power plant to be constructed.

TCR

The Thai automobile industry is aiming to become the “Detroit of
Asia.” TCR focuses heavily on supplying this sector and the rest of
Thailand with around 750,000 to 800,000 metric tons of high-quality
cold rolled steel each year. At the same time, TCR exports between
150,000 to 200,000 metric tons of these products to other fast-
growing neighboring countries in Asia.




Abu Dhabi Trading House Project

Department

This department formed the General Trading House in Abu Dhabi, as a joint venture with the
government of the Emirate of Abu Dhabi, UAE. Combining the funding capabilities and credit
standing of Abu Dhabi with Marubeni’s expertise in the development of products and services
and project coordination, the department engages in new business creation in Abu Dhabi and

other nations in the Middle East and North Africa.

In November 2008, Marubeni and the government of the Emirate of
Abu Dhabi, UAE, signed an agreement to launch a trading house in
Abu Dhabi as a joint venture focusing on the three core business
activities of trade, investment and project development.

As a part of the agreement, the joint venture was established in
May 2007 to conduct feasibility studies on the commercial viability
of potential business and other opportunities. Operating as a trading
house, the joint venture aims to contribute to the development and
expansion of emerging industries within Abu Dhabi through a broad
spectrum of activities, including business related not only to the
region’s vast 0il reserves, but iron and steel, an area enjoying signifi-
cant increased demand; construction machinery and materials and

the import, export, processing and sale of related products; and
environmental technologies

Abu Dhabi

LS

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

t_TJ.. W7 A RY 8 ;‘:K. o
Sheikh Hamed Bin Zayad Al Nahyan, Chairman of the
Abu Dhabi Planning and Economy Department, and Nobuo
Katsumata, President and CEQ Marubeni Corporation,
at the signing ceremony.

Marubeni has contributed significantly to the develop-
ment of power and other infrastructure in Abu Dhabi
since the early 1970s while playing a major role in the
field of energy resource trading. Recognizing the value
of these achievements, the government of the Emirate
of Abu Dhabi selected Marubeni as a partner in estab-
lishing a joint venture.

OMAN
Ras Al Khaimah

Lnm al-Qaiwain g7
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Overseas Network
Africa Prague Khabarovsk Nanjing Kuala Lumpur Omaha
Addis Ababa Risley Kiev Qingdao Kuching Portland
Algiers Warsaw Moscow Shanghai Lahore Silicon Valley
Johannesburg S5t. Petersburg Shenzhen Manila Toronto
Lagos Middle East Tashkent Tianjin Mumbai (Bombay)  Vancouver
Lusaka Abu Dhabi Yuzhno-Sakhalinsk  Xiamen New Delhi Washington D.C.
Nairobi Amman Phnom Pernh
Tripoli Ankara Oceania Asia Seoul Central and
Baghdad Auckland Bangkok Sibu South America
Europe Cairo Melbourne Kolkata (Calcutta) Singapore Bogota
Athens Doha Perth Chittagong Taipei Buenos Aires
Bucharest Dubai Sydney Colombo Ulan Bator Caracas
Budapest Istanbul Dhaka Vientiane Lima
Dublin Kabul China Goa ‘angon Rio de Janeiro
Dusseldorf Muscat Beijing Hanoi Salvador
Hamburg Riyach Changchun Ho Chi Minh City ~ North America San Jose
London Sana'a Chengdu Islamabad Detroit Santiago
Madrid Tehran Dalian Jakarta Houston Sao Paulo
Milan Guangzhou Kaohsiung Los Angeles
Oslo CIS Hong Kong Karachi Mexico City
Paris Almaty Kunming Kota Kinabalu New York
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Overseas Corporate Subsidiaries wr
Marubeni America Corporation Marubeni Nigeria Ltd. Marubeni Taiwan Co., Ltd.
{New York) {(Lagos) {Taipei)
Marubeni Mexico S.A. de C.V, Marubeni Inclia Private Ltd. Marubeni Korea Corporation
(Mexico City) {(New Dethi) {(Seoul)
Marubeni Venezuela C.A. Marubeni Singapore Pte. Ltd. Marubeni Australia Ltd.
(Caracas) {Singapore) (Sydney)
Marubeni Brasil $.A. Dagangierus Sdn. Bhd. Marubeni New Zealand Ltd.
{Sao Paulo)} (Ruala Lumpur) {Aucklund)
Marubeni Argentina S5.A. Marubeni Thailand Co., Ltd. {As of April 1, 2007)
{(Buenos Atres) {Bangkok)
Marubeni Chile LTDA. P, T. Marubeni Indonesta
(Santiago) {Jakarta)

Marubeni Europe P.L.C.
{London)

Marubeni Saudi Arabia Co., Ltd.
(Riyceth)

Marubeni Iran Co., Ltd.
(Tehran)

Marubeni Philippines Corporation
(Manila)

Marubeni China Co., Ltd.
(Shanghai)

Marubeni Hong Keng & South China Ltd.
({lang Kong)
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Marubeni is expanding s earnings base i
the Americas. In fiscal 2000, subsidiary Helena
Chemical Company, a diversified marketer of
agricultural producis, posted recovd profits
Jor a thard straight year. Nalural resource,

food-related and other operations 11 South

America were also strong.

Tank facilities at Helena Chemical (left)
A refrigerated trailer handled by MAC Trailer Leasing (right)

Despite concerns, a drop-off in residential markets had only lim-
ited impact on the U.S. economy in 2006, heing offsel by robust
corporate-sector capital investment and an upswing in personal
consumption. As a result, the economy as a whole grew 3.3%.
Underpinned by a wealth of natural resources and agricultural
products that enable the region to act as a supplier to the rest of
the world, Central America and Scuth America enjoyed healthy
export activity and overall busyant economic developinent,
Marubeni America Corporation is the Group's largest over-
seas company with 13 subsidiaries and approximately 3,000
employees. Leveraging its traditional skills as a general trading
company in marketing, logistics and finance as well as the Group's
strengths in exporting grain, pulp and other products to Japan
and supplying basic resources and materials to high-tech indus-
tries, Marubeni America successfully expanded its trading oper-
ations in fiscal 2006. Helena Chemical Company, with about 300
sales bases throughout the United States dealing in agrochemi-
cals, fertilizer and seeds, enjoyved increased sales of products
for which it holds exclusive manufacturing and marketing righis
as well as growth in its scope of operations thanks to vigorous
M&A activities, posting record earnings for a third consecutive
year. Results al. MAC Trailer Leasing, LLC, a refrigeraied trailer
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Michio Kuwahara
Corpenate Evecilive Vice President,
Greneral Mavager for the Americas

leasing company, also continued to improve year on vear, sup-
ported by steady domestic 1.S. consumption.

Recognizing the enormous potential for expansion boosted
by economic growth throughout North America, Marubeni has
acquired strategic printing paper distribution, industrial belt
sales and equipment leasing, automobile financing and freight
railcar leasing operations.

Historically, the Marubeni Group has turned to Central
America and Socuth America as global suppliers of natural
resources and agricultural products. In 2006, the Group was
particularly active in its efforts Lo expand business in these
areas. Marubeni implemented initiatives to bolster grain sup-
plies from Brazil to Asia, participated in afforestation as well as
bio-diesel projects and concluded a finance contract to promote
crude oil and petroleum product exports from Venezuela.

Acknowledged as the world’s largest consumer market and
hoasting annual population growth exceeding three million, the
United States offers significant business potential. Including
M&A activities in particular, Marubeni will emnphasize the
steady accumulation of prime assets.

Looking ahead, Marubeni will pursue the global development
of oil, mineral, agricultural and forest resources while expand-
ing its trading volume through the creation of new businesses
in the Americas, Japan, China and the ASEAN region.
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Under an alliance formed with Mackintash, Marubeni is expanding over-
seas sales of traditional raincoats and accessories. (left)

Marubeni’s high-performance plastics are used in the semiconductor,
autormobile and medical industries. (right)

Euro zone countries posted average economic growth of 2.7%
in 2006, or 2.9% on a 25 EU member state basis. Buoyed by
healthy consumption and investment, this was a significant
improverment on the previous fiscal vear. Of the 10 Central and
Eastern European mermbers admitted in 2004, more than half
continued to record high annual growth rates of 6% or more, a
telling indicator of the economic dynarmism of this region.
Under the “G” PLAN, enhancing initiatives in Central and East-
ern Europe is a key prierity. Accordingly, Marubeni Europe
P.1..C. remains active in the trade of polyester/cotton blends for
automotive and furniture upholstery, the delivery and installa-
tion of equipment for Japanese automotive firms expanding into
Fastern Eurape and its other operations in the region. We fully
expect to win repeat orders based on our proven track record.
Future regional strategies also call for increased activities in
Russia west of the Urals and the Ukraine, a region that, in eco-
nomic terms, is expected Lo become more closely tied to
Europe. Besides the commodities trade, Marubeni Europe plans
to take an active role in the construction of highways and other
projects on a Public Private Partnership (PPP) basis, together
with its partners. [n fiscal 2006, a Marubeni-led consortium won

a contract to build the second stage of an undersea rail tunnel
beneath Turkey’s Bosporus Straits linking Asia and Europe.
Marubeni is also participating in a number of infrastructure proj-
ects through its investment and development operations.

Int line with its product strategy, Marubeni Europe is gaining
a reputation for identifying niche high value-added plastics-
related products as well as brands in niche fields. In the photo-
graphic film business, one of its strengths in Russia, Marubeni is
looking to further expand its market share through a newly
established trimming plant for professional quality print paper.

There are more than 20 Marubeni Group companies in the
European region. These firms cover a broad range of industrial
fields, from transportation and industrial machinery, information
and communications, infrastructure and utilities to fine chemi-
cals, forest products and general merchandise, and finance and
insurance. Utilizing this expansion, Marubeni is enhancing local
capabilitics while creating a structure that showcases the com-
prehensive capabilities and strengths of the Group.

Following a seven-year hiatus, Maruberd again accepted stu-
dents from France’s Ecole Nationale d’Administration (ENA), as
part of its human resource exchange program in Europe. The
programm includes a variety of seminars at Marubeni's Head
Office in Tokyo, along with tours of major Japanese manufactur-
ers. Through these experiences, Marubeni hopes students will
gain a better understanding of Marubeni’s activities and
Japanese culture and society.

ENA is among France’s elite learning institutions and has
produced some of the country’s most prominent political, finan-
cial and adrinistrative figures. Through this human resource
exchange program, Marubeni is proud to contribute to even
friendlier relations between Japan and France.

MARUBENI CORPORATION 2007 67




C

As a nation that continues to enjoy robust

economaic growth, Chana is a market of
significant importarce. Leveraging s

extensive expertise and experience in the

region, Marubeni is actively purswing trade
and investment opportuniiies in China.

. "h'-- ) -

Marubeni and Dongfang Electric Corporation, a strategic partner in China,
received an order from a Vietnamese state-owned firm for the construction
of the Hai Phong Il Coal-Fired Thermal Power Plant. (left)

The joint-venture company Shanghai House Property Development Co.,
Ltd. enjoys a solid reputation in Shanghai and has participated in such
residential housing projects as KIRIN Garden, pictured here. {right)

In light of its high rate of economic growth, China remains the
focus of global attention. In 2006, China recorded a year-on-
year increase in real GDP of 10.7%. This represents the fourth
consecutive year of double-digit growth.

With the commencement of the nation’s 11th Five-Year Plan
in 2006 and the upcoming Beijing Olympics in 2008 followed by
the Shanghai Exposition in 2(10, expectations for significant
infrastructure investreent and continued robust rates of eco-
nomic growth remain high.

Marubeni opened its first representative offices in China in
1979 just as the Chinese government began to implerment poli-
cies that opened its economy to foreign investment. Today, we
maintain 15 subsidiaries and representative offices in 13 cities
in China and Hong Kong.

Marubeni’s business scope and its role as a trading house in
China have expanded significantly since market deregulation
and China’s admittance to the WTO, With the lifting of restric-
tions on the distribution and sale of merchandise and approval
to establish Marubeni (Beijing} Trading Co., Ltd., the Group
has initiated a wide range of commercial functions. Local
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subsidiaries in coastal free-trade zones, including Shanghai,
Qingdao, Tianjin and Guangzhou, the Group' subsidiary in
Hong Kong and field offices in Changchun, Chengdu, Nanjing,
Shenzhen, Xiamen and Kunming, are now operating on the
same footing as commercial Chincse firms. These companies
have taken on import and export as well as domestic wholesale
and retail operations, giving the Marubeni Group a sales net-
work covering the whole of China.

In additicn to petrochemical development, Marubeni has
invested more than US$3.0 billion in China. In 1988, we stole
the march on competitors by becoming the first Japanese com-
pany to launch a local residential housing company. Morc
recently, we formed Shanghai Baihong Trading Co., Ltd.,
which is the first foreign capital backed joint venture in China
to acquire a wholesale dealer’s license.

As of April 1, 2007, Marubeni held US$420 million in cquity
in 150 Group companies in China and Hong Kong that have a
total capital of approximately US$1.7 billion.

Marubeni is also reenergizing its envirenmental and clean
developrient mechanism (CDM)-related businesses while
advancing new business models in partnership with Chincse
companies aimed at developing offshore and third-country
operalions.

Making the most of its business know-how, expertise and
experience in China, Marubeni will continue to develop opera-
tions across a wide variety of fields, including agri-marine prod-
ucts, chemicals, textiles, paper, industrial machinery, plant,
natural resources, development and construction, finance and
logistics. In the key Chinese market, Marubeni will continue to
aggressively pursue trade and investment opportunities.




Buzlding on ils efforts both past and presend,
Marubeni will expand the depth and scope of
is operating base and maintaim businesses
that contribute to local commmumnities within,

the ASEAN region.

significant development. {left)

Singapore's central business district remains a hub for technological
development throughout Asia. {right}

Since its establishment of a field office in Manila in 1910,
Marubeni has engaged in trade and investment throughout
the ASEAN region. Its activities in the region have not suifered
despite its growing focus on China since the 1990s, and the
Group continues to maintain strong relationships with its trad-
ing partners that are built on nearly a century of mutual trust
and business expansion. In specific terins, we are active in the
export, import and third-country trade of such industrial and
consumer goods as textiles, chemicals, metals, agri-marine
products, forest products, general merchandise and pulp and
paper. We also participate in power, plant, bridge, airport, rail-
way and other infrastructure development. projects. In addition
to expanding the scope of our trading area, we are contributing
to the region’s econemic growth.

Currently, Marubeni maintains five local subsidiaries, eight
branches, five field offices and 59 operating companics in the
ASEAN region. In addition, the Group has dispatched 121 rep-
resentative officers from Japan to the region, making it the
Group's third largest such area of focus, after the United States
and China. We are particularly active in three core strategic

1lisashi Sunaoshi
Ctwporate Viee Presidont,
Ceneval Mariager for ASEAN

fields: the production and trade of consumer goods; resource
and energy-telated businesses; and infrastructure-related busi-
nesses. In the production and trade of consumer goods,
Marubeni engages in third-country transactions of livestock
feed, fodder and grain. Focusing mainly on Singapore, we also
take part in the import, export and offshore trade of a variety of
chemicals, In resource-related businesses, the Group partici-
pates in acacia tree-planting activities in Indonesia as well as
the manuflacture and sale of pulp used in paper production. We
are also active in the export of ceal to Japan from Vietnam. In
infrastructure-related businesses, Marubeni has built a strong
track record in hydroelectric, geothermal and other power gen-
eration operations in the Philippines.

Faced with a drop in its overall population due to demo-
graphic aging and declining birthrate, Japan is finding it imper-
ative to collaborate closely with dynamic East Asian countries,
particularly the ASEAN countries, and to build a value ¢chain
that encompasses production, distribution and consumption in
order to maintain a viable level of economic growth. To pro-
mote a unified strategy, Marubeni has established the position
of General Manager for ASEAN. Based in Singapore, the
General Manager is responsible for coordinating efforts
throughout the region and adjusting Marubeni’s product and
regional strategies to ensure that the Group remains active
across a variety of projects and fields. Moving forward,
Marubeni will accelerate efforts to promote regicnal trade,
inciuding that with Japan, China, India and other regions.
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A major source of energy, the Middle East

anc Novth Africa reqgion continues to evjoy
sigraficant econoric growth. Recogrizing the
reqion’s strategic mmportance and considerable

Sinancial resevves, Marubeni is advancing

a variety of development projects.

o I

Water transmission scheme project in Abu Dhabi (right)

Driven by rapid economic growth and a sudden surge in popu-
lation, the region is seeing a the critical need for infrastructure
and urban development, including clectricity and water supply,
as well as a sharp rise in demand for automeobiles, construction
machinery and agri-marine products, all of which is generaling
a wealth of potential opportunities.

To address needs and keep pace with the rapidly changing
operating environment, in fiscal 2006 Marubeni appointed a
general manager to oversee the 15 business bases located
throughout the region and further strengthen business.

In energy resource exploration and production, Marubeni is
a partner in the Qatargas LNG Project. Gurrently, the Company
handles shipments to Japan totaling six million metric tons
annually. Marubend is also responsible for Lhe long-term stable
supply of naphtha, a raw material used in the production of
petrochemicals, to Japan and Asia, accounting for 10% to 20%
of production volumes in the Middle East. In addition, we are a
long-standing participant in off-taking and the distribution of
crude oil and petroleum products.

Stealing the jump on its competitors, Marubeni was quick to
conunence the operational management of IWPP projects in
Tunisia and Turkey. Thereafter, the Company received orders
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for large-scale projects in Taweelah, Abu Dhabi, and Mesaaied,
Qatar. Furthermore, Marubeni conciuded a contract for the
supply of electricity, water and steain power in connection with
a substantial petrochemical project in Rabigh, Saudi Arabia,
With [WPP projects constituting the Group’s main strength in
the region, Marubeni is establishing a significant presence
throughout, the Middle East and North Africa.

Reflecting an upturn in railway and other transport projects,
Marubeni is constructing a monorail system in Dubai to service
the man-made Palm fumeirah resort island. Also, a Marubeni-
led consortium has been awarded a contract for a large portion
of an undersea rail tunnel beneath Turkey’s Bosporus Straits
linking Asia and Europe.

Having started construction in 2002, Marubeni effectively
completed the installation of a water transmission scheme
extending 250km from a plant at Shuweihat to Musaffah, Abu
Dhabi. The Company is also constructing a sewage treatment
plant and water pump station and installing power transmission
lines in Qatar. Going forward, Marubeni will actively pursue
environment-related projects, focusing particularly on water
supply and sewage systems.

Significant demand growth is forecast in the consumer
goods market. Against this backdrop, Marubeni will step up its
activities in chemicals, for which the region is expected to serve
as a global product supply source, and construction machinery,
an area where demand is surging due to an infrastructure
development boom, as well as agri-products and automaobiles.

Marubeni is committed to expanding its activities across a
variety of fields, inclucling infrastructure development and con-
swuimer goods, in the Middle East. and North Africa.




Major Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Agri-Marine Products Division

Countey/  Percentage of

Company Name Description of Operations Area Vating Rights
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  Benirei Corporation Domestic sale of seafond and processed scafood products, Japan 98.76%
commercial cold storage
Marubeni Chikusan Corporation Marketing of livestock, meat and processed products Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Egg Corporation Production and sale of eggs Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Foods Corporation Sale of general processed foeds, coffee, resh vegetables and fruit, Japan 99.99%
green tea
Marubeni Foods Investment Co., Ltd. Investment in retailers for the Agri-Marine Products Group Japan 100.00%
of Marubeni
Marubeni-Mitsuhashi Rice, [ne. Wholesale of rice and processed rice Japan 51.00%
Marubeni Nisshin Feed Co., Ltd. Manuiacture and sale of compound feed Japan 60.00%
Marubeni Retail Investment Corporation Shareholding activities Japan 100.00%
Marukoh Fisheries Co., Lid. [mport and processing of frozen and fresh tuna Japan 100.00%
Nacx Nakamura Corperation Wholesale, transpertation and processing of frozen foods, Japan 83.52%
refrigerated warehousing
Nippon Chunky Co., Ltd. Broiler grandparent stock (GPS) farming, parent stock Japan 100.00%
(P3) production
Pacific Grain Terminal Co., Ltd. Port elevator operation, warehousing, customs clearance, other Japan 78.40%
Stork Corporation Delivery of balanced-ingredient healthy meals Japan 85.004%
Tokyo Flour Milling Co., Ltd. Production and sale of wheat flour, mixed flour and hran, sale of Japan 55.36%
dried noodles, etc., warehousing (wheat silos)
Overseas  Cia. [guagu de Café Solhivel Manufacturing, export and domestic sales of instant coffee Hrazil T2.43%
Colurnbia Grain Internaticnal, Inc. Grain trading U.S.A. 100.00%
North Pacific Seafoods, Inc. Processing of Alaskan seafood, import and export of tuna, U.S.A. 100.00%

import of Japanese foods

Rangers Valley Cattle Station Pty. Ltd.  Beef feedlot operation and beef production as a consigned abattoir, Australia  100.00%
supply of high-class beef to Japan

Affiliates

Domestic  Central Japan Grain Terminal Co., Ltd.  Grain warehousing, stevedoring and transportation Japan 50.00%
The Daiei, Inc. Operation of general merchandise stores Japan 29.52%
Hasegawa Co., Ltd. Confectionery wholesaler Japan 35.00%
The Maruetsu, Inc. Supermarket chain Japan 20.99%
Miyako Sugar Manufacturing Co., Ltd.  Manufacture and sale of sugar Japan 24.04%
The Nisshin QilliO Group, Ltd. Business related to oil, meal and beans, health focds and fine chemicals Japan 15.15%
SFoods Inc. Meat and varicty meat processing and sale Japan 15,12%
Ten Cerperation Tempura and tempura bowl restaurant chain operator Japan 15.00%
Tobu Store Co., Ltd Supermarket. chain Japan 30.30%
Tokyo Allied Coffee Roasters Co., Ltd.  Manufacture and wholesale of roasted coflee Japan 23.82%
Toyo Sugar Refining Co., Ltd. Sugar refining Japan 39.32%
Yamaboshiya Co., Ltd. Wholesale of confectionery Japan 47.64%

Overseas  Great Wall Dalian Investment Co., Ltd.  [nvestment in a broiler raising and processing company China 40.00%
Terlogs Terminal Maritima Lida. Storage and loading of bulk cargoes, such as grain, fertilizer, ete. Brazil 25.50%
Vihas Argentinas S.A. Preduction and sale of grape juice concentrate and wine Argentina 40.00%
Weifang Meicheng Foodstuffs Wholesale hatching and processing of chickens, sale of broilers China 20.00%
Company Ltd. and several processed foods

Textile Division

Country/  Percentage of

Company Name Description of Operations Area Voting Rights
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Daomestic Benny Toyama Corporation Manufacture of fishing nets and warp-knit products Japan 96.68%
Kyoto Marubeni Co., Lid. Wholesale of Japanese kimonos and related products Japan 99.91%
Marubeni Fashion Link, Led. Wholesale of fabrics, textile products, garments and fashion accessories Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Fashion Planning Corp. Censulting on fashion merchandising, planning, design and research  Japan 100.00%
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Marubeni Intex Co., Ltd. Wholesale of industrial- and home intertor-use ready-made Japan 100.00%
| textile goods and materials
Marubeni Mate Co., Lid. Design, production, sale and rental of uniforms, subcontraciing Japan 100.00%
of related clerical operations
Marubeni Tex Co., Ltd. Wholesale of textile piece goods Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Textile Business Support Provision of delivery and accounting support for textile operations Japan 100.00%
Co., Ltd.
Pacific Clothing Inc. Design, production and sale of casual wear Japan 70.00%
Overseas  Marubeni Textile Asia Pacific Ltd. [mport, export and domestic trading of textile materials and garmenis China 100.00%
Marubeni Textile (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  [mport, export and domestic trading of textile materiats China 100.00%
and garments via hases in China
Shanghai Tong Nuan Hong Knitting Production and sale of socks China 90.00%
Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Xin Hong Textile Co., Ltd. Spinning of synthetic yarn China 65.00%
Shanghai Xin Song Hong Textile Manufacture of acrylic printed {loor mats China 86.78%
Decorations Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Xin Yuan Hong Yarn Dyeing  Dyeing of synthetic biends, cotton and wool yarn China 50.00%
Co., Ltd.
Worklerful Saigon Garment. Co., Ltd. Production of uniforms and other clothing Vietnam 51.00%
Affiliates
Domestic  Fabricant Co., Ltd. Production and sale of Lacoste-brand clothing Japan 33.36%
Overseas  Erawan Textile Co., Ltd, Spinning and weaving of cotton and polyester/cotion fabrics Thailand 36.06%
Jiangyin Nikke Worsted Spinning Production and sale of combed wool China 30.00%
Co., Ltd.
Thai Textile Development & Finishing  Dyeing and finishing of cotton and synthetic fabrics Thailand 27.11%
Co., Lid.
Tokai Dyeing Co., (Thailand) Ltd. Dyveing, printing and finishing of cotton and synthetic fabrics Thailand 31.14%
Forest Products & General Merchandise Division
Company Nante Description of Operations C(:‘u;lelar}'/ ]:.zmﬁg
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic Forestnet Co., Ltd. Internet sale and marketing of printing/writing paper, Japan 65.00%
other related services
Fuji Coated Paper Co., Ltd. Production, sale and marketing of coated paper Japan 100.00%
Fukuyama Paper Co., Ltd. Manufacture of medium board and paper tube materials Japan 55.00%
Japan Indonesia Petrochemical Capital contributions toward P.T. Tanjungenim Lestari Pulp & Japan 100.00%
lnvestment, Corporation Paper (PT TEL) and P.T. Musi Hutan Persada {(PT MHP),
preparation of loan facility for T TEL and PT MHP
Koua Kaogyo Co., Ltd. Manufacture of medium board, containerboard and printing paper Japan 79.95%
Marubeni Building Materials Co., Ltd. Wholesale of wood products and construction rmaterials Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Cement, & Wholesale of cement and construction materials Japan 90.00%
Construetion Maierials Co., Ltd.
Marubeni CLS Corporation Sale of synthetic leather Japan 100,00%
Marubeni Footwear Inc. Export, import and sale of footwear Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Lumber Co., Lid. Sawmilling and wholesale of logs and lumber Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Office Supply Co., Ltd. Conversion and sale of information processing paper Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Paper & Pulp Logistics Integrated logistics management of imported and domestic paper Japan 95.00%
Co., Lad. and pulp products
Marubeni Paper Recycle Co., Ltd. Assortment and sale of wastepaper Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Pulp & Paper Sales Co., Lid.  Wholesale of all types of paper Japan 88.48%
Marubeni Techno Rubber Corporation  Wholesale of rubber materials and chemicals Japan 100.00%
Mascot-Chemical Paper Co., Lid. Manufacture and sale of cash register paper Japan 80.00%
Mecca Corporation Import and domestic sale of fitness equipment and sports/medical Japan 100.00%
products, sale of golf grips and other products
Taiet Sangyo Co., Lid. Plastics thermoforing Japan 100.00%
Overseas  Belterra Corporation Sale of conveyor belts, parts and other industrial rubber products Canada 100.00%
and the provision of related services
B-Quik Holdings Limited Holding company of B-Quik Co., Limited, which is engaged ina Mauritius 90.00%
service center automotive maintenance and repair chain in Thailand
Intragrated Resource Holdings, Inc. Sale of printing paper U.S.A. 100.00%
Marubeni Business Machines Sale of copying machines and other office equipment to Central US.A. 100.00%
(America), Inc. and Scuth America
Marubeni Footwear Resources Limited  Development and sourcing for footwear, bags andd related materials China 100.06%
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Maritbeni International Commuodities Sale of natural rubber and related produets Singapore  100.00%
(Singapaore) Pte, Ltd,
Marubeni Pulp & Sale of paper, paperboard, pulp and wood chips US.A. 100.00%
*aper North America, Inc.
Marubeni Pulp & Sale of thermal paper, inkjet paper and pulp Germany  100.00%
*aper Sales Europe GrobH
Nantong Jichong Recycle Corporation  Collection and sale of wastepaper China 75.00%
Pan Pacific Fiber, Inc. Collection and sale of wastepaper U.S.A. 66.70%
P.T. Musi Hutan Persada Plantation investment. and management, sale of pulp and logs from  Indonesia 60.00%
plantation forests
P.T. Tanjungenim Lestari Pulp & Paper Production and sale of Acacia-based wood pulp Indonesia  100.00%
Shanghai Marubeni Paper Sales Co., Lid. Trading ol paper and paperboard China 70.00%
Southern Plantation Forest Pty. Ltd. Management. of hardwoeod plantation, chip production and sale Australia 57.10%
UNIMAC Rubber Co., Ltd. Production and sale of natural rubber Thailand 75,00%
Affiliates
Domestic CAMS Chain Corporation Wholesale of a full range of car accessories Japan 33.30%
Marusumi Paper Cao,, Ltd, Manufacture and sale of printing paper and pulp Japan 32.16%
Surnatra Pulp Carporation Capital contributions towards P.I'. Tanjungenim Lestari Pulp & Paper Japan 49.95%
Well Corporaticn Collection and sale of office wastepaper and classified documents Japan 40.00%
Overseas  Amcel Participacoes LTDA Holding company of AMCEL chgaged in plantation maintenance, Brazil 50.00%
export of wood chips and biomass products
Daishowa-Martbeni International Ltd.  Manulacture and sale of pulp Canada 50.00%
Konica Minolta Business Solutions Do Assembly and sale of copiers Brazil 49.00%
Brasil Ltda.
Marusumi Whangarei Co., Lid. Manufacture and sale of wood chips New Zealand  49.00%
N.V. Yokohama Belgium S.A. Sale of Yokohama tires in Belgium and Luxembourg Belgium 33.40%
Thaimac STR Co., Lid. Production and sale of natural block rubber (STR) Thailand 49.00%
WA Plantation Resources Pty. Ltd. Wood chip export and plantation Australia 50.00%
Yokohama Reifen GmbH Sale of Yokohama tires, principally in Germany Germany 25.00%
Yokohama Tyre Australia Pty. Ltd. Tire distributor Australia 40.00%
Chemicals Division
Company Name Description of Operations C'Rl;:!gyl Eﬁ:s'ﬁﬁg
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  Marubeni Chemix Corporation Sale and foreign trade of organic and specialty chernicals Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Plax Corporation Sale and foreign trade of plastic products and resin Japan 100.00%
Saitama Pet Botile Recyele Co., Ltd. Production and sale of PET flakes made from used PET bottles Japan 100.00%
Shinko Chemical Terminal Co., Lid. Management of storage terminals of chemieal products Japan 85.50%
Overseas  Agrovista B.V, Holding company of agrochemicals distributors in the LK. UK. 100.00%

Fujifilmm Hungary Lid.
(Fujifitm Magyarorszag Kft.)

Helena Chetnical Company

Jiangmen Senkei Chermical Tank
Storage Co., Ltd.

Marubent Chernical Asia Pacific Pre. Lid.

Marubeni Chemicals & Plastics
{Hong Kong) Ltd.

Marubeni Chemicals
{Shanghai} Co., Ltd.

Marubeni Informaticn Technolegy
{Shanghai} Co., Lid.

Marubeni Specialty Chemicals
{Europe) GimbH

Marubeni Specialty Chemicals [nc.

Nantong Wanhong Agrochemical
Co., Lid,

Polyglory (Hong Kong) Lid.
Tianjin Benny Trading Co., Ltd.
ZAO FujiFilm RU

and the Netherlands

Sale of and services for Fujifilm products and related merchandise

in Hungary
Distrilyution of agrochemicals, fertilizer and seeds
Operation of molten caprolactam storage facilities

Import, expert and offshore trade of organic and
specialty chemicals, plastics and electronic-related materials

Import and export of chemicals, plastics and related materials

Import and export of chemicals, offshore trade, bonded-area trading  China

and consulting

Import and export of clectronic-related components and materials

Sale and foreign irade of specially chemicals and electronic-related

materials in Europe

Sale and foreign trade of specialty chemicals and plastics in the U.S.A.

Formulation and sale of agrochemicals

Manufacture and sale of PE films
Import and export, storage and domestic sale of molten sulphur
Sale of photosensitive materials and products

Hungary  100.00%
U.S.A. 100.00%
China 100.00%

Singapore  100.00%
China 100.00%
100.00%

China 100.00%

Germany  100.00%
U.S.A. 100.00%
China 85.00%
China 96.28%
China 67.20%
Russia 100.00%
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Affiliates

Domestic Japan Opto Display Technology Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of liquid crystal color filters, processing of Japan 30.00%
related components
Katakura Chikkarin Co., Lid. Production and sate of fertilizer, sale of LPG, feedstuffs and foods Japan 25.19%
Konan Laminate Co., Ltd. Processing of lamination and manufacture of paper products Japan 35.00%
Polytech Incorporated Manufacture and sale of polyester sheet. Japan 41.98%
Shoei Chemical Co., Lid. Manufacture (OEM) of paint and paint thinner Japan 27.00%
Sun Agro Co, Ltd. Production and sale of fertilizer, sale of agricultural chemicals, Japan 22.78%
golf-related business
Overseas  Agricultural Chemicals (Malaysia) Manufacture and sale of agrochernicals Malaysia 29.60%
Sdn. Bhd.
Beijing Asahi Glass Electronies Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of multifortn and frit glass China 20.00%
CMK Electronics (WUXI) Co,, Ltd. Pevelopment, manufacture and sale of PCB China 20.00%
Dampier Salt Limited Production and sale of salt and gypsum Australia 20.44%
Kaofu Chemical Corporation Manufacture and sale of polystyrene Taiwan 30.51%
Key Plastics {Dalian) Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of tools and plastic products China 20.00%
MGC Advanced Polymers, Ine. Manufacture and sale of MXD-G polymers U.S.A. 20.00%
Nantong Benny Petrochermicals Storage and transport of petrochemical and chemical products China 25.00%
Harbour Storage Co., Lid.
Nantong Rayon Chemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of PMMA resin China 20.00%
P.T. Emblem Asia Manufacture and sale of biaxially orienied nylon film Indonesia 21.80%
P.T. Fukusuke Kogyo Indonesia Manufacture and sale of PE filins Indonesia  356.00%
Sckisui S-LEC Mexico S.A. de C.V. Manufacture and sale of polyvinyl butyral interlayer film Mexico 29.08%
Wuxi Zhenyu Chemical Co., Ltd. Production and sale of sulphuric acid, SOP and hydrochleric acid China 44 .44%
Energy Division
Company Name Description of Operations C‘R’;::’f l;ff&;;ﬁf:
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  Marubeni Energy Corporation Sale of petroleum products, operation of oil terminals and Japan 66.60%
service stations
Marubeni Ennex Corporation Management and operation of oil ancl gas tertninals Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Liquefied Gas Corporation Sale of LPG, operation of LPG filling stations Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Utility Services, Ltd. Sale of nuclear power plant-related components and services Japan 100.00%
Toh-hoku Sekiyugas Co., Ltd. Sale of petroleum products and LPG Japan 100.00%
Overseas  Encrgy US.A. Inc. Nuclear energy-related business US.A. 106.00%
Marubeni Energy Europe Limited Petreleum trading, primarily in Europe U.K. 100.00%
Marubeni International Petrolewm Petreleum trading, primarily in Asia and Qceania Singapore  100.00%
{Singapore) Pte. Lud.
Marubeni LNG International B.V. [hwvestment in the Qatargas LNG Project Netherlands 100.00%
Marubeni North Sea Limited il and gas development and production in the North Sea UK 100.00%
Marubeni Oil & Gas (USA) Inc. Oit and gas development and production in the Gulf of Mexico U.S.A. 100.00%
MIECO Inc. Petroleurn trading, primarily in North America and the Pacific Rim US.A. 100.00%
MQL [nternational B.V. Investment in the Qatargas LNG Project Netherlands 100.00%
Ravva Oil (Singapore) Pte. Lid. Oil and gas development and production in India's Ravva oilfield Singapore  100.00%
Affiliates
Overseas  Shenzhen Sino-Benny LPG Co., Ltd. Import and sale of LPG in China China 49.00%
Metals & Mineral Resources Division
Company Name Description of Operations C‘mt:’f gzg;;;%g
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic Marubeni Metals Corporaticn Sale of nonferrous and light metal products Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Tetsugen Co., Ltd. Sale of raw materials for steelmaking, ferro alloys and other minerals  Japan 100.00%
Overseas  Marubeni Aluminiutn Australia Pty. Ltd. Investment in aluminum business in Australia, sale of aluminum Australia  100.00%
ingots
Marubeni Coat Pty. Lid. Investment in coal business in Australia Australia  100.00%
Marubeni LP Holding B.V. Investment in Los Pelambres copper mine in Chile Netherlands  100.00%
Marubeni Metals & Minerals Investment in aluminum business in Canada, sale of aluminum Canada 100.00%
{Canadn) ne. ingots
Marubeni Thermai Coal Py, Ltd. [nvestment in Dartbrook coal mine in Australia Australia  100.00%
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Affiliates

Overseas  East Cheer Investment Lid. Investment in Shenzhen KTM Glass Substrates Co., Ltd., a company  China 40.00%
that manufactures and sells glass disk substrates for hard disk drives
Silbasa-Silicio de Alta Pureza da Production and sale of high-purity ferro silicon Brazil 24.62%
Bahia S.A.
Toyo-Memary Technology Sdn. Bhd. Production of aluminum disks for hard disk drives (HDIDs) Malaysia 40.00%
Transportation & Industrial Machinery Division
Company Name Description of Operations Cﬂ;nf l‘):"u;;téfg;g
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  Marubeni Aerospace Corporation Sale, export, import and lease of aircraft, engines, onboard Japan 100.00%
cquipment, satellites and related parts
Marubeni Automotive Corporation [mport, export and domestic sale of automotive parts Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Construction Machinery Sale of construction machinery Japan 100.00%
Sales, ne.
Marubeni Machinery Co., Lid. Sale and distribution of printing and industrial machinery Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Techno-Systems Corp. Sale of machinery relating to media, [ood, beverage, packaging, Japan 100.00%
chemical and environmental eguipment
Shinnihon Reiki Co., Lid. Engineering and construction of industrial-use cooling 1owers Japan 1G0.00%
and accessories
Overseas  Advantage Funding Management, Ine.  Finance and lease of antomobiles U.S.A. 80.00%
Avenue Machinery Corporation Sale and related operations of agricullural equipment manufactured Canada 100.00%
by Kubota Corporation and AGCO Corporation
Distribuidora Autemoriz Marubeni Lida. Wholesale of automobiles Chile 100.00%
Gallery Automictive Group, LLC. Sale and servicing of automehiles U.S.A. 100.00%
Leng Istand Automotive Group, Inc. Sale and servicing of automabiles US.A. 100.00%
Marubeni Aerospace America Export of aircraft, engines, onboard equipment, spacecrafi products ~ U.S.A. 100.00%
Corparation and related parts to Japan
Marubeni Auto & Construction Sale, import and export of automobiles and construction US.A. 100.009%
Machinery America Inc. machinery, investment
Marubeni Auto and Construction Import and sale of and after-services for construction machinery Russia 100.00%
Machinery (Russia) Co., Ltd.
Marubeni Auto Finance, Ltda. Provision of automaobile financing services Chile 100.00%
Marubeni Auto Investment (UK) Ltd.  Sale and servicing of automobiles UK. 100.00%
Marubeni Auto Ltda. Sale of automebiles and related services Chile 100.00%
Marubeni Aviation International Ltd. Aircraft lease/finance, export. of helicoplers, onboard equiptnent UK. 100.00%
and related parts te Japan
Marubeni Aviation Services Ltd. Investment in aircraft engine development programs Caymnan Islands  100.00%
and leasing of aircraft
Marubeni Citizen-Cincom, Inc. Sale of Citizen machine tools U.S.A. 60.00%
Marubeni Construction Machinery Sales representative for agricultural machinery manufactured Poland 100.00%
Poland SP.Z0.0. by Kubota Corporation and forklifts manufactured
by Nissan Motor Co., Lid.
Marubeni Disc Systems, Inc. Sale of optical disc, CD and DV machinery U.S.A. 80.00%
Marubeni Holding Ltda. Import and sale of auntomachiles, trucks and related products, Chile 100.00%
management of automobile financing operations
Marubeni Komatsu Lid. Import, sale and servicing of construction machinery UK. 100.00%
Marubeni Motor Holdings, Inc. Investment in automobile financing service companies U.5.A. 100.00%
N.V. Marubeni Auto and Construction  Import, distribution and servicing of Nissan automobiles and parts Belgium 100.00%
Machinery (Europe) S.A.
N.V. Nissan Belgium S.A. Wholesale and distribution of Nissan automobiles Belgium  100.00%
Toyota Ghana Company Ltd. Import and distribution of Toyota vehicles Ghana 100.00%
Affiliates
Domestic Ecomanage Corporation Design, implementation, contracting and consulting for waste Japan 40.00%
treatment business
Swissport Japan Co., Ltd. Ground handling operations at airports Japan 46.00%
Overseas  Citizen Machinery America, Ine. Sale of and engineering services for machine tools U.S.A. 49.00%
CODACA Holding & Investment Import, assembly and distribution of Hino trucks Guatemala  48.00%
Co., Litd.
Hitachi Construction Machinery Sale and servicing of construction machinery in Australia Australia 20.00%
(Australia) Pty. Ltd.
Kameo Co., Ltd. Sale and servicing of Kubota tracters, generators, engines South Korea  20.00%

and construction machinery
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-

Komatsu Construction Equipment Sale of construction machinery and provision of related services Vietnam 30.00%

Trading and Technical Service J.5.C.

Kubota Canada Ltd. Sale and servicing of Kubota tractors, generators, engines and Canada 20.00%
construction machinery

Kubota Construction Machinery Import and sale of and after-services for Kubota small-scale China 25.00%

{Shanghai) Co., Ld. construction machinery

Kubota (Deutschland) GmbH Sale and servicing of Kuhota tractors, generators, engines and Germany 20.00%
construction machinery

Kubota Europe S.A. Sale and servicing of Kubota tractors, generators, engines and "rance 26.22%
construction machinery

Kubota Tractor Australia Pty. Lid. Sale and servicing of Kuhota tractors, generators, engines and Australia 20.00%
constriction machinery

Kubota (U.K.) Lid. Sale and servicing of Kubota tractors, generators, engines and UK. 40.00%
construction machinery

Nissan Diesel America, Inc. Import, distribution and servicing of Nissan Diesel trucks U.S.A. 50.00%

P.T. Kencana Internusa Artha Finance  Finance of vehicles Indonesia  49.00%

P.T. Surya Artha Nusantara Finance Finance of construction machinery Indonesia 40.00%

Unipres Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. Sale and manufacture of automotive hody panels Mexico 18.75%

Unipres U.5.A. Inc. Sale and manufacture of autemotive body panels U.8.A. 25.00%

Power Projects Division
, s S Country/  Percentage of

Company Name Description of Operations Area Voting Rights
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  Fuel Cell Japan, Co., Ltd. Operation and maintenance of molten carbonate fuel cells Japan 100.00%
Hamanasu Wind Power Corporation Operation of a wind-generated power plant for Hokkaido Electric Japan 1400.00%
Power Co., Inc.

Marubeni Power Development Development and operation of overseas [PP projects Japan 100.00%

Corporation

Marubeni Power Systems Corporation  Engineering, procurement and construction services for overseas Japan 1{10.00%
POWET Projects

Mibugawa Power Company Operation of Mibugawa Hydro Power Station Japan 100.00%

Minami-Kyushu Wind Power Operation of a wind-generated power plant for Minami Kyushu Wind  Japan 80.00%

Corporation Power Company

Sarakitornanai Wind Power Corporation Operation of a wind-generated power plant for Hokkaido Electric Japan 49.00%
Power Co., Inc.

Yuya Wind Power Corporation Operation of a wind-generated power plant for the Chugoku Japan 90.00%
Electric Power Co., Inc.

Overseas  Axia Power Holdings, B.V. Company with holdings in overseas power assets Netherlands 100.00%
Geoenergia de Guanacaste Ltda. Geothermal IPP in Costa Rica Costa Rica  100.00%
HiMC Solutions Company Limited Systems integrater in Vielnam Vietnam 68.00%
Maredi Telecom & Broadcasting Sale and engineering of telecom and broadeasting systems South Africa  51.00%
(Pry.) Ltd. in Africa
Marpless Communication Technologies  Sale and engineering of information systems in Africa South Africa  51.00%
(Pty.) Ltd.

Marubeni Asian Power Ltd. Marketing and developruent. of power projects Hong Kong  160.00%
in the Asia Pacific region

Marubeni Energy Alternatives, Inc. Development and investment for new technology and renewable U.S.A. 100.00%
energy business in the U.S.A.

Marubeni Energy Services Corporation  Operation and maintenance of Mindanao Geothermal Power Plant.  Philippines  100.00%
Units | and 2

Marubeni Europower Ltd. Marketing and developtent of power projects in Europe, UK. 100.00%
the Middle East and Africa

Marubeni Power Asset Managemaoent Management of Marubeni's global IPP assets Hong Kong  100.00%

lLad.

Marubeni Power Internationat Inc. Marketing and development of power projects in continental U.S.A 100.00%
North America and South America

Marubeni Sustainable Energy, Inc. Energy supply business with distributed generation facilities and U.5.A. 100.00%
biomass power plants in the U.8.A.

Mindanao | Geothermal Partthership Geothermal [PP in Mindanao, Philippines Philippines  100.00%

Mindanae Ii Geothermal Partnership Geothermal [PP in Mindanao, Philippines Philippines  100.00%

P.T. Matlamat Cakera Canggih Marketing, development, contracting and project execution of Indonesia 75.00%
power projects in Indonesia

San Roque Power Corporation Hydro IPP in Luzon, the Philippines Philippines ~ 92.50%

Sithe lchon Cogeneration Co., Ltd. [PP in Ichon City, South Korea South Korea 100.00%

76 MARUBENI CORPORATION 2007




Sithe Yosu Cogeneration Co. Lid.

independent steam supply business in Yosu City, South Korea

South Korea

100.00%

Overseas

Power Co., Inc.

SmartestEnergy Ltd. Electricity consolidation and trading service in the U.K. UK. 100.00%
Smithfield Power Partnership PP in New South Wales, Australia Australia  100.00%
Affiliates
Domestic  Misaki Wind Power Corporation Operation of a wind-generated power plant for Shikoku Electric Japan 49.00%

Asia Gulf Power Holding Company
Limited

Asian Gulf Power Service
Company Limited

Investment in Taweelah B WPP (power and water) project
in Abu Dhabi

Operation and maintenance of Taweelah B IWPP plant

Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands

35.00%

35.00%

Carthage Power Company sarl IPP in Tunisia Tunisia 40.00%
Crimsonpower Holdings Cornpany, Inc.  Holding company for the Ilijan, Paghilao and Sual power plants Philippines ~ 50.00%
in the Philippines
Eastern Power and Electric IPP in Bang Bo, Thatland Thailand 28.009%
Company Limited
Gangwon Wind Power Co., Ltd. Operation of a wind-generated power plant in Gangwon, South Korea  30.00%
South Korea
Mesaiced Power Holdings Company IPP in Mesaiced, Qatar Qatar 40.00%
Millmerran Power Partnership IPP in Queensland, Australia Australia 30.00%
PPN Power Generating Company IPP in Pillsiperumalnallur, India India 26.00%
Limited
Rabigh Arabian Water & Electricity Co.  IWPP (power and water} for chernical complex in Saudi Arabia Saudi Arabia  30.00%
Tapal Energy (Private) L. IPP in Pakistan Pakistan 40.00%
Uni-Mar Enerji Yatirimnlari A.S. IPP in Marmara Ereglisit, Turkey Turkey 33.30%
Youngduk Wind Power Co., Ltd. Operation of a wind-generated power plang in Youngduk City, South Korea  34.00%
South Korea
Plant, Ship & Infrastructure Projects Division
Company Name Description of Operations Clxi_l::&?’ ]".:mﬁg
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  Koyo Line Ltd. Ship management, brokerage and trade of ship equipment and others Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Protechs Corporation Import, export and domestic sale of plant-retated equipment and Japan 100.00%
machinery, plant censtruction for overseas bases of Japancsc
companies and Official Development. Assistance (ODA) related
operations
Marubeni Tekmatex Corporation Import, export and domestic sale of textile inachinery Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Transport Engineering Planning and development of transport. systeins Japan 100.00%
Co,, Lt
Overseas  Aguas Decima 5.A. Water and wastewater works in Valdivia, 10th Region, Chile Chile 100.00%
MARCOP In¢, Production and sale of pulverized ¢oal 1o .S, Steel's Gary Works U.5.A. 100.00%
Marubeni Plant. Contractor Inc. Civil engineering and installation of plants in the U.S.A. USA. 100.00%
MCP [ron Oxide, Inc. Investment in American Iron Oxide Company, S5A 100.00%
a joint venture manufacturing high-purity iron oxide
Midwest Railcar Corporation Leasing, brokerage and management of railcars US.A 100.00%
Royal Maritime Corporation Ship leasing and financing Liberia 100.00%
Tekmatex, Inc. Import and sale of textile machinery, components and others USA. 100.00%
Affiliates
Domestic  JMD Greenhouse Gases Reduction Purchase and sale of Certified Emission Reduction (CER) credits Japan 43.00%
- Co., Ltd. obtained by the decomposition of HEC-23
KAFCO Japan Investment Co., Lid. Investment and related serviges for Karnaphuri Fertilizer Co., Ltd. Japan 26.80%
Kaji Technolegy Corporation Manufacture and sale of pressing machines, textile machines, Japan 37.64%
cast produets and industrial machinery
Overseas  Aquasistemna Salina Cruz S.A. de C.V. RBuild-operate-transfer (BOT) water recyeling and desalination Mexico 50.00%
project for Petréleos Mexicanos (PEMEX)
| Chengdu Générale des Eaux-Marubeni  BOT water supply project for the Chengdu Municipal Government, China 40.00%
. Waterworks Co., Lid. Sichuan Province
| Companid de Nitrdgeno de Cantarell Production and supply of nitrogen for PEMEX of Mexico Mexico 35,0016
' SA deCV.
Marubeni TERKMATEX Sale and technical services for textile plants and machinery Thailand 49.00%
{Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Sakhalin Shelf Service Company Management of equipment supply base for Sakhalin Project. Russia 26.00%
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Information & Communication Division

Company Name Description of Operations C':{‘r'::n"ﬂ zzﬁ:;‘;f;)‘.g
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic com Partners Co., Ltd. Qutsourcing of Internet/telephene support services and SPO Japan 100.00%
{sales process outsourcing) for mebile phone sales
Globatl Access Ltd. Providing international/domestic combined bandwidth via own Japan 99.90%
fiber-optic cable network
Marubeni Information Systems Co., Ltd. Operation and devetopment of information and communication Japan 100.00%
systerms
Marubeni Solutiens Corporation Sale of computers, network products, semiconductor-related Japan 100.00%
products, and SI
Marubeni Telecom Co., Lid. Sale of telecommunications services and equipment, Japan 70.00%
[T solutions and mobile content
Mighty Card Corporation Planning, develepment and sale of wireless 1C tag solutions Japan 87.80%
Mystery Channel, Inc. Broadcast of Mystery Channel on satellite broadcasting and CATV Japan 67.30%
VECTANT Ltd. Internet access scrvice, ASP, iDC and [P-VPN service provider Japan 100,00%
Overseas  Marubeni Solutions USA Corporation Marketing and sale of advanced electronic equipment/devices LL.S.A. 100.00%
Affiliates
Domestic  Marunouchi Pirect Access Ltd. Area local exchange carrier, providing last-mile solutions to supply Japan 49.00%
dark fiber and co-location service in Marunouchi, Tokyo
Maruberni Infotec Corporation Wholesale of PCs and peripheral equipment, electronic components  Japan 46.90%
and software
Overseas LCA Holdings Pty. Lid. Manufacture and sale of lighting equipment and fixturcs Australia 45.00%
Development & Construction Division
Company Name Description of Operations C(R' l_':?'f l:,zﬁ:;‘;f&f:
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic FUYO KANKO Co., Ltd. Operation of Fuyo Country Golf Club Japan 74.50%
[MT Corporation Holding and leasing of commerciat facilities in LIVE HILLS, Japan 100.00%
a large-scale residential complex developed by Marubeni in
Sapporo City, Hokkaido, and rebroadcasting of CATV programs
Japan REIT Advisors Co., Ltd. Assel management business of the assets owned Japan 51.00%
by United Urban investment Corporation
KOEI Co., Lid. Operation of golf courses Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Community Co., Led.* Property management of condominiums, buildings and complexes Japan 99.30%
Marubeni Properties Co., Ltd. Management and brokerage of real estate, sale of trust beneficiary Japan 65.00%
interest in real estate
Marubeni Real Estate Co., Ltd. Development, leasing and rental of real estate Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Real Estate Sales Co., Ltd. Sales agent and planning, consultation and coordination of real estate  Japan 100.00%
Tsunagu Network Cormmunications, Inc. MDU (Multiple Dwelling Unit) broadband Internet service provider Japan 60.00%
Overseas P.T. Megalopolis Manunggal Industrial  Develepment, sale and management of MM 2100 Industrial Town Indonesia 60.00%
Development
Shanghai House Property Development Housing development in Shanghai, China China 60.00%
Co., Lid.
Affiliates
Domestic TIPNESS Limited Operation of sports club and facilities Japan 28.60%
Overseas P.T. Mekanusa Cipta Development of a residential estate in Gibubur, Bogor Indonesia 26.00%
Finance, Logistic & New Business Division
Company Name Description of Operations C‘R‘;tam’ ?ﬁfﬁﬁg
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  Higashi Ginza Printing and Publishing  Planning, design, production and printing of advertisements, catalogs  Japan 72.80%
Co., Lid. and other printed media, related marketing support and data analysis
iSigma Capital Corporation Investment fund management company Japan 100.00%
Logipartners, Inc. Management and operation of various logistics centers, provision Japan 100.00%
of distribution and related consulting services
Marnix Corporation Insurance brokerage, risk consulting Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Document Systems Inc. Preparation of shipping documentation Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Hospital Partners Corporation Sale of medical materials and equipment, related hospital Japan 100.00%
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Marubeni Logistics Corporation Warehousing and logistics services Japan 100.00%

Marubeni Safenet Co., Lid. Insurance agency Japan 100.00%
Overseas  CoActiv Capital Partners, LLC Vendor finance, small ticket leasing, collection servicer US.A 100.00%
MAC Trailer Leasing, LL.C Refrigerated trailer leasing US.A, 100.00%
Marnix Europe Lid. Insurance hrokerage U.K. 100.00%
Marubeni Capital America Corporation  Investment in private cquity funds and hedge funds US.A 100.00%
Marubeni International Finance pl.c. General finance operations XK. 100.00%
Marubeni Transport Service Corporation  Logistics services US.A 100.00%
M&C Shanghai Lid. Business consulting service in the east China region China 100.00%
M&C South China Ltd, Business consulting service in the south China region China 100.00%
New Marble Insurance Company Marine cargo reinsurance company for Marubeni Group companies  Singapore  100.00%
Pte. Ltd.
Affiliates
Domestic  Avanti Staff Corporation Temporary staff placement, recruitment services, outsourcing Japan 42.54%
and training services
GCI Capital Co., Ltd. Investiment, advisory house, provision of foreign exchange margin Japan 22.05%
trading services
Given Imaging KK Sales company in Japan for capsule endoscopes Japan 34.01%
MG Leasing Corporation General leasing Japan 265.00%
Overseas  Eastern Sea Laem Ghabang Terminal Container terminal operation in Thaitand Thailand 30.00%
Co., Ltd.
Guanzhou Yi Shi Hong International Logistics services China 50.00%
Logistics Co., L,
Rexit International Scn Bhd Systems development for insurance companies Malaysia 49.00%
Shanghai Waihong International Warehousing and logistics services China 25.00%
Logisties Co., L.
Thai Logistics Service Co., Ltd. Fxport and domestic logistics operations in Thailand Thailand 36.75%

Iron & Steel Strategies and Coordination Department

Country/  Percentage of

Company Name Deseription of Operations Areq Voting Rights
Affiliates
Domestic  Marubeni Construction Material Lease  Leasing and sale of temporary construction materials Japan 35.28%
Co., Ltd.
Marubeni-ltochu Stec! Inc, Manufacture, processing, import, export and sule of sieel products Japan 50.00%
Overseas  Thai Coeld Rolled Steel Sheet. Public Manufacture of cold-rolled steel sheet Thaitand 37.57%
Co., Lid.
Others
Company Name Desceription of Operations C'K;':;ﬂ”l fzrtf::?fg‘;g
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Domestic  MARICS Co,, Lud, Credit management-related consulting and services Japan 100.00%
Marubeni Financial Service Corporation  Loan and zero-balance transactions, provision of financial accounting  Japan 100.00%
support and consulting for the Marubeni Group
Marubeni Personnel Management Services and consulting regarding personnel management Japan 100.00%
Corporation
Marubeni Service Corporation Provision of management services for Marubeni-owned facilities Japan 100.00%

and general affairs-related and other administrative services,
sale of items related to gencral affairs operations

Affiliates

Overseas  Shanghai Baihong Trading Co., 1ad. Wholesale of cosmetic and toiletry products in China, China 49.00%
import and exporl. of various products

(As of July 1, 2007, Benny estate service Co., Ltd., however, changed its name to Marubeni Community Co., Lid. identified with an asterisk (+), on July 17, 2007.)
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Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Position
and Business Results

All stetements hevein regarding futiure cvents reflect the judgment of
Marubeni and its consoliduted subsidiaries as of March 31, 2007,

1. Overview of Business Results

(1) Business Resuilts

Impacted by increased demand for energy and natural resources
and significant. hikes in the prices of such primary commodities as
crude oil, raw materials for steeltmaking and non-ferrous metals,
the overall global economy experienced a persistent upswing
throughout the fiscal year ended Mareh 31, 2007, Despite a down-
turn in the United States, econorties in Europe expanded at an
accelerated pace, while emerging markets enjoyed steady growth.

Interest rate hikes through mid-2006 were effective in signifi-
cantly curbing housing investment, in the United States. This slow-
down was in part offset by robust earnings in the cerporate scetor
andd improvements in disposable incomes, which contributed to a
generally stable standard of living. Despite a slowdown in economic
conditions, the U.S, economy maintained its underlying strength.

In Europe, the positive turnaround in export activity, particu-
larly in Germany, had a favorable effect on capital investment. This
contributed to more robust economic conditions. In light of the
moderate pace at which conswmer prices continued to rise, the
European Central Bank held interest rate increases to modest lev-
¢ls as a preventive measure against inflation.

In Asia, economic expansion continued, spearheaded by China
and India. While the Chinese government hact indicated it would
pursue a fundamental policy shift focusing on the household sector
as a key growth engine, in reality, corporate sector fixed-asset
investment and export activity continued to drive the nation for-
ward. The surge it export activity has contributed to surpluses in
both the current. aceount and trade as well as a significant increase
in foreign currency cxchange reserves. Under these conditions, the
Chinese government has steadily aceelerated the pace of yuan
appreciation. Indiu has also recorded aceelerated growth driven by
healthy expansion in the service and manufacturing sectors. In
other countries across Asia, the region continued to experience a
stable upward economic spiral.

In Russia and other basic-material exporting countries, exports
increased, benefiting from expanding global demand for primary
commuodities and sharply rising prices. This fed over into domestic
demand and supported strong economic expansion. While export
activity in Brazil [altered due to appreciation in the real, domestic
consumption rose, spurred by the easing of monetary conditions,
contributing to moderate economic growth,

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the Japanese economy
continued 10 expand, underpinned by capital investment and
export activity. Capital investiment was buoyed by stable earnings
in the corporate secior and a positive upswing in corporate willing-
ness to invest, while exports were supported by growth in the glob-
al economy and the weak yen. Beneliting from firm economic
expansion, employmenl. conditions steadily improved. Recovery in
personal consumiption, however, progressed at a slow pace, reflect-
ing sluggish gains in salaries and wages.

With execess supply conditions in the Japanese economy Laper-
ing off, and signs of the prolonged period of deflation coming Lo an
end, the Bank of Japan decided to lift. its zero interest rate policy.
Despite this shift, increases in interest rates were held to nominal
levels. As a result, the domestic economy remained steady, sup-
ported by the weak ven.

In this climate, the Company’s consolidated total volume of
trading transactions increased ¥868.4 billion, or 10.0%, vear on
vear to ¥9,554.9 billion ($80,974 million). Gross trading profit grew
¥29.1 billion, or 5.8%, to ¥531.2 billion ($4,501 million).

Buoyed by a ¥31.6 billion improvement in expenses and other
from a year earlier, income from continuing operations before
income taxes and minerity interests sirged ¥60.8 billien, or 45.7%,
to ¥193.8 billion ($1,643 million).

As a result, net income for the fiscal year under review, jumped
Y¥45.5 billion, or 61.7%, Lo ¥119.3 billion ($1,011 million).

Furthermore, “Revenues,” as defined under U.S. GAAR were
Y3,668.9 hillion ($31,007 million), ¥519.0 billion, or 16.5%, higher
than a year earlier.

(2) Business Results by Operating Segment

Agri-Marine Producis trading Lransactions increased ¥78.1 billion,
or 7.9%, to ¥1,068.9 billion ($9,058 millien). The bulk of transac-
tions were centered on livestock feed and fodder as well as food
supply and product trading related to the Group's Daiei operations.
Gross trading profit edged up ¥3.1 billion, or 4.4%, to ¥72.4 billion
(3614 million). Despite a decline in earnings following the reclassi-
fication of certain subsidiaries to affiliated companies, the rise was
mainly attributable Lo contribulions from the aferementioned live-
stock feed and fodder as well as beverage-related activities. Buoyed
by an increase in operating profit reflecting improvements in gross
tracding profit, a gain on sales of Daiei shares and an upswing in
equity in earnings of affiliated companies-net, segment net income
increased ¥4.3 billion, or 73.7%, to ¥10.1 billion ($85 million).
Textile trading transactions rose ¥17.9 billion, or 5.0%, to ¥376.1
billion ($3,187 muillion}, on the back of an increase in apparel trad-
ing. Gross trading profit declined ¥1.6 billion, or 6.1%, to ¥24.8 bil-
lion (3210 million}, impacted by restructuring initiatives. In the fis-
cal year under review, Marubeni incurred another net loss in this
segment of ¥2.4 billion ($21 million}, deteriorating ¥0.8 billion or
49.4% from a year earlier.

Forest Products & General Merchundise trading transactions
were up ¥61.1 billion, or 7.64%, to ¥369.3 billion ($7,367 million),
driven by rubber- and building materials-related trading transac-
tions. Gross trading profit increased ¥6.1 billion, or 12.7%, to
¥54.2 hillion {3459 million) due to inclusion of the Musi Pulp Project
in the Company’s scope of consolidation. Following Marubeni's
withdrawal from the leisure business in Lthe previous fiscat vear
and increased contributions from equity in earnings of a pulp man-
ufacturing-related afiiliate in North America, segment net income
jumped ¥9.2 billion, to ¥9.6 billion (381 million).

Chericals trading transactions clitubed ¥75.0 billion, or 9.6%, to
¥857.0 billion ($7,26:3 nillion). This was ainly attributable to con-
tinued price rises for petrochemical products. Gross trading profit
inched up Y0.4 billion, or 1.5%, to ¥30.0 billion ($255 million), due
to robust results in electronic materials. While the upswing in gross
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Operating Segment Information

Billions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars
FYZ006 FY20056 FY2000

Total volume of trading transactions

Agri-marine products ... ¥1,068.9 ¥ 9908 $ 9,058
Textile ... . 376.1 358.2 3,187
Farest products & general imerchandise .......... ............... ... 869.3 808.2 7,367
Chemicals ... 857.0 782.0 7,263
T Ty 2,420.9 2,191.7 20,516
Metals & mineral resources ... I 993.3 732.0 8,418
Transportation & industrial machinery™ ... 673.9 697.5 5,711
Power Projects” . 2729 2472 2,313
Plant, ship & infrastructure projects™ ........... ... ... ... ... .. 678.6 711.8 5,751
Information & communication™ ... 2255 2292 1,911
Development & construction ... 167.7 163.3 1,421
Finance, logistics & new business ... 45.8 25.8 389
Iren & steel strategies and coordination ... ..., 0.8 0.9 7
Overseas corporate subsidiaries and branches ... .. 1,330.5 1,148.8 11,275
Corporate and elimination ................ .. ... (426.3) (400.8) (3,613)
Cansolidated ... ... . ¥9,554.9 ¥8 A86.5 $80,974
Gross trading profit

Agri-marine products ... ¥ 724 69.3 $ 614
Textile . 24.8 26.4 210
Forest products & general merchandise ............. ... 54.2 48.1 459
Chemicals ... ... .. 30.0 29.6 255
eIy 85.5 71.5 724
Metals & mineral resources ... 18.2 24.4 154
Transportation & indusirial machinery™ .. ... .............. ... ... 55.5 58.1 471
Power Projects’ .. 27.6 24.1 234
Plant, ship & infrastructure projects® ................. ... . ... 17.7 16.8 150
Information & communication® .. e 28.1 27.0 238
Development & construction . ... 31.5 27.6 267
Finance, logistics & new business ... 9.9 7.1 84
[ron & steel strategies and coordination .................................. 0.8 0.9 7
Overseas corporate subsidiaries and branches ... ............... ... 84.2 79.9 713
Corporate and elimination ... .. .. (9.2) (8.9) (78)
Consolidated ... ¥ 531.2 ¥ 5020 $ 4,501

Note: The figures for trading transactions have heen prepared according to accounting pringiples generalty accepted in Japan (Japan GAAP).
*FY2005 figures have been altered to reflect the new divisional organization applied from FY2006, on the basis of actual results for FY2005.

Net Income by Operating Segment (FY2005—FY2006 actual)

{Eons of yen)
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trading profit contributed te improved operating profit, segment
net income declined ¥2.3 billion, or 62.1% to ¥1.4 billion ($12 mil-
lion), reflecting a loss on the devaluation of electronic material-
related investments.

Energy trading transactions rose ¥229.3 billion, or 10.5%, to
¥2.420.9 billion ($20,516 million), due to the increase in oil- and
gas-related trading. Gross trading profit grew ¥14.0 billion, or
19.6%, to ¥85.5 billion {($724 million}, reflecting the increase in
development interests. Buoyed by this growth in gross trading prof-
it and the positive iimpact on operating profit and contributions of
increased dividends, net income clinbed ¥5.0 billion, or 18.6%, to
¥31.6 hillion ($268 million}.

Metals & Mineral Resowrces trading transactions rose ¥261.3 bil-
lion, or 35.7%, to ¥993.3 billion ($8,418 million), due mainly to an
increase in the price of non-ferrous metals. Reflecting the absence
of one-off income in the previous fiscal year and the decline in
earnings from overseas smelting subsidiarics, gross trading profit
fell ¥6.2 hillion, or 25.3%, to ¥18.2 billion ($154 million). Despite
this drop, which contributed 10 a decrease in operating profit, seg-
ment net income surged ¥8.8 hillion, or 54.5%, to ¥24.9 billion
{$211 million), reflecting an increase in equity in earnings of affili-
ated companies in the copper concentrale business on the back of
rising copper prices and the absence of an impairment loss refated
to overseas subsidiaries incurred in the previous fiscal year.
Transportation & Industrial Machinery trading transactions
declined ¥23.6 billion, or 3.4%, 10 ¥673.9 billion (35,711 million),
owing to a partial withdrawal from the automobile-related business.
While Marubeni enjoyed increased earnings from construction and
industrial machinery-related operations, this was more than offset
by the alorementioned partial withdrawal from automobile-related
business. As a result, gross trading profit decrcased ¥2.6 billion, or
4.4%, to ¥55.5 billion (3471 million). Segment net income climbed
¥2.4 billion, or 31.4%, to ¥10.0 billion ($85 million}, owing to a gain
on sales of available-for-sale securities and an increase in equity in
earnings of affiliated construction and agricultural machinery-relat-
ed companies.

Power Projects trading transactions rose ¥25.7 billion, or 10.4%,
to ¥272.9 billion ($2,313 million}, mainly on the back of increased
transactions undertaken by overseas subsidiaries. Gross trading
profit increased ¥3.5 hillion, or 14.7%, to ¥27.6 billion ($234 mil-
lion), reflecting contributions from overseas engineering, procure-
ment, construction (EPC) projects and increased earnings in line
with revenue growth. Buoyed by this upswing in gross trading prof-
it, operating profit saw a parallel improvement. Together with the
increase in equity earnings of affiliated companies, segment net.
income climbed ¥0.6 billion, or $.8%, to ¥6.4 hillion ($54 million).
Plant, Ship & Infrastructure Projects \rading transactions
declined ¥33.2 billion, or 4.7%, to ¥678.6 billion {$5,751 million),
impacted by falling transaction volumes at domestic subsidiaries.
Buoyed by ¢contributions mainly from cement plant projects i the
Middle East and natural resource-related projects in South Ame-
rica, gross trading profit climbed ¥0.9 billion, or 5.2%, to ¥17.7 billion
($150 million). Despite this increase in gross trading profit result-
ing in operating profit growth, segment net income declined ¥0.9
billion, or 33.7%, to ¥1.7 billion ($14 million), refiecting a decline in

cquity in earnings of projects in Central America.

Information & Commumnication trading transactions edged down
¥3.7 billion, or 1.6%, to ¥225.5 billion ($1,81 1 million), impacted by
a drop in solutions business-related trading. Gross trading profit on
the other hand rose ¥1.0 billion, or 3.8%, to ¥28.1 billion ($238 mil-
lion}, on the back of increased contributions from domestic sub-
sidiaries. [n addition to operating profit growth reflecting improve-
ments in gross trading profit, segment net income jumped ¥2.1 bil-
lion, or 572.1%, to ¥2.5 billion ($21 million). This increase was also
attributable to a gain on sales of broadcasting-related investmentis
an¢d the absence of a toss on the devaluation of an optical transmis-
sion device-related investment as incurred in the previous year.
Development & Construction trading transactions increased
¥4.4 billion, or 2.7%, to ¥167.7 billion ($1,421 million), due to robust
domestic and overseas condominium and housing development
sales. Buoyed by the increase in transaction volume, gross trading
profit climbed ¥3.8 billion, or 13.9%, to ¥31.5 billion (3267 million}.
Segment net income surged ¥2.1 billion, or 185.0%, to ¥3.2 billion
($27 million), owing to operating profit growth, the result of
increased gross trading profit, and the absence of the loss on deval-
uation of real estate for sale posted in the previous fiscal year.
Finance, Logistics & New Business trading transactions
increased ¥20.1 billiont, or 77.9%, to ¥45.8 billion (8389 million),
fueled by increased business activities among domestic sub-
sidiaries. In line with revenue growth, gross trading profit climbed
¥2 8 billion, or 40.2%, to ¥9.9 billion {$84 million). Buoyed by the
resultant increase in operating profit and an upswing in fund earn-
ings, segnient net income rose ¥0.6 billion, or 16.1%, to ¥4.6 billion
($39 million).

fron & Steel Strategies and Coordination Lrading transaclions
declined Y0.1 billion, or 10.1%, to ¥0.8 billion ($7 million). Gross
trading profit also fell ¥0.1 billion, or 10.1%, to ¥0.8 billion ($7 mil-
lion). Impacted by this drop in gross trading profit, which con-
tributed to lower aoperating profit and an increase in income taxes,
segment net income decreased ¥2.1 billion, or 12.5%, to ¥14.9 bil-
lion ($126 million).

COuerseas Corporate Subsidiary and Branch trading transactions
rose ¥181.7 billion, or 15.8%, to ¥1,330.5 billion (511,275 million),
duc mainly to increased aclivity in metals and construction machin-
ery-related operations in the United States. Gross trading profit
climbed ¥4.2 billion, or 5.3%, to ¥84,2 billion ($713 million), in line
with growth in trading transactions. The increase in gross trading
profit was offset by higher selling, general and administrative
cxpenses. As a result, operating profit declined year on year.
Benefiting from the absence of an impairment loss on business
rights incurred in the previous fiscal year, segment nct income rose
¥2.8 billion, or 68.8%, to ¥5.8 billion ($57 million).

Business results by geographic region are as follows.

Japan

Trading transactions declined ¥81.0 billion, or 1.0%, to ¥8,355.4 bil-
lion ($70,808 million), primarily reflecting the drop in energy-relat-
ed transactions. Operating profit grew ¥11.1 billion, or 21.2%, Lo
¥63.6 billion ($539 million), on the back of increased earnings from
agri-marine products and development and construction-related
operations.
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North America
Trading transactions climbed ¥219.8 billion, or 18.9%, 1o ¥1,381.4
billion ($11,707 million), spurred by higher local subsidiary and
energy-related transactions. Operating profit rose ¥10.6 billion, or
33.4%, to ¥42.2 billion (3357 million), largely {rom increased ener-
gv-related earnings.
Europe
Trading transactions edged up ¥1.7 billion, or 0.4%, to ¥444.3 bil-
lion ($3,765 million). A drop in transportation and industrial
machinery transactions was offset by higher contributions from
power projects. Operating profil decreased ¥1.3 billion, or 6.7%, to
¥17.5 billion ($149 million), impacted mainly by lower transporta-
tion and industrial machinery-related earnings.
Asic and Oceania
Trading transactions improved ¥216.2 billion, or 32.5%, to ¥881.7
billion ($7,472 million), owing to an increase in energy, forest prod-
ucts and general merchandise and pulp and paper transactions.
Operating profit rose ¥1.2 billion, or 3.8%, to ¥33.0 billion (3280
millian}, as the impact of lower metal resource-related earnings
was outweighed by growth in forest products and general merchan-
dise and pulp and paper income.
Other Regions
Trading transactions edged up ¥1.4 billion, or 0.6%, to ¥225.7 bil-
lion ($1,913 million), mainly due to a higher volume of agri-marine
product-related transactions. Operating profit climbed ¥0.4 billion,
or 4.0%, to ¥11.2 billion (395 million), lifted by higher earnings
from primarily agri-marine products.

Please note that figures for trading transactions and operating
profit have been prepared according to accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in Japan (Japan GAAP).

Cash Flows

Trading Transactions by Geographic Region

. . Millions of
Billions of yen U.5. dollars

FY20s

dapan ... ¥8,355.4 ¥8,436.4 $70,808
North America ............ 1,381.4 1,161.7 11,707
Europe .................... 444.3 442.6 3,765
Asiaand Oceania....... ... 881.7 6656.5 7,472
Other Regions ............. 225.7 224.3 1,913

Operating Profit by Geographic Region

— ) Millions of
Billions of yen U.8, dollars

[ o IS

Japan ... ¥G3.6 ¥62.5 $539
North America ............ 42.2 316 357
Europe .................... 17.6 18.8 149
Asia and Oceania.......... 33.0 318 280
Other Regions ............. 11.2 10.8 95

Note: The figures for trading transactions and operating profit have been prepared nccording to
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (Japan GAAP).

(3) Cash Flows

Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year stood at
¥415.0 billion ($3,517 million}, up ¥46.0 billion, or 12.5%, com-
pared with the end of the previous fiscal year.

Cash Flows from Operaling Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥152.1 billion ($1,289
million). This was mainly attributable to robust resulis in energy-
and natural resource-related businesses.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥135.1 billion
{$1,145 million), as the gain on sale of a leasing company in the
United States helped offset the acquisition of Daiei shares and
aggressive equity investment in a company boasting uraniuim min-
ing rights.

[ Net cash provided by investling activities
{B3ons of yen) Net cash provided by operating activilies
2595
2500 58.07 1N
. 2199
2000 : 460 1\ Depreciation and} ¢
- 201.8° E U i ;
150.0 1738 ! Hi :
T - 152.15 (135.1}
1334 -
100.0 0 - |
50.0 mm o m-;m o 72.74--- n Net income
500 543 F 64.4 ] —— g 183
Het income Q Het income e 738 Q 16.9
0.0 HE K 41.2 } 1 N
= —
[50.0) E
- (193.8) g
{50.4) :
(:00.0)
FY2003 FY2004 FY2005 FY2006
*GJ/F: Cash flow
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These activities resulted in positive free cash flows of ¥16.9 bil-
lion ($143 million).

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was ¥24.8 hillion (3210

million). While Manibeni undertook the repayment of shorl-term
loans from cash on hand, the inflow is attributable 1o higher pro-
ceeds from long-term debt, reflecting increased investment,

2. Dividend Policies

Marubeni recognizes that the stable, conststent payment. of divi-
dends 1o shareholders and maximizing corporate value and com-
petitiveness by building up and effectively utilizing internal
reserves are among its most important corporate responsibilities.
With regard to dividends, Marubeni's basic policy is to maintain a
consolidated payotit ratio of around 15%, with the aim of linking
dividends to the Company’s business results for each term and
thereby clearly distributing profit to shareholders. In addition,
Marubeni pays interim and period-end dividends each fiscal yoar.
In accordance with Article 459.1 of the Corporation Law and the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation, dividends are determined by
Marubeni’s Board of Directors.

Guided by the aforementioned basic policy and based on the
Company's consolidaied net income of ¥119.3 billion in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2007, the board approved a ¥3 per share
year-on-year increase in the annitl dividend, to ¥10 per share. This
includes a period-end dividend of Y6.5 per share as determined by
a Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 18, 2007, with payment,
effective June 1, 2007. While Marubeni approved an interim divi-
denel of ¥10 per share applicable to the Company’s first series of
Class [ Preferred Siock, all of this stock was converted Lo common
shares as of March 19, 2007. Accordingly, there was no fiscal year-
end payout of dividends for Class | Preferred Stock.

Looking ahead, Marubeni will eptimize the efficient use of
internal reserves while endeavoring Lo imnprove operating results. In
line with these efforts, the Company will allocate sufficient funds 1o
strategic fields and provide appropriate returns to sharehelders.

In the fiscal vear ended March 31, 2007, Marubeni appropriated
the following from retained earnings for dividend payments.

Cash Dividends

Resolution Date | Type of Shares | Cash Dividends per Share

October 27, 2006 | Common Stock)  ¥5,713 million ¥3.50

Board of Directors Class [

Preferred Stock ¥605 million ¥10.00

May 18, 2007

Board of Direciors ] Common Stock|  ¥11,268 million ¥6.50

3. Issues to be Addressed

(1) Fundamental Management Policy

The Marubeni Group intredluced its two-year medium-term man-

agerent plan, the “G"” PLAN, in the fiscal vear under review.
Under the “G” PLAN, the Group will seek to build a rock-solid

“defense” by further strengthening management systems. AL the

same time, its wealth of hurman resources will be proactively and

holdly tackling the challenge of business domain expansion and

seeking to establish an assertive management style focusing on the

provision of more sophisticated and diversified trading company
functions as well as aggressive investinents in priority flelds.

Through these means, the Group will realize continuous growth

and further progress.

[n specific terms, while maintaining a careful balance between
“offense™ and “defense” and executing CSR-focused management,
the Group will be selectively applying management resources in
priority fields (through new investment of ¥500 billion to ¥600 bil-
lion over the next two years) while continuing to thoroughly imple-
ment porifolio management, strengthen risk management, promote
human resource utilization and education, enhance CSR and inter-
nal controls and leverage overall strengths through horizontal col-
laboration (collaboration between divisions, etc.). Our quantitative
targets are to limit risk assets to within the size of shareholders’
equity, achieve two-year consolidated net income of ¥220 billion, a
risk-return rate of at least 10%, ROA of more than 2%, a consolidat-
ed net D/E ratio of more than 2.0 and less than 3.0 times, and total
assels of approximately ¥5 trillion. By implementing these meas-
ures, the Group aims to become:

1) a corporatc group with “win-win” relationships with customers,
providing high-quality merchandise, services, and functions from
the customers' standpoint;

2} a corporate group that anticipates changes in the business envi-
ronment, contributing to soctety and realizing sustainable
growth through a persistent spirit. of ¢hallenge, voluntary reform
and creation of new value; and

3) a corporate group with a stable revenue base achieved by
expanding prime assets and pursuing greater efficiency.

For dctails concerning the new “G” PLAN medium-term man-
agement plan, please visit the Marubeni corporate website.

(2) Progress under the “G” PLAN, Marubeni’s Current

Medium-Term Management Plan
Progress under the *G” PLAN and the Group's performance to date
against. quantitative targets are sununarized as follows.

Net itcome in the fiscal year under review was ¥119.3 billion
(51,011 million). This is an excellent result representing the fifth
consecutive fiscal year of earnings growth, the fourth successive
vear of record-high profits, the {irst fiscal year in which net income
has exceeded ¥100.0 billion and 54% of Marubeni's two-year quan-
titative Larget of ¥220.0 hillion. Based on these resulis, the
Company is well placed to achieve the objectives outlined in the
“G” PLAN, In addition, Marubeni undertook approximately ¥300.0
billion in new investnents and loans, focusing mainly on such
strategic fields as energy and natural resources, overseas [PI* proj-
ects and food distribution. Placing the utmoest emphasis on asset.
elficacy and efficiency, Marubend worked ¢liligently to reorganize its
portfolio. As of March 31, 2007, total assets stood at ¥4,873.3 billion
(541,249 million). With a year-on-year improvement in ROA of 0.84
of a percenlage point to 2.52%, the Company is again well posi-
tioned to realize significant profitability and efficiency gains. From
& balance-sheet perspective, Marubeni has also taken positive steps
to maintain optimal balance between “offense™ and “deflense.”
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Buoyed by successiul efforts 1o holster shareholders’ equity on the
back of a reduction in consolidated net interest-bearing debt and a
continued increase in reiained earnings, the consolidate net D/E
ratio improved 0.36 of a peint to 2.47 1imes. Accounting for these
factors, Marubeni is well within its quantitative targets for both
profitahility and stability.

As a part of the initiatives outlined in the “G™ PLAN, Marubeni
acquired 66,489,000 deferred shares with voting rights (approxi-
mately 34%Y) of The Daiei, [nc. from the Industrial Revitalization
Corporation of Japan for ¥649.8 billion. Consistent with the
Company’s comunitinent Lo concentrate management resources
into strategic fields and as a part, of a capital and business alliance
heiween Marubeni, Daiei and AEON Co., Lid., Marubeni trans-
ferred 29,860,000 deferred shares with voting rights (approximate-
Iy 15%) to AEON,

On another front, the Company maintained a strict adherence
to portfolio management by raising its risk return profile from 8%
to 10%. In adopting a selective approach toward business and port-
folio composition, Marubeni is further enhancing its earnings hase.
Inn addition, the Company is reviewing its investment and loan fol-
low-up systems, reinforcing risk management initiatives and firmly
upholding a stable defensive posture.

I"rom a corporale social responsibility (CSR) perspective,
Marubeni is actively pursuing across a broad spectrum of initiatives
related to environunential protection, corporate citizenship and
human rights. In the fiscal year under review, the Company con-
ducted seminars on the environiment featuring a series of lectures
by external analysts. To raise the level of CSR awareness among
employees and management, Marubeni conducted e-tearning train-
ing sessions on the environment and compliance. The details of the
Company’s activities are published in its annual CSR repart, which
provides invaluable information to Marubeni's broad stakeholder
base. Since fiscal 2004, the Company has implemented measures Lo
enthance the reliahility of its financial reporting and to strengthen
the Group's internal control systems. The Marubeni Group contin-
ues 10 promote these activities and will work tirelessly to reinforce
its capabilities in this arca.
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Furthermore, Marubeni established the Cross-Divisional
Function Committee, a Groupwide horizantal organization. This
committee is the nucleus of a drive to promote alliances between
business divisions. With the goal of bolstering and increasing busi-
ness, the committee works to reinforce herizontal functions 1o cap-
ture synergies among business divisions. The expectation is such
synergies will yield greater earnings opportunities. Marubeni hag
also reviewed its personnel benefit system, ingorporating measures
that more effectively utilize hurman resources, nurture the capabilitics
of individual employees and promote compensation commensurate
with responsibilities and duties in order to create a more comfort-
able working environment. In this context, and in an effort to pro-
mote a more balanced lifestyle, Marubeni established a family sup-
port vacation and spouse relocation leave sysiemn.

Reflecting the aforementicned initiatives and achievements,
the Company has made substantial progress under the “G” PLAN.

4. Important Contracts
Capital and Business Alliance between The Daiei, Inc. and AEON
Co., Ld.

On March 9, 2007, AEON Co., Lid. (*AEQON"™), The Daiei, Inc.
(“Daiei™) and Marubeni agreed to a form a capital and husiness
alliance as briefly detailed in the following.

With regard to perscnnel exchanges hetween management and
employees, Daiei received approval at a general meeting of share-
holders held on May 24, 2007 to appoini. two directors and one cor-
porate auditer from AEON. Furthermore, each company has con-
cluded their respective obligations in connection with the transfer
of shares. (Please refer to items 3.(1) through 3.(3) that follow).

(1) Outline of the Business Alliance
1) Commercial Products
» While maintaining an appropriate level of autonomy, AEON
and Daiei will promote the sharing and standardization of
commercial product and custorner information.




« AEON and Daiei will pursue cooperative purchasing, develop-
ment and prometion, maximizing the advantages of merits of
scale (The turnover target from these cooperative initiatives
is ¥300.0 billion in the first. fiscal year).

Purchasing: The two companies will promote the coopera-
Live purchasing and procurement of interna-
tienal hrand goods, imported goods and nation-
al brand goods. The parties will also collaborate
in the purchase of fresh food.

Development: With regard to the sourcing of raw materials

and outsourcing of production, AEON and
[Daiei will work to systematize the lineup of
business pariners with whom they deal. Efforts
will also be made to share raw materials.

Promotion:  The two companies will jointly promote inter-

national and national brand goods.

2) Information Systems

* The two companics will use the system currently used by
AEON. Efforts will be made to streamline store back-office
functions as well as payroll and other systems.

* Through the effective use and sharing of systemns develop-
ment and know-how, the companies will reduce the time and
costs associated with the development process as well as with
such systems as merchandising and finance and accounting.

* AEON and Daiei will promote the cooperative development of
such new systeims as future-generation electronic data inter-
change (EDI).

* The companies will cooperatively purchase hardware and
commercial software.

3) Logistics

¢ AEON and Daiei will examine the sirategic consolidation of
facilities

s The companies will cooperatively purchase the assets
required for the distribution of goods and commercial preducts.

4) Tenants

* AEON and Daiei will share information relating to tenants,
provide nunual introductions and cultivate new tenants
through cooperative efforts.

&) Operating and Other Supplies

* The two companics will share product/material specification
data with the aim of promoting cooperative purchasing.

* Daiei will review AEQN's intra-purchasing system with an eye
to its conunon use by the two companies.

* AEON and Daiei will collaborate to develop low-cost manage-
ment methods.

(2) Personnel Exchange between
Management and Employees
1) At its Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held in May
2007, Daici will receive approval to appoint two directors and
one corporate auditor from AEON,
2} The companies will promote the exchange of employees in line
with efforts to achieve an effective business alliance.

(3) Stock Transfer

1) As of March 31, 2007, Marubeni had transferred 29,860,000
shares (15.00% of the total number of issued shares and 15.12%
of total voting rights) of Daiei subordinated shares with voting
rights to AEON for the amount of ¥46.2 billion.

2) As of March 31, 2007, Daiei had transferred 26,201,000 shares
(20.33% of the total number of issued shares and 21.27% of total
voting righis) of The Maruetsu, Inc.'s common shares to AEON
for the amount of ¥16.5 billion.

3) AEON and Marubeni hold shares mutually, with the value of
their respective sharcholdings equivalent to approximately ¥10.0
hillion.

5. R&D Activities

No itemns to report.

6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Position and Business Results
(1) Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates
Marubeni prepares its consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted and recog-
nized in the United States. For more details regarding significant
accounting policies, please refer to “Significant Accounting
Policies” on page 101.

In preparing impertant accounting policies and these state-
ments, certain accounting estimates and assumptions are utilized
as needed when calculating assets and liabilities as of the fiscal
year-end, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and
earnings and expenses incurred during the year. In determining
accounting estimates and assumptions, management makes what it
believes to be reasonable inferences of these amounts based on
past experience and on a ¢ase-by-case basis. Estimates and
assumptions made in this way have an inherent degree of uncer-
tainty and actual results ¢ould differ. Management considers the
following estimates and agsunnptions as those that have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

1) Allowances for Doublful Accounts

When evaluating credit risk nssociated with accounts receivable,
notes reccivable, loans receivable, and other receivables, Marubeni
and its consolidated subsidiaries apply classifications according to
the latent risk carried by the obligor or geographical region con-
cerned. Based on these classifications, an allowance is established
for a given receivable considered to be a loss, posted at an amount
equal to either the current. value of the receivable (projected cash
flow minus the initial effective interest rate) or the fair value of the
asset as collateral. Projected cash flow and fair value as collateral
are estimated based on the most accurate credit information avail-
able from specialisis regarding the payment history of each applica-
ble obligor or region. For general receivables not covered above,
allowances are calculated based on the historical rate of default for
each risk category. The historical rate of default is determined by
specialists, bascd on past experience in each applicable risk area.

MARUBENI CORPORATION 2007 87




While Marubeni believes these estimates to be reasonable,
unexpected changes and other factors could significantly impact
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

2) Valuation of Marketable Securities

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No, 115, *Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt, and Equity
Securities,” published by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries classify securities
as trading, held-to-maturity, or available-for-sale.

Held-to-matunity securities are stated al amortized cost, adjust-
ed for the amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to
maturity. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value with
the unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, reported in accumulat-
ed other comprehensive loss on the consolidated balance sheet. For
held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities, declines in value
judged other than temporary are posted as devaluation losses.

Declines in the value of marketable securities judged other than
temporary are determined by examining the length of time that
market value remains below book value and the percent. decline in
value. For securities without market quotations, a comprehensive
examination of the possibility of recovery—based on projected busi-
ness results—net assets and other measures of the percent decline
in actual value, are used to make this determination.

While Maruberd believes these estimates to be reasonable, unfore-
seeable changes 10 1he assumptions used could result in a higher-
than-expected loss, which could significantly impact the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

8) Loss on Long-Lived Assets

Projected cash flows are utilized when determining devaluation
losses for long-lived assets held by Marubeni and its consolidated
subsidiaries. Projected cash flows are estimated based on a pre-

established sel of criteria.

Net Income

While Marubeni believes these estimates 1o be reasonable,
unforeseeable changes Lo the terms and criteria used could result
in a reassessment of projected cash flows, which could significantly
impact the Company's consolidated financial statements.

4) Deferred Tax Assets
In their financial statements and for tax purposes, Marubeni and its
consolidated subsidiaries post transitional differences and losses
carried forward as deferred tax assets. Regarding transitional
differences and losses carried forward lowered due to future tax
changes, a valuation allowance is posted for the portion for which
realization is deemed unlikely, with deferred tax assets reduced
accordingly. The projected amount of future tax to be collected is
estimated based on future applicable income taxes and tax strategies.
While Marubeni believes these estimates to be reasonable,
unforeseeable changes to the terms and criteria used could result
in a reassessment of the projected amount of tax to be collected,
which could significantly impact the Company’s consolidated finan-
cial statements.

5) Retivement Benefit Expenses
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries utilize actuarial pension
accounting based on pre-established criteria to calculate severance
pay and pension obligations for regular employees. These pre-
established criteria include the discount rate, the retirement rate,
the mortality rate, the rate of salary increase and the rate of
expected return on pension assets.

While Marubeni believes these estimates to be reasonable,
unforeseeable changes to the criteria used could significantly
impact the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(2) Analysis of Operating Results for the
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007
Consolidated net income climbed ¥45.5 billion from the previous
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fiscal year, to ¥119.3 billion (51,011 million), resulting in record
carnings for the fourth consecutive year. In terns of the operating
results of consolidated subsidiaries, 112 companies were unprof-
itable, compared to 449 profitable companies. The percentage of
companies achieving profitability was thus 80.0%. This represents
an improvement of 2.0 percentage points from 78.0% for the previ-
ous fiscal year, and tolal income from these companies grew by
Y36.3 billion.

An analysis of income is provided as follows.

1) Gross Trading Profit
Giross trading profit was ¥531.2 billion (34,501 million), represent-
ing a year-on-year increase of ¥29.1 hillion, This was aitributable to

a variety of factors, including an increase in earnings from energy
assets, Lhe inclusion of the Musi Pulp Project. in the Company's
scope of conselidation and robust sales of condominiums and hous-
ing developmeni. both in Japan and overseas. In terms of operating
segments, profits rose in 10 segments and declined in five seg-
ments in the fiscal year under review. For a breakdown of operat-
ing segments, please refer to *1. Overview of Business Resulis,
(2} Business Resulls by Operating Segment,”

2) Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased ¥15.0 billion
compared with the previous fiscal year 1o ¥365.3 billion (83,006
million}. The principal components were personnel expenses,
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mainly at subsidiary companies, which rose ¥9.8 billion, to ¥177.8
billion, and travel and transportation expenses, which grew ¥1.1
billion, to ¥16.2 billion.

3) Provision for Doubtful Accounts

Reflecting an increase in allowances for overseas receivables, the
provision for doubtful accounts rose ¥7.7 billion, to ¥0.9 billion
($7 million).

4) Interest Income and Interest Expensc

In the fiscal year under review, interest income climbed ¥1.1 billion,
1o ¥24.2 billion ($205 million) . Interest expense rose ¥9.7 billion,
to ¥56.9 billion ($482 million), primarily from the impact of higher
U.S. dollar-denominated interest rates.

a) Dividend Income

Dividend income rose ¥8.6 billion year on year, to ¥20.7 billion
{$175 million), mainly due to an increase in dividend income
from overseas consolidated subsidiaries’ energy-related busi-
ness investments. Of this figure, ¥5.8 billion (¥3.6 billion in
Japan and ¥2.2 billion from overseas} was received by the par-
ent company. Domestic consolidated subsidiaries received div-
idends totaling ¥0.9 billion while overseas consolidaled sub-
sidiaries received dividends of ¥14.0 billion.

6) Impairment Loss and Gain (Loss) on
Sales of nvestment Securities

In the fiscal year under review, the impairment toss on investment
securities narrowed ¥6.8 billion, to ¥11.1 billion ($94 million). This was
mainly owing to the absence of a devaluation loss on oplical transmis-
sion equipment-related investments posted in the previous fiscal year.

Gain on sales of investment securities was ¥24.1 billion ($204
million), up ¥9.6 billion, and mainly comprised gain on the sale of
Daiei anct other stock.

7) Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment.

The loss on property, plant and equipment declined ¥2.3 billion, to
¥19.0 billion ($161 million), and was primarily due to an increase in
gain on sales of property, plant and equipment, by consolidated sub-
sidiaries.

8) Equity in Earnings of Affiliated Companies—ANet

Equity in earnings of affiliated companies—net climbed ¥13.3 bil-
lion year on year, to ¥44.9 billion (3380 millien), owing mainly to
eamnings growth totaling ¥7.7 billion at Nippon LP Resources B.V_ a
company engaged in the copper concentrate business.

9) Other—Net

Other—net improved ¥6.9 billion 1o ¥1.9 billion {$16 million). This
is attributable to the absence of the loss on withdrawal from
unprofitable businesses incurred in the previous fiscal year.

(3) Factors with a Significant Impact on Operating Results
1) Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries guarantee the debt of
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affiliated companies and third parties in the ordinary course of
business. For more information, please refer to page 129
“Commitments and Contingent Liabilities” under “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.”

2) Others

For information regarding other factors with a significant impact
on operating results and financial condition, please refer to
“Business Risks.”

(4) Strategic Status and Outlook

The Marubeni Group continues to irnplement the “G” PLAN, a two-
year medium-term management plan that. commenced in the fiscal
year encled March 31, 2007. Over its two-year duration, the plan
will see Marubeni make between ¥500.0 billion Lo ¥600.0 billion in
new investments. These investments will target not. only such fields
as energy and resource development, where market conditions are
currently strong, but also overseas IPP, foodstulfs and food prod-
ucts, pulp and paper, chemicals, industrial machinery and plants,
healthcare, financial services, environmenial, and other strategic
fields. In building up prime assets in these areas, the Company is
seeking to further bolster its already strong earnings base. In the
first fiscal year of the plan, Marubeni undertook new investments
and loans totaling approximately ¥300.0 billion.

Consolidated net income for the fiscal year under review
amounted to ¥119.3 billion (51,011 million). This represented the
fifth consecutive fiscal year of earnings growtih, the fourth succes-
sive year of record-high profils and the first fiscal year in which net
income has exceeded ¥100.0 billion. In the final year of the *G”
PLAN, the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008, Marubeni is targeting
consolidated net incorme of ¥135.0 billion. For more details regard-
ing progress under the “G” PLAN, please refer io “Issues to be
Addressed.”

With a renewed resotve, every member of the Marubeni Group,
executives and employees alike, is boldly committed to achieving
the "G™ PLAN's objectives for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008.

(5) Liquidity and Funding Sources

1) Financial Position

Consolidated total assets as of March 31, 2007 stood at ¥4 873.3 bil-
lion (541,299 million), up ¥286.2 billion from the previous fiscal
year-¢nd. This was mainly attributable to investments in affiliated
companies including the acquisition of additional Daiei shares and
the purchase of a company engaged in uranium development.

Total sharcholders' equity rose ¥81.7 billion, to Y745.5 billion
($6,317 million). In addition to the increase in net income to ¥119.3
billion ($1,011 million}, this reflected a net change in pension liabil-
ity adjustment of ¥25.9 hillion due to the adoption of a new
accounting standard.

Consolidated interest-bearing debt grew ¥11.4 billion year on
year, to ¥2,278 4 billion (519,309 million). Consolidated interest-
hearing debt after deducting cash and cash equivalents was
¥1,843.4 billion ($15,622 million) as of the end of the fiscal year
undler review, down ¥32.9 billion from a year carlier. As a result,
the net I/E ratio improved 0.36 of a point, from 2.83 times tc 2.47




times. Wilh this perfermance, the Company achieved its objective
targeted under the “G” PLAN, namely a consolidated net D/E ratio
of less than 3.0 times, while maintaining balance between its offen-
sive and defensive postures.

2) Fund Procurement
The fundamental policy of Marubeni and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries is 1o maintain an optirnal mix of funding in line with the
requirements of its asset portfolio. The goal is to sustain a stable
level of liquicity while trimming financing costs. Funding sources
included indirect procurement from banks, life insurers and other
financial institutions as well as direct procurement, through the
issuance of bonds, commercial paper and other means,

Marubeni has established the following programs Lo procure
funds directly from the capital markels,
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To aid in procuring funds from capital markets, Marubeni has
acquired credit ralings from Moody's Investors Service (Moody's),
Stanclard & Poor’s (5&F), Rating and Investment Information, Inc,
(R&1), and Japan Credit Rating Agency, lad. (JCR).
In February 2006, S&P upgraded Marubeni's long-term rating
from BB to BBB-, and its long-term senior unsecured debt rating
from BBB- to BBB; in August 2006, JCR upgraded its rating from
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A-to A; and in January 2007, R&I upgraded its long-term rating
from BBB 10 BBB+.
More recently, in May 2007, S&” upgraded Marubeni’s ¢credit
raling outlook 1o “Positive,” and, in July 2007, Moody's raised the
Company's rating from Baa3/P-3 10 Baa2/P-2.
From the fiscal year under review, the funds procurement
function of principal consolidated subsidiaries was integrated into a
Group finance structure comprising Marubeni, its demestic and
i overseas finance and other subsidiaries. Under this structure,
surplus funds at certain Group companies are reallocated Lo other
Group companies where demand is high, with the aim of inaximiz-
ing utilization efficiency.

(3) Liguidity

On a consalidated basis, the liquidity ratio was 133.1%, up from
110.6% as of the end of the previous fiscal year. This represents a
significant improvement in the Company liquidity and finantcial
standing.

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries maintain a sufficient
level of liquidity, mainly in the form of cash and deposits and estab-
lished commitment lines.

As of March 31, 2007, cash and deposits totaled ¥445.0 billion.

Details regarding conunitment lines are as follows:

* Marubeni Corporation
¥405.0 billion from a syndicate of major and regional Japanese
banks (short term: ¥105.0 billion, long term: ¥300.0 billion) ’

Trends in Credit Ratings

Moody's

BB+

0310
FY2003
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* Marubeni Corporation, Marubeni America Gorporation, Maruberd
Eurepe, Marubeni Finance Holland

These four companies have available short-term commitment

lines totaling US$500 million, secured mainly through major

European and U.S. banks

In addition to these conunitment, lines, Marubeni and its consol-

idated subsidiaries hold highly liguid marketable securities. In all,
these assets provide sufficient liquidity to cover the Group’s funding
demand, the current portion of commercial paper redeemable with-
in one year and bonds including medium-Lerm notes, which totaled
¥45.7 billion as of March 31, 2007.

7. Business Risks

Major risks that could have a serious impact on investor decisions
associaled with the business operations and other activities of
Marubeni Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries are outlined
below. The risks discussed, however, are not inclusive of the full
range of possible risks faced in the broad range of aclivities
engaged in by Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries. Any
number of additional risks other than those discussed below could
also iinpact business performance. Furthernmere, risks considered
to have a low likelihood of materializing have also been disclosed,
from the perspective of ensuring proactive information disclosure.
Forward-looking stalements with respect to the risks discussecl
below reflect the reasonable judgment of 1the Company’s manage-
ment based on information available as of March 31, 2007

BaZ / Baa3 _

BEB-
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(1) Risk Regarding Overall Marubeni Operations
1) Impact of Japanese and Global Economies on

Marubeni Group
Marubent and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise a general trad-
ing company engaged in a wide range of business activities in Japan
and over 70 other countries. Examples include the production and
procurement of natural resources and other primary cormmodities,
as well as the manufaciure and sale of finished goods. As a result,
the Marubeni Group is impacted by the economic conditions pre-
vailing in Japan and other countries where it has operations, as well
as by the state of the global economy as a whole. Worsening eco-
nomic conditions on either of these fronts could adversely affect
the operating activities, performance and financial position of
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries.

2) Credit Risks Regarding Business Partners
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries extend credit to busi-

Substitute Liguidity

Complementary Liquidity and Liquidity Ratio

ness partners in the form of accounts receivable, advances, loans,
guarantees and other means. n addition, as a part of its sales activ-
ities, the Group concludes merchandise supply, subcontracting,
operational outsourcing and other types of contracts with business
partners. The incurrence of credit risk due to the inability of
business partners to fulfill their credit obligations or a breach of
contract by these business partners could negatively impact the
Company’s business results and financial position,

To prevent credit risks from materializing, Marubeni and its
consolidated subsidiaries conduct extensive risk management at
the credit screening stage. Nevertheless, Marubeni is susceptible to
a varicty of credit risks.

In preparation for the incurrence of possible losses when credit
risk becomes apparent, Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries
establish allowances for doubtful accounts based on the estimated
amount of the loss, the business partner’s creditworthiness, collat-
eral value and other set factors. In the event of such losses, howev-

® Complementary Liquidity {As of March 31, 2007, Consolidated Basis) @ Breakdown of Cornrnitment Lines
{Blons of
4.400.0 o Borlower L] [Marchys 8200 4 IMATChla 1R=1106
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_— ' Marubeni America, oreign currency; - -
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600.0
* Year-end exchange rate:
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er, the Company cannot guarantee that actual losses will not.
exceed these established allowances.

3) Investment Risk

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries, both independently and
in collaboration with other companies, establish new companies
and purchase existing enterprises in the course of their business
operations. Most of these business investments are of minimal lig-
uidity and require sizeable amounts of capital. Marubeni or its con-
solidated subsidiaries may be unable to withdraw from such busi-
nesses in an optimal manner or timeframe, which could inevitably
require the commitinent of additional capital.

In an effort {o prevent the occurrence of risks associated with
investments and other activities, Marubeni and its consolidated
subsidiartes concluct extensive risk management, including check-
ing new investments to determine whether expected retums are
commensurate with the risks involved. Nevertheless, a decline in
the value of these investinenis or the necessity of additional expen-
ditures of capital could adversely affect the Group's business
results and financial condition.

4) Concentrated Risk Exposure

As part of their conmmercial and investment activities, Marubeni and
its consolidated subsidiaries are concentrated in specific investment
targets, markets and regions, such as sales activities in Indonesia
and the Philippines. In the context of the Group's country risk man-
agement, Marubeni classifies countries according to their level of
risk, has established transaction management standards for each
country and promotes cfforls to ensure optimal portfolio manage-
ment. Nevertheless, lackluster performance by these investinent
targets, or a deteriorating operating environment in these markets
or regions, could adversely affect the business results and financial
condition of Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiartes.

&) Ability to Procure Funds and Procurement Cost

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries engage in fund procure-
ment with an emphasis on maintaining an optimal mix of funding in
line with the requirements of their respective asset portfolios and
ensuring liquidity. However, significant disruptions in major global
capital markets, shortages of cash flow {rom operating activities,
declining profitability, failure tn asset-liahility management, or a
sharp downgrade in the credit ratings of Marubeni and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries by ratings agencies could constrain fund pro-
curement or lead Lo an increase in fund procurement cost, which
may adversely affect the business results and financial condition of
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries.

6) Market Risks

1. Fluctuations in the Price of Goods and Merchandise

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries handle a variety of iner-
chandise, In order to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in market
conditions for certain merchandise, contracts and scheduled con-
tracts, the Group enters into comunodity futures and forward con-
tracts. However, changes in respective market conditions can
adversely affect business performance. -
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2. Fluctuations in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries conduct transactions in
a variety of currencics and under a variety terms. In order to nitigate
the risk of exchange rate fluctuations associated with transactions,
receivables and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies, the
Group enters into forward-exchange coniracts and other derivative
transactions. Despite these measures, fluctuations in exchange
rates may adversely affect the business results and financial condi-
tion of Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries.

3. Fluctuations in Interest Rates

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries procure necessary funds
from financial institutions, the issuance of bonds and other means
from capital markets. Furthermore, net interest-bearing debt is pro-
cured at fixed interest rates and variable interest rates. While the
interest risk of the inajority of the operating assets held by Marubeni
and its consolidated subsidiaries offsel Lhe interest raie risk associ-
ated with debt, through asset-liability management, Marubeni and
its consolidated subsidiartes utilize interest rate swaps and other
agreements Lo mitigate the risk of interest rate fluctuations.
Nevertheless, changes in market interest rates may adversely affect,
the business results and financial cendition of the Group.

4, Gains and! Losses from Marketable Debt and Equity Securities
To strengthen business relationships and for other purposes,
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries invest in marketable
debt securities, marketable equity securities and other types of
securities. At the time of purchase, these securities are classified as
trading, held-to-inalurity, or available-for-sale securities, in accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
Nao. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investients in Debt and Equity
Securities,” published by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) of the United States.

Trading and available-for-sale securities held by Marubeni and
its consolidated subsidiaries carry the risk of fluctuations in original
value due to changes in fair value. The posting of losses on the
devaluation of these securities at low points in fair value may
adversely affect the business results and financial condition of
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries.

7} Impairment of Real Estate, Machinery and Equipment, and
Other Property, Plant and Equipment
Marubeni and its ¢onsolidated subsidiaries hold real estate, machin-
ery and equipment, and other property, ptant and equipment. for
sale and lease to other parties as well as for their own use. A
decline in the intrinsic value of these assets could force the
Marubeni Group to book impairment losses. Marubeni and its con-
solidated subsidiaries apply accounting principles generally accept-
ed in the United States (IS GAAP) in an effort to enact suitable
impairment measures for property, ptant and equipment. A dramat-
e decline in asset value could, nonetheless, have a negative itmpact.
on the Marubeni Group's business results and financial position.

8) Laws and Regulations
In the course of operations, Marubeni and its consolidated sub-



sidiaries are subject to a broad range of laws and regulations both
in Japan and other applicable countries. Changes in or unanticipat-
ed interpretations of these laws and regulations could increase the
obligations pertaining to legal and regulatory compliance placed on
Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries. Accordingly, changes or
altered interpretations of laws and regulations may result in puni-
tive measures, including the interruption of Marubeni’s operating
activities, lower the Company's credibility or cause the occurrence
of other circumstances that could adversely impact the Company’s
business results or financial condition.

) Significant Litigation

in the course of business activities in Japan and overseas, Marubeni
and its consolidated subsidiaries tmay be party to litigation, disputes
and other legal proceedings. When party 1o such litigation, predict-
ing the outcome is impossible given Lhe inherent uncertainty of
these matters. The Company cannot guarantee that such litigation
will hot adversely affect the business results and financial condition
of Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries.

10) Environmental Risk

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries conduct business activi-
lies globally across a broad range of industries, and environmental
pollution as a result of these activities could result in business stop-
page, signiftcant expenses to install pollution control facilities, pok-
lution remediation expenses and legal fees in response to litigation
by local residents. In addition, the Group's social reputation could
be damaged. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, an environ-
niental management system was intreciuced to cope with such
envirommental risks, under which environmental impact evalua-
tions are made for each new financing and development project as
a means of assessing the potential environmental burden and
reducing environmental risk. In the event, however, some form of
environment impact occurs, the Company’s business results or
financial condition may be adversely alfected.

11) Natural Disaster Risk

Earthquakes and other natural disasters could cause damage and
loss to the Group's offices and facilities and inhibit the normal busi-
ness activities of Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries. While
every effort has been made to implement appropriate countermea-
sures, such as the preparation of disaster preparedness manuals,
earthquake countermeasures and fire prevenlion drills, the poten-
tial for damage from natural disasters cannot be completely miti-
gatedl. Consequently, there is no guarantee that such disasters will
not have a material negative impact on the Group’s earnings.

12) Other Risks Inherent and Related (o Overall Marubeni
Operations

Negligence on the part of employvees charged with executing busi-

ness operations, and malfunctions pertaining to computer systems

supporting business activities, are among the other risks that may

adversely affect the business results and financial condition of

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries.

(2) Risk Management

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries operate an integrated
decision-making process that is deployed when assessing the provi-
sion of commitment lines, investments and other key matters on a
case-hy-case basis. In the context of important projects and new
husiness activities, the Marubeni Group has put in place a follow-up
structure to fulfill its obligations, which include constantly monitor-
ing progress, responding swiftly to all issues and reporting regularly
10 the Corporate Management Committee and similar management
bodies. In this way, the Marubeni Group secks to circumvent risks
by enhancing risk management on a case-by-case hasts.

With a view to mitigating risk Groupwide, the Marubeni Group
has an integrated risk management systen in place to ascertain a
range of quantifiable or measurable risks. Examples include mar-
ket, credit and investment risks associated with specific countries,
husiness formats and customers, In this integrated system, funda-
mental risk management policies and internal regulations are for-
mulated o ensure proper decision-making and monitoring of these
risks. In the same way, organizations, management systems, man-
agement options and systems infrastructlure are kept in place for
executing these polictes and regulations.

For compliance risk and other difficult to quantify or immeas-
urable risks, the Marubeni Group strives to prevent these risks sys-
temically by enhancing corporate governance, putting internal con-
trol systems in place and bolstering its compliance strnicture.
Nevertheless, numerous risks can arise during the course of the
wide-ranging operations of Marubeni and its consolidated sub-
sidiartes. Moreover, the risk management framework operated by
the Marubeni Group may be unable 10 prevent the occurrence of a
variety of risks that carry the possibility of fulure occurrence. Asa
result, the Marubeni Group's operating performance and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

(3) The Medium-Term Management Plan

Marubeni and its consolidated subsidiaries commenced the “G”
PLAN, the Group’s new two-year medium-term management plan,
in April 2006. Under the PLLAN, Marubeni is targeting specific quan-
titative objectives including consolidated net income of ¥220.0 bil-
lion over the Lwo-year period of the PLAN, a risk-return ratio of
more than 10%, ROA of more than 2.0%, a net D/E ratio of more
than Ltwo and less than three times and total assets of approximate-
ly ¥5.0 trillion. These objectives were prepared based on certain
assumptions, hypotheses and projections regarding certain eco-
nomic conditions, industry trends and other concerns. A number of
unknown and uncontrollable factors could prevent the completion
of these objectives.

(4) Risks Regarding Significant Account, Policies and
Estimates

Please refer to “(1} Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates™

under “6. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Position and Business Results” for more information.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Marubeni Corporation
At Murch 31, 2007 and 2006

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars {(Note 1}

ASSETS 2007 2006 2007
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 18) ..o ¥ 414,952 ¥ 368936 $ 3,516,542
Tire deposits (Notes 9 and 18) ..o, 20,010 21,674 169,576
[nvestment securities (Notes 2, 5 and 18) ..o, 26,693 20,989 226,212
Notes and accounts receivable — trade (Notes 2, 7, 9 and 20):
NOLES TECRIVADIE ...t bbb 107,930 90,973 914,661
ACCOUNTS FECEIVADIE ..ot r e 1,032,790 896,781 8,752,458
Due from affiliated cOmMPAanies .............oooveoeieeeeeeeee e, 85,799 79,653 727,110
Allowance for doubtful 8CCOUNES ..oevvviviiiiee e, (16,332) (17.910) (138,407)
Inventories (Notes 2 and 9) ..o 420,533 395,599 3,563,839
Advance payments tO SUPPLHETS ..ot 214,067 109,330 1,814,127
Deferred income taxes (Notes 2 and 12) ..., 43,715 32,048 370,466
Prepaid expenses and other CUrrent assels .o ieee s 152,435 170,644 1,291,823
Total CUTTENE ASSETS -..ooi oo e 2,502,592 2,168,617 21,208,407
Investments and long-term receivables:
Affiliated companies (Notes 2, 6and 9) ... 504,501 314,261 4,275,432
Securities and other investments (Notes 2, 5, 9and 18) ... 603,545 615,361 5,114,788
Notes, loans and accounts receivable — trade, net of unearned
interest (Notes 2, 7,9, 18 and 20) .......cocereinviicciiniiecriesie e 121,138 214,763 1,026,593
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Notes 2and 7) ..o, (51,337) (81,964) (435,059)
Property leased to others, at cost, less accumulated depreciation of
¥62,331 million ($528,229 thousand) in 2007 and ¥79,796 million
in 2006 (Notes 2, 9and 20) ..o erent e 171,115 231,747 1,450,127
Total investments and long-term receivables........ooooiiiie. 1,348,962 1,294,168 11,431,881
Property, plant and equipment, at cost (Notes 2 and 9):
Land and land improverments. ... 169,447 187,634 1,435,992
BUIAIRES ..o 309,358 316,204 2,621,678
EiQUIPIMENT. .o 644,696 604,705 5,463,525
MINENG FIBILS <ottt 16,315 22.973 138,263
1,139,816 1,131,516 9,659,458
Accumulated deprecialion ..ot {408,364) (350,707 (3,460,712)
Net property, plant and equipment .........co.ooovvireencececeeceenee e 731,452 780,809 6,198,746
Prepaid pension cost (Notes 2 and 11} ..., 21,642 83,746 183,407
Deferred income taxes (Notes 2 and 12) ..o 53,088 52,364 449,898
Intangible assets (Notes 2,3, 8and L1) ... 86,654 89,325 734,356
Goodwill (Notes 2 and 8) ..o 35,794 27 936 303,339
Other assets (Note ) e 93,120 90,107 789,152
TOtAl ASSEES .....oeooeieeeeeieie e ettt ¥4,873,304 ¥4587,072 $41,299,186

See accompanyying notes.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.5. dollars (Note 1)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2006 2007
Current liabilities:

Short-term leans (Notes 9, 1O and 18) ..o ¥ 170,423 ¥ 368491 $ 1,444,263
Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 9, 10and 18) ... 164,485 219,650 1,393,941
Notes and accounts payable — trade:
Notes and acceptances payable (Note 3) ..o 210,151 186,741 1,780,941
ACCOUNES PAYANLE ... 762,520 715,370 6,462,034
Due to affilialed COMPanies........coocco i 52,288 46,432 443,119
Advance payments received {Tom CuUstOMErs ..o 204,489 97,673 1,732,958
Acerued income taxes (Note 12) . 17,219 16,220 145,924
Deferred income taxes (Notes 2 and 12) ..o 4,632 3,310 39,254
Accrued expenses and other current linbilities (Note 9) ... 294,059 307,342 2,492,024
Total current Habilities. ..., 1,880,266 1,961,229 15,934,458
Long-term debt, less current, portion (Notes 9, 10 and 18) ..o 2,130,137 1,879,739 18,052,008
Employees’ retirement benefits (Notes 2and 11)............................. 12,075 9,129 102,331
Deferred income taxes (Notes 2 and 12) ..o, 29,987 26,189 254,127
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries............_...__......... . 75,385 46,999 638,855

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Notes 2 and 21)

Shareholders’ equity (Note 13):
Preferred stock:
Class I with no stated value:
Authorized shares — 100,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding shares — 75,500,000 shares in 2006 ...... — 37,750 —
(aggregate liquidation preference of ¥75,500 million)
Class II with no stated value:
Authorized shares — 100,000,000 shares
No shares issued and outstanding .........cccoooeeeiii i —_ — -
Common stock:
Authorized shares — 4,300,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding shares — 1,734,916,816 shares in 2007

and 1,608 451,165 shares in 2006 .........cccoooeiieiieiieeee e 262,686 224 936 2,226,153
Capital SUFDIUS .oovve it 155,905 155,903 1,321,229
Retained earnings ... e 298,011 193,772 2,525,517
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (Notes 12 and 14):

Unrealized gains on investinent securities (Note 5)...ccoocovvivvvceeennee. 102,899 109,035 872,025
Currency translation adjusStments..........occvvvvivven s (39,547) (53,450) (335,144)
Unrealized losses on derivatives ..o, (6,410) (2,116) (54,322)

Minimum pension liability adjustment (Note 11) ..o, —_ (1,717) —
Pension liability adjustment (Note 11) ..o (27,603) — (233,924)

Cost of common stock in treasury — 1,483,567 shares in 2007 and

1,232 651 shares in 2006 ... (487) (326) (4,127)

Total shareholders’ eQUULY .....ococvvveeeieeceeee e 745,454 663,787 6,317,407

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............................ ¥4,873,304 ¥4,587,072  $41,299,186
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Marubeni Corporation
Years ended March 81, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Revenues (Note 2):
Revenues from trading and other activities.....................
Commissions on services and trading margins..............

{Total volume of trading transactions:
2007, ¥9,554,943 million ($80,974,093 thousand)
2006, ¥8,686,532 million
2005, ¥7,936,348 million) (Notes 2, 6 and 16)
Cost of revenues from trading and other activities....
Gross trading profit ...
Expenses and other:
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses..................
Loss on the transfer of the substitutional portion of the
employee pension fund liabilities, net of subsidy
received of ¥13 405 million in 2005 (Note 11} .............
Provision for doubtful accounts (Note 7) ..oocivvvnvecrenen.
INLerest INCOME. ....occiii e e
INLErEst EXPEISE it iiiireee e e vt e e e e
Dividend INCOTNE ..o e
Impairment loss on investment securities (Note B)........
(Gain on sales of investment securities (Note 5) ...
Loss on property, plant and equipment (Note 8)............
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies — net

Income from continuing operations before income
taxes and minority interests ...........cooccoevevviiinnnev e
Provision for income taxes (Note 12):
CUETEIIE ©ovevveriieeenss e e ee e e eeeie e eee e st e e sasea e naaeennes
Deferred ..o,

Income from continuing operations before

minority INterests ...
Minority Interests ...........c.coeveiiiiiii e
Income from continuing operations..............................
Loss from discontinued operations (after income

tax effect) (NOLE A) e
NEeLINCOIME .. ...
Income available to preferred shareholders...................
Net income available to common shareholders............

Earnings per share of common stock (Note 15):
Basic:
Income from continuing operations .........coecceccveeeneeeonn
NEt INCOME ...t e e
Diluted:
Income from continuing OPerations ...
NEL INCOITI ..ottt

See accomparnying notes.
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Millions of yen

Thousands of
11.3. dollars (Note 1)

2006 2005 2007
¥3,467,925  ¥2,949058  ¥2,874455 $29,389,195
190,930 190,787 161,108 1,618,051
3,658,855  3,139845 3035563 31,007,246
3,127,684 2637821 2602168 26,505,797
531,171 502,024 433395 4,501,449
365,291 350,261 339,183 3,095,686
— — 1,453 —
860 8515 6,298 7,288
(24,179) (23,095) (23,445)  (204,907)
56,908 47 212 43,244 482,271
(20,705) (12,065) (8,989)  (175,466)
11,116 17,895 7,438 94,203
(24,099) (14,477) (36,147)  (204,229)
18,951 21,292 6,288 160,602
(44,880) (31,602) (25,727)  (380,339)
(1,907) 5,033 36,482 (16,160)
337,356 368,969 346078 2,858,949
193,815 133,055 87,317 1,642,500
53,910 34,653 27,332 456,864
14,295 12,810 14,448 121,144
68,205 47 463 41,780 578,008
125,610 85,592 45537 1,064,492
(6,261) (5,427) (1,440) (53,060)
119,349 80,165 44097 1,011,432
— (6,364) (2,850) —
¥ 119349 ¥ 73801 ¥ 41247 $ 1,011,432
¥ 605 ¥ 1510 ¥ 1510 $ 5,127
¥ 118,744 ¥ 72201 ¥ 39737 § 1,006,305

Yen 1.5. dollars
¥ 7241 ¥ 5260 ¥ 2852 § 0.61
¥ 7241 ¥ 4834 ¥ 2661 § 0.61
¥ 6885 ¥ 4394 ¥ 2384 $ 0.58
¥ 6885 ¥ 4046 ¥ 2231 § 0.58




Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Marubeni Corporation
Al March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Thousarls of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2006 2005
Class [ preferred stock:
Balance at beginning of year .................... ¥ 37,750 ¥ 37,750 Y 47,750 $ 319915
Conversion to common stock......cen. _(37,750) — — (319,915)
Balance at end of year......oovivercceennne. ¥ — ¥ 37,750 ¥ 37,750 $ —
Common stock;
Balance at beginning of year ..., ¥224,936 ¥194,039 ¥164,039 $1,906,238
Conversion of convertible debentures...... - 30,807 —_ —
Conversion of preferred stock....v.... 37,750 — —_ 319,915
Balance at end of year ... ¥262,686 Y224 430 ¥194,039 $2,226,153
Capital surplus:
Balance at beginning of year ... e ¥155,903 ¥125,436 ¥125,430 $1,321,212
(ain on sales of treasury slock 2 22 B 17
Conversion of convertible tlebenLures ...... — 30,445 —
Balance at. end of year ........cccococeeeeeenne. ¥155,905 ¥155,903 ¥125.436 $1,321,229
Retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of year................... ¥193,772 ¥131,195 ¥ 94,870 $1,642,136
Net iNCOME ..ot e 119,349 ¥119,349 73,801 ¥ 73,801 41,247 V41,247 1,011,432 81,011,432
Cash cividends —
common and preferred stocks............... (15,110} (11,224} (49223 (128,051)
Balance at end of ¥eaT ..ocovvcerierenivnins ¥298.011 ¥193.772 ¥131,195 $2,525,517

Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) (Note 14):
Balance at beginning of year.................... ¥ 51,752 ¥(45,126) ¥Y(59,025) $ 438,576
Unrealized {losses) gains on investment
securities, net of reclassification

(Note 5)... . (6,136) (62,374 11,734 (52,000)
Currency translauon adjustments,
net of reclassification............c.coeevevenee, 13,903 36,136 (1,669 117,822
Unrealized {losses) gains cn derivat,ives,
net of reclassification... (4,294) (562) 3,859 {36,390)
Minimum pension lldhlllty ﬁd]ustmem
(Note 14}... - . (834) (1,070 (35) (7,068)
Other con'.prehenswe income, IILL of Lax . 2,639 2,639 33,878 96,878 13,849 13,899 22,364 22,364
Cotmprehensive income .........ccocoeeeeeeven. ¥121,988 ¥170,67% ¥55.146 $1.033.796
Adjustment to inttially apply SFAS 158,
NEL O 18X oo e {25,082 — — (212,305)
Balance at, end ohear ............................... ¥ 29,339 ¥ 51,752 ¥(45.126) $ 248635
Cost of cormumon stock in treasury:
Balance at beginning of year.................... ¥ (326) ¥ (142) ¥ (82) $ (2,763)
Treasury stock purchased ... (161) (184) (60) (1,364)
Balance at end of year .....cc.coocvveeeeeeeneee. ¥ (487 ¥ (3263 ¥ (142) $  (4127)
Disclosure of reclassification amount
for the year ended March 31:
Unreatized (losses) gains on investment
securities arising during the period ....... ¥ (1,083) ¥ 66,293 ¥ 28315 $ (9178
Less: Reclassification adjustmenis
included in net INCOME .....o.ovovevevenne (5,053) (3,919 {16,681) (42,822)
Net unrealized {losses) gains ..o ¥ (6.136) Y 62374 ¥ 11,734 $_(52,000)
Currency translation adjustinents
arising during perioth. e, ¥ 11,062 ¥ 33,842 ¥ (4295 $ 93,746
Less: Reclassification adjustments
inclucled in net incorme .. 2,841 2,304 2,636 24,076
Net currency translation a(huquuentq ...... ¥ 13,903 ¥ 136,136 ¥ (1,659% $ 117,822
Unrealized {losses) gains on
derivatives arising curing the period ..... ¥ (6,659) ¥ 3383 ¥ 6,431 $ (56,432)
Less: Reclassification adjusiments
included in net income ....oovvvnieneecnnne 2,365 {3,945) 2572 20,042
Net unrealized (losses) gains on
derivatives .....cco.oereeeiensecree e ¥ (4204) Y (562 ¥ 3.859 $ (36,390)

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Marubeni Corporation
Years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Millions of yen

Operating activities:
NEE ICOIME ..ottt e ee e
Adjustments to reconcile net income 10 net cash
provided by operating activities: )
Depreciation and amortizaliGh ... e eeeceeeenen.
Provision for doubtful accounts
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, less dividends received ...
(Gain) loss on investment SECUTieS....ccocoivvecciinnenene
Loss on property, plant and equipmenit
Deferred INCOME TAXES oooeire e
Loss from disconiinued operations (after income tax effect) (Note 4} ...
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Notes and accounts receivable .............
IIVENTOTIES «1 et
Advance payments to suppliers and
prepaid expenses and other assels ...
Prepaid pension cost
Notes, accepiances and accounts payable
Advance payments received from customers and
accrued expenses and other liabilities ...............
Accrued INCome Laxes.....coovevvvirinnierneeens
OUNGT (o
Net cash provided by operating activitics
Investing activities:
Net decrease {increase) in time <deposits .....cccoveerienceene.
Proceeds {rom sales of available-for-sale securities ............
Proceeds from redemptions of available-for-sale securities ...
Purchases of available-for sale securities.......c.ccccoc i
Proceeds from redemptions of held-to-maturity securities....
Proceeds from sales of investinents in affilialed companies..
Acquisition of investments in affiliated companies
Proceeds (rom sales of other investments ..................
Acquisition of other INVeStMentS. ..o v
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
and property leased (0 OthersS. ..o
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and property leased 1o others.....
Collection of loans receivable ...
L.oans made to CUSTOIMEDS ....ooovrieeeececc e saianas
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Financing activities:
Net {decrease) increase in short-term loans
Proceeds from long-term debL
Payments of long-term debt ...,
Cash dividends paid — common and preferred stocks........
Purchase of treasury stock, Neb ...
OLREE s s en
Net cash provided by (used) in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents....
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...............
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......................

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
INLETESL . oottt
TIICOITE BAKES 1evieeciee e ettt et
Non-cash investing activities:
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 3):
Fair value of assets acquired .........cccovvveevivvierncccene
Fair value of liabilities assumed
Minority interest...........c.coooceveeen
Acquisition cost of subsidiaries
Non-cash acquisition costs of subsidiaries................
Cash acquired ..o
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired....
Exchange of assets:
Fair value of assets received......ooooic,
Carrying value of assets surrendered............
Non-cash financing activities:
Issuance of common stock pursuant to eonversion of convertible debentures..
See accompanying notes.
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Thousands of
1].5. dollars (Note 1}

2006 2005 2007
¥119,349 ¥ 73,801 ¥ 41,247 $1,011,432
101,145 72,684 64,358 857,161
860 8,515 6,298 7,288
(19,022) (15.117) (18,104) (161,203)
(12,983) 3,418 (28,709) (110,025)
18,951 21,292 6,288 160,602
14,295 12,810 14,448 121,144
— 6,364 2,850 —
(118,336) (45,810) (4,080)  (1,002,847)
(24,106) 452 17,561 (204,288)
(60,414) (88,039) (4,045) (511,983)
25,886 1,136 21,088 219,373
59,308 31,670 23,201 502,610
55,539 90,206 38,199 470,669
383 695 1,283 3,246
(8,780) (40,769) (18,059 74,408
152,075 133,408 173,824 ﬁgﬁf—ll, 77T
2,050 (16,984) 4,426 17,373
13,922 13,410 50,728 117,983
— 1,630 — —
(25,241) (42,116) (50,847) (213,907)
6,000 26,114 1316 50,847
51,892 17,685 5,362 439,763
(100,890) (7,402) (5,734) (855,000)
60,111 36,924 53,386 509,415
(103,084) (59,828) (31,387) (873,593)
22,728 14,030 20,849 192,610
(66,274)  (211,037) (65,324) (561,644)
57,341 52,606 98,813 485,941
(53,702) (18:813) (35,545) (455,102)
(135,147 (193,781) 46,043 (1,145,314)
(169,837) 5,348 (119,698)  (1,439,297)
659,300 525,792 387,677 5,587,288
(444,531)  (566,042)  (497929)  (3,767,212)
(15,110) (11,224) (4,922) (128,051)
(159) (168) (54) (1,347)
(4,844) 257 (3,131) 41,050
24,819 6,037y (238.057) —‘*S‘*L‘llo,sal
4,269 16,152 (1.347) 36,178
46,016 [90,258) 719,537) 389,966
368,936 459,194 478731 3,126,576
¥ 414,952 ¥368936  ¥459,194_ _§ 3,516,542
¥ 58864 ¥ 47808 ¥ 45045 § 498,847
55,242 33,131 27,072 468,153
- 172,738 — —
- 97,088 — -
- 14317 — —
— 61,333 — -
- 51,356 — —
— 4,305 — -
- 5,672 — —
11,925 — — 101,059
11,481 — — 97,297
— 61,678 — —




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Marubeni Corporation
Years ended March 81, 2007, 2006 and 2005

1. Nature of Operations and

Basis of Financial Statements
Marubeni Corperation (the “Company™), a Japanese corporation, and its
censolidated subsidiaries engage in import and export trades of domestic
and overseas products and commodities, including domestic and offshore
trades. In addition, the Company is involved in construction and real esiate
business, offers various services and makes investments in domestic and for-
eign businesses. The range of the business covers extensive types of com-
modities and services in the machinery, energy, metals, chemicals, forest
products and general merchandise, agri-tarine proclucts, textile, develop-
ment and construction, information industry and other fields.

The Company maintaing its books and records and prepares its finarcial
statements inJapanese yen. The accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments differ from the non-consolidated financial statements issued for
dorestic purposes inJapan, In addition to consolidation, they reflect certain
adjustments not recarded in the Company’s books, which in the opinion of
management are appropriate to present the Company”s financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows in accordance with accounting

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consalidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts
of all majority owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries and variable interest,
entities (“*VIEs™), of which the Company and/or its subsidiaries are the pri-
mary beneficiary (together, the "Companies™}. The VIEs are defined by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Interpretation (*FIN™)

Na. 46, Consolidation of Viriable Interest Entities (revised December
2003)—an fnterpretation of ARE No. &7, (FIN 46R). FIN 46R requires a
VIE to be consolidated if a party with an ownership, contractual or other
financial interest in the VIE (a variable interest holder) is obligated to
absorb a majority of the risk of loss from the VIE's activities, is entitled to
receive a majority of the VIE's residual retums (if no party absorbs a majori-
ty of the VIIZs logses) or hoth. A variable interest. holder that consclidates
the VIE is called the primary beneficiary. FIN 46R also requires disclosures
aboul VIEs that the variable interest holder is net required to consolidate
but. in which it has a significant. variable interest.

Significant intercorpany transactions and accounts have been eliminat-
ed. When a subsidiary sells stock 1o unrelated third parties, the Company’'s
shareholding in the subsidiary decreases while the price per share changes,
depending on the price of the new stock issued. The Company recognizes
such a change in the price per share in eamings at the time of the sale of
stock.

Cenrtain subsidiaries have been included on the basis of a fiscal year-end
on or after December 31, but prior to the parent company’s fiscal vear-end
of March 31. There have been ne significant transactions with such sub-
sidiaries during the intervening periods.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assutnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and Eabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates
due to inherent uncertainty in natire, Significant estimates and asswnptions

principles generally accepted in the Uniied States. The principal adjust-
ments are: (1) recognition of instaltment sales on the accrual basis, (2)
recognition of the value ascribed to warrants, (3) accounting for pension
costs, (4) accounting for investment securities, (5) deferred gain on sates of
property for tax purposes, (6} accounting for goodwill and other intangible
assots, (7) accounting for assetl retirement obligations, (8) accounting for
derivative instruments and hedging activities, (9) accounting for leases, (10)
accounting for debi issuance costs, (11) reporting revenue gross as a princi-
pal or net as an agent, (12) reporting discontinued operations and (13}
presentation of minority interests,

Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2006 and 2005 financial
stutements 1o conform 1o the presentation for 2007,

The translation of Japanese yen anmounts into U.S. dollar amounts for
the year ended March 731, 2007 is included solely for the convenience of
readers owside of Japan and has been made at ¥118 to §1, the exchange
rate prevailing on March 31, 2007, The translation should not be construed
as a representation that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted iiwo

[J.5. dollars at this or any other rate.

reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements include
allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of investment securities, impair-
ment of long-lived assets, deferred income taxes and employees’ retirement
benefiis.

Foreign currency translation

Assets and liabilities included in financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
and affifiated companies are translated into Japanese yen at the respective
year-end rates. All incoms and expenses accounts are translated at the aver-
age rates prevailing during the year. The resulting translation adjustments
are included in accumulated other comprehensive income {loss).

Foreign currency-tenominated receivables and payables are translated
inte Japanese yen at the year-end rates with the resulling gaing and losses

recognized in earnings of the year.

Cash equivalents

The Companics consider deposits in banks and securities purchased under
resale agreements with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivatents.

Investment securities

Management delermines the appropriate ¢lassification of investment securi-
ties as either trading, held-to-maturity or available-for-sale securities at the

date of purchiage.

Trading securities

Trading sccurities are held for resale in anticipation of short-term market
movements. Trading securities, consisting primarily of marketable equity
securities, are stated at falr value. Gains and losses are included in gainfloss
on sales of investiment securities.

Held-to-nuturity securities

Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Companies have
the positive intent and ability te hold the securities to maturity. Held-to-
maturity securilies are stated at anortized cost, adjustied for amortization of
premiuns and aceretion of diseounts to maturity. Such amortization and

acerelion are included in inlerest income. Interest on sceurities classified as
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held-to-maturity is included in interest incoine. Declines in fair value judged
to be other than temporary on held-to-maturity securities are included in
impairtent loss on investment securitics.

Available-for-sale securilies

Markeiable equily securitics not classtfied as tracing arxd debt securities not
classified as trading or held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale
securities and are carnied at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses,
net of taxes, reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss in share-
holders’ equity. The amortized cost of debi securities in this category is
adjusted for the amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to
maturily. Such arortization and accretion are included in interest income.
Realized gains and losses and declines in fair value judged to be other than
temporary on available-for-sale securities are included in gainfloss on sales
of invesiment securities and impainnent loss on investimenl securities,
respectively, The average cost of securities sold is used tn the determination
of realized gains or losses. Interest. and dividends on investment securities
classified as available-for-sale are included in interest incorne and dividend

income, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories, which primarily consist of commeoditics, merchandise and real
estate held for sale, are stated at the lower of cost (primmarily specific or
moving average cost) or market (generally replacement cost). Inventories
included read estate for sale of ¥77,294 million ($655,034 thousand) and
¥81,798 million at March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Investments

The Companies” investments in affiliated companies (investees owned 20%
1o 50% and other investees over which the Companies have Lhe ability to
exercise significant influence) are stated at cost, adjusted for equity in their
undistributed earnings or accumulated losses since acquisition. Rividends
received from affiliated companies are deducted from the investiments in
affiliated companies. The excress amountis of the cost. of investments in affiti-
ated companies over the Companies’ equity in the underlying fair value of
the net assets of the associated companies ai the dates of acquisition are
included in the acquisition costs of the investrments. When there are declines
in the value of investments in affiliated companies judged io be other than
temporary, the investments are written down to the fair value by recogniz-
ing impairment. losses. Other investiments are primarily non-marketable
equity securities and are stated at cost, adjusied for any declines in value
judged to be other than temporary.

Loans and allowance for doubtful accounts
Loans including accounts receivable are stated at cost.

In evaluating the credit risk relating to loans, the Companics categorize
them based on the poteniial exposures {or credit ratings of debtors, geo-

graphical and other considerations. When a lean is irnpaired, the allowance
for credit losses is determined based on discounted cash flows using the
loans' initial effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for cer-
tain collateral dependent. loans. For other loans, the allowance for credit
losses is determined based on a historical bad debt ratio by the credit risk
category. When loans are legally or contractually determined to be uncol-
lectible, the loans are offsel against their respective allowances.

Cash received on impaired loans is either applied against the principal
of such Joans or reported as interest income, based on management's judg-
ment with regard to the collectibility of the principal. The Companies dis-
continue the acerual of interest when loans are past. due for a period of 180
days or more. The accrual of interest is resumed when agreetments for the
rescheduling of payment are made and the receipt of interest is probable.,

Loans 90 days past. die are noted as delingquent. and monitored for col-
lectibility. The recorded investments in loans 90 days past due and still

accruing interest were nol significant at Mareh 31, 2007 and 2006.
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Leases

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries lease fixed assets under direct
financing leases and operating leases as lessors. ihcome from direct financ-
ing leases is recognized by the amortization of unearmed incorne over the
lease term at a constant periodic rate of return on the net investinent.
Operating lease incorme is recognized over the lease term on a siraight-line
basis.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries lease fixed assets under
operating leases and capital leases as lessees. For capital lease obligations,
interest expense is recognized over the lease term at a constant periodic
rate on the lease obligation. Accumulated depreciation of the leased assets is
recognized over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Rental expense on
operating leases is recognized over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Depreciation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (including properiy leased to
others) is determined by the declining-balance or Lhe straight-line method
(primarily for buildings) at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the
respeciive assets, which are from 2 to 50 years. Mining rights are primarily
amortized by the unit-of-production method or straight-line method at. rates
based on the estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Mining rights

The FASB issued FASB Emerging Issue Task Force [ssue 04-2, 1 eathor
Mineral Rights are Taagible or ftangible Assets (EITF 04-2). In this
regard, the FASB also issued FASB Staff Positions (FSP) No. 141-1 and 142-
1, which amend Statement. of Financial Accounting Stanclards (SFAS) 141
and SFAS 142, In accordance with EITF 04-2 and FSI? No, 141-1 and 142-1,
all mining rights are included in Property, plant and equipment in the con-
solidated balance sheets,

Long-lived assets other than goodwill and
other intangible assets

Long-lived assets held and used are evaluated for impairment and writlen
down to their fair value if the sum of their expected future cash flows is less
than the carrying amount of the assets. Long-lived assets 1o be disposed of
are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost 1o
sell.

Business combinations

In accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, the purchase
method of accounting is used for all business combinations. The Company
separately recognizes and presents acquired intangible assets as goodwill or
other intangible assets.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Effective April 1, 2002, the Companies adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodurtll
and Other fntangible Assets. SFAS 142 prohibits the amortization of good-
will and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. SFAS 142 requires that
these assets be reviewed for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets
with finite lives will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful
lives. Additionally, SFAS 142 requires that goodwill included in the carrying

value of equity method investinents no, longer be amortized. The Companies
annually test goodwill for impainnent using the twe-step process prescribed
in SFAS 142. The first step is a screen for potentia! impairment, while the

second step measures the amount of the impairment, if any.

Asset retirement obligations

Effective for the year ended March 31, 2004, the Companies adopted SFAS
No. 143, Accournting for Asset Retrrement Obligations, SFAS 143 requires
legal obligations associated with the retirerent of long-lived assets 10 be
recognized at their fair value at the time that the obligations are incurred.
Upon initial recognition of a liability, that. cost should be capitalized as part.




of the related long-lived asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of
the asset. The adoption of SFAS 143 did not have a material iinpact on the
Company's financial positions and results of operations.

Employees’ retirement benefits

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 168, Eweployers’
Accounting for Defined Bengfit Pension and Other Postretfrement
Plars, an anendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 1S8(R)
Employers’ Accounting for Pension {STAS 158). SFAS 158 requires plan
sponsors of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans
(collectively, “postretirement benefit plans™) to recognize the funded status

of their postretirement henefit plans in the statement of financial position,
measure the fair value of plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of
the fiscal year-end statement of financial position, and provide additional
disclosures. On March 31, 2007, the Company adopled the recognition and
disclosure provisions of SFAS 158. The effect of aclopting SFAS 158 on the
Company’s financial condition at March 31, 2007 has been included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. SFAS 158 did not have an
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition at Maych 31, 2006
or 2005. SFAS 158's provisions regarding the change it the measurernent.
date of postretirement benefit plans are not applicable as the Company and
consoliclated subsidiarics already uses measurement dates of respective vear
endds for their pension plan. See Note 11 for further discussion of the effect.
of adopting SFAS 158 on the Company’s consolidated (inancial stalements.

Financial instruments with characteristics of
both liabilities and equity
Effective for the year ended March 31, 2004, the Companies adopted SFAS

No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial mstriments with
Charactertstics of both Liabilities and Eguily. SFAS 150 established stan.
dards for how an issuer classifies and measures cortain fnancial instroments
with characteristics of buoth liabilities and equity, The adoption of SFAS 150
did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial positions and
results of operations.

Revenue recognition and the total volume of
trading transactions

Sale of goodls and other: In acting as a principal, revenue from the sale
of goods is recognized when the delivery conditions are met. These
conditions are considered to have been met when the goods are
received by the customer or title to securities such as bills of lading are
translerred to the customer, In addition, if required the implementation
testing needs to be fully cornpleted and any future obligations need to
be perfunctory and not affect the customer’s final acceptance of the
arrangement of revenue to be recognized.
Performance of services: Commissions are recognized when the con-
tracted services 1o the third-party customers are completed. In acting
as ageni, the Companies recognize commissions whert contracted serv-
ices are fully rendered to the customers.
Long-term and large scale construction arrangements: Revenue is rec-
ognized by the percentage-of-completion method when the conditions
are met uncter Statement of Position 81-1 of AICPA, Accownting for
Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type
Contracts.

Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of revenues.

Consumption taxes

Revenues, costs and expenses on the consolidated statements of income do
ot include consumptiorn taxes.

Other expenses — net

Other expenses — net includes losses incurred in liquidating subsidiaries
and affiliated companies of ¥1,114 million ($9,441 thousand), ¥836 million
and ¥412 million for the vears ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Other expenses — net for the vear ended March 31, 2005 also includes
aloss on investment. in and receivables from P.T, Chandra Asri of ¥21 347
million,

The aggregated amounts of losses on sales of loans, included in other
expenses — net were ¥1,799 million ($15,246 thousand) and ¥923 mdllion
for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Such amount

was not significant. for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

The trading transactions undertaken by the Companics Luke many forms
and consist of those in which the Companics act as prineipal and those in
which the Companies act as agent. In agency trapsaciions, payment. for
goods is made directly by the purchaser to the supplier. The Companies
derive revenues from siles of goods, performance of services and corunis-
sions on trading transactions.

Although the Companies legally act a5 a principal, certain transactions
are reported net, as commissions, when the marging thereon are in sub-
stance considered comruissions in accordance with FASB Emerging lssuc
Task Force Issue 99-19 Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus
Net as an Agent (EITF 49-19), When the Companies are not. the primary
obligor and do not have general inventory risk, they generally present. the
transaction net. The presentation may change according 10 changes in form
or substance of transactions,

The tetal volurne of trading transactions, which is voluntarily disclosed
in the statements of income, includes the sales value of all transactions in
which the Companies participate, regardless of the form of such 1ransaction,
based on the practices of the Japanese trading companies.

The Companies’ revenues and conunissions are recognized when they
are realized or realizable and eamed. Revenues and comnissions are real-
ized or realizable and earned when the Companies have persuasive evidence
of an arrangement, the goods have been delivered or the services have been
rendered to the custormer, the sales price is fixed or determinable and col-
lection is reasonably assured.

The Companies apply SFAS No. 133, decawnting for Derivative Instru-
nenes and Hodging Activities, as amended by SFAS 138 and SFAS 149,
The Companies recognize all derivative instrumnents on the consolidated
balance sheet, at. fair value. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted
1o Tair valie through income. If the derivative is a hedge, depending on the
nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives will either be off-
sel against 1he change in value of the hedged assets, liabilities, or firm com-
mitmentas throngh carnings or recognized in accumulated other comprehen-
sive incore on the consoliduted balance sheet until the hedged itern is rec-
ognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of a
hedge will be immediately recognized in earnings. For derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments designated as hedging the foreign currency
exposure of a net investment in foreign subsidiaries and affiliates, the gain
or loss is reperied in other comprehensive income as part of the cumulative
translation adjustment 1o the extent the hedges are effective. Gains and
losses related to the hedge ineffective portion and related to the portion of
hedging instruments excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness
are included! in other expenses — net. The Companies expect to reclassify
¥4,660 million ($39,492 thousand) of net loss on derivative instruments from
accumulated other comprehensive income (o earnings during the 12 months
encling March 31, 2007, due o actual export and import transactions or
receipts and payments of interest. The maximum length of iime over which
the Companies are hedging their exposure to the variability in future cash

flows for forecasted transactions, exchuding those forecasted transactions
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related to the payments of variable interest on existing financial instru-
ments, is 55 months. The losses of derivalive and nen-derivative hedging
instruments included in currency translation adjustients were ¥5,368 mil-
lion {$45,492 thousand) and ¥17,726 million for the vears ended March 31,
2007 ancl 20086, respectively.

Presentation of equity in earnings

The Company has presented in its prior consolidated statements of income
equity in eamings of affiliated companies after income from continuing oper-
ations before income taxes and minority interesis. The Company included it
i income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority
interests for the year ended March 31, 2007, The reclassification was matle
in the consolidated statements of income for the years enced March 31,
2006 and 2005 te conforin to this presentation,

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are determined based on the differences
between the financial reporting and the (ax bases of asscts and liabilities and
are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws which will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse, A valuation allowance is rec-
ognized to reduce the deferred tax asseis to the amount that is considered
more likely than not Lo be realized.

Recently issued accounting standard

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accowunting for
Lincertainty in fncome Tares, an inlerprelation of FASIO8 Accownting
JSor income Tazxes (FIN48} 1o create a single model to address accounting
for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income

3. Acquisitions

On October 12, 2005, Japan Indonesia Petrochemical Investiment
Corporation {*JIPIG"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
exchanged its shares and loans in PT. Chandra Asri {*CA™) with
Conunerzbank International Trust (Singapore) Ltcl., for shares of two
Indonesian cormpanies in the Musi Pulp business. As a result of this
exchange, PT. Tanjungenim Lestari Pulp & Paper (“TEL”), a pulp producing
comparty, became a subsidiary wholly owned by the Company, JIPIC and
Sumatra Pulp Corporation (“Sumatra™), a 49.95% owned subsidiary of
Marubeni. In addition, PT. Musi Hutan Persada ("MHP"), a plantation

taxes, by prescribing a mintinum recognition threshoeld a tax position is
required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements.

FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classifica-
tion, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesure and
transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. The Company will aclopt FIN 48 as of April 1, 2007, as required. The
cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded in retained earnings.
The Company has not determined the etfect, if any, the adoption of FIN 48
will have on the Company’s financial position and results of operations,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SKFAS No. 157, Fair Talue
Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair vahie, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measure-
ments. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007 and the Company will adopt. it on April 1, 2008. The Cempany has not
determined the effect, if any, the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on the
Company's financial position and results of operations.

In Febroary 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 169, e Fuir Value
Option for Financtal Assets and Financidd Linbilities—ncluding an
amendinent of FASE Statement No. 715, SFAS 159 provides companies
with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been
elected will be recognized in earnings. SFAS 158 is effective for fiscal years
beginring after November 15, 2007 and the Company will adopt it on April
1, 2008. The Company has not determined the effect, if any, the adoption of
SFAS 159 will have on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.

company, became a subsidiary owned 60% by the Company and JIPIC, TEL
was incorporated in 1990 arcd produces pulp from acacia logs, and has pulp
production capacity of 450,000 tons per year. MHP was incorporated in 1991
and operates acacia plantation on 190,000 heetares out of autherized areas
of 300,000 hectares and supplies Ings for TEL. The results of operations of
TEL and MHP have been consolidated in the conselidated staterment of
meeme [rorm the date of acquisition. The pulp business is placed as one of
the Company’s core businesses and acquisition of the majority shares of TEL
and MHP was made to further strengthen the business.

The aggregate purchase price was ¥61,333 million, and the following table sunumarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilitics assumed at the

date of acguisition.

Millions of yen

D UITTEITE ASSELS et eeetee ettt eeseeme e et eeteeeretase e s esseae e e eeas e et ens s esese e e eesame e eeseme e e eeeameesem s e eree b e se b e s e e e e sa e et e ene e et eae e ¥ 14,744
Property, plant alicl CQUIDITIEITE ....voiiui i mr e st s s eae s me s o s aea e e e e reane s rnss s s bne s ansiaraase e e s asneans 103,214
TTUATEIEIE BSSEES .ottt et et e et et ne e e 50,771
RO NOM-CUITEIE ABSEES .. ..veeueeee ettt eece s e ettt s re s et eete e e eee e e et e eeee e e aesesteeeme e e ettaeesemeeeme s et e s e b b e bbb e rrt e b e erpee s s eeneeereeean 4,009

Total ASSELS BCQUITEU ..euvieit ettt ettt et bbbt s b e e e e ean et e eas st es s emesamssea e s an e nsaes 172,738
CUTTCIWL IADIIEIES ... ve vttt oee et ee et e et e et e e e e e e e e ete e kb eat e s e ek b e eR b b4 e ae s et g 2o e ekt e et e e ee b b et be s s e n e ame e s m e e nae e et 7,426
e o= e 1 e ) o OO OO O OO OO U OO O PP SRR PO 80,642
Other NON-CUITENE LADIITIES «.ocveei oottt e et e e b ettt e eate st ea e eesnbe e et e es s bt bee s sme e ssssaraeesanreaameaans 9,120

Total liabilities RESUITIEA ... et ek ab e s e ee s e s 97,088
IANIOTIEY INEEEESE ..ottt b o2 s en e as s er e e e ere e s am e am s 14,317

NEt 8SSELS ACTUITE .voee et eee et et e emee et ee e e e e easeeeeaeebesbemtsaaeses e e ens s sns s es e em s enssemsereenareens ¥ 61,333
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Minority interest above includes the Cotnpany’s and Sumatra’s interest
of 45.06% in TEL, acquired prior 10 1his acquisition.

As MHP was granted by the Indonesia governiment a right to use land of
300,000 hectares for plantation, ¥50,745 million were assigned to intangible
assets subject to amortization over the remainting authorized period of 20

Had the Company acquired TEL and MHP at April 1, 2004, the consoli-
dated revenues, gross trading profits, net income, and basic and dituted
earnings per share of conunon stock for the years ended March 31, 2006 and
2005 would be as follows:

vears,

Pro Forma Information {(Unaudited)

Millions of ven
2006 2005
ROVEBIIIC .ottt ettt ettt ems e et eme e et et e ee e eeee e e e em e e e s eeme e s enne s e nemn e s eeee s e eem e e eneemnnenee e ¥3,153,954 ¥3,063,585
GPOSS TFAMINE PIOILL 1oeein ettt ettt ses g re s cans o es et eRet A e e ee g2 e s eas s aEeant et eras s eeems s stnrers 506,039 439,739
T INUCOITIE ... oo oo ettt cteet e st et ee s tem s et sentseat st s ame st e s seneseeesees s et eamt e mt e et et eseamt e amtemtenmtame setemeeeeemen e naneene 76,002 38,409
Yen

Basic earnings per share of COMIMON STOCK ... o r st s sa et s rem sr et eareasene ¥49.82 ¥24.71
Diluted earnings per share of COMIMON SLOCK. . ... .. .o ettt e eea e s et s rene s areeans 41.66 20.79

There were no significant acquisitions for the year ended March 31, 2007,

4. Discontinued Operations

Inaccordance with SFAS No. 144, decowiting for the fmpxidriment or
Disposal of Lorng-Lived Assels, the Company separately presents the results
of the aperations of discontinued operations, net. of income tax effects,
which are cither operations disposed of or reclassified as helel for sale during
the year, in the consolitlated statements of income. The figures of statements

of income and cash flows for tha prior years have been reclassified 1o con-

ferm to this presentation.

The carrying amounts of assots and liabilities of discontinued operations
were not significant at March 31, 2006 and 2005,

The loss from discontinued operations in the staterment of income for
the years ended March 31, 2006 arl 2005, arvl selected financial information

are as follows:

Millions of ven

2006 2005
Loss {from discontinued operations, before Income tax effeCh ..ot ¥(1,793) ¥(5,738)
LioSS 0 ISPOSAL ..ot eSS e s es et n e een {9,885) —
[COME LAX BEIETL ..ottt e eae s emes v sreene b e remtsa e es b e seeb e b aat st e st e e bee et ehmrenemeemrenenraeneen 5,314 2,888
Loss from discontinued operations, after ineome 1ax @ffCh ... e ¥(6,364) ¥(2,850)

Discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2006 are as
follows:

The Company placed as a non-core business the leisure-related busi-
ness including the ski business and theme park operations in the "V Plan,”
the three year business plan, which started in 2003. Based on the plan, the
Company decided to exit from the leisure business operated through two
subsidiaries, Hunter Mourstain Shiobara Co. Ltd. {(*HMS") amd Nasu Kougen

Resert Co. Ltd. ("NKR"), by selling them to third parties. NKR sold all assets
ane business related to the skiing grounc operations 1o HMS, and then the
Company sold all share irt HMS 10 Tokyu Resort Corporation in November
2005. The Company sold all shares in NKR 1o Animal Escort Service Co. Ltd.
in April 2006,

There were no discontinued operations for the year ended March 31,
2007.
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5. Marketable Equity Securities and Debt Securities
The following is a susunary of available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities at. March 31, 2007 and 2006:

Available-for-sale securities

Millions of yen
2006
Gross Gross Gross Gress
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Cosl Gains Losses Fair Value Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Current;
Debt securities.......ccevviins ¥ 5,792 ¥ 5 ¥ — ¥ 5,797 ¥ 579 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 579
Non-current:
Debt securities .......oceereneeee. ¥ 35,034 ¥ 200 ¥ (27) ¥ 35,207 ¥ 29,060 ¥ 216 ¥ (37) ¥ 29,239
Marketable equily securities ... 169,757 161,682 (6,594) 324,845 153,508 167,980 {1,350) 320,138
Total.ciniiieniinn,s ¥204,791 ¥161,882 ¥(6,621) ¥360,052 ¥182,568 ¥168,190 ¥(1,387) ¥349.377
Thousands of U.S. dellars
2007
Gross Giross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Current:
Debt securities...viiiien. $ 49,085 § 42  $ — § 49,127
Nen-current:
Debt securities ..o $ 296,898 $ 1,695 § (229) § 298,364
Marketahle equisy securities ... 1,438,619 1,370,186 (55,881) 2,752,924
Total.cciiiiirenenes $1,735,517 $1,371,881  $(56,110) $3,051,288
Held-to-maturity securities
Millions of yen
20 | 2006
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Giains Losses Fair Value Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Current:
Debt securities .. ¥ - ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥6,000 ¥ 4 ¥ — ¥ 6,004
Non-current:
Debt SeCUEteS v ¥9,385 ¥534 ¥ — ¥9,919 ¥9,236 ¥797 ¥ — ¥10,033
Thousands of U.5. dollars
2007
Gross (iross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Current:
Debt securities...c.ninnes $ - 5 — 5 — L] —
Non-current:
Debt securities .o $79,534 $4,525 $ — $84,059

Debt securities were mainly corporate bonds.
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The fair value and gross unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities, aggregated by investment category and length of

time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss positiens, at March 31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows:

Millions of yen

2006

Less than 12 months

12 months or longer

Less than 12 months 12 months ar longer

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Available-for-sale:
Debt securities..................... ¥ 4,197 ¥ (27 ¥ — ¥ — Y 4,771 ¥( 37) Y — ¥ —
Marketable equity securities.. 51,345 (6,594) — — 37,282 (1,350) — —
¥55,542 ¥(6,621) ¥ — ¥ — ¥42,053 ¥(1,387) Yy — ¥ —
Held-to-maturity:
[Jebt securities........c.coeee.ee. ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — Y — ¥ - Y — ¥ —
¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — — ¥ — Y —

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2007

Less than 12 months

12 months or longer

Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Available-for-sale:
Debl securities...........oo........ $ 35,568 $  (229) $ — $ —
Marketable equily securities . 435,127 (55,881) —_ -
$470,695 $(56,110) $ — 3 —

Held-to-tnaturity:
Debt securities..........oco...... $ — 5 — $ — § —
$ — 3 — $ — $ —

The investments in available-for-sale securities with unrealized logsos
consist. primarily of marketable equity securities of 49 issues, The unrealized
losses on these securities were mainly due to a terporary decline in the
stock market. The severity of the decline was 11% on average and the dura-
tion of the impairment was less than 12 months. Based on the evalualion
and the Companies' ability anct intent. to hold these securities for a reason-
able period of time sufficient for a recovery of fair value, the Companies did
not consider that the declines in fair value of these investments 10 be other-
than-temporary at March 31, 2007.

In addition to the securities listed above, the Companies held trading
securities of ¥20,806 million {$177,085 thousand} and ¥14,410 rillion, at. fair
value, as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The net unrealized hold-
ing gains and losses on trading securities inchuded in earnings for the years
ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to ¥431 million ($3,653
thousand) of gains and ¥76 million and ¥8 million of losses, respectively.

The proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities amounted to
¥13,922 million ($117,983 thousand), ¥13,410 million and ¥50,728 million for

the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, Gross realized
gains on sales of available-for-sale securities touled ¥8,700 million {$73,729
theusand), ¥7,218 million and ¥28,611 millicn, and gross realized losses
totaled ¥85 million ($720 thousand}, ¥457 miliion and ¥144 millien for the
years ended March 331, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company wrote down certain marketable investiment securities
whose decline in value was considered to be other than temporary to their
fair value. These write-downs amounted to ¥63 million ($534 thousand),
¥109 million and ¥385 million for the years ended Mareh 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

The amaortized cost and estimated fair value of debt and marketable
euity securilies at. March 231, 2007 are summarized by contractual maturity
below. Expected maturilivs may differ from contractual maturities because
the issuers of cerlain securities have the right to prepay obligations without
prepayment penalties.

Available-for-sale securities

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Cost Fair Value Cost. Fair Value
[NIC 11 ONC FOAY OF 1085 .ottt ettt eee e bt ees e ¥ 5,792 ¥ 5,797 $ 49,085 $ 49,127
[Due after one year through five years. ... 11,812 11,986 100,102 101,576
Due after five years through ten years..........cov e 23,222 23,221 196,796 196,788
DHIE AILET BN FEATS ...t et sttt e e — — — —
Total debt SECUTTHES ..o 40,826 41,004 345,983 347,491
Marketable eqUItY SECUTLIES ..., v vt e st aeies 169,757 324,845 1,438,619 2,752,924
TOLAL ..ot et et e e e ee et emns e emas e anee s ¥210,583 ¥365,849 $1,784,602 $3,100,415
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Held-to-maturity securities

Millions of yen

Thousands of 1.8. dollars

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
[HIE IN ONE YEAE OF JCE5 ..viviireeieite et eeties s st sesbsec s rss s s sesrsssmntssaane ¥ ¥ — $ —_ $ —_
[Due after one year through five years. ... 9,385 9,919 79,534 84,059
Due after five years Lhrough 180 ¥EarS ... evrercmnceneees e crcreeene — — — —
Due after ten years — — — —
¥9,385 ¥9.919 $79,534 $84,059
6. Affiliated Companies

Investments in and amounts due from affiliated companies at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:
Thousanids of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006

Investments in @QUILY SECUFILIES ... e ¥ 468,950 ¥205,427 $3,974,152
LONE-LEIMN FECEIVABIES ..ottt et oottt eee e e 35,651 18 834 301,280
¥504,501 ¥i314,261 $4,275,432

The finaneial information of affiliated companies at. March 3, 2007 and 2006 and for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 aru 2005, is sumunarized as

follows:
Thousinds of
Millions of yen U.S. tollars
2006 2007
GUITEINE ASSCLS ..ottt ireieceee e citesrreersartsont e s s st asn e se e s easesEas e e ee e s mase e ssms e e s e semesmms sme emmsme smeae ¥2,468,283 ¥1,545,465 $20,917,653
L1 4T ot 3OS O OO U U U O O USSR 2,275,500 1,422 424 19,283,898
TOLA] BSSOLS evveveecceeieeteeeecetetiee et e e seasessereesseses s e sesssasasons e easase se e Enteeasemnstees et e neebereeneanre et he s ¥4,743,783 ¥2,967,889 $40,201,551
Current, HABIITIOS ..o e ¥2,041,604 Y1,324,505 $17,301,729
Other liabilities ... 1,560,620 957,768 13,225,593
Equity accounts.. 1,141,559 685,616 9,674,229
Total labilitios and @QUILY ..ottt ettt et e e et ¥4,743,783 ¥2,967,889 $40,201,551
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2007 2006 20056 2007
Total volume of trading transactions... ... ¥5,774,670 ¥4,233,915 ¥5,351,268 $48,937,881
LT Tl o] 1S U U U SO SO UPOR SO 162,837 71,212 79,998 1,379,975

The Companies’ transactions with affiliated companies for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Sa1E8 LTANSACLIOIIS .ouviivirirsreririrsrirssseeessesemsersserseressseessmsesns e ssmseeseeseamsssessaneas

Purchase transactions

The balance of the difference between the cost of invesiment in affiliat-
ed companies and the Companies’ equity in the net assets at the dates of
acquisition amounted to ¥50,428 million ($427,356 thousand) and ¥4,500
million at. March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Millions of yen

2007 2006 2005
¥366,876 ¥314,739 ¥360,027
166,301 196,639 199,210

Thousands of
11.5. dedlars

2007
$3,109,119
1,409,331

Certain investments in the cornmon stock of affiliated companies are
marketable equily securities, which have carrying values of ¥54,836 million
($464,712 thousard} and ¥37 366 million at March 31, 2007 and 2008, respec-
tively, with corresponding aggregate quoted market values of ¥77,115 million
($653,517 theusand) and ¥59,951 million.




7. Loans and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts are summarized as follows:

Balance at beginning of Year..........cccovvv e s

Provision...
Charge-offs..

Balance at end of year............

Al March 31, 2007 and 2006, the recorded investiments in loans that are
considered to be impaired under SFAS No. |14 were ¥97,803 million
{$828,839 thousand) and ¥159,902 million, respectively, and the allowance
for credit losses related to those loans were ¥58,878 million ($498.966 thou-
sand) and ¥806,237 million, respectively. The recorded investment in the
impaired loans, net of the valuation allswance, is either secured by collateral
or considered collectible based upon various analyses. The average recorcled

8. Long-Lived Assets

Thousands of

Millions of yen 1j.5. dollars

2006 2005
¥ 99,874 ¥109,318 ¥120,814 $ 846,390
860 8515 6,298 7,288
(30,137) (14,435) (18,572) (255,398)
(2,928) (3,522) 776 (24,814)
¥ 67,669 ¥ 99,874 ¥i09,316 $ 573,466

investments in impaired loans were ¥131,270 million ($1,112,458 thousarul),
¥176,477 million and ¥230,778 willion for the years erdded March 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The Companies generally (o not acerue for
interest on those loans, and recognize interest income on a cash basis, which
was ¥1,245 million ($10,551 thousand), ¥3,839 million and ¥2,94 rodllion for
the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The gross carrving amounts and accumulated amortization of intangible assets as of March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen
2006
Gross carrying Accumulated Gross carrying Accumulated
amount amortization amount amaortization
Amortized intangible assets:
Licenses and operating rights .............c........ ¥ 77,980 ¥ (9,409) ¥ 77,008 Y (5,073)
BOTUWILEE Lot 16,863 (%,710) 13,541 (7,528)
Additional minimum pension Bability ..., —_ _ 2,223 (863)
OURET oo et e 10,770 {3,668) 11,032 (4,409)
[ntangible asscts not subject to amortization:
Land 1en RS e s 2,589 — 2,350 —
OLREE ettt e ems s e et 1,239 —_ 1,044 _
¥109,441 ¥(22,787) Y107,195 ¥(17,873)

Thousands of U.S. dollirs

Amortized intangible assets:
Licenses and operating Fghis ... e e
SOMUWAIT Lottt et e e e emeeae s
Additional minimurn pension liability .................

Intangible assets not subject to amortization:
Land rent Tights ... e e

2007

Gross carrying Accumulated
arount arnortization
$660,847 $ (79,737)
142,907 (82,288)
91,271 (31,085)

21,941 —

10,500 —
$927,466 $(193,110)
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The amortized intangible assets acquired during the year ended March
31, 2007 totaled ¥3,949 million ($33,466 thousand) and consisted primarily
of software of ¥3,350 million ($28,390 thousand). The weighted-average
amnortization period of software acquirecl for the year ended March 31, 2007
is five years (straight-line method).

The intangible assets which have been required io be recognized under
SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Acconnting for Perston, were not recognized at
March 31, 2007, due to the adoption of SFAS No. 168, Emeployers’
Accornting for Defined Bergfit Peision anud Other Postretirement
Flans, an amendmernt of FASR Statements No 87, 88, 106, and 185(R)
Employers’ Accourting for Pension.

The amortized intangible assets acquired during the year ended March
31, 2006 totaled to ¥58,981 million and consisted primarily of operating
rights of ¥51,741 million and software of ¥2,825 million. The weighted-
average amortization periods of operating rights and software acquired for
the year ended March 31, 2000 are 20 years (straight-line method) and five
years (straight-line method), respectively.

The amount of the residual value of the amortized intangible assets is
not. significant.

The amortization expense for intangible assels was ¥6,408 million
(554305 thousand), ¥3,734 million and ¥5,899 million for the years ended
March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The estimated amertization expense for the
next five vears is as follows:

Thousands of

Years endling March 31 Millions of yen 1.5, dollars
ZO0B ... s vttt et et et R e Re £t eeE SRS ranE S nt £k £t ReA et £ S b et e £t nA s s e s e et een e ¥H,767 $48,873
5,182 40,610
4,788 44,576
4,203 35619
3,842 32,559

The changes in the carrying amouni of goodwill by operating segment for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008 are as follows:

Millions of yen

Forest PMant, ship {verseas
products and Transportation and Information  Development  eofporate
Agri-marine general and industrial  infrastructitre and com- and subsidiaries
products Textile merchandise  Chenicals  maehinery prujects munication  cohstruction  and branches Total
Balance at March 31,2005 ... ..ot ¥r,203 Y — ¥ — ¥YLWT Y4042 ¥ — Y8006 ¥ — ¥Y06,931 ¥27,509
Goodwill acquired during the year................. — 1,094 — — — — — —_ — 1,094
[Mpairment 1oSS88 .o — (b52) — — — — —_ — {1467) (2,019
Disposal, effect of exchange rate and other ... — — — 22 351 — — — 979 1,352
Balanee at March 31, 2006 oo 7,293 542 — 1,169 4,393 — 8,096 — 6,443 27936
Goodwill acquired during the year............... _ -— 1,524 — 913 6,339 1,037 527 741 11,081
[rnpairment 10SSeS .....cc..cooocver e — (542) — — — — — — (326) (868)
Disposal, effect of exchange rate and other ... — — — 172 192 — — — (2,719) (2,355)
Balance at March 31, 2007 .........covinee ¥7,292 ¥ — ¥1.,524 ¥1,341 ¥5498 ¥6,339 ¥9,133 ¥527 ¥4,139 ¥35,794
Thousands of 1.8, dollars
Forest Plant, ship Overseas
products and Transporiation ahd Information  Development  cotporate
Agri-marine feneral and industrial  infrastructure  and com- and subsidiaries
products Textile merchandise  Chemicals machinery projects munication constmiction and branches Tutal
Balance at March 31, 2006 561,805 $4,593 $ — § 9,907 $37,229 § — 868610 § — $54,602 $236,746
| Goodwill acquired during the Year ............... — — 12915 — 7,737 53,720 8,788 4466 6,281 93,907
| Impairment LoSSes ..ovvvie e —  (4,593) — — — — — —  (2,763) (7,356)
Disposal, effect of exchange rate and other ... — — — 1,458 1,627 — — — (23,043) (19,958)
Balance at March 31, 2007 ... $61.8053 8 — $12915 $11,365 $46,593 $53,720 $77,398 84,466 $ 35,077 $303,339

As a result of decreases in the esiimated future cash flows due to the
worsened business circumstances and conditions and changes in manage-
ment strategies, the Companies recognized impairment losses on goodwill of
¥868 million {57,356 thousand) and ¥2,019 million for the years ended
March 31, 2007 and 2006. There was no impairtnent loss on goodwill recog-
nized for the year ended March 31, 2005, The fair value of the reporting unit
was estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows.

Due to decreases in expected future cash flows below their carrying
amounts, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries recognized impairment
losses primarily on their facility, real estate and plant in the total amounts of
¥18,879 million ($159,992 thousand) and ¥15,504 millton, which are includ-
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ed in loss an property, plant and equipinent on the consolidated statement
of incotue, for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, based on their fair
value. The fair value was primarily esuimated using the discounted cash flow
method and third-party appraisals. The segments affected by the impair-
et losses were primarily Energy of ¥4,415 nifllion (837,415 thousand),
Development and construction of ¥4,24% million ($36,008 thousand), Agri-
marine products of ¥3,728 million {$31,593 thousand), Corporate of ¥3,065
million ($25,975 thousand) and Plant, ship and infrastructure projects of
¥2,0173 ruillion (317,059 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2007, and
Energy of ¥6,402 million, Metals and tnineral resources of ¥3,980 million and
Corporate of ¥1,587 million for the year ended March 31, 2006.




9. Pledged Assets

The following table summarizes assets pledged as collateral for the Company's obligations at March 31, 2007 and 2006:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2008

TUMIE ABPOSILS . .o. ettt et ettt et et ee e e et e nte e e emes s mssmme e as ens e e e e e assnrsae s am s smeenen ¥ 10,742 ¥ 10,199 $ 91,034

Securities and other investments and investiments in affiliated companies ... 53,951 60,428 457,212

Notes, loans and accounts receivable — trade (current and non-current) ..........cevvveeeene 37,604 47,279 318,678

IIVVETILOTIES 11vtisieitiriieeeviserrt e srs s ntr e rbt s et e bbb et b e e sa b e ebbe e saaesar s b e rame et Pk b b e s sre s a b eeb e e s e srenr s e psmnsesene 1,226 6,655 10,390
Property, plant and equipment, and property leased to others,

net of accumulated deprecialion ... e e 411,965 358,225 3,491,229

[0 ) T ¥ SO U U UPRURUPRTN 29,247 13,108 247,855

¥544,735 ¥495,804 $4,616,398

The obligations secured by such collateral were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of ven LS. doblars

ShOTE-LEIIN LOANS .....c.oeiicviicv vt sevvesas e v aersss s smes e s e b essbrnss o rronsonns
Other current Habililies .....oo.oooo oot
Long-termn debl ... et

GUAraNTEES OF CONMLIACES, CLC. oivvieiiir ettt ceeer ettt e et aess s baennessssrnssresseeressenareeareane

In addition, acceptances payable at March 31, 2007 and 2006 wore
seclured by trust receipts on inventories, the stanclard tetms of which pro-
victe that the proceeds from the sales of any such collateral be delivered
to the respective bank to be applied against oustanding acceptances.
However, the Companies have, in general, followed the practice of paying
acceptances on their maturity dates. Given the substantial volwme of the
Company's transactions, it would not be practicable to determine the tonal
amount of inventories and/or proceeds from the sales of such inventories

covered by outstanding 1mist receipls.

10. Short-Term Loans and Long-Term Debt

........................... ¥ 22,812 ¥ 67,529 $ 193,322
........................... 10,000 16,133 84,746
........................... 178,319 202,197 1,511,178
18,587 20,962 157,517

¥229,718 ¥306,821 $1,946,763

As is customary in Japan, security, if requested by a lending bank, must
be given and the bank has the right to offset cash deposited with it against
any debt or obligations that become due and, in the case of default or cer-
tain other specilied events, against all debt payable to the bank. To date, no
such request has been made to the Companies and no such rights have been

exercised.

Shart-term loans and their weighted average interest rates, regardless of currencies, at March 31, 2007 and 2006 arc as follows:

Thousands of

Short-term loans from banks and Othars. ...

Weighted Average INEETESL FALES ... ettt e ve et bers et ems s srteae et s sessaee s aes

Millions of yen 1.8, dollars
2006 2007
¥170,423 ¥368,491 $1,444,263
3.12% 2.58%
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Long-term debt at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of:

Thousands of

Miltions of yen 1J.5. dollars
2000
1.48% N0otes dUe 2000 ...ioi ettt ¥ — ¥ 3,800 3 —
1.27% notes due 20006 ...ttt et et ee e emaan — 7,700 —
L13% nOLES AUE 2008 1vviriiviirrriir et es et s —_ 28,100 _
Libor + 0.73% notes due 2007 ..ot 15,578 15,578 132,017
2.0% notes due 2006 ... — 15,000 —
1.91% Notes dUg 2006 ..ottt e er e — 10,000 —
1.27% (1.60% after June 13, 2005) notes due 2007 ..o 9,350 9,350 ‘ 79,237
1119 Notes dAUC 2007 ..ottt ettt aerae s —_ 10,000 —_
1.43% Notes die 200D ..o ettt et b et et em s eae e e 10,000 10,0600 84,746
1.38% Notes dUue 2009 ..ot st 15,000 16,000 127,119
0.86% Notes dite 2007 ..ot 10,000 10,000 84,746
1.28% notes due 2009 ... ettt pr e e 10,000 10,000 84,746
0.98% Notes e 2008 .ottt e et 10,000 10,000 84,746
0.87% NOLES TUE 2010 oottt ettt ettt e e s e 20,000 20,600 169,492
1.32% NOEES AUE 2012 oottt ettt e et et et et an 10,000 10,000 84,746
1.38% notes due 2012 .. 10,000 10,000 84,7406
1.37% notes due 2015 with prepayment options........ooooie e 5,000 5,000 42,373
0.80% notes due 2010 .o bt 20,000 20,000 169,492
1.28% NS dUe 2012 Lottt et e e et s e n 15,000 15,000 127,119
1.09% NOLES AU 2010 ..ottt et e b e bbb b e 30,000 30,000 254,237
1.56% notes due 2012 ... ettt ettt eea e et ere e ean e eneae s 10,000 10,000 84,746
1.50% notes due 2012 ... 10,000 10,000 84,746
1.67% notes due 2011 20,000 — 169,492
1.81% NOLEs dUe 202 ..ottt sb e e e eat e bt e s et e et ee et e e e eae e e eae s 10,000 — 84,746
1.62% notes due 2012 ..o ettt e e e e e 10,000 — 84,746
1.64% NOtes due 2013 Lottt ee e s ene s 10,000 — 84,746
Medium-term notes due from 2006 to 2009 principally at rates from
(3% 10 5.9% OF 4t TIOALINE TALES . .tiiie ettt ee e e sae e e 12,789 24,265 108,381
Loans from governimment-owned banks and government agencies:
Secured, due serially through 2018 principally at rates from 1.0% to 5.6% ................. 11,337 10,420 96,076
Unsecured, due serially through 2025 principally at rates from 0.8% 10 5.7% ........... 77,599 59,093 657,619
Loans principally from banks and insurance companies:
Secured, due serially through 2018 prineipally at rates from 1.1% to 9.0% ......... 181,338 212,223 1,536,763
Unsecured, due serially through 2022 principally at rates [rom 0.6% to 8.0% ............. 1,562,467 1,312,002 13,241,246
L1011 SO U PSP TOUPRSTOOTOOTIOUIN 186,638 200,920 1,581,673
2,292,096 2,103,451 19,424 542
SFAS 133 fair value adjUSLINICIIES .c..ooioi ittt e st r s ana s e sse e e sbae s nrae s 2,626 (4,062) 21,407
2,294,622 2,099,389 19,445,949
Liess: CUTTCINE POTLION ..ottt are s benn s arste et eas e e sae e e e s enne e 164,485 219,650 1,393,941
¥2,130,137 ¥1,879,739 $18,052,008
The SFAS 133 fair value adjustinents above represent adjustiments To strengthen its asset liability management and to hedge against expo-
made to the balance of the debt in accordance with SFAS 133 with respect. sure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company and cer-
to changes in the fair value of hedged long-term «ebt attributable to fluctua- tain of its subsicliaries entered into several interest rate swap agreements,
tions of interest rates during the term of the hedge. including interest rate and currency swap agreements, of short-term leans
To hedge against. exposure related to the pavment of interest and the and long-term debt, The floating interest. rates are, in general, based upon
repayment of the principal of certain short-term loans and long-term debt the six-menth or three-month LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate). The
denominated in foreign currencies, the Company and certain of its sub- interest rale swap agreements are to remain in effect through the maturity
sidiaries enter into foreign exchange contracts. dates of the short-term loans and long-ler debt.
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On March 5, 2007, the Company reduced its short-term line of credit by
¥10,000 million (384,746 thousand). As a resull, the Company had an
unused short-terin line of credit arrangement of ¥105,000 milliony ($889,831
thousand) and an unused long-ternm line of credit arrangement of ¥300,000
million ($2,542,373 thousand) at March 31, 2007, Of such arrangements,
¥174,785 million ($1,481,229 thousand) was utilized to reclassify short-tenn
loans and long-term debt due within one year te long-tenn debi on the con-
solidated balance sheet at March 31, 2007, as the Company had an intention

Long-term debt subsequent to March 31, 2007 matures as follows:

and ability 1o refinance them when due. The Company had an unused long-
term line of credit of ¥300,000 million, arvl reclassified short-term loans and
long-ierm debt due within one year to long-term debt of ¥239,559 million on
the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2006.

In addition to the above, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries
have unused short-term lines of eredit of $500 million and $415 million at
March 31, 2007 and 2006.

Thousands of

Years ending March 31 Millions of yen 1j.5. dollars
ZO0B ..ottt bbbt Ao h 31 h e s e n e Aenr s s e san et sera e s e et earseas et eenr s et ean s ¥164,683 51,395,619
2008 ... e RS A e S e Rt S et s e 200,064 1,695,458
B0 oo oot oo e oo e e e oo oeee et e 1o toees e oees e reee e eeee s e eer e rees s 443,127 3,755,314
2L L e b et b e eaet £ b sa b hee bR ene b emee £ e e ses e e saes s e eas e sne e bene e annene 276,399 2,342,364
2012 460,462 3,902,220
THETBATIBT ..o ev ettt et eec st s erd e s sast s es e st esame et s emrsseesemeate s sre e ee e smrsastemssnenresensanresersenean T47 361 6,333,668

Certain agreements principally with Government-owned financial insti-
tutions provide that earlier repayment may be required if, in the judgment of
the lenders, the Company or certain of its subsidiaries have achieved higher
than expected eamings or receivedd sufficient proceeds from the issuance of
cornmon stock or debentures to repay its loans, To date, none of the lenders

has made such a request,

11. Employees’ Retirement Benefits

The Company an certain of its subsidiaries have cash-balance plans based
on the Defined Benefit. Corporate Pension Man Act and other defined bene-
fit pension plans which, in general, cover all eimployees. Tnaddition to the
pension plans, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries have unfunded
lump-sum retirement plans te be paid upon retirement or severance based
on the vears of service and their compensation level as of the date of
severance.

On April 15, 2003 and May 1, 2004, the Marubeni Welfare Pension Fund
(the "MWPF") received approval from the Japanese government to transfer
the future and past benefit obligations retated to the substitutional portion
to the government-defined benefit prescribed by the Welfare Pension
Insurance Law of Japan. On August 25, 2004, the Marubeni Corporate
Pension Fund (former MWPF) transferred the obligations and assets to the
government. According to the consensus reached by the Emerging [ssue
Task Force on Issue No. 03-2, decowniing for the Transier to the
Japanese Government of the Substitutional Portion of Employee
Fension Fund Liabitities, and SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for
Settlewments and Curtatinents of Deflned Benafit Pension FPlans and for
Termination Benafits, the Company accounted for the entire process as a
settlement upon completion of the transfer to the Japanese govermunent of
the substitutional portion of the future and past benefit obligations and the
related plan assets.

The Company utilizes trusts in order to segregate the pension assets.
During the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2005, the Company withdrew
cash of ¥20,000 and ¥15,000 million from the trusts, respectively, since the
plan assets exceeded constantly the benefit obligations due to an increase
in fair value of plan assets and the transfer of the above benefit obligations.
The trusts are legally isolated from the Company.

Certain of the long-ierm debt agreements stipulate, among other things,
that the Companies, upon request, submiit for the lenders’ approval the pro-
posed appropriations of income, including dividends, before such appropria-
Lticng can be submitted to the shareholders, The Companies have never
received such a request.

On March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the recognition ancl disclo-
sure provisions of SFAS 158 SFAS 158 required the Company to recognize
the funded status (i.e., the difference between the fair value of plan assels
and the projected benefit obligations) of its pensien plan in the March 31,
2007 statement of financial position, with a corresponding adjustiment to
accurnulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. The adjustment to
accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption represents the net
unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior service cost all of
which were previously netted against the plan’s funded status in the
Company's statement of financial position pursuant to the provisions of
SFAS 87. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as net periodic
pension cost pursuant to the Company’s historical accounting policy for
amortizing such amounts. Further, actuarial gains and losses that arise in
subsequernt periods and are not recognized as net periodic pension cost in
the same pertods will be recognized a component of other comprehensive
income. Those amounts will be subsequently recognized as a component of
net periodic pension cost on the same basis as the amounts recognized in
accimulated other comprehensive income at adoption of SFAS 158.

The incremental effects of adopling the provisions of SFAS 158 on the
Company's statement of financial position at March 31, 2007 are presented
in the fellowing table. The adoption of SFAS 158 had no effect on the
Company's consolidated statement. of incormne for the year ended March 31,
2007, or for any prior period presented, and it will not effect the Company’'s
operating results in future periods. Had the Company not been required to
adopt. SFAS 158 at March 31, 2007, it would have recognized an additional
minimumn liability pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 87. The effect of ree-
ognizing the additional minimum liability is included in table below in the
cotumn labeled “Prior to application of SFAS 158."
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Millions of yen

At March 31, 2007

Prior to Effect of As reported
application of application of at March 31,
SFAS 168 SFAS 158 2007
Prepaith DENEIIL COSL. e o et ecs vt e et rrae oo eens s ns e e eeans e ns e e ¥ 60,815 ¥(39,173) ¥ 21,642
Intangible assets 1,305 (1,305) -
Accrued pension abHItIES ........c.oo it (10,018) (2,057) (12,075)
DEOITe INCOIME LAKES oottt me e e et e e bea e e sennas 1,654 17,309 18,863
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME . 2,551 25,052 27,603
Thousands of U.S. dollars
At March 31, 2007
Prior to Effect of As reported
application of application of at March 31,
SFAS 158 SFAS 158 2007
Prepaitl BENEIIL COSE...... oot sttt e v bt ese s et ss s re s srabs b ere st s st s emeteeen $515,381 $(331,975) $ 183,407
AN D0 BSSOLS oot et 11,058 (11,059) —
Accrued pension HabilitIES ... ..o et e s (84,898) (17,432) (102,331)
Deferred income taxes 13,169 146,686 159,856
Accumulated other CoOmpPrehensive IMCOME. ... ..ot e 21,619 212,305 233,924

The: reconciliation of beginning ancd ending balances of the projected benefit. obligation and plan assets, and the funded status of the Company's and cer-

taih subsidiaries’ plans arc as follows:

Change in projected benefit obligation

Millions of yen
2006

Thousands of
U.S5. dollars

2007

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of Year ... e ¥215,780 ¥209,491 $1,828,644
SBOIVICE COBL .ottt et e e ete s e s s re st e e s e s s as ek rbmes e oot sspepas s e seein s e emeemseanenas 6,300 5,396 53,390
[IMLEFESBE COBL oovemmniireereee et e teemes e eiemeeseeaeereeessemaeentemsateteassbe bmt et enba e s arbsneabrre et binmatesrsrsears 5,954 5,749 50,458
Actuarial loss 3,778 4,065 32,017
Foreign currency exchange rate Changes ..o e e 1,163 2,424 9,856
BENEIILS PRI ..ot et e se e e (10,729) (11,282) (90,924)
Plan amendIment ... ..ot e e e —_ (563) —

Projecled benefit obligation at end of ¥ear ... 222,246 215,780 1,883,441

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning OF YOAT oo 254,289 216,808 2,154,992
ACEUA] TCLUITL O11 PIAN BSSBLS 11ovvsvereerisioresesrre s reerrsessesese s seas s sosee s e sseems seesereame s smanas 707 40,972 5,992
Foreign currency exchange raie Changes ... e e 1,049 1,949 8,890
Employees’ comrIbULIONS ... s 357 265 3,025
Employer's COMTIDULION ... r s st e s e en s eens e emnssems e e 4,280 3,331 36,271
Benefits paid . (8,869) (9,036) (75,161)
LHET ottt tiresrceirmeesee e s eeams e e s eemete e eo e e e e b eems b et esbeseat ek en b easbe s eas e b e samas e b ek raer e ek anrr s (20,000) — (169,492)

Fair value of plan 8ssets at end Of YEAT ... e 231,813 254 289 1,964,517

FUNACH SLALILS oot e s sb e o s ¥ 9,567 ¥ 38,509 $ 81,076

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2007 consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost ..o ¥ 21,642 $ 183407
Accrued benefil HabhiliLY ..ot (12,075) (102,331)
FUIARE SLALS ..ottt et eeae st b1 e s b e bt e et tes b sa i e sss et es et sns s s ses st e s snnsseens ¥ 9,667 $ 81,076
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Amoeunts recognized in accumulated ether comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2007, consist of:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars
PO SEIVIEE LB .. ittt ettt ettt v ettt s ss e sas et s e a e sae st ens ettt emas et s ettt raenessranein ¥(16,171) $(137,042)
NEL ACLLUAIAL LOSS ... cei et e ere et et s ard et sera e et sam see s vereeasemmatebe e e ssemnstensen e s snreeneennenran 62,829 532,449

Y 46,658 $ 395,407

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) expected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost for the year end-
ing March 31, 2008 are as {ollows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.5. dollars
PIOE SETVICE QOB ... ii ettt ettt s s e e et et ss st es s eaeseas e er st et eeeaeessamsessemssessamssensanrssssamneseremnsenne ¥(1,065) $(9,025)
INEL BCLUATIAL TOSS.1.veveresterisereiiaei s sttt emraeasses s emeses et emnssasssnssesessesaaessessbenssesasenssebenetsessensssssastesssesnsseseeetasersasnrenns 4,152 35,186

The funded status at March 31, 2006, reconciled to the net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet at that date, is summarized as follows:

Millions of yen
FUIACH SLALUS ..ottt v ra e b e s a1 e e8 e e 0 0S4 18 et 8304504 e b bt e e e s eee e eenndeeenee ¥ 38,509
UNrecogiiZed DEIOE SEIVICE COSl. it e oot eee e et s e e eseere e eve s e srrenasssbots s e e sanssebbon et rasbesstbasbesbbransrente (16,467) |
Unrecognized net aCtlarial JOSS ......ocoi ittt et et e s e ea 56,638 |
NEL AITIOUIIL TECOBIMIZEM ..o vttt es sttt e et s bt eaetes st est s sat s emrs e st em e emnenae s rensseesremnsree e Y 78,730

Amounts recogized in the consolidated balance sheet at. March 31, 2006, consist of:

Millions of yen

Prepaicl DENEIIT COSL m— CLITRIM . c.0iiit ittt ettt es et st eete e e e e e e e e eet e e e e s e e eee e ees et e e s eeeseaeeae e e eeeneeeseeeeneeereeenenaee ¥ 37
Prepaid benefil. cost — nen-current .. 83,746
Accrued BENELTt HAbIEY ...ttt et ece e vttt st R e branrh s eR Tt s anreen (9,129)
INEANEIDLE BESELS 11t ecir ettt e e ettt b e e ee s et emt e s sa s et st era et et st s ernere et eenee s 1,360
Accumulated other comprehensive income, before income tax et ...t 2,378

Nt aMOUNE TECOBINUZEM . ......iivviiii et ee et care s easemsseaeetes e e tee e s e et e te et e s s etrannsetrannsenaseessanareeaseoteneas ¥78,730

The accumutated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was ¥213,602 million (31,810,186 thousand) and ¥207,811 million at March 31,
2007 and 20086, respectively.

The componernts of net periodic benefit cost of the Company's and certain subsidiaries’ plans for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as
foltows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.5. dollars
2006 2005
Service cost — benefits earned during the year..........coooeoveevveevierivveean. ¥ 6,300 ¥ 5,396 ¥ 6,040 $ 53,390
interest cost on projected benefit obligation. 5,954 5,749 5,838 50,458
Expected return on plan assets.......cccoooveevenne. (6,390) (6,525) (6,763) (54,153)
Amortization of unrecognized prior SCrvice CoSt....iooieireei e (1,038) (947) {727) (8,966)
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial 10Ss ... 4,896 5,124 5,451 41,492
Employees’ COMtOBULIONS. ........ccoovevieeeceeeeeveeece e (357) (265) (2567) (3,025)
Net loss on transfer of the substitutional portion of the
employee pension fund Habilities ...............oovv i —_ — 1,453 —
Net periodic beneflt COSE.........cocovni et e ¥ 9,345 ¥8,632 ¥11,035 $ 79,196

Millions of yen

|
|
Details of the net loss on the transfer of the substitutional portion of the employee pension fund liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2005 is as foltows: ‘

SUDSIAY IO BOVEITUTICILL ..ottt ittt em e et eree e et s e et re s et rasssetssees et s ee et emterasemtseeeeesemeees s em e e e aes ¥(13,405)

Settlement loss: i
Derecognition of acerued Salary PrOBIESSION ..o vttt st ss e e sbs st ssbe et eenereeeaete e e (1,064) .
Recognition of unrealized aCtUARIALIOSS ...ttt ee et e et et eee e e e et e e et e e e e e e e e eaeeeneenens 15,922

¥ 1,453
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The aggregale projected benefit obligation and aggregate fair vatue of plan assets for pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan

asscts are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars

Aggregate projected benefit obligation ... s

Aggregate fair value of plan assets ..o

¥49,674 ¥40,410 $420,966
37,599 28,040 318,636

The aggregate accurnulated benefit obligation and aggregate fair value of ptan assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of

plan assets are as follows:

Thousands of
1J.5. dollars

2006

Millions of yen

Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation............

Aggregate Tair value of plan as8et5 . ... e

¥29,780 ¥95 402 $252,373
20,764 16,411 175,966

The weighted -average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

2006

DHSCOUIL FREES .. .eoeeree et eeeeeeveaetve e eeane e te e s smmessnsseae e e samsseseeme e et berseeesassabEne

Rates of increases in future salary levels ...........coiiieeiinieeiinee e

2.5% 2.5%
4.6% 4.7%

The weighted-average assumptions used te determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

2006 2005

2006

IISCOUIIL FALES 1ecutie e cttietre s e eetes e e et e s sar e e b b dheds s o bs b4 Ehor s o R roR R 03412 s prssnne s e nnns snns e
Rates of increases in TULure Salary 1@VELS ... e e

Expected long-term rates of return on plan assels ...

2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
4.7% 4.7% 4.8%
2.7% 2. 7% 2.7%

The overall expected long-lerm rates of return are calculated based on the historical returns for cerlain years adjusted by the target rate of return for the

components of the current asset portfolio.

The weighted-average assel allocations of the Company's plan assets at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Asset category

2006

Equity securities
Debt SCCUTILICS ...t et eae et rrr s s b e s eiaesnssenr s

L1 T o OO OO

Plan assets are generally invested 40%, 40% and 20% in equity securi-
lies, debt securities and other, The allocation to foreign equity and debt
securities is approximately 10% of the total plan assets.

In making investient, decisions, the main objective is to secure the nee-
essary return over the long tenn to cover pension and retirement benefit
paymuents. The pritmary investment policy is to analyze the risk/retum char-
acteristics by asset class and to invest in a diversified portfolio taking into
consideration of the correlation between asset classes. The Company sets a
policy asset mix with investments in equities, bonds and aiternative invest-
ments. Based on this policy, the Company selects multiple investment
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45.8% 43.3%

34.6% 32.5%

........... 19.6% 24.2%
100.0% 100.0%

managers who execute the strategy. When selecting an investment manager,
the Company gives consideration to management philosophy and content,
investment management policy and investment style, investment control
systems including information collection mechanisis and decision-making
processes, compliance systems, investment cxperience and the track record
of the investinent manager as well as their investment, professional in charge
of managing pension morey.

As a result. of the introduction of the cash-balance plan, the perforn-
ance of certain plan assets is maiched with the related pensien benefits.



The benefits expected to be paid in the next ten years are as follows:

Thousands of

Years ending March 31 Millions of yen 11.8. dollars
2010. 10,791 91,449
L0 O U U OO PO OO RSO RU O PTSUUR SV 11,081 43,483
0 OO U OO OO PO OO PO OO PR VP VO IO PPOPDTOPSS 11,111 94,161
P s T 1 OO O OO OO PO ORI SSPRPTPSoFS 59,339 502,873

¥112,540 $953,726

The amount of contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the year ending March 31, 2008 is approximately Y2,400 million ($20,339 thousand).

12. Income Taxes
The Company files a consolidated income tax return in Japan.

Total income Laxes recognized for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2005 were applicable to the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen 1U.5. dollars
2007 2006 2005
Income from continuing operations befere income taxes and
THNOEILY INEETESLS 1ottt ed e neree e ¥68,205 ¥47 463 ¥41,780 $578,008
Loss from discontinued 0perations ..., — (6,314) (2,8588) —
Other comprehensive (loss) HICOME e (5,509) 44,656 7,170 (46,686)
Total MCOMIE LAXES ..oveiee s inis s ir st e er e e e s ¥62,696 ¥86,705 ¥46,062 $531,322

Taxes on income applicable 10 the Cotupany would normally result. in the statutory tax rate of approximately 41% for the years ended March 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005. A reconciliation of the statutory income Lax rates to the effective income tax rates cxpressed as a percentage of inceme from continuing opera-
tions before income 1axes and minority interests for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

2006 2005

SLALLILOTY HICOIMIE X TALES. .....cveeeeteeessisiesesisiens sosseses e sessems s sesenssensamssabesosesbsssabssaitatsranssisranees 41.0% 41.0% 41.0%
Tax effect of SUbSIAIARES' OPEIALIONS ....ccovii ettt et e e rb s 22 {0.2) 8.0
Tax effect of permanent ifferenees .o e 1.2 1.8 3.1
Dilference in tax rates of forcign substdIarios ... (6.4) (6.9) {6.0)
Tax effect on undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and other ... (2.2) 1.5 1.2
B e ettt e by R e et et e e s bt s e shaet st s aenr e e nanen (0.6) (1.5) 0.5
Effective incorne tax rates on income from continuing operations ..., 35.2% 35.7% 47.8%

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests for the vears ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

Thousands of
Milliogts of yen U.5. dollars
2006 2005
DIOMBSLIC et b e e ¥ 70,067 ¥ 49,999 ¥15,052 $ 593,788
FOTEIFIT oottt bbbt bbbt 123,748 83,056 71,665 1,048,712
TOLAD e e ¥193,815 ¥133,0565 ¥87.317 $1,642,500
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Income taxes on incorae frorm continiing operations for the vears ended Mareh 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen 1.5, dollars
2006 2005
Current: .
DIOMESLIC v e s s ¥17,563 ¥11,484 ¥12451 $148,839
FPOTQUBIL o1ttt ettt emr et e arean 36,347 23,104 14,881 308,025
Deferred:
IIOTOEELIL Lottt b e et e st 14,697 10,824 3,021 124,561
JPOEGIEIT oottt et bttt et (402) 1,981 11,427 (3,407)
TOAL it rr st ee e e e v r et e b ¥68,205 YAT 463 Y41,780 $578,008
The significant compaonentis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.5. doliars
o007 P
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNTS ..o e ene e ¥ 52,519 ¥ 79,025 $ 445,076
TIWVEITLOTIES .ottt pe e eerea s 8,971 10,828 76,025
Employees’ retirement Benefits . ......coiiiii e ee e ara s 23,146 2,634 196,153
Unrealized profit on intercompany tranSaclions ... ie e eoeseree e e s 8,235 8,541 69,788
Net operating 1oss carryforWards. ... oot ane e 25,947 44519 219,890
CHILET Lottt st s s e ettt bbb b 55,286 55,088 468,517
TOta] ACTEIFETl LAX fISSELS .. cviiie i vree vt vttt sttt ettt evererssa e st a1t ar bt a s dnn e eaen e ensense s 174,103 200,635 1,475,449
| Valuation allowance................. (26,260) (32,100) (222,542)
Total deferred 1ax 4ssel5 — NEL .o 147,843 168,535 1,252,907
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and CQUIPIMEITE ........coe st emese e seeseeseees et seeesnte e 30,871 52,586 261,619
INVESLITLEINL SCCUIIEIOS ... .eo e et ieeeeeeemeeeemee et s o beessassstttsetsssaaan smessemteesneesemmssansenesearsannnrens 20,154 25,882 170,797
Undistributed earnings ... ..o st eeee s eeeeee e eman s FETUTTRTOTRN 2,547 11,712 21,685
| [nvestment in affiliated COMPENIES .vov it er e 15,828 13,676 134,135
| BIET ettt ettt st e e e sas s ee e preea b rene et b seaes 16,259 9,766 137,788
Total deferred tax liabilities ... 85,6569 183,622 725,924
Net deferred tix assets ... ¥ 62,184 ¥ 54,914 $ 526,983

The net changes in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets were ¥5,840 million ($49,492 thousand) and ¥625 million of deereases for the years
etvled March 31, 2007 and 2005, respectively,
Al March 231, 2007, certain subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards amounting to ¥69,805 million ($541,568 thousand), subject to expiration as

follows:
Thousands of
Years ending March 31 Millions of yen 1.5, dollars
¥ 8,041 $ 68,144
8,023 67,991
7,629 64,653
10,631 90,093
. 4,623 39,178
013 AN ERETAITET o1ttt ettt err et et b s 44 b o skttt et bt e er e ee e et eaeara 70345 62,246
TETINILG PREIOU .. oo ettt et et et emte e ea et ta st s atess a5 eoe s ehressb et b emab et s emabast e et et s b semns 23,5613 199,263
No provision has been made for Japanese income taxes on the undis- million ($1,419,314 thousand) and ¥8%,588 million at March 31, 2007 and
tributed earnings of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries earned prior to 2006, respectively. The Company consicers such earnings to be permanent-
Marech 31, 1993 or on part of the undistributed eamings of the Company's ly invested. Detennination of the amount of the relaied unrecognized
foreigh subsidiaries with no distribution plan, which amocunted to ¥167 479 deferred incorne tax liability is not practicable.
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Realization of the Company’s net deferred tax assets is dependent on
the Company generating sufficient taxable incorne or the Cempany execut-
ing certain available tax strategies, Although realization is not assured, man-

13. Shareholders’ Equity

The new Corporation Law of Japan (the “Law™), which superseded most of
the provisions of the Commercial Code of Japan, went into effect on May 1,
2008. The Law provides that an amount equal to 10% of the amount to be
distributed as distributions of capital surplus (other than the capital
reserve) and retained earnings (other than the legal reserve} be transferred
to the capital reserve and the legal reserve, respectively, unitil the sum of the
capital reserve and the legal reserve cquals 25% of the comumon stock
account. The amount of retained earnings available for the distributions
under the Law is based on the amount recorded on the Company’s books

14. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

agement believes it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets

will be realized.

maintained in accordance with Japanese accounting practices. The adjust-
ments to conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States, included in the accompanying consclidated financial statements but
not recorded on the books, as explained in Note 1, have no cffect on the
determination of retained earnings available for the distributions under the
Law, Such distributions can be made at any time by resolution of the share-
holders, or by the Board of Directors il certain conditions are met. The
retained earnings available for distributions amonunted to ¥95.881 million
(8812551 thousand) at March 31, 2007.

The amount of income tax expense or benefit allocated to each component of other comprehensive incame (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006

and 2005 was as follows:

Millions of yen

Before-lax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax

amount or benefit. amount
2007

Unrealized losses on invesiment securities arising during period ... ¥ (2,974) ¥ 1,891 ¥ (1,083)
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net iNcome ... e (8,552) 3,499 (5,053)
NEE UNFRANZEU JOSEES .ot ettt ee e e e e e s s sabbetr s re e (11,526) 5,390 (6,136)
Currency translation adjustments arising during period............c.oooi, 12,662 (1,600) 11,062
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net income ........oooovveeviiiniii e 3,462 (621) 2841
Nel currency translation adjuStIents .. ....o.ooor oot e e 16,124 (2,221} 13,903
Unrealized losses on derivatives arising during the period..........cccoooiii e (9,431) 2,772 (6,659)
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net income ..., 3,410 (1,045) 2,365
Net unrealized 108868 0N AeEIVALIVES....c.viiviiieiir st eee s areeasaaeseneeeeeamas (6,021) 1,727 (4,294)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ... e (1,447) 613 (834)
Other coOMPreReNSIVE TGO ...ttt eee e ¥ (2,870) ¥ 5,509 ¥ 2,639

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Before-tax Tax (expense) Net-of tax

amount or benefit amount
2007

Unrealized losses on investment securities arising during period ... en. $ (25,203) $ 16,025 $ (9,178)
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in netl income ... (72,475) 29,653 (42,822)
INEEL UIPEANZEA J0SSES ..o-vornvronsreersaesossessseessesssesssosssssesssenssassesseessessesseeesoeseoees e seeneee (97,678) 45,678 (52,000)
Currency translation adjustments arising during period.........co..ccviivivninneininnn 107,305 {13,659} 93,746
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net income ... 29,339 (5,263) 24,076
Net currency franslabion adjustimentS ..o 136,644 (18,822) 117,822
Unrealized losses on derivatives arising during the period...........cocoooe e (79,924) 23,492 (56,432)
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net iIncome ... 28,898 (8,856) 20,042
Net unrealized 1osses on derivALIVES..........ocooiii et (51,026) 14,636 (36,390)
Minimum pension lability adjRstMCNt ... s (12,263) 5,195 (7,068)
Other cOMPreneNSIVE IMCOTIIC .....ooeioeceee ettt e ae e et ee e et erin $ (24,323) $ 46,687 $§ 22,364
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Millions of yon

Before-tax Tax {expense) Net-of-tax
amount or benefit amount
2006
Unrealized gains on investment securities arising during period ......occoocneiiniiee e, ¥110,740 ¥(44,447) ¥66,293
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in et iCOME ..o necieieieas (6,652) 2,733 (3,919
Net unrealized gains 104,088 (41,714) 62,374
Currency translation adjustments arising during period. ... 36,706 (2,874) 33,832
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net income ...........ocoeee e 2,630 (326) 2,304
Net currency translation adjustments ..., 39,336 (3,200) 36,136
Unrealized gains on derivatives arising during the period ..o, 5,603 {2,220) 3,383
Less: Reclassification adjustments ineluded In net ineeme ... (6,062) 2,107 (3,945)
Net unrealized losses on derivatives (449) (113) (562)
Minitmum pension liability adjustment ... e {1,541) 471 (1,070)
Other comprehensive COIME ettt seesemseas ¥141,434 ¥(44,556) ¥96,878
Millions of yen
Before-tax Tax (expense) Net-ol-tax
amount or benefil amount
2005
Unrealized gains on investment securities arising during period .........ccccoccveevevieenne ¥ 42,562 ¥(14,247) ¥ 28,315
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net income ............ccoooveeeevieciie v (28,082) 11,501 (16,581}
Net unrealized GAINS ..ot 14,480 (2,746) 11,734
Currency translation adjustments arising during period...........cocooooeieicvecn s (2,531 (1,764) (4,295)
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in Nt iNCOIE ..., 2,993 (367) 2,636
Net currency translation adjustmEnts ........cocovvriiie e 462 (2,121) (1,669)
Unrealized gains on derivatives arising during the pertod ..o 10,512 (4,081) 6,431
Less: Reclassification adjustments included in net income ... (4,330) 1,758 (2,572)
Net unrealized gaing 0N eFIVALIVES . .o..c...ooooeie et 6,182 (2,323) 3,859
Minimum pension liability acdustment ... 55 20 (135)
Other comprehensive ICOME ..o e e ¥21,069 ¥ (7,170) Y 13,899
The accumulated balance of each component of accumulated other cotnprehensive losses at March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:
Milliens of ven
Unrealized Minimum Accumulated
gains (losses) Currency Unrealized pension Pension other
on investment translation losses on fiability Lability comprehensive
securities adjustments derivatives adjustment adjustment losses
Balance at March 31,2004 .._.............. ¥ 34927 ¥ (87,927) ¥ (5,413) ¥ (612) ¥ — ¥ {59,025)
Change in the period ... 11,734 (1,659) 3,859 (35) — 13,899
Balance at March 31,2005 ... 46,661 (89,586) (1,654) (647) — (45,126)
Change in the period .....ocoevieiiinenn 62,374 36,136 (562) (1,0670) — 96,878
Balance at March 31, 2006 ........c.c.o..... 109,035 (53,450) (2,116) (1,717) — 51,752
Change in the pericd e, (6,136) 13,903 (4,294) (834) — 2,639
Adjustment o initially apply SFAS 158, — —_ — 2,551 (27,603) (25,052)
Balance at March 31, 2007 ... ¥102,899 ¥(39,547) ¥(6,410) ¥ — ¥(27,603) ¥ 29,339
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Unrealized Minimurin Accumnulated
gains (losses) Curreney Unrealized pension Pension other
on investment translation losses on liability liability comprehensive
securities adjustments derivatives adjustment adjustment losses
Balance at March 31, 2006 ..., $924,025 $(452,966) $(17,932) $(14,551) $ — $ 438,576
Change in the period ..., (52,000) 117,822 (36,390) (7,068) — 22,364
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS 158... — — — 21,619 (233,924) (212,305)
Balance at March 31, 2007 ................... $872,025 $(335,144) $(54,322) $ — $(233,924)  $ 248,635
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15. Earnings per Share of Common Stock

The computation of basic earnings per share of comrmon stock is based on

the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during

the year. The computation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
weighted average number of shares of commeon stock outstanding plus any
potentially dilutive securities.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and dihned

earnings per share:

Thousands of

Millions of yen 1.5, dollars
2007 2006 2005 2007
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations...........coc.vivvce e ¥119,349 ¥ 80,165 ¥ 44 097 $1,011,432
Loss from discontinued operations (after income Lax effect) ... — (6,364) (2,850) —
INEL IICOTIIE (et e et e eaee e 119,349 73,801 41,247 1,011,432
Less: Preferred stack dividends...........ccooooooeviiieiiciice e (605) (1,510) (1,5610) (5,127)
Net income available to comman shareholders
(nurerator for basic earnings per share):
[neome from Continuing operationS.. ... .o e 118,744 78,655 42 K87 1,006,305
Loss from discontinued operations (after income tax effect) .. — (6,364) (2,850) —_
AT IICOTII oo 118,744 72,291 39,737 1,006,305
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible deDENTUIES ... — 168 323 —
Preferred StOCK ..o 605 1,510 1,510 5,127
Numerator for diluted earnings per share:
[ncome from continuing operations.............coooeveeevveeiereceviienene 119,349 80,333 44 420 1,011,432
Loss from discontinued operations (after income tax effect) .. — (6,364) (2,850) —
NELINCOIME .t s ¥119,349 ¥ 73,869 ¥41 570 $1,011,432
Dencminator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share —
weighted average shares ... 1,639,894,708 1,495,360,142 1,493,231,438
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible debenTires o — 117,229,592 119,666,048
Preferred SLOCK ..ot 93,675,076 215,714,286 260,000,000
Denominator for diluted carnings per share —
adjusted weighted-average shares and assumed conversions....... 1,733,569,784 1,828,304,020 1,862,897 486
Yen 11.5. dollars
Earnings per share of commen stock:
Basic:
[ncome from continuing operations. ... nnicen v icnns ¥72.41 Y562.60 ¥28.52 $0.61
Loss from discontinued operations (after income tax effect) .. — (4.26) (1.91) —
NEL ICOME .. eeeieee ettt s emee e ¥72.41 ¥48.34 ¥26.61 $0.61
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations...........ccocoeeveeeevieeccee e ¥68.85 ¥43.94 ¥23.84 $0.58
Loss from discontinued operations (after income tax effect) .. — (3.48) (1.53) —
NEL INCOIMIE ..ottt ¥68.85 ¥40.46 ¥22.31 $0.58

Dividends of Class I preferred stocks are deducted from net income for net income available to common shareholders for the yvears ended March 31, 2007,

2006 and 2005.

The convertible debeniures issued in 1996 with a rate of 0.85% were dilutive for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, and the class [ preferred stock
issued in 2003 was dilutive for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
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16. Segment Information

The Company's operating segmerits by which management evaluates per-
formance and allccates rescurces are classified in terms of the nature of the
products and services or areas. The segments, by product and service, are
managed by the clivisions of the Head Office. Overseas corporate sub-
sidiaries and branches operate in the respective areas and are an independ-
ent operating unit. Each reportable segment purchases, distributes and mar-
kets a wide variety of industrial and consumer goods including raw materials
and equipment relating to a multitude of industries and, in addition, pro-
vides the related financing, insurance and other services to these operations
primarily on a worldwide basis. The Cormpany has 13 segments identified by
product and service, in addition to its overseas corporate subsidiaries and

branches. These segments are cutlined as follows:

Agri-marine prodacts

This group produces, sells and distributes food and food products of all
kircls, such as agricultural and seafood products, livestock, processed food
and beverages and their ingredients, foodstuffs for commercial use, livestock
feed, fodder grain, soybeans, wheat and sugar on a worldwide basis.

Textile

This group has an integrated value chain covering upstream through down-
stream areas, purchases and produces raw materials for apparel and designs
and sells apparel and living products in addition to rendering distribution
scrvices on a worldwide basis.

Fovest products und general merchandise

Besides selling rubber products, footwear and housing and construction
materials, the group manufactures and selis paper resources, paper and
paperboard, and takes part in afferestation projects both domestically and
internationally.

Chewicals

This group handles a wicde variety of goods ranging from petrochemical feed-
stocks to electronic materials and agricultural chemicals both demestically
and internationally. The group is especially focusing on East Asia including
China as a primary market and conducting business with well-balanced
investments and trades. In the petrochemical area, the group is alsc focusing
on the Middle East and South Asia,

Energy

This group focuses on products related to energy, such as crude il and gas.
It alse enters inte various businesses which benefit [rom the exploration of
energy resources, such as retail gas stations.

Metals & nilneral resources

This group produces, processes and sells non-ferrous metals both domesti-
cally and internationally in addition to developing and selling metals and
mineral reseurces, including non-ferrous metals and raw materials for stecl

production internationally.

Trunsportation & industrial machinery

This group focuses on domestic and international trade (export, import,
wholesale and retail) in aerospace and defense systems, automotive, con-
struction and agricultizral machinery and other transportation related
machinery as well as automobile and paper and pulp manufacturing machin-
ery, allernative energy facililies and other production machinery: and relat-
ed services such as loans and investments, trade finance, leasing and cver-
seas business support services,
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Power projects

This group develops, invests in and operates various power projects, espe-
cially power generation {including desalinization, co-generalion prejects and
wind power projects), while undertaking the procurement and installation of
generators, power distribution grids, electrical substations and loans and
investments in the alternate energy fields. The group also exports, trades
offshore, and invests in communications, broadcasting and inforrmation sys-

tems in the telecommunications field.

Plant, ship & infrastructure projocts

This group deals with equipment procurement and construction of oil, gas,
chemical environmental, steel and other industrial plants and infrastructure
development such as railway/airport, potable water treatment and waste-
water treatment; and origination and management of projects in domestic
and overseas markets. Also included in the division are the trading leasing
and charter of various types of cargo vessels ardd tankers.

Information & communication

This group foruses on export/import. and domestic sates of personal comput-
ers and related products, IT related businesses including IP network infra-
structure businesses, ASP/ISP businesses, cell phone related businesses,
computer systems development, IT solution businesses, cable TV, CS and
other broadcasting businesses and IC 1ag/RFID business.

Pevelopment & constriuction

This group develops and sells condominiums, rents and leases commercial
property, invests in and manages private real estate funds and investment
trusts in Japan and also develops housing and residence outside of Japan.

Finance, logistics & new business

This group invests in and manages investment funds and trades financial
products. It also operates a forwarding business and renders logistics-relat-
ed consultations. In addition, this group acts as an agent in the insurance
business. This group also sells medieal machinery for medical facilities and
invests in bio-technology and other new businesses.

Tron & stecl strategies and coordination

This group produces, processes and sells substantially all steel products
such as steel sheats, steel pipes and special steel and also provides value-
added sohution services related to this industry through its affiliated compa-
nies such as Marubeni-Itochu Steel [ne., operating dormnestically and interna-
tionally.

Ouwerseas covporate subsidiaries and ranches
Overseas corporate subsidiaries and branches are located throughout the
world, primarily in North America and Europe, and handle various merchan-

dise and perform relates] activities.




The Companies’ operating segment. information for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was as foliows:

Millions of yen

Forest preducts Metals & Transportation
Agri-marine & general mineral & industrial Power
Year ended March 31, 2007 products Textile merchandise Chemicals Energy resources machinery projects
Total volume of trading transactions:
Outsice CUSTOTIETS ..ovvviv e iiiiaeiins ¥1,046,829 ¥373,349 ¥825,897 ¥817,886 ¥2417,032 ¥933.143 ¥607,249 ¥272,751
Inter-segment .... 22,060 2,707 43,428 39,105 3,900 60,194 66,602 151
Total . ¥1,068,859 ¥376,056 ¥869,325 ¥856,991 ¥2,420,932 ¥993,337  ¥673,851 ¥272,902
Gross trading profib ... ¥ 72406 ¥ 24,760 ¥ 54,211 ¥ 30,043 ¥ 85490 ¥ 18,216 ¥ 55,545 ¥ 27,610
Equity in earnings (losses) .... ¥ 2,296 ¥ (2302) ¥ 1,128 ¥ (167) ¥ 779 ¥ 16478 ¥ 3,166 ¥ 3913
Segraent net income (l0s8) ......ccoccoeee. ¥ 10055 ¥ (2,424) Y 9588 ¥ 1417 ¥ 31,618 ¥ 249833 ¥ 9984 ¥ 6,353
Segment assets ..oooiceeieeceeee e ¥ 549,217 ¥131,757 ¥538,417  ¥201,728 ¥ 688,630  ¥279,991 ¥310,352 ¥391,009
Depreciation and amortization ._......_.... ¥ 5556 ¥ 0966 Y 9115 ¥ 484 ¥ 53,118 ¥ 3,832 ¥ 2660 ¥ 9,108
Expenditures for segment assels ......... ¥ 6,738 ¥ 140 ¥ 3,064 ¥ 693 ¥ 25942 ¥ 2104 ¥ 4,564 ¥ 2,409
Millions of yen
Overseas
Plant, ship & Finance, Tron & steel corpotate
inftastructure  Information &  Development &  logistics & strategies and  subsidiaries and  Corporate and
Year ended March 31, 2007 projects communication construction  new business coordination branches elimination Consolidated
Total volume of trading transactions:
Outside CUSIOMETS .o ¥677,979 ¥222,349 ¥167,202 ¥39,704 ¥ 783 ¥ 985444 ¥ 167,346 ¥9,554,943
Inter-segment. ..o rneervnnne G40 3,159 469 6,142 28 345,052 (593,637) —
Total o ¥678,619 ¥225,608 ¥167,671 ¥ 45846 ¥ 811 ¥1,330,496 ¥(426,291) ¥9,554,943
Gross trading profit ... ¥ 17,706 ¥ 28,067 ¥ 31,472 ¥ 9902 ¥ 811 ¥ 84,172 ¥ (9,230) ¥ 531,171
Equity in earnings {losses) ...o.oooeeee. ¥ 982 ¥ (411) ¥ 515 ¥ 692 ¥ 17776 ¥ 37 ¥ (1) ¥ 44,880
Segment nel income (lo58) ... ¥ 1,694 ¥ 2453 ¥ 3,189 ¥ 4612 ¥ 14913 ¥ 6,773 ¥ (5809) ¥ 119,349
Segment asSe1S ..o ¥342,779 ¥116,524 ¥265,617  ¥118,501 ¥101,606 ¥ 413,443 ¥ 423,733 ¥4,873,304
Depreciation atul amortization ............. ¥ 1,812 ¥ 3549 ¥ 1,863 ¥ 323 ¥ — ¥ 4334 ¥ 4425 ¥ 101,145
Expenditures for segment assets ... ¥ 765 ¥ 3336 ¥ 4294 ¥ 31 ¥ —-— ¥ 12379 ¥ (185) ¥ 66,274
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Forest products Metals & Transponiation
Agri-marine & general mineral & industrial Power
Year ended March 31, 2007 products Textile merchandise Chemicals Energy Tesources machinery projects
Total volume of trading transactions:
Outside customers..........ccco......... $8,871,432  §3,163,975  §6,999,127 $6,931,237 $20,483,322 $7,907,992 $5,146,178 $2,311,449
[NIer-SegIment . ..o, 186,949 22,540 368,034 331,399 33,051 510,118 564,424 1,280
Total.....cocoieirriviriiven,. . $9,058,380  $3,186,915  $7.367,161  $7,262,636 $20,516,373 $8,418,110 $5,710,602 $2,312,729
Gross trading profit .......ccccovvvive. § 613,610 $ 209,831 § 459,415 $ 254,602 § 724,492 § 154,373 § 470,720 $§ 233,983
Equity in earnings (losses) .................. $§ 19458 § (19508) § 9559 § (1,415)% 6,602 § 139644 § 26,831 § 33,161
Segment net income (1088} ....coeienee. $ 85,212 § (20542) 8 81,254 $ 12,008 $ 267949 $§ 211,297 § 84,610 $ 53,839
Segment ASSCLS ..o e $4,654,381 81,116,585 84,562,856 $1,709,559 § 5,835,847 $2,372,805 $2,630,102 $3,313,636
Depreciation and amortization ............. $ 47,085 § 8,186 § 77,246 § 4,102 $ 450,153 $ 32475 § 22,542 §$ 77,186
Expenditures for segment assets ... § 57,102 § 1,08 $ 25966 $ 5873 % 219847 § 17,831 $§ 38678 § 20415
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Orverseas
Plant, ship & Finance, [ron & steel corporale
infrastniclure Information & Development &  logistics & strategiesand  subsidiariesand  Corporate and
Year ended March 31, 2007 projects commuunication  construction  new business coordination branches eliminaiion Consolidated
Total volume of trading transactions:
Outside custoners.......occeveveeenen... . $5,745,585  $1,884,314 $1,416966 § 336,475 & 6,636 $ 8,351,220 $ 1,418,185 $80,974,093
[nter-segraent ..o 5,423 26,771 3,975 52,050 237 2,924,170 (5,030,821} —_—
Total..cooooovviirircinn.. . 85,751,008 $1,911,085 $1,420,941 § 388,525 $ 6,873 $11,275,390 ${3,612,636) $80,974,093
Gross trading profit. ... $ 150,051 $ 237771 § 266,712 $ 83915 $ 6873 § 713322 § (78,221) § 4,501,449
Equity in earnings (losses) ... $ 8322 § (3,483) ¢ 4,364 § 5,864 $150,636 $ 313 $ (9§ 380,339
Segment net income (loss) .. $ 14,356 § 20,788 § 27,025 5§ 39,085 $126,381 § 57,398 § (49,228) § 1,011,432
Segment assets e $2904,907 $ 987492 $2,250,992 $1,004,246 $861,067 § 3,503,754 $§ 3,590,957 $41,299,186
Depreciation and amortization ... $ 15356 $§ 30,076 $ 15788 § 2737 § — $ 367298 37500 $ 857,161
Expenditures for segment assets ... $§ 6483 $ 28271 § 36390 § 263 § — $ 104,907 % (1,568) § 561,644

MARURBENI CORPORATION 2007 123



Millions of yen

Forest products Metals & Transportation
Agri-marine & general rineral & industrial Power
Year ended March 31, 2006 products Textile merchandise Chemicals Energy resources machinery projects
Total volume of trading transactions:
Outside customers ¥968,325 ¥354,370 ¥i73,076 Y746,345 ¥2,188478 ¥686,579  ¥532,950 Y246,525
Inter-segment ...........ccccoenicnine 22485 3,817 35,133 35,671 3,194 45412 64,516 639
Total...eee e ¥990,810 ¥358,187 ¥808,209 Y782,016 ¥2,191,672 ¥731,991 ¥697 466 Y247,164
Gross trading profit ... ¥ 69,323 ¥ 26,3668 ¥ 48,109 ¥ 20606 ¥ T1478 ¥ 24,392 ¥ 58,129 ¥ 24,080
Equity in earnings {losses) ......coeeeeee. ¥ M ¥ (1,874 ¥ (@6) ¥ (322) ¥ 722 ¥ 7,610 ¥ 2297 Y 2,343
Segment net income (Joss) .. ¥ 5700 ¥ {10622} ¥ 359 ¥ 3,738 ¥ 26654 ¥ 16,137 ¥ 7509 Y 5,786
Segment A556LS v ¥433,782 ¥130,401 Y519,785 ¥181,919 ¥ 603,758 ¥265,141 ¥289,9306 ¥405,386
Depreciation and amortization ... ¥ 6,382 ¥ 320 ¥ 47362 Y 103 ¥ 23417 ¥ 4368 ¥ 1245 Y 8,71
Expenditures for segment, asscts ......... ¥ 5,666 ¥ 120 ¥ 25/77 ¥ H4D ¥ 166312 ¥ 2848 ¥ 1280 ¥y o217
Millions of yen
{(verseas
Plant, ship & Finance, Iron & stee) corporate
infrastructure  !nformation &  Developmerd &  logistics & strategies and  subsidiaries and  Corporate and
Year ended March 31, 2006 projects commuunication  construction  new business cootdination branches elimiration Consolidated *
Total volume of trading transactions:
Outside customers. ..........oooveeeee ¥710,284 ¥226,778 ¥Y162.838 ¥18,667 ¥ 869 ¥ 834944 ¥ 135504 ¥8,686,532
Inter-segment ........cooeeeinicniennes 1,548 2417 447 7,101 33 313,875 (536,288) —_
TOWL v v ¥711,832 ¥229,195 ¥163,285 ¥25,768 ¥ 902 ¥1,148819 ¥(400,784) ¥8,686,532
Gross trading profit ¥ 16,835 ¥ 27,020 ¥ 27,643 Y 7,064 ¥ 902 ¥ 79934 ¥ (§856) ¥ 502,024
Equity in earnings (losses} ................. ¥ 2343 ¥ (282) ¥ 609 ¥ 871 ¥17,761 ¥ 603 ¥ (654) ¥ 31,602
Segment net income (1o88) .oeere e ¥ 2554 ¥ 365 ¥ L1119 Y 3,971 ¥17,040 ¥ 4012 ¥ (19,701) ¥ 73,801
SEEMENL ASSCLS oevoveeeeeeecei e e ¥274,510 ¥115575 ¥Y299,669 ¥97,031 ¥86,07T5 ¥ 449213 ¥ 434,831 ¥4,587,072
Depreciation and amortization ............. ¥ L7 ¥ 4258 ¥ 2022 ¥ 250 ¥ — ¥ 13027 ¥ 1434 Y 72,684
Expenditures for segment asscts ......... ¥ 347 ¥ 2,705 ¥ 3,867 ¥ a0 ¥ — ¥ 21611 ¥ 28%1 ¥ 211,037
Millions of yen
Farest products Metals & Transportalion
Agri-marine & general mineral & industrial Power
Year ended March 31, 2005 products Textile merchandise Cherdeals Energy Tesources machinery projects
Total volume of trading transactions:
Ouiside customers.........coccoeeeeeee. ¥961,434 ¥352,004 ¥752,003 ¥6:38,762 ¥, 772,710 ¥o79,913 ¥624,611 ¥138,228
Inter-segment ... 18,421 3,217 40,284 28,721 1,241 29,361 46,626 418
Total .o ¥979,855 ¥365,311 Y792,.377 ¥667,473  ¥1,773,951 ¥609,274  ¥6T1,237 ¥138,646
Gross trading profit ..o Y 71,312 ¥ 25,174 ¥ 46,612 Y 26,857 ¥ 42)132 ¥ 15,709 ¥ 54,128 Y 20,30
Equity in earnings (losses) ................... ¥ 093 ¥ (3 Y L140 ¥ 16891 ¥ 656 ¥ 5645 ¥ 1,789 Y 3,813
Segment net income (108s) .o.vovreeeeenne. ¥ 1,169 ¥ Z2,6t2 Y 7,520 ¥ 4513 ¥ 15888 ¥ 9813 ¥ 6,674 Y 3,280
SeZIMENL ASSCLS vivee e ¥398.517 ¥119.807 ¥317,678  ¥YI67,157 ¥ 390,939 ¥195,110  ¥274,530 ¥375,641
Depreciation and amortization .... ¥ 6006 ¥ 216 ¥ 4250 ¥ 1087 ¥ 8716 ¥ 3367 ¥ 2836 ¥ 9,119
Expenditures for segment assets ......... ¥ 6428 ¥ 253 ¥ 2514 Y 812 ¥ 9281 ¥ 8624 ¥ 1582 Y 9,870
Millions of yen
Overseas
Plant, ship & Finance, Tron & steel corporate
infrastructure  [nformation & Development & logistics & strategies and  subsidiaries and  Corporate and
Year ended March 31, 2005 projects communnicalion  construction  new business coordination branches elimination Consolidated
Total volume of trading transactions:
Outside CUSLOMCTS. .o ¥741,632 ¥266,461 ¥196,330 Y 16,951 ¥ 1,162 ¥ 768,864 ¥ 125233 ¥7,0306,048
INLET-8CEMENL (v 1,224 2,966 514 4,362 35 301,348 (478,738} —
Tolal .o ¥742,756 ¥269,427 ¥196,844 Y 21313 ¥ 1,187 ¥1070212 ¥(353,515) ¥7,930,.348
Gross trading profit ..o, ¥ 17,318 ¥ 24512 Y 27530 ¥ 5,785 ¥ 1,187 ¥ 76517 ¥ (21,769) ¥ 433,395
Equity in earnings (losses) ... ¥ (632) ¥ @) ¥ 319 ¥ 751 ¥11,774 ¥ 829 ¥ (3,004) ¥ 25,727
Segment net income (1088) ..o vreceee. ¥(12,980) ¥(14,643) ¥(11362) ¥ 4,047 ¥11,534 ¥ 6,187 ¥ 6995 Y 41,247
Segment a8SeL8 oo oo ¥374,014 ¥138,740 ¥317,692 ¥128,760 ¥64,368 ¥ 435506 ¥ 509,578 ¥4,208,037
Depreciation and amortization ............ ¥ 1,957 ¥ 4,616 Y 2274 Y 260 ¥ — ¥ 9462 ¥ 10,192 Y 64,358
Expenditures for segment assets ......... ¥ 2,149 ¥ 3,885 Y 874 ¥ 28 ¥ — ¥ 185827 ¥ 497 ¥ 65,324
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The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The accounting policies
of the reportable segments were previously the accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in Japan, and the differences in accounting principles general-
ly accepted in Japan and the United States were included in Corporate and
elimination. The effects of this change in segment net incorme are: an
increase of ¥653 million ($5,534 thousand) in Agri-marine products, an
increase of Y827 millien ($7,008 thousand) in Textile, a decrease of ¥91 mil-
lion ($771 thousand) in Forest products & general merchandise, an increase
of ¥213 millien (51,805 thousand) in Chemicals, an increase of ¥30 million
($254 thousand) in Energy, a decrcase of ¥149 million ($1,263 thousand) in
Metals & mineral resources, a decrease of ¥616 million ($5,220 thousand) in
Transportation & industrial machinery, an increase of ¥597 million ($5,059
thousand) in Power projects, a decrease of ¥326 million ($2,763 thousand)
in Plant, ship & infrastructure projects, an increase of ¥872 million ($7,3%0
thousand) in Information & communication, a decrease of ¥232 million
{$1,966 thousand) in Development. & construction, a decrease of ¥1,417 mil-
lion ($12,008 thousand) in [ron & steel strategies and coordination and a

decrease of ¥173 million {$1,466 thousand) in Overseas corporate sub-

sicliaries and branches.

The total volumes of trading transactions are voluntarily disclosed
hased on the practice of the Japanese trading corpanies for the Japanese
investors' convenience.

Intersegment. Lransactions are generally priced in accordance with the
prevailing market prices.

Effective April 1, 2006, Transportation machinery segment, Industrial
machinery & information business segment and Plant, power & infrastruc-
ture projects segment were reorganized into the Transportation & industrial
machinery segment, Power projects seginent, lant, ship & infrastructure
projects segment and Information & corununication segment. In addition,
the Domestic branches and offices segment, which had previously been pre-
sented separately, is included in Corporaie and climination due to immateri-
ality for the year ended March 31, 2007. Segment information for the years
ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 has been restated to corform to those
changes.

Revenues from external customers by country for the years ended
March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.8. dollars
Country 2006 2005 2007
L= 0721 OSSPSR ¥2,626,596 ¥2,228,200 ¥2,232,674 $22,259,288
UUNITEA STHLES 11veitiiir ettt e een s 537,805 462,159 404,195 4,657,669
United Kingadorm. ... 156,003 120,961 104,993 1,322,059
OLNET it e bbb s e e 338,451 328,525 293,701 2,868,230
2] 21 ORI ¥3,658,855 ¥3,139,845 ¥3,035,563 $31,007,246

Revenues from external customers are attributed (o couniries hasaed on the location of operations.

Long-lived assets, including property leased to others, by country as of March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dolars

Country 2006 2007
JADAI i bt en s ¥414,861 ¥ 451,139 $3.515,771
LB SN cTa ) o <Y RR TR P T U UUTRVUNUTTUURUTON 198,425 279,897 1,681,568
L1 e LT T OO OSSOSO 155,069 159,324 1,314,144
L0141 O U P OO PO U UPUOTTUPUROP 220,866 211,621 1,871,746
B 11 U S U U OO ¥989,221 ¥1,101,881 $8,383,229
Revenues from external customers by product. for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
Thousanels of
Millions of yen U.8. dollars
Product 2006 2005 2007
MACRITIETY (oot sb e e s nra e ¥ 539,595 ¥ 538,625 Y 536,028 $ 4,572,839
O T2 14 TSSOSO 231,739 88,831 48,842 1,963,890
IMELALS o e be e 488,015 27,631 299,195 4,135,720
CREIMICALS .ttt 772,032 668,266 696,714 6,542,644
Faorest products and general merchandise ... 422,241 381,176 331,386 3,578,314
AZri-marine produilehs ..o 737,968 681,071 662,389 6,253,966
TRETIE e ettt ettt et e eee e 326,581 322,662 314,568 2,767,636
Development and CONSITUCTION. .. ....c..covv i 140,684 131,483 146,441 1,192,237
{15 7 1 USRS S ¥3,658,855 ¥3,13%,845 ¥3,035,563 $31,007,246

There is no concencration by customer.
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17. Foreign Currency Transactions

Net foreign currency transaction gains and losses included in other
ncome—net amounted to ¥4,.801 million (340,686 thousand), ¥5,358 million
and ¥2,713 million in gains for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

18. Financial Instruments

Risk management

Substantially all the derivative instrurments which the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries hold are utilized tc hecge related market risks, and gains
and losses on the derivative instruments are offset against losses and gains
on the hedged assets and liabilities. The Company and certain of its sub-
sidiaries also enter into derivative transactions for trading purposes. The
Company has internal regulations regarding positions and loss limits and the
actual positions and gains/iosses are periodically reported to management.
Although the Company and certain subsidiaries are exposed to credit risks
it the event of nonperformance by the counterpartics, such risks are mini-
mized by avoiding a concentration of counterparties, selecting counterpar-
ties with high credit ratings and maintaining strict. credit centrol.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have separate departments
which confirm each financial transaction and month-end outstanding bal-
ances ¢lirectly with the counterparties from the departments which execute
ther. In addition, the Company has as its “middle-office” a “Risk
Management Division," in its Tokyo Head Office. The Risk Management
Division independently analyzes various risks and exposures, reports the
results of the analysis, and monirors and controls financing activities com-
prehensively. Furthermore, the Risk Managernent Division obtains derivative
transaction data from Lhe' financial subsidiaries and foreign corporale sub-
sidiaries, reports to management periodically in cooperation with the related
departments, and strengthens the Company’s urified global control over
derivative transactions.

Foreign cochanye contracts

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries conduct business in various [or-
eign currencices and enter into foreign exchange contracts principally to
hedge foreign currency denominated transacticns and receivables and
payables to minimize the effect of foreign currency fluctuations. Gains and
Iosses related to the hedge ineffective portion and related to the portion of
hedging instruments excluded frotn assessment of hedge cffectiveness were
not significant for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

Intercst rate swap agreements, including inlevest rate and currency
swap agreenents

The Company and ceriain of its subsidiaries enter inte interest rate swap
agreements primarily to change the fixed interest rates on the principal of
certain debt securities, loans receivable, shori-term loans and long-term
debt to floating interest rates. Gains and losses related te the hedge ineffec-
tive portion and related to the portion of hedging instruments excluded from
assessment. of hedge effectivenass were not significant for the years ended
March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. In addition, the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries enter into interest rate swap agreements for trading purposes
on a limited basis.

Commodity futures nnd forieard cortracts

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries enter inte commodity futures
and forward contracts principally as a means of hedging the risks associated
with certain invertories, cormitments and forecasted transactions. (iains
and Insses related to the hedge ineffective portion and related to the pertion
of hedging instruments excluded from the assessment of hedge effective-
ness were not gignificant for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005.
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Net. foreign currency transaction gains and losses include translation
gains and losses resulting from remeasuring the financial statements of cer-
tain subsidiaries in highly inflationary economies into Japanese yen.

Other devivative instrunents

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries utilize options and other con-
tracts primarily to hedge the risks associated with changes in interest rates
and exchange rates. Gains and losses related to the hedge ineffective por-
tion and related to the portion of hedging instrurnents excluded from assess-
ment of hedge effectiveness were naot significant for the years ended March
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. In addition, the Company and certain of its sub-
sidiaries enter into other derivative contracts for trading purposes on a limit-
ed basis.

Faiv value of financial instruments

The estimated fair value of the financial instruments of the Companies has
been determined using available markel information or other appropriate
valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in
interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value. Consequently,
the estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that cculd be
realized or would be paid in a current market exchange.

The following methodologies and assumplions were used by the
Companies in estimating the fair value disclosures of the financiat instru-
ments:

Cash and cash equivalents, and tirne deposits: the carrying amounts of

the cash and cash equivalents, and time deposits reflected in the con-

solidated balance sheets approximate their fair value,

Investment securities, securities and other investments: the fair value of
marketable equity securities is based on quoted market prices. The car-
rying amount of the marketable equity securities reflected in the bal-
ance sheets represents their fair value. The fair value of investments in
debt sceurities is based on quoted market prices or estimated using dis-
counte¢! cash flow analyses, based on the estimatled current rates
offered Lo the issuers for securities with similar terms and remaining
maturities. It was not practicable to estimate the fair value of the invest-
ments other than marketable equity securities and debt securities with-
out incurring excessive costs. The carrying amounts of the portion of
the pertfolio for which fair value could not be estimated were ¥234,108
million ($1,983,966 thousand) and ¥256,748 million at March 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, and represents the cost of this portion of the
portfolio, which management believes is not impaired.

Non-marketable securities of ¥144,222 million ($1,222,220 thousand)
and ¥171,649 million, included in the above at March 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, included those securities that were not. evaluated for
impairment because the Company did not. identify any events or
changes in circumstances that might have had a significant adverse
elfect on the fair value of these investments, in the amounts of ¥141,499
million ($1,199,144 thousand} and ¥157,395 million at. March 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

Long-term notes, loans and accounts receivable — trade: the fair value
of long-term notes, loans and accounts receivable — trade is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses, based on the interest rates cur-

rently being offered to borrowers for similar long-term notes, loans and

accounts recejvable — trade with similar credit ratings.




Short-term loans: the carrying amount of the short-termn loans reficcted
in the accompanying consolidaied balance sheets approximates their
fair value.

Long-term debt: the fair value of long-term debt is estimated using dis-
counted cash flow analyses, based on the current borrowing rates for
borrowing arrangements with similar terms and remaining maturities.

Foreign exchange contracts: the fair value of foreign exchange con-
tracts is estimated based on the quoted market prices of comparable

contracts, adjusted where necessary for maturity differences.

Interest rate swap agreements: the fair value of interest rate swap
agreements is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, based on
the current swap rates for interest rate swap agreements with similar
terms and remaining periods.

Commedity futures and forward contracts: the fair value of commodity
futures and forward contracts is estimated based on the quoted market
prices of comparable contracts, adjusted where necessary for maturity
differences.

The carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments and the
derivative instruments at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (amounts
in parentheses represent liabilities):

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2006 2007
Carrying amount  Fair value Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Short-term investments in debt securitios ... ¥ 5797 ¥ 5,797 ¥ 6,579 ¥ 6,583 $ 49,127 §$ 45,127
Long-term investments in debt securities ... 44,592 45,126 38475 39,272 377,898 382,424
Long-term notes, loans and accounts receivable — trade
(less allowance for doubtful acCounts) .....coooiviincceiens 69,801 69,059 132,799 132,211 591,534 585,246

Long-term debt ... (2,294,622) (2,298,602)  (2,000,380) (2,104,303)  (19,445,949) (19,479,678)
Derivative mstmments — assets

Interest rate swap agreements ... 7,669 7,669 9,265 G265 64,992 64,992

Foreign exchange contracts. .. . 8,051 8,051 7,754 7,754 68,229 68,229

Commodity futures and forwurd contracts and olher ....... 43,357 43,357 26513 26,513 367,432 367,432
Derivative instruments — liabilities:

Interest Tate SWapP agreements ....o.ooevereeviorennnirerens (6,849) (6,849) (13,188) {13,188) (58,042) (58,042)

Foreign exchange CONtracts.......coooeveevcvrcocnnnirenens (557) (557 {1,258) (1,258) (4,720) (4,720)

Commaodity futures and forward contracts and other....... (51,553)  (51,555) (43,937) (43,937 (436,907) (436,907)

19. Concentration of Credit Risk

Although the Comparnies operate as a general trading business, their fields
of business comprise export, import, domestic and offshore trading in a wide
variety of industrial, agricultural and consurner products, and also involve all
levels of the production process from planning, investment, and research
and development through production, distribution and marketing. In

20). Leases

Lessor:

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries lease trailers, power stations,
vessels and certain other assets, some of which are classified as direct
finaneing leases. Net invesiments included in Notes, loans and accounts

addition, the Companies operate in substantially al! geographic areas of the
world, and their customers are diversified. Accordingly, management of the
Company believes there is no significant concentration of eredit risk among
its customers or in its investments. The Company requires collateral to the

extent considered necessary.

receivable — trade in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at
March 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Thousands of

Total minimurn lease payments to be recelved........viiiin e

Liess UNEarned IO .. ...ttt ee e s soe bbb an et s b n s e e s b bt e

Net investments in direct fiNANCING EASES.......occvviiiiiieiie e et

Millions of yen U.5. dolars
2006
¥19,151 ¥ 39,042 $162,297
(5,642) {12,652) (47,814)
¥13,509 ¥ 26,390 $114,483
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The total minimum lease payments to be received by year at March 31, 2007 are as follows:

Years ending March 31

Thousands of
Millions of yen 1J.5. dollars

BOT0 ettt et e

TRETEAILET . ...e ittt ettt em et et en st rere e
TOTAL 1ttt ettt et ettt e e et et et ee et ettt e s ekt e et s b A bttt btsea et et e et ent e et ene s b et are e e ane s

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries also lease power stations,
office buildings and certain other assets under operating leases. The cost
and accumulated depreciation of the leased property at March 31, 2007 and

Years ending March 31

¥ 4,095 $ 42331
4,342 36,797

......................................................... 3,250 27,542

1,850 15,678
936 8,356
5,798 31,593
¥19,151 $162,297

2006 arc shown on the accornpanying consolidated balance sheets. At March
31, 2007, the future mirdmum rentals 1o be received on non-cancelable oper-
aling leases were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.8. dollars

200D e e

2011 ..

TREPEASTEL. ... ceeeeee ettt e ettt eve v e
TOLRL .ottt ettt er e e e ra e s et e s e at ettt at e eat e eae e eaeeae e ea e nee b e e neanreebe s s enbesbents

Lessee:

The Corpany and certain of its subsidiaries lease machinery, office equip-
ment and certain other assets, some of which are classified as capiial leases.
At March 31, 2007, the cost and accumulated depreciation of the leased
property, included primarily in Property, plant and equipment in the

Years ending March 31

¥ 23,388 $ 198,203
20,369 172,619
19,020 161,186
18,050 152,966
17,429 147,703

108,492 919,425

Y206,748 $1,752,102

accompanying censolidated balance shects, are ¥22,146 million ($187,678
thousand) and ¥7,957 mitlion ($67,432 thousand), respectively.

The total future minimum lease payments under capital leases by year
together with the capital llease obligations at March 31, 2007 are as fellows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen 1.5, dollars

L4 < OO
2142 BSOSO
L) S O
1) § IO

2012 .

TOtA] MDA IEASE DAY TIIEIILS . oov ittt ee e et et ee et ete et e e et vs o1 e s b e erb e b s bt s e a bt e b eat a8 bt et et e e e e eras 17,662
Less amount representing iNLETESt .......c...cveeee i

Capital lease ohlIgation . ...

The Company arxl certain of its subsidiarics also lease communication
facilities, vessels and certain oiher assets under operating leases. Rental
expense amounted to ¥17,766 million ($150,55% thousand), ¥19,038 million
and ¥17,855 million far the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.

Years ending March 31

¥ 3,807 $ 28,025
2,602 29,051
1,945 16,453
1,473 12,483

955 8,003
7,380 62,543
149,678
(26,076)
$123,602

(3,077)
¥14 586

At March 31, 2007, the future minimur rental payments under non-
cancelable operating leases were as follows:

Thousands ol
Millions of yen U.5. dollars

2008 ..

Thereafter...

TTOLAL. oottt ettt e ettt e e s e s ae e e s e nb b et s ettt b et e iat e atert e e eR b et e eateeat et bbe e anneneberteeeeaet e ras et tas

¥12,118 $102,695
9,688 82,102
8,200 69,492
7548 63,966
6,761 57,297
23,195 196 567

¥67,510 $572,119

The future minimum rentals to be received under noncancelable subleases corresponding to the above future minimum rental payments were not signifi-

cant, al. March 31, 2007.
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21. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Companies enter into long-tern purchase contracts for certain goods
and products in energy, metal and mineral recourses and machinery indus-
tries at either fixed or variable prices. The Companies generally enter into
sales contracts for such purchase contracts with customers. At March 31,
2007, the total amount. of the long-term purchase coniracts was approxi-
mately ¥1,199,000 million (10,161,017 thousand), of which deliveries are at
various dates through 2023,

The Cornpanies had comruitments to make additional investments or
loans in aggregate aimoeunts of approximately ¥95,000 million ($805,085
thousand) at March 31, 2007,

The Companies guarantes debt of affiliated companics and third parties
in the ordinary course of business. Should the guaranteed parties fail to
make payments, the Companies would be required to make such paymenis

under these guarantees. The termn of the guarantees is basically ohe year.
The related guarantee fees are primarily received quarterly or semi-annual-
ly. The outstanding balances of guarantecs (maximum potential amount of
pavment) were ¥121,394 million (31,028,763 thousand) and ¥121,809 mil-
liory, including ¥72,478 million ($614,220 thousand) and ¥63,237 million to
affilisted companies, at March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, The amounts
secured by secondary guarantees issued for the Cornpaty by other parties
were ¥21,127 million ($179,042 thousand) and ¥21,206 million, including
¥21,025 million ($178,178 thousand) and ¥20,591 willion to affiliated com-
panies at March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The major parties who have: received the Companies’ guarantees and
the amounts of guarantees, net of the amounts secured by guaraniees issued
by other parties, at March 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Thotisands of
Guaranteed party Millions of yen 11.5. dollars
March 31, 2007:
Sakhalin Oil and Gas Development Co., LU s s s s sesseanes ¥ 24,004 $203,424
Daishowa-Marubeni INEErNAtional L. ... oo eese e e eeeesem s s ee e eessaraeetsesesbesternesneren 20,110 170,424
Taweelah Asia Power Company ... 8,713 73,839
Thai Cold Rolled Steel Sheet Public Co. LUd. et 8,047 68,195
Rabigh Arablan Water and Electricity Co. ... s nss e sroenesnene 7,693 65,195
American ITon Oxide COMUPAIY ......co..ovivee it rai s it st estas bbb sserar s s E s st s sset s e asnnrsnssess e ranscneeon 4,908 41,593
Marubeni-Itochu Steel Inc. ........... 3,757 31,839
Other...... 23,035 195,211
Total... ¥100,267 $849,720
March 31, 2006:
Daishowa-Marubeni International LUd. ... se s e s s e e nssssbaessaenee Y 20,891
Sakhalin Gil and Gas Development Co., LU oo o e e reme e e et see s enees s e sr e seme e sne 18,937
Taweelah Asia Power Company ... - 8,670
Thai Cold Rolled Stecl Sheet. Puhllc Co Lid.. 8,228
PT Indocement Tunggal Prakarsa Thk. ............ 7,694
Marubeni-TLoChLE SLEELIIIC. ..oi et et vt e e st et s e rat s st se s ot eene satem smeesmms e seneaeenine 4534
Nippon Asahan AIdninn Co., LEA. oo et et e sere s b e e 3,208
BT o1ttt et et e s ek b e b e b e eb 4o SRR e ARt e A AR o1 SRS e Reae RSt e E S ek ans et ns e et e n s 28,436
TFOLAL .ottt ettt et e e s et e s et et ee e ken b ke em et ekttt et st et es et et e nen ¥100,603

The liabilities recoguized for the guarantees were ¥1,582 million
($1:3,407 thousand) and Y1491 million at March 131, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The Company, its subsiciaries and affitiated companies conduct busi-
ness activities on a global scale and are invelved in transactions which are

subject e review and jurisdiction by a wide range of authorities, both in

Japan and abroad, Such business activities are not, without risk and, from
time to time, may involve legal actiens, claims ar other disputes. Although
there are various matlers pending at any one time, management is of the
opinion that settlement of all such matters pending a1 March 31, 2007 would
not have a material effect on the consolidated financial position or results of
operations of the Corupanies.
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22. Variable Interest Entities

The variable interest entities (*VIEs”) that have been consolidated by the
Company in accordance with the FIN No. 46, Consclidation of Variable
Inierest Entities (revised December 2003} — an interpretation of ARB No.
51 {FIN 46R) are described as follows (excluding VIEs of which the

Compunies and its conselidated subsidiaries have a majority voling interest):

The Company and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries hold subordi-
nated investment securities and other without voting rights in VIEs, of
which operations are real estate developments and fund managenent, and
consolidate them as the primary beneficiary. The total assets of the VIEs
were ¥5,076 million ($43,017 thousand) at March 31, 2007. The creditors or
beneficial interest holders of the conselidated VIEs do not have recourse to
the general credit of the Company or its consolidated subsidiarics.

The VIEs that have not been censolidated by the Company because
they are not the primary berneficiary while they held significant variable
interests are described as follows:

23. Subsequent Events

The Company and certain of its consclidated subsidiaries hold signifi-
cani variable interests in VIEs, in the form of investments or loans, of which
operations are real estate developments, funkl management and leasing. The
total assets of the VIEs were ¥237,964 million (32,016,644 thousand) and
¥18,244 million at March 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively, and the amounts
of maximur exposure to loss as a result of the involvement with the VIEs
were ¥15,944 million {$135,119 thousand) and ¥5,559 million at March 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The maximutn exposure represents the amournt
of a loss which the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries could incur
from the variability in value of the investments, and does not necessarily
mean the anticipated loss to be incurred from the involverment with the
VIEs.

On May 18, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the payment of cash dividends of ¥6.5 {$0.06) per share of coramon stock or ¥11,268 million (395,492 thou-

sand) in aggregate from the retained earnings payable on June 1, 2007.
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i’l ERNST& YOUNG & ERNST & YOUNG SHINNIHON & Tel: 0335031191

Hibiya Kokusai Bldg. Fax: 03 3503 1277
2-2-3, Uchisaiwai-cho

Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan 100-001i

C.P.O. Box 1196, Tokyo, Japan 100-8641

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Marubeni Corporation
{Marubeni Kabushiki Kaisha)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Marubeni Corporation and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended March 31, 2007, all expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to
perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principies used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. 'We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Marubeni Corporation and subsidiaries at March 31,
2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States,

We have also reviewed the translation of the consolidated financial statements mentioned above
into Uniled States dollars on the basis described in Note 1. In our opinion, such statements have
been transiated on such basis.

épmd-%m?mw

June 22, 2007
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Organization

General Meeting
of Shareholders

Board of Directors

President.

Board of Corporate Auditors

Corporate Auditor Dept.

Corporate Management

Committee

Committee of Chiefl

Operating Officers

Committee of

Executive Officers

_I Agri-Marine Products Div.

—I Textile Div.

Forest Products & General Merchandise Div.

Chemicals Div.

Energy Div.

—I Metals & Mineral Resources Div.

—I Transportation & Industrial Machinery Div.

—I Power Projects Div.

—I Plant, Ship & Infrastructure Projects Div.
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Audit Dept.

General Affairs Dept.

Human Resources Dept.
Corporate Communications Dept.

Corporate Planning & Strategy Dept.

Regional Coordination & Administration Dept.

Information Strategy Dept.
Corporate Accounting Dept.
Finance Dept.

Risk Management Dept.

— Legal Dept.

Research Institute

Osaka Planning & Administration Dept.

I Information & Communication Div.

~—I Development. & Construction Div.

—I Finance, Logistics & New Business Div.

—— Iron & Steel Strategies and Coordination Dept.

[—— Abu Dhabi Trading House Project Dept.

Hokkaido Branch
Tohoka Branch

Shizuoka Branch

—| Nagoya Branch I
—{ (saka Branch l
———-{ Kyushu Branch ’

1— Naha Branch

Nagaoka Branch
Shikoku Branch
Fukuyama Branch
Ship Imabari Office

—

| General Manager for the Americas

——I General Manager for Europe

—{ General Manager for Middle East & North Africa

—-l General Manager for ASEAN

——-{ General Manager for China

(As of April 1, 2007)




Corporate Data

Founded Major Shareholders

May 1858 Japan Trustee Services Bank, Lid. (Trust Account)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Lid. (Trust Account)

Incorporated Sompo Japan Insurance Inc.

December 1, 1949 Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co., Ltd.
Maiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company

Paid-in Capital State Street Bank and Trust Company 505103

¥262,685,064,870 Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 4)

Number of Shareholders Nippon Life Insurance Company

133,343 State Street Bank and Trust Company

Number of Shares [ssued and Qutstanding Stock Listings

1,734,916,816 Tokyo, Nagoya, Osaka

Number of Employees Transfer Agent of Common Stock

3.677 Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Lid.

(plus 1,646 overseas employees)
Home Page Address

Number of Domestic Offices* hitp://www.marubeni.com

" For Further Information, Please Contact

Number of Overseas Branches & Offices and Corporate Communications Dept., Marubeni Corporation,
Overseas Corporate Subsidiaries* 4-2, Ohtemachi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8088, Japan
53 overseas branches & offices and 23 overseas Tel: 81-3-3282-2111 Fax: 81-3-3282-4241

corporate subsidiaries with 64 offices for a E-mail: TOKB191@marubenicorp.com

total of 117 offices in 71 countries/areas
{As of March 31, 2007, except * as of April 1, 2007)

Nikkei Stock Average
35,000 (Yen)
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Marubeni’s Share Price

Marubeni’s Trading Volume
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Marubeni wins Fujairah 2 power and water project in the United Arab Emirates

Marubeni Corporation
Aug 2, 2007

Marubeni Corporation has successfully won the right to build, own and operate Fujairah 2 power and water praject
in the Emirate of Fujairah in the United Arab Emirates ("U.A.E."). The 20-year power and water purchase
agreement (“PWPA”) was officially signed with Abu Dhabi Water & Electricity Authority (*"ADWEA”) on
August 1, 2007.

Marubeni formed a consortium with International Power plc (“IPR”} for the international competitive bid solicited
by ADWEA in April 2007 and has negotiated with ADWEA since it was nominated to the 1st ranked bidder in
June 2007..

With a total project cost of USD 2.8 billon, inclusive of the costs of constructing power generation and seawater
desalination plant, it is the largest newly constructed independent water and power projects ("IWPP") in the

U.A E.. After the signing of the PWPA, a new project company will be set up with the Marubeni-IPR consortium
having a 40% stake and ADWEA retaining a 60% stake. The new project company will conclude negotiations for
loan agreements and start the construction in December 2007. Commencement of the commercial operation is
anticipated in 2010.

Some USD 2.2 billion of the total financing requirement will come from a project finance loan. Marubeni-IPR
consortium is negotiating with international commercial banks including Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
of Japan, Calyon of France and Citibank N.A. of United States of America. In addition, Japan Bank for
International Cooperation (“JBIC™) is also expected to support this project.

The project includes the construction of 2,000MW power and 130 MIGFD seawater desalination plant to be
supplied by Alstom of France and Switzerland and Societe International de Dessalement of France respectively.
All production capacity will be sold under the 20-year PWPA to the Abu Dhabi Water and Electricity Company
("ADWEC™"). Marubeni-IPR consortium will also carry out the operation and maintenance of the plant. The plant
will utitize the latest combined cycle power technology and hybrid water desalination technology which combines
multiple effect distillation system and reverse osmosis system to maximize efficiency and minimize gas
consumption and emission of CO2.

The high overall evaluation reflected not only the competitive purchase price of power and water but also
Marubeni's global I{(W)PP experience and reputation. Marubeni has successively won the right to build, own,
operate power and water projects in the Gulf Region from 2004. This project is Marubeni’s fourth large-scale I(W)
PP project in the region.

The United Arab Emirates is one of the most resource-rich countries in the world. It boasts the world's third-largest
deposits of crude cil and the world's fifth-largest deposits of natural gas, much of which is exported to Japan. It
maintains a high investment rating of Aa2 assigned by Moody's. Since the 1990s, the UAE has been actively
promoting private capital projects. Its foreign-backed power and water projects are regarded as ground-breaking
ransactions in the Middle East. A large number of similar private capital projects are expected to be launched in
this region in order to correspond to increasing demand for power and water. Marubeni will selectively pursue the
business opportunity which is supported by long term purchase agreement and reliable performance guarantee and
expand I{W)PP businesses in the region..




Marubent is expanding I(W)PP businesses not only in the Middle East but also in Asia and America. ?Marubeni’s
power assets all over the world will become 17,500MW (gross amount) 5,780MW (net amount) including this
project.

Profile of International Power plc
Based in United Kingdom

Established in April 1989

Engaged in the power generation business

Web site : http://www.ipplc.com/
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Mitsui & Co., Ltd
Marubeni Corporation
Aug 6, 2007

Marubeni Corporation (hereinafter “Marubeni™), together with, Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Mitsui”) made and
entered into an agreement with Petrgleos de Venezuela, S.A. (“PDVSA™}, a company which is involved in
Venezuelan crude oil and petroleum products transactions, to jointly purchase 2 million barrels of Venezuelan
crude oil for Japan based on the Master Offtake Agreement which was announced on February 23, 2007.

The Master Offtake Agreement was concluded between Mitsui/Marubeni and PDVSA, together with the Loan
Agreement, which is supported by Japan Bank of International Cooperatton, with an advanced loan amount of
US$3.5 billion over a period of 15 years for PDVSA. This agreement was made based on the Master Offtake
Agreement which allowed Marubeni and Mitsui to have the sole right to negotiate offtake terms for crude oil and
petroleum products. The Loan Agreement and Master Offtake Agreement will contribute to the diversification of
crude oil importers. Proceeds from the sale of Venezuelan crude oil will be appropriated to the repayment of the
loan.

The VLCC carrying the crude oil will leave the loading port in Venezuela around mid- August, and the cargo will
be delivered to Nippon Oil Corporatien, ldemitsu Kosan Co., Ltd., and Kyokuto Petroleum Industries Co., Ltd.,
which is a Mitsui subsidiary company, and others in early October. The crude oil is known as Santa Barbara, a
high-quality, light sweet crude oil which consists of high value-added light products, such as gasoline and naphtha.
Although Japan imported crude oil from Venezuela during the second oil crisis, this will be the first time for Japan
to import petroleum products based on a Master Offtake Agreement.

Venezuela is the world’s 8™ largest crude oil producer, and PDVSA is a 100% government-owned oil company

which produces 2.4 million barrels of crude oil a day. Mitsui and Marubeni will try to offtake crude oil and
petroleum products steadily from Venezuela.
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Marubeni Completes Acquisition of Mirant's Caribbean Business

Marubeni Corporation

@ RAarusivegei
| Aug 13, 2007

Marubeni Corporation (Marubeni) has completed the purchase of equity shares of Mirant Caribbean Holdings
(MCH) through its wholly owned subsidiary, Marubeni Caribbean Power Holdings, Inc. (MCPH) (Georgia, USA)
| on August 8th 2007. Marubeni was awarded the holdings in a competitive auction process held by U.S.
| independent power producer (IPP) Mirant Corporation (Mirant) and signed the definitive sale and purchase
agreement with Mirant International Investments on April 18th.

Marubeni now owns controlling interests in two integrated utilities on Grand Bahama [sland and Jamaica and a
$40 million convertible preferred equity interest in Curagao’s national utility company. It has also acquired share
interest in IPPs in Trinidad and Tobago and Curagao. Total net generating capacity on acquisition is 1,150
megawatts, which includes:

- 55% equity interest in Grand Bahama Power Company on Grand Bahama Island;

- 80% equity interest in Jamaica Public Service Company in Jamaica;

- 39% equity interest in the Power Generation Company of Trinidad and Tobago (PowerGen), an IPP that supplies
80 percent of Trinidad and Tobago’s total electricity demand;

- 25.5% equity interest in Curagao Utilities Company, which supplies electric, steam and water to PAVSA's
refinery plant on the island of Curagao and a preferred share ownership interest in Aqualectra, an integrated water
and electric company in Curagao.

Marubeni’s financial advisor in the transaction was Mizuho Corporate Bank. The total purchase price was funded
by Marubeni's own equity and debt facilities raised from the group of banks consisting of Mizuho, ING, Calyon,
ABN AMRO and National Commercial Bank Jamaica and NCB National Markets Limited. Marubeni is secking

for Japan Bank of International Cooperation (JBIC)'s cooperation for long-term take-out mezzanine finance

Marubeni is actively growing its strong global power sector asset portfolio. This transaction enables Marubeni to
expand its IPP and transmission and distribution presence through integrated utilities in the Caribbean region.
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Transfer of Shares in Uranium Mine Development and Production Company in
the Republic of Kazakhstan

Marubeni Corporation
Aug 20, 2007

On August 20, Marubeni Corporation (Marubeni) agreed to transfer to Toshiba Corporation (Toshiba) 22.5% of its
55% interest in a company engaged in the business of uranium mine development and preduction projects in the
Republic of Kazakhstan.

This project entails the development of the Kharassan uranium mine in southern Kazakhstan. Kyzylkum LLP is
developing the Kharassan-1 uranium deposit and Baiken-UJ LLP is developing the Kharassan-2 uranium deposit.
Kazakhstan’s state-owned nuclear fuel enterprise “Kazatomprom™ has invested in both companies. Marubeni, The
Tokyo Electric Power Company, Incorporated (TEPCO), Chubu Electric Power Co., Inc. (Chubu} and Tohoku
Electric Power Co., Inc. (Tohoku) (hereinafter, the COMPANIES) acquired an indirect ownership interest in
Kyzylkum LLP and Baiken-U LLP this year, (The current investment ratio among the COMPANIES is as follows:
Marubeni 55%, TEPCO 30%, Chubu 10% and Tohoku 5%.) The project is targeting the start of test production
within this year, with a projected ramp to a full annual production of approximately 5,000MTU (combined) by
around 2014. The COMPANIES have the right to obtain up to an aggregate annual quantity of 2,000MTU of the
uranium concentrate produced from the two deposits.

The COMPANIES’ ownership interest in Kyzylkum LLP and Baiken-U LLP is thought to be one step toward the
realization of the joint statement between the government of Republic of Kazakhstan and the government of Japan
on cooperation for the peaceful uses of nuclear energy, which was signed during the government-private joint
mission led by Minister Amari of the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry in April this year. Following this
joint statement, the COMPANIES and Kazatomprom signed a protocol for strategic cooperation, aiming for the
smooth operation of the project and for widespread mutual cooperation in the nuclear power tndustry.

In the spirit of the intergovernmental joint statement and the protocol for strategic cooperation between the
COMPANIES and Kazatomprom, and from the perspective of a stable and long-term project operation, Marubeni
decided to transfer 22.5% of its interest in the project to Toshiba. Marubeni will remain as the lead member of the
project even after Toshiba’s involvement as a new member, and will do its best to realize the smooth operation and
long-term stability of the project.

With the opportunity presented by this share transfer agreement, Marubeni will discuss with Toshiba not only its
cooperation in the project operation, but also a wide range of other potential collaborations in the nuclear industry.

(Post-closing investment ratio; Marubeni 32.5%, TEPCO 30%, Toshiba 22.5%, Chubu 10% and Tohoku 5%)
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Marubeni secured the Power Generation Development Right for Coal Fired
Steam Power Plant in Cirebon, Indonesia - Promotion of the 1st Large IPP
Project in Indonesia after Asian Economic Crisis -

Marubeni Corporation
Aug 20, 2007

Marubeni Corporation (“Marubeni” hereafter) successfully secured the development right to generate and supply
electricity to PT. Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero) (“PLN” hereafter) from the 660MW power plant to be
newly built, owned and operated in Cirebon area in West Java, Republic of Indonesia Power Purchase Agreement
(“PPA” hereafter) with PLN for 30 years is to be signed in Indonesia-Japan Business Forum in Jakarta on August
20, 2007 in the presence of Indonesian President Mr. S. B. Yudhoyonoe and Japanese Prime Minister Mr. S. Abe,

The outline of tender was announced in the 1st Indonesia Infrastructure Summit in 2005, which aimed to promote
foreign investment to improve the infrastructure in Indonesia, and the international competitive bidding organized
by PLN was executed in April, 2006. Marubeni joined this bid in the form of consortium with three (3) other
companies, namely with Korea Midland Power Co., Lid. (“Komipo” hereafter) of Korea, PT. Tripatra Engineers
and Constructors (“Tripatra™ hereafter) of Indonesia and Samtan Co., Ltd. (*Samtan” hereafter) of Korea. In
addition to the competitive price offered by our group, Marubeni’s rich experiences as an international
Independent Power Producer (“IPP” hereafter) and the firm relation with PLN established through Marubeni’s
plenty of supply record of power generating facilities, Komipo’s operation achievement as a one of Generation
Company in Korea, Tripatra’s work experience and business capability as an engineering firm in Indonesia and
Samtan’s ability as the coal supplier were highly evaluated and led us to be awarded to this project.

Total project cost is about US$750 Mil., which is the 1st large IPP project through international competitive
bidding in Indonesia after Asian Economic Crisis. The project company named PT. Cirebon Electric Power (“PT.
CEP” hereafter), which is the party to PPA with PLN, was established in April, 2007 and through PT. CEP,
electricity will be sold to PLN. Marubeni, Komipo, Tripatra and Samtan own 32.5%, 27.5%, 20% and 20% of PT.
CEP’s shares respectively. Finance closing is expected within one (1} year and the commercial operation will be
achieved by August, 201 1. For thirty (30) years after commercial operation, electricity will be supplied to West
Java including Jakarta, where serious shortage in electricity supply is anticipated. Approximately 70% of the
project cost will be covered by project finance, and assistance from Japan Bank for International Cooperation, The
Export-Import Bank of Korea and international commercial lenders is expected. A set of power generating
facilities including super critical boiler for coal fire will be supplied by Doosan Heavy Industries and Constrution
Co., Ltd. of Korea on a full turn key basis.

Marubeni positions overseas IPP business as its core business and is attempting to pile up its global portfolio to
reinforce its solid foundation. Marubeni keeps contributing to the development of power generating sector, which
is the basic infrastructure, all over the world.

<Karea Midland Power Co., Ltd.>
Add. : Samseong-dong, Gangnam-gu, Seoul, Korea
Representative : Mr. Chung Jang-Sup




Year of Establishment : 2001
Paid-up Capital : KRW152,950 Mil.
Business ;: Power Business

<PT. Tripatra Engineers and Constructors>
Add. : West Cilandak, South Jakarta, Indonesia
Representative : Mr. Pandri Prabono

Year of Establishment : 1988

Paid-up Capital : IDR1,200 Mil.

Business : Engineering, Construction and Trading

<Samtan Co., Ltd.>

Add. : Daechi-dong, Kangnam-gu, Seoul, Korea
Representative : Mr. Kang Tae-Whan

Year of Establishment : 1962

Paid-up Capital : KW15,300 Mil.

Business : Coal Supply

<PT. PLN>

Add. : Kebayoran Baru, Jakarta, Indonesia
Representative : Mr. Eddie Widiono

Year of Establishment : 1961

Paid-up Capital : IDR67,637,616 Mil.

Business : National Power Generating Company

<Project Site>
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Marubeni Corporation to Participate in Peru LNG Project

Marubeni Corporation
Aug 29, 2007

Marubeni Corporation (“Marubeni”) today announced that it has signed the Sales and Purchase Agreement with SK
Energy for the acquisition of 10% interest in the Peru LNG Project. The international project consortium for the
project consists of Hunt Oil Company (50%) of the United States, SK Energy (20%) of Korea, Repsol YPF (20%)
of Spain and Marubeni Corporation {10%) of JTapan.

This project, located on the west coast of Peru in the South America, has geographical advantage to supply
competitive LNG products not only to the Latin America market and U.S. West Coast market but also to Asian Far
East market as possible alternative destination, Natural gas feedstock will be supplied from Camisea gas field and
processed at LNG Plant located at Pampa Melchorita area, south of Peruvian capital Lima.

The Engineering, Procurement and Construction contract for the project was awarded to the Chicago Bridge & Iron
Company and single train LNG plant with production capacity of 4.45 million metric tons per year is currently
under construction. The LNG supply will commence in 2010 under the sale and purchase agreement with Repsol
YPF. The total project cost is estimated at approximately US$ 3.8 billion. Financing for the project is expected to
be provided by a variety of sources, including the Inter-American Development Bank, Export-Import Bank of the
United States, Export-Import Bank of Korea, SACE and IFC.

This is the third opportunity for Marubeni to take part in the promising LNG projects further than our current
participation into Qatari (7.5%) and Equatoguinean {6.5%)} LNG projects and Marubeni is the first Japanese
company to participate in the LNG projects in the area of the North, Central and South America. Along with the
existing projects participated, Marubeni will proactively pursue the opportunities for a new acquisition of LNG
projects in order to further enhance our capability of securing nawral energy resources.
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Marubeni Acquires Canadian Trailer Rental and Leasing Company, Train
Trailer Rentals, Ltd.

Marubeni America Corporation
Marubeni Corporation
Sep 5, 2007

Marubeni America Corporation (“MAC”) announced that is has acquired 100% equity
ownership of Train Trailer Rentals, Ltd. (“TTRL”), a Mississauga, Ontario based trailer rental,
leasing and service company from TTRL’s founders.

TTRL has been the leading choice of Hire Trucking and Private Motor Carrier Industry for dry
vans, refrigerated trailers and container chassis in Canada for more than 35 years, resulting from
its commitment to supplying the highest quality and most dependable equipment for either short
term rentals or long term leases. TTRL’s strategically located, full service facilities in
Mississauga, Ontario and Calgary, Alberta, enable it to provide high quality maintenance and
repairs and fast over-the-counter parts sales to its nationwide customer base.

MAC has a long history of commitment to the leasing industry in North America, and currently
owns several leasing companies including a specialty vehicle lessor and a railcar lessor.

With its acquisition of TTRL, MAC has positioned itself to become a leading provider of
leasing solutions to the cold supply chain market in Canada as it did in the U.S. with its
subsidiary there, PLM Trailer Leasing (“PLM”). PLM is the leading company in reefer
operating leasing business in U.S. MAC will enjoy the synergies derived from the increased
purchasing power and operational efficiencies between TTRL and PLM as it expands its North
American trailer leasing operations.

With its acquisition of TTRL, as well as other recent acquisitions, MAC has strengthened its
position as a leasing industry leader.

<Profile of Train Trailer Rentals, Ltd.>

Headquarters: Mississauga, Ontario, Canada

President: Mr. Chris Tolley

Number of Employees: 56

Business: Renting, leasing and servicing freight trailers and container chassis.
Annual Sales: CDN$22 Million
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Marubeni to join ECX and enter international emission trading

Marubeni Cerporation
Sep 21, 2007

Marubeni Corporation (“Marubeni”) announced today that they have joined ECX (European Climate Exchange),
the world's largest exchange for trading emissions credit, as a first Japanese company.

ECX had launched in April 2005 and its trade volume has increased dramatically in growth. In 2006, 452 million
tonnes CO2 of EUA (EU Allowance; emissions credit in EU) was traded with an underlying market value approx.
€10 bn, and more than 80 European major companies participate in ECX.

ECX will launch CER (Certified Emission Reduction; emission credit under Kyoto Protocol) contract by the end of
September and it will stimulate emission trading in EU as well as in an international degree.

Marubeni has participated in GHG?Green House Gas?emission reduction projects overseas, obtained emissions
credit from its projects and has provided these to Japanese clients. Marubeni is empowering its function and
organizatien in procurement/supply of emisstons credit so as to take measures against the diversifying needs in the
carbon market.

Marubeni also announced that it has joined IETA (International Emissions Trading Association, an NGO dedicated
to establish international emission trading market). Marubeni will be actively involved in creating the framework of
international emission trading from now onwards.
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Marubeni acquires the interest in Australian Coal Mines

Marubeni Corporation
Sep 21, 2007

Marubeni today announced that through its wholly owned subsidiary Marubeni Coal Pty. Ltd. (hereinafter called
“M-Coal”), it has completed the purchase of 1/3 shares of Queensiand Coal Mine Management Pty Ltd (hereinafter
called “QCMM™) which holds 70% interest in the Jellinbah East Coal Mine and Lake Vermont Coal Mine through
the acquisition of Ingatatus Pty Ltd. Marubeni’s commercial objective in buying the shares in QCMM (about 40
billion yen which includes the future expenditure for expansion and development) is to increase its interest in the
Jellinbah East Coal Mine by 15% to 38.33% and to increase its interest in the Lake Vermont Coal Mine by 10% to
33.33%.

Both coal mines have enormous open cut coal reserves, and are highly competitive in the operating cost and
product coal quality. Jellinbah East Coal Mine currently produces PCI coals at approximately 4.0Mtpa for the
international steel industry. Lake Verment Coal Mine is planned to achieve its first railing of product coal in the
first quarter of 2009, and will produce coking and PCI coals with low ash and low sulphur at approximately 3.0 to
4.0Mtpa.

Through the acquisition Marubeni will participate in the coal mine management more deeply and aggressively as
the major owner of Jellinbah East Coal Mine and Lake Vermont Coal Mine with a view to expanding the
production to 10Mtpa or more in the future, which will contribute to the stable coal supply for customers in Asia,
South America and other areas.

After the acquisition, Marubeni will have total equity coal production capacity of 6.0Mtpa, and will become
one of the top PCI coal trading companies

<Project Sites>
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T July 27, 2007

Summary of Consolidated Financial Results

for the 1** Quarter of FY2007
(April 1, 2007 — June 30, 2007)

*This document is an English translation of a statement written initially in Japanese.

The original in Japanese should be considered the primary version.

Disclaimer Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This document contains forward-looking statements about the performance of Marubeni and
its Group companies, based on management's assumptions in light of current information. The
following factors may therefore influence actual results.

These factors include consumer trends in Japan and in major global markets, private capital
expenditeres, currency fluctuations, notably against the U.S. dollar, material prices, and

political turmoil in certain countries and regions.

CORPORATION
(TSE Code: 8002)




July 27, 2007
Summary of Consolidated Financial Statements for 1st Quarter FY2007 (US GAAP basis

Company name : Marubeni Corporation (URL http:/fwww.marubeni.com) Code Number : 8002
Listed : Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya
Head Office: Tokyo
Representative : KATSUMATA, Nobuo  President and CEQ, Member of the Board
Enquiries : (Tokyo) Name HASHIMOTO, Takashi TEL(03)3282-4803
Title  General Manager, Media Relations Sec.

Corporate Communications Dept.

1. Consolidated financial results for 1st Quarter FY2007 (April 1, 2007 - June 30, 2007)
{1)Consolidated business results

Total valume .ﬁ { tading Operating profit Income before income taxes
transactions
{millions of yen) (%)[ (millions of yen) (%) |millions of yen) (%)
15t Quarter FY 2007 2,399.510 8.6 43,698 02 66,976 132
15t Quarter FY2006 2,209,193 12,2 43,786 6181 59.161 68.0
(Ref) FY2006 9.554.943 10.0 165.020 152 " 193815 T 457
Net income ;:?:‘f: Diluted EPS
{millions of yen) (%) (yen) {yen)
15t Quarter FY2007 44,138 26.8 2546 25.46
15t Quarter FY 2006 34,822 58.2 21.67 2017
(Ref.) FY2006 119,349 61.7 7241 685

(2) Consolidated financial conditions

Toal Assete Sharcholders Equity Shareholders' Equity Ratio Sh”"‘hp:‘i‘h’:r:"‘"”
{millions of yen)| {millicns of yen) (%) (yen)
June 30, 2007 4,896 465 788,018 16.1 454,64
June 30, 2006 4,416,067 667,331 151 368.30
(Ref.)March 31, 2007 4873304 745,454 153 T a0s

{Note} [1]These financial statements are based on US GAAP.
[2iThe results of the st Quarter are not andited by independent avditors.
[3] For Japanese investors’ convenience, Total volume of uading transactions and Operating profit are shown according to
Japanese accounting practice, Total volume of trading transactions is the sum of those in which Marubeni and its

consolidated subsidiaries ("the Companies™) act as principal and those in which the Companies act as agent,

[4]The ratio represents the changes from the same period of the previous year.

2. Forecast of consolidated financial results for FY2007(April 1,2007-March 31,2008)
Prospects of consolidated financial results for FY2007 is unchanged from that in the announcement on April 27, 2007,

3. Others

(1) Changes in major consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies accounted for by equity method : No changes
@ Adoptatien of simplified accounting method : No changes
@ Changes in accounting policy : No changes

< Notes to the description about future >

The above prospects are based upon available information and assumption, at the announcement date, about uncertain factors
which would influence upon future businesses. Actual results might be influenced by vartous factors in the future.

< Qualitative Information & Financial Statements ete, >

{D Qualitative information concerning the business results(consolidated)
Total volume of tradinp transactions for the 151 Quarter increased by 8.6% from the same period of the previous year, to 2,399.6 billion
yen mainly in Agri-Marine Products, Energy, and Overseas corporate subsidiaries & branches. Operating profit decreased by 0.2%
from the same period of the previous year, to 43.7 billion yen, due to an increase in general and administrative expenses and provision
for doubtful accounts despite an increase in gross trading profit, Income before taxes increased by 13.2% from the same period of the
previous year, to 67.0 billion yen, due to an inprovement in gain (loss} on investment securities and increase in devidends recicved. Net
income increased by 26.8% from the same pericd of the previous year, to 44.1 billion yen. due 1o an increase of Income before taxes.

(@ Qualitative information concerning the financial conditions(consolidated)
Total asscts was 4,896.5 billion yen, increased by 23.2 billion yen from the end of March 2007, mainly due to a increase in
investments,
Net interest bearing debt increased 121.2 billion yen from the end of March 2007, te 1,964.7 billion yen, due 10 an increse in
investrnents and husiness fund, Sharcholders' equity increased 42.6 billion yen from the end of March 2007, 10 788.0 billion yen
due to an increase of net income and net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities,




Marubeni Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits
Investment securities
Notes and accounts receivable - trade:
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from affiliated companies
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventories
Advance payments to suppliers
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Investments and long-term receivables:
Affiliated companies
Securities and other investments
Notes, loans and accounts receivable - trade
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Property leased to others, at cost, less accumulated
Total investments and long-term receivables

Net property and equipment
Prepaid pension cost
Deferred income taxes
Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Millions of yen
June 30 March 31

2007 2007 Variance
¥ 312,482 ¥ 414952 ¥ -102,470
20,417 20,010 407
22,448 26,693 -4,245
115,263 107,930 7333
1,033,189 1,032,790 399
76,816 85,799 -8,983
-17,601 -16,332 -1,269
435,145 420,533 14,612
219,567 214,067 5,500
44,681 43,715 966
171,491 152,435 19,056
2,433,898 2,502,592 -68,694
566,488 504,501 61,987
634,368 603,545 30,823
118,501 121,138 -2,637
-49,423 -51,337 1,914
173,286 171,115 2,171
1,443,220  1,348962 94,258
725,134 731,452 -6,318
21,363 21,642 -279
42,840 53,088 -10,248
91,450 86,654 4,836
42,883 35,794 7,089
95,637 93,120 2,517
¥ 4,896,465 ¥4,873,304 ¥ 23,161

(Note 1) These financial statements are not audited by independent auditors.

{Note 2) These financial statements are based on US GAAP.




Marubeni Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

Millions of yen
June 30 March 31
2007 2007 Variance
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans ¥ 201,769 ¥ 170,423 ¥ 31,346
| Current portion of long-term debt 126,210 164,485 -38,275
| Notes and accounts payable-trade
| Notes and acceptances payable 204,949 210,151 -5,202
‘ Accounts payable 730,950 762,520 -31,570
Due to affiliated companies 46,266 52,288 -6,022
Advance payments received from customers 216,977 204,489 12,488
! Income taxes 17,450 17,219 231
Deferred income taxes 5,578 4,632 946
- Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 284,034 294,059 -19,025
! Total current liabilities 1,834,183 1,880,266 -46,083
Long-term debt, less current portion 2,154,684 2,130,137 24,547
Employees’ retirement benefits 11,624 12,075 -451
Deferred income taxes 31,225 29,987 1,238
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 76,731 75,385 1,346
Shareholders’ equity:
Paid-in capital 262,686 262,686 -
Additional paid-in capital 155,906 155,905 1
Retained earnings (losses) 330,881 298,011 32,870
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities 113,954 102,899 11,055
| Currency translation adjustments, net of reclassification -38,931 -39,547 616
Net unrealized losses on derivatives -8,642 -6,410 -2,232
Minimum pension liability adjustment -27,262 -27,603 341
| Cost of common stock in treasury -574 -487 -87
Total sharcholders’ equity 788,018 745,454 42,564
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥ 4,806,465 ¥ 4,373,304 ¥ 23,161




Marubeni Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Income

Millions of ven
1" Quarter
FY2007 FY2006 Variance Ratio
Revenues:
Revenues from trading and other activities ¥ 905596 ¥ 766,472 ¥ 139,124 18.2%
Commissions on services and trading margins 49,149 45,961 3,188 6.9%
Total 954,745 812,433 142,312 17.5%
Cost of revenues from trading and other activities -821,228 -685,355 -135,873 19.8%
Gross trading proful 133,517 127,078 6,439 5.1%
Expenses and other:
Selling, general and administrative expenses -89,641 -84,548 -5,003 6.0%
Provision for doubtful accounts -178 1,256 -1,434 -
Interest income 5,952 6,122 -170 -2.8%
Interest expense -16,444 -12,179 -4,265 35.0%
Dividends received 7,506 3,067 4,439 144.7%
Impairment loss on investment securities -342 -146 -196 134.2%
Gain (loss) on sales of investment securities 8,830 2,057 6,773 320.3%
Gain (loss) on property and equipment 425 -153 578 -
Equity in eamnings (losses) of affiliated companies-net 13,709 14,061 -352 -2.5%
Qther — net 3,642 2,546 1,096 43.0%
Total -66,541 -67,917 1,376 -2.0%
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 66,976 59,161 7815 13.2%
Provision for income (axes -21,427 -22,357 930 4.2%
Income (loss) from continuing operations 45,549 36,804 8,745 23.8%
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries -1,411 -1,982 571 -28.8%
Net Income ¥ 44,138 ¥ 34,322 ¥ 9316 26.8%
Basic eamings per share  fyen) 25.46 21.67 3.79 17.5%
Diluted eamnings per share (yen) 25.46 20.17 5.29 26.2%
Total volume of trading transactions
(Based on Japanese accounting practice) 2,399,610 2,209,193 190,417 8.6%
Operating profit (Based on Japanese accounting practice) 43,698 43,786 -88 0.2%
Other comprehensive Income(loss):
Net Income 44,138 34,822 9,316 26.8%
Net Unrealized (losses) gains on investment securities 11,055 -16,283 27,338 -
Foreign Currency translation adjustments 616 -3,856 4,472 -
Net unrealized (losses)gains on derivatives -2,232 -2,320 88 -3.8%
Minimum pension liability adjustment 341 - 341 -
Total (Comprehensive income) 53,918 12,363 41,555 336.1%

(Note 1) These financial statements are not audited by independent auditors,
{Note¢ 2) These financial statements are based on US GAAP. (Revenue is presented in accordance with FASB Emerging Issue Task Force (EFTF) 99-19.)




& 1" Quarter of FY2007 (Aprif 1. 2007 June 30 2007)

Total volume of trading tramsactions

Groes tradlng profit

Operaiing profi {loss)

Equity in earzingp (lowses) of affliated compauies
Segment net income (loss)

Segmrot asacty (a4 of Jose J0,2007)

Total volume of trading transactions

Groun trading profis

Operating profh (ins)

Equity in tarciog (loests) of «fTlisted companics
Segpaent w1 Income (ko)

Segment nscts (a5 of June 30,2007)

Total volume of trading transsctions

Gros trading proflt

Dpersting prefli (loss}

Equity i sarnings (losses) of afflinted compralen
Segment et income (lou}

Segment assets (a5 of June 30,2007

@ 1* Quarter of FY2005 (April [, 200-hune 30, 200)

Total volume of trading transaction:

Groum trading profit

Cperwiing proltt (s}

Equity s earnings (lesses) of efTlisted companies
Segment net income (less)

Segment assets (a3 of June 30,2006}

Total voluese of irnding transactions

Gress trading profit

Operxtiag prefit (lows)

Equity in earnings (losses) of affilisted companies
Segment met incume (loas)

Segment azsets (a1 of June 30,2006)

Total volume of tradlng traasactions

Greas trading prefhi

Operating profit (ko)

Equity in earningy (losses} of afTllisted companies
Segment net income (lom)

Segment assen (a3 of June 30,2006)

* Varience

Total volums of trading tramsactions

Groes trading profit

Operxting profit (loss)

Equity n carnings (lases} of affillsted compaghes
Segmont oet income {lon)

Segment assets

Tutal volome of trading transactions

Gross trading profit

Operating profh {loa)

Equity ln earnings (\oases} of affiliated companies
Segment net lncome (lom)

Segment assch

Total volume of trading transactions

Grees trading prefit

Gperating prafli {lon)

Equity tn earnings (lovses) of afTilisted companies
Segment net income (loar)

Sepmatnt sty

Segment Information

Mithons of yen
“:’:‘:_f" Textle o P Chemicak Eoery
321,593 78.683 218413 205309 635,351
18,300 5,150 13,225 7.616 22,486
4,035 572 5,144 2,687 15,139
2214 -53 733 -21 35
4,321 213 2,923 1,199 9,966
576,599 128,795 541,816 200,444 683,180
Metale & Mineral Treaspariation & — Plaut, Ship & Information &
Indeitriul ot Praf
Reseurces achimery e hr;:‘:.n” Communication
255,218 189,790 46,766 133,210 48,115
4,887 14,740 5,999 5227 5,505
2,427 1,74} 1,187 1,342 =220
3143 1,258 1,228 1,091 -146
4,467 7,185 2.692 1,879 -256
295,156 182.557 429,793 348,710 114,480
OVErNtas carpers
P T Ll CR—
32,198 9,261 248 360,524 -140,071 2,399,610
8,003 2,404 248 19,673 -936 133,517
4,328 -50 -64 1,604 1,824 43,698
9 310 3,361 478 -1 13,709
1,830 1,560 3,138 698 2,313 44,138
264,237 124,467 101,219 468,077 338,935 4,896,465
Milloms of yen
e ow et ames e
252927 78,390 197,981 191,571 EAFRE]]
17,044 5,529 13,218 3,170 20,547
3,388 87 5,309 12,675 13,642
1,969 B | -$ .63 BC
1,698 -0 2,258 1,236 7,102
549,217 131,757 538,417 201,723 688,630
Transpertztion & &
an 4 Mineral !s:ntrh! Fawer Frojects Il:::llﬂn cl:'::.:'h *
Muchinery FProjecty
239,783 14] 446 58,404 154,084 49,323
4,708 13,126 5575 3,691 6,136
4,500 2,989 3,672 114 454
3527 911 1,447 1,153 -147
T.155 2,299 2,968 874 -329
279,991 210,352 391,009 342,779 116,524
Develepeuent & Timance Lagistics & Lrus & Siecl aversoas carpacain rpoiats & comolidated
Coastraction Nrw Butinem Prodect mbeidieries & branches  elimination eie.
68,626 9,773 191 301,173 96,670 2,209,193
12,072 1,442 191 16,624 -1,995 127,078
8,026 458 -286 1,144 ~1,478 43,786
225 220 4,519 357 -57 14,061
4,523 1,968 3,929 1,3% -3,178 34,822
265,617 118,501 101,606 412,44% 423,733 4,873,304
Millions of pen
"m Textle e Fracct & Chemicsh Energy
68,666 293 20,434 13,738 63,160
1,256 21 7 -554 1,939
647 485 -165 12 1,497
245 18 742 42 -45
1,623 233 665 «37 2,864
27,382 -2.962 5,39 -1,284 -5.450
m‘;:.:- ,mu ;  Trcwperiaten & oo Prfece Plact, Ship & c‘:n ..
Machinery Projects
25,435 48,344 -11,638 -15.874 -1,208
179 1,614 424 1,536 -231
-2.073 754 ~2485 1,228 234
=384 347 =219 -62 1
-2,688 4,586 276 1,005 13
15,165 -27.795 38,784 5931 6,044
Devdopoeat & Fimance Logstics & 1ron & Steel overaem corporste & consolidated
Construction New Builacw PFroducts mbsldiiries & brascher  eltmination et
-36,423 =512 57 59,351 -43,401 190417
4,069 -38 57 3049 1,059 6,439
-3,698 -508 222 460 3,302 .88
~146 90 -1,158 121 56 -352
-2,693 -408 -791 -641 5.501 9,316
-1,380 5,966 -387 54,634 -84,798 23,161

(Now 1} Sepment information is not audited by independent suditors.
(Nokc2)  For Japancee investons’ convenicace, Total volurne of tradmyg transacrioes and Opevazing profs are chown scoring to Japasess scrounting practice.

(Bowe 3} Inter-scgment traaractions am gescrally priced in accondmce with the prevailiag eurkst prices.



1. Number of consolidated companies

Marubeni Corporation
Consolidated Companies

June 30 Established | Liquidated March 31 Variance
2007 Bought Divestiture 2007
Subsidiaries Domestic 144 3 -1 142 +2
Qverseas 242 7 -8 243 -1
Total 86 10 -9 385 +1
Adffiliated companies Domeslic 49 2 -1 48 +1
QOverseas 129 7 -6 128 +1
Total 178 9 -7 176 +2
Domestic 193 5 -2 190 +3
Overseas m 14 -14 kYal -
Total 564 19 -16 561 +3
2. Major companies that have been newly included during this term:
Marubeni
Company name Capital Group's equity Type of business
portien
. : Holding company of & containerboard manufacturer in china
Yuema International Co., {Caymans) Lid. UsSh 1644 mil 17.73% {a member of the Long Chen Paper Co., Lid. Group)
Agrenco Bioenergia Industria ¢ Comercio . . o
de Oleos e Biodiesel LTDA. USD  120.0mil 33.33% Production and sales of soi oil, bio-deiscl and soymeal
Intragrated Resources Holdings, Inc. UsD 63.1 mil 100.00%  Paper distribution in U.S.A.
. . . Joint holdig company with Sun Wah Group for development of
Sun Wah (Tianjin) Properties Ltd, HKD  133.0mil 30.00% realestate in Tianjin, Chine.
3. Major companies that have been excluded during this term:
Mantbeni
Company name Reasans of exclusion  Group's cquity Tvype of business
portion
N.V. NISSAN BELGIUM S.A. . Sold 100.00%  Whelesale and distribution of nissan autmobiles
P.T. UNITEX Sold 25 23% Spining, weaving, dyting, printing and finishing of cotton and
cotton fabrics
P.T. ASTRA MULTI FINANCE Sold 20.00%  Sales and finance of automobiles
Evm Leasing Corporation Sold 32.50%  Lease of oil production facility to national ail company in Brazil
Profit-making/oss-making consolidated companies (Unit: billions of yen)
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006 Variance
Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total
Profic-making |NV. of compaics 122 261 403 144 262 406 2 -1 -3
companies  gumius amount 120 286 a5 126 209 334 -0.6 77 7.1
Lots-making |Ne. of compaaies 51 110 161 50 o 148 1 12 13
companies Deficit amornt -2.0 -17 -3.6 -l4 -23 -37 06 0.6 00
Total No, of companics 19 n 564 194 60 554 1 11 10
Net peofitflon 10.0 269 369 1.2 186 98 -l.2 82 T
Surplus company ratio 73.6% 70.4% 71.5% 4.2% 723% 73.3% 1.6 point -2.4 pointy  -1.8 pointy

(Note} Surplus/Deficit amount is based on equity method




